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THIRTY-SECOND DAY

! United States Pascific Fleet,

i Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,
'[ Guam, Marianas Islands,

Thursday, December 16, 1948,

I The coamission met at 9 a.m,
i‘ Present:
| Rear Admival Arthur G. Robiasem, U, S, Navy,

Captain Daniel J. Sweeney, U. 8. Navy,
Iieutenant Colonel Harry W, NeCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United

|

I

i! No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present. I
H Herbert L. Ogden, the witness under examination whea the adjowrmment was
i

|'

entered, He was warned that the ocath previcusly taken was still
binding, and continmued his testimony.

I

| (Cross~examination concerning the testimony of Tamaka, Massharu from '
|mm¢mum¢m,mﬂn-m.] |

7. Q. W1l the witness read question and answer nmmber 26 from the testli-
mony of Tanaka?

|i The witness read from the testimony of Tamaka, Masaharu as follows: :
"26, Q. Were there any staff offisers during the air raid who
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e Q. Doss this testimony relate to the bayometing, spearing, or beheading
prisoners of war on that date?
It does.

There being no objection, it was so received.

? Examined by the accused concerning the testimony of Taneda, Yasuo from
the record of the trial of Iwanami, Hiroshi, et al:

|
Bi. Q. W1l the witness read the following questions and the answers

|t.h-:utn: 1, 3, 4, 5, 20, 21, 22, 24, 26, 27, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, and 347
! The witness read from the testimony of Taneda, Yasuo as follows:

". State your name and former rank,

Taneda, Yasuo, w Captain, Imperial Japanese Navy."
e
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m
i A. The talk that was held with the vice admiral was
I conoerned mersly with the conditions of the officers who were
I siek in the hospital, and also miscellanecus items, After the
| aduiral had returned I told Captain Iwanami that about thirty
ninutes previously the prisomers had gome by on a truck,

| 32. Q. Before the conversation between yourself, Hara and

Iwanami had ceased were you approached by anyome?
A. A considerable time after the prisoners had paseed in

' Cross-exanined by the jmige advocate concerning the testimony of Taneda,
Yasuo from the record of the trial of Iwanami, Hiroshi, et al:

|:ilg; Will the witaess resd questicas 12, 13, 1, 15, 16, 75, 76, and T7
i answers thereto’

The witoess read from the testimony of Taneda, Yasuo as follows:




16, Q. Were there any other officers present when you had
this conversation?
A, Almost all the officers were present.”

: "?:. Q. You testified that four or five days before the inmei-
' , during the evening meal, the head of the hospital said,
. "Would you like to experiment with priseoners?' Were you the
| only one that this was asked of, or were there others?

| A, At first, I was sitting in front of the head of the
{ hospital, and he asked me this,

|

| 76. Q. Did the head of the hospital ask any of the others?"
| This question and line of questioning was objested to by the mccused on the
||pmﬁ that it went beyond the seope of the direct examination.

I

{ The judge advocate replied,
ln The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

[f

I The witness continued to read from the testimony of Taneda, Yasuo as
| follows:

| " 4, e aleo asked the others.

, 77. Q. VWhom did he ask?

i A, As I recall, the only ones he asked personally were
Surgeon Captain Shirota, Surgeon Commander Okamura, and

\ Surgeon Lieutenant Nabetani, and as no one was willing, he
| asked the perscns assembled if anyone would like to do so."

The witness read from the testimony of Taneda, Yasuc as fellows:

"359. Q. Before Iwanami said to you, 'Let us go wp the hill’,

|
[
‘86, Q. Will the witness read questions 39 and 40 and the answers theretol l
i
|
|. did you ssy anything to him? |
|
|

. A:. I asked him what are you going to do and how are you

= 40, Q. And how did he answer?
f A. He said he wap going to do it with bayonete and spears.”

|87, Q. Will the witness read questions and answers mmbered 53, 60, 61 and

The witness read from the testimony of Taneda, Yasuo as follows:
il 553, Q. Who d4id the
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L.
U
I do not remember if all of them were
ones who were armed but there were others elsewhere,

twenty persons,
armed and as I recall, those in that group were not the

Ly

i=

» Hiroshi from the record of the trial of Iwanami, Hireshd,

As I recall about sixteen to twenty as I stated
There were some who had bayonsts and some who had

With what were thay armed?

61, Q. How many men on that hill were armed?
A,

Examined by the accused concerning the offer im evidence of the

mony of Iwanami

ot als

88, Q. Will the witness read questions and answers mmbered 43, 104 and
The witness read from the testimony of Taneda, Yasuo as follows:

o7

the killing of two
uly 20, 1944 at Dublon Island on Truk?

Is this the trial im which Ivensmi was tried for
That was one of the incidents charged against him,

can prisoners of war om J

89,
Ameri
90.

Surgeon Captain Iwanami, Hiroghi is and what his
presently confimed at the War Crimes Stockade on Guam as & war

Do you know where
mlhtum

He 1s

u'i.tl.-.‘l.

Q.

91,
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|| The accused replied,
| The oommission snnounced that the objection was sustained,

|! Exanined by the accused concerning the offer in evidence of defense
i"du-ntﬂi:
|

192, Q. Have you a complete record of the War Crimes Trial of Kobayashi,
|Masashi, tried on Guam?

|;1. I have the Commander Marianas certified eopy of that record.

193. Q. Was Admiral Kobayashi tried fer an offense relating to prisomers of
{war in the Southwest Pacifie inelwding priscners of war on Jaluit?

- This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
|4t was irrelevant and immaterial,

The acoused replied,
f The commission announced that the cbjection was sustained,

|
'9%4, Q. Was there introduced and accepted into evidence as Exhibit 57,
;;n.:..o. Ne. 2976 relating te regulations concerning military punishment im
| the Marshall Islands?

|Ae That is ecrrect,

95, Q. Has the witness in his possession a certified copy of this doowment |
marked defense doowsent mumber 157 |
| Ao I“.h"ith- |

196, Q. Doss this docwment alse seatain in paragraph 2e therect the portiom
iMﬂhﬂﬂMlﬂuMhhmm
L “m- "

|
97. Q. Does paragraph 2b(2) indicate that there were any Cembined Fleet

militery regulations regarding punishment?
A, It doss,

Defense document nmmber 15, produced by the witness, was submitted to
the judge advecats and to the sommission, and by the accused offered ia
evidence,

jpt
The juige advecate cbjected to the wifes in evidense of this doswment
-ﬁ-p—lmummmmmm.

The acoused replied.

The cammission announced that the objectieam not sustained, There
H!‘I‘“ﬁjﬂ“ﬂ.ﬁ“ﬂﬂﬂ:ﬂ,-‘h”
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Q)

Q. Will the witness read frem Exhibit 39, paragraph 2b(2)?

8

(The witness read from Exhibit 39 as requested,)

The jwige advocate moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it
F.-m-lmtﬂl—hﬂ.u

d The acoused replied,
|: The commission announced that the motion was not sustained,

The commission then, at 10:15 a.m,, tock a recess wntil 10:35 a.m,, at |
time it recomvensd. |

|
‘ Exanined by the accused concerniag Exhibit 39:
|

T

Fresent: mu--—w-,u-:-u-m,mm,mmJ
and the interpreters.

|

i

|

|
Arehie L. Haden, junior, yecman first class, U, 5. Navy, reperter,
No witnesses not ctherwise comnected with the trial were present,

|

|

|

. Herbert L. Ogden, the witness under examination when the recess was
‘taken, sntered. He was warned that the cath previously taken was still

nwhth:upmummutm
99, Q. Will the witness read paragraph 2 b 1 of this doomment by K., Asakai?
(The witness read from Exhikdt 39 as requested,)

1100, Q. _ Is there anything in this doowment whish indicates i any way that
information contained in this doewment is frem the personal AB

illﬂl. Q. Was this document prepared by a branch of the Japanese Govermment?
It was prepared by the Central Lisisem Office of the Japanese Govermment, ]

108, Q. mm-nm-mmm, 132, 133, and 134 from the
testimony of Furuki, Hidesalu, the second in command of Jaluit Atell and
commander of the Army unit en Jaluit Atoll duriag the tour of duty
Admiral Masuda?

As That is correct,

104. Q. Hllihtmhw.tﬁ.nﬂuwdhﬂ“h“
-ldﬂ;-lﬁ-iht—-ruﬂl- been proclaimed ea Jaluit Atell?

&
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105. Q. Will the witness read paragraph 2e¢ of this Exhibit 397
| (The witness read from Exhibit 39 as requested,)

Whthmudcmnﬂuthaﬂuhcﬂdm&nofﬂm
doomment #16:

106, Q. Have you in your possession an authentic copy of the War Crimes Act
of 19%5 of the Commonwealth of Australia published by authority of L, F,
J.I-u;n, Commonwealth Govermment Printer, Canberra?

A. have,

107. Q. nmmnmmmmmgmmmm|
A. It 1s.

108, Q. Doss the act provide for the trial and punishment of War Criminals

[|for War Crimes committed durimg War II against persons resideat in
;Wumﬂmﬂnuﬁhmt :
{Ase Tt does,

|109, Q. Is this War Crimes Act of 1945 the authority under which the
|Australian War Orimes trials, records introduced by you as a proseoution’
(witaess at this trial, were convened and held, said records being Exhibits
13, 1, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, and 207

i| This question was objected to by the judge advocate om the ground that
|it ealled for an opinion from the witness.

The acoused replied,

| The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

I
. + Q. Do you have in your possession a certified copy of this document?
| Xeos,

: Defense dooument mwmber 16, produced by the witness, was sulmitted to
fthe judge advocate and to the commission, and by the acoused offered in

|

i The judge advocate objected to the receipt in evidente of this document |
the ground that it was immaterial unless the socused was trying to attack
Jjurisdiotion of the Awstralian ecourts,

i

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained., There

no further objection, the doowment was received, and is appended
"Exhibit 40, = 2

| Exsmined by the asoused comeerning Exhibdt 40:

lﬂlﬁ“ﬂﬁ“h““llﬂ“

(The witness read from Exhibit 40 as requested.)




Cross-exsmined by the judge advosate concerning Exhibit 40:

112, Q. Will the witness read the definition of War Crimes as it appears in '
'seotion 3 of this Aet?

(The witness read from Exhibit 40 as requested,)
W Exanined by the acoused concerning the offer in evidenss of defense

dooments #17 and 18:

|113.Q. Has the witness im his possession certain surrender doowments from
|!mmmrm-¢umtuhnrh-ﬂ

i '™ Ihnmutheqiudmm&_tntmﬂrlm
'troops on Nauru and Ocean Islands on September 13, 1945 and also the imst
on Ocean Island on October 1, 1945,

114. q. mm-mmmu-m.amwmmh
A m:»-mmuummmummmmmumm.

I Defense dceuments nmber 17 and 18, preduced by the witaess, ]

. were
submitted to the judge advocate and to the commission, and by the aceused
offered in evidence.

mmumwm&:wmmumw
|defense documents #17 and 18:

:|115.ﬂ. On what date does this certified copy indicate that this surrender |
|at Ocean Island tock place?
e A% 1600 on 16 August 1945,

116, Q. Will the witmess reexamine page three of this doowment and indicate
what date the surrender tock place?

e Mmamdmmmtmmw-..mu—
October 1, 1945,

'u'r. Q. Then the witaess' previous answer is imsceurate, Itmaflh AB
|(surrender which took place sarlier?

As That is correct. The latter answer applied to the surrender on Ocean,
|

18, Q. mmummmmnmuwummh |
both Nauru and Ocean Islands and state when this doomment of surrender of

‘the Japanese forces on Nauru and Ocean Island took place?
:.l. 13 September 1945,

There being no objection, the doowments were so received and are
Mwwnu'mmmw. |

Exanined by the asoused comcerning Exhibdt 41:
A19. Q. Will the witness read Exhibit 41:
(The witness read Exhibit 41,)
« Q. Did the witness read the entire doowment of Exhibit 417

+  Yos,

L 411
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‘.J Cross-examined by the judge advocate comcerning Exhibit 4l:

(121, Q. Under the provisions of Exhibit 41 which you have read, on what date
did Captain Soeda surrender?

This question was objected to by the socused on the ground that the
gidmumt speaks for itself.

'i The judge advooate replied.
| The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
/A, On 13 September 1945,

I
1122, Q. What islands @14 he surrender?
A, Nauru and Ocean Islands,

!|123.Q. Does the aceeptance of this surrender by Brigadier J. R. Stevenson,
'|m.hm11tmumummmcmmﬂm
:lnmnunﬂrumaummmm

i This question was objected to by the acoused om the ground that it
|;unurwnmumﬂum.

mmmunphd.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

A, It does.
The witness was duly warned,

I The commission then, at 11:25 a.n., took a recess until 2105 p.n., at
|which time it recomvened,

|
Pressnt: All the members, the jwige advocate, the scoused, his comnsel,
\and the interpreters,

i Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter.

| No witnesses not otherwise comnected with the trial were present.

Herbert L, Ogden, the witness under examination when the recess mas
taken, entered. He was warned that the cath previously taken was still

m,lﬂﬂ-illﬂmhﬂw-
I Examined by the asoused eoncernimg Exhibit 42:

124, Q. Will the witness read frem Exhibit 42 doewn to and including para~
" .—llﬂﬂ-mm‘l

(The witness read from Exhibit 42 as requested.)

J:rf




|| Cross-examined by the judge advoocate concerning Exhibit 42:

Ot 5 .0

125. Q. On what date was this document of surrender signed by the commanding
of ficer of the Japanese forces on Ocean Island?
A, On the first day of October 1945.

126. Q. Was this surrender accepted by Brigadier Stevenson as representa-
tive of the United States Theater Command on behalf of the Commander in Chief
fle!_fir: and Pacific Ocean Areas on the firast day of October 19457

» It was.

|| The commiseion did not desire to examine this witness.

The accused did not desire to reexamine this witnees.

The witness said that he had nothing further to state.
The witness was duly warned and withdrew,

A witnees for the defense entered and was duly sworn.
Examined by the judge agvocate: *

3 b Q. BState your name,
A, Meurice E. Currie.

2, ﬁ What is your rank and to what office are you attached?
A. Commander, USNR, attached to the office of the Director War Crimes,

3. Q. If you recognize the accused, state as whom.
A. Former Vice Admiral Chuichi Hara.

EBmmined by the accused:

Examined by the accused concerning the offer in evidence of defense
document #211:

b Q. Where were you and what was your station on November 11, 19487
A. I was with the Commander Marianas Idaison Office, Tokyo, Japan.

5. Q. While you were at the Commander Merianas Liaison Office did you
receive interrogatories to be propounded to the Director of the Second
Demobilisation Bureau, Japanese Government?

A. Yes.

6. Q. Did you interrogate the Director Becond Demobilisation Burean

acocording to these interrogatories?
A, I did.,

T Q. Have you in your possession interrogatories propounded to the
Director of the Second Demobiliszation Bugpau, Japanese Government, and a
Mﬂxumm-:hdum-uuawutnu

L I -

8. Q. Are these interrogatories signed by the parties concerned?
. Mm.
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9. Q. In what language was this depositiom written?
|A«  In English,

!lﬁ. Qs Was the deposition signed by the deponent and the parties concerned?
|1§ It wan,

Defense doomment number 21, produced by the witness, was submitted to
||the judge advocate and to the commission, and by the acoused offered in
evidence,

There being mo objection, it was 0 received and is appended marked
"Exhibit 43."

| Examined by the accused concerning Exhibit 43:
|11, Q. W1l the witness resd Exhibit 437
(The witness read Exhibit 43.)

Examined by the accused concerning the offer im evidence of defense
docmment #22:

Q« Does the witness have in his possession imterrogatories propounded
to the Director of the Second Demobilisation Bureau, Japanese Govermment,
and which is marked as defense document #22, and the deposition in answer

|i.'!.. g. Are these interrogatories signed by the parties concerned?
™ o8,

ks Qs+ Was this deposition signed by the deponent and other parties
fumu;::-ﬂ
e .

Defense dooument number 22, produced by the witness, was submitted to
[tbe judge advocate and to the commission, and by the acoused offered inm
;rlﬂd-u-.
' There being no objection, it was so received and is appended marked
"Exhibit 44",

Exanined by the acoused concerning Exhibdt 44:
: « Q+ Will the witness read Exhibit 447
(The witness reed the first through the sixth interrogatories and the
thereto, )

The judge advocate moved to strike out the answer to the sixth interre-
gatory on the ground that it was speculative,

The accused made mo reply,

The commission directed that the answer to the sixth imterrogatery be
ptricken out,

|
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| gatory on the ground that it was speculative.

|| thereto,)

(The witness read the seventh and eighth interrogatories and the
answers thereto,)

The judge advocate moved to strike out the answer to the eighth interros

The accused replied,

The ecommission directed that the words "Therefore, such matter might
have been taken up as a subject for disoussion in the Cabinet Ministers'
Meoting or others™ be stricken out of the answer to the eighth interrogatery,

(The witness reed the ninth and tenth interrogatories and the answers

The judge advocate moved to strike out the tenth inmterrogatory and the
answer thereto om the ground that it was incompetent, irrelevant, immaterial,

and an opinion of the deponent,

The accused replied.

The commission directed that the words "Chuiohi for truthfulness" im
the tenth interrogatory and the words "His general reputation for
has been wery good™ in the answer to the tenth interrogatory be stricken out

The commission then, at 3:10 p.m,, took a recess until 3:30 p.m., at [
which time it recoavened.

Present: All the members, the juige advocate, the acoused, his counsel,
and the interpreters,

Paul ¥, Coste, junier, yecman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter. '
No witnesses not otherwise comnected with the trial were present,
Mauriee E, Cwrrie, the witness under examination when the recess was

taken, entered. He was warned that the cath previously taken was still
binding, and continued his testimony.

(Examingtion comtinued,)

Exanined by the acoused concerning the offer in evidence of defense
doouments #2340 and #23B:

16, Q. When you were the Commander Marianas Lisison Officer im Telyo,
JwimmmMMHMMT

18, Q. How many coples of the doowments do you have?
A, I bave two doomments.

19, Q. These two sets of interrogatories; are they signed by the parties
A. T
{1 M
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| 20, Q. Are these two depositions signed by the deponent and the parties
conosrned?

§| A. Yes.

I Defense docowments number 234 and number 238, produced by the witaess,
'Jm submitted to the judge advocate and to the commission, and by the accus
mnm

I. There being no objection, they were so received and are appended marked
| "Exhibit 45" and "Exhibit 46",
|

| Examined by the accused concerning Exhibdt 45:
l'!l. Q. Will you read Exhibit 457

(The witness read Exhibit 45.)

Exanined by the aceused comcerning Exhibit 46:
| 22, Q. Will you read Exhibit 467

|
|
|
I (The witness reed the first imterrogatory of Exhibit 46,)
|

The first interrogatory was objected to by the judge advocats on the
Ipmdthtit-linﬂnmm_mm-dmrwu opinien of
||th-d-pnunt.

lE The accused replied.
! The commission announced that it would hear the answer before ruling.
i! (The witness reed the answer to the first interrogatery,)

The judge advocate moved to strike out this answer on the ground that
litmimlmntndiﬂtﬂhlluumnuurthhm

| The ccmmd directed that the first interrogatory and the answer
||thlrﬂeh out.

IE (n;umummmﬂuummm-mmm-

| The judge advocate moved to strike out the answer to the third
Ihwﬂummmtummw. irrelevant, immaterial,
llﬂuqﬂ.ﬂ--tihw
I

The accused replied,




Examined by the scoused soncerning the offer im evidence of defense
dooment #24:

23. Q. When you were the Commander Narianas Liaison Offiecer im Tokyo, did

you interrogate one Hosogaya, Beshire?
A. 1 aia.

24. Q. Have you in your possessien imterrogatories propounded to Hosogays,
Boshire, and the deposition thereto?
A, I hawve,

25, Q. Are these interrogatories signed by the parties concerned?
A Mmr

26, Q. Is this deposition signed by the deponent and other parties
ooncer
A, It 1s,

Defense docwment number 24, produced by the witness, was sulmitted to
the judge advocate and to the commission, and by the accused offered in
evidence, There being mo objection, it was so received, and is appended

| marked "Exhibit A7,

Examined by the accused concerning Exhibit 47:
27, Q. Wil you read Exhibit A7?

(mnm-mmmnwmmmm-um
answers thereto,)

The judge advocate moved to strike the last three sentences begimning

| with the sentence "It was rumored” through the remsinder of the answer %o

I”.

| the seventh inmterrogatery on the ground that they were opinions of the
| depoment.

The acoused made ne reply.
The cesmission directed that the sentences be striecken out,

Examined by the accused concerning the offer in evidence of defense
document #25:

28, Q, When you wers at Cosmander NMariamas Liaison Office im Tokyo, Japan,
did you interrogate Alhara, Aritaka?
A, I a4,

29, Q. Have you in your possession interrogatoriss prepounded to Alhara,

Aritaka, and the depositiom thereto?
A: 1 hawe,

417




.,

There being no objection, it was so0 received, and is appended

marked "Exhibit

Defense document mwmmber 25, produced by the witness, was submitted to
| the judge advooate and to the commission, and by the accused offered in

| evidenoce.

Exanined by the acoused conceraning Exhibit 48:
Cross-examined by the judige advocate concerning Exhibit 48:
Does the deponent state in his second interrogatory when he arrived

| 33. Q. Will you read Exhibit 48T
(The witness read Exhibit 48,)

Q.

He states "I arrived at headquarters on Truk to assume my duties on

xmu‘mmm“u

maintenance of peace and
the fifth

to handl

trouble

there was
forces on

did pot

FH

According to Aihara's answer to the seventh interregatery, whe did
Does Alhara, the deponent, in any place in this deposition state

Mugikura was the junier im rank®,

Q.

mﬂuth--dwutﬂ.m, Kobayashi, or Mugikura?
He states "During the time that Kobayashi was the eommander,

418

In answer to the eighth interrogatery, doss the deponent state whe

In answering the ninth interrogatory, Albara states "I do not lmow
mmw:mmmuwm
was in sharge of the maintenance of pease?

||mnwmmumumum-.
Reexamined by the acoused concerming Exhibit 48:




-
et

(-

)

i
£
;
|
:
f
E
!

camander, Lieutenant Geheral Mugikura, comoerning the maimtenance of
I 414 not receive any orders from Nugikura concerning gemeral

| afministration” and he added "These orders stated that the army would maintain

the peace and order®,

The witaess was duly warned.

; The cosmission then, at 4:25 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.n., temorrow,
| Friday, December 17, 1948,




THIRTY-THIRD DAY
United States Pacific Fleet,

Guam, Mariames Ielands,
Friday, December 17, 1948.

The commiseion met at 9105 a.m.

Fresent:

]'1 Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. 8. Navy,

: Captain Daniel J. Sweeney, U. S. Navy,

Iieutenant Colonel Harry W. McCormick, Quartermaster Corpe, United

| States Army Reserve,

I Iieutenant Colonel Newton L. Chamberlain, Signal Corps, United States
‘ Army,

Iieutenant Commander Ralph I, Gerber, U, 8. Navy,
| Captain Kermit H, Shelly, U, 5. Marine Corpe, members, and
| Lieutenant David Boltom, U. 5. Havy, judge advocate,
Archie L, Haden, junier, yeoman first claszs, U. B. MNavy, reporter.
The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters,

|| The record of proecesdinge of the thirty-second day of the trial was
read and approved,

4: lo witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
| Maurice B, Currie, the witness under examination when the adjourmment
| was taken, entered. He was warned that the cath previcusly taken was still
!‘hilﬂing and continued his testimony.

! Examined by the sccused concerning the offer in evidence of defense
document §#263

| Hisayaki, and the deposition in answer thereto?
4. I de.
|

4. Q. Did you propound interrogatories to this Sceda, Hisayaki?
A. I did,

[| 42+ g. Are these interrogatories signed by parties concerned?
A. (.1 ™

43, Q. In what language is this deposition written?
A, In W"

4he Qs Is thie deposition signed by the deponent and other parties
concerned?
“ It‘ hl

45. Q. Are the interrogatories and deposition marked as defense dooument

Defense document mumber 26, produced by the witmess, was submitted teo
= ﬂljﬂldﬂﬂhnﬂhmnﬂldﬂmhﬂumﬂlﬂnﬂh
evidence, mmm:-gjuuuﬁ-lmﬁmnmlm:ﬂh
497,

Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,

40, Q. Do you have in your possession interrogatories propounded to Bﬁldlp{




| 52, Q. Ie the interrogatory and deposition marked as defense document 2T

Exanined by the mccused concerning Exhibit 49:
46, Q. Will the witness read Exhibit 497
(The withees read Exhibit 49.)

Bxamined by the accused concerning the offer in evidence of defense
dooument #271

47. Q. Do you have in your possession interrogatories propounded to .
Taneda, Teumeo, and the depositions in answer thereto?

A, I de. |

48, Q. Did you interrogate Taneda? '

A. I did, |
1

49, Q. Are these interrogatories signed by parties concerned?

4, They are,

50, Q. In what language is this deposition written? '

A.  In English. |

51. Q. Is this deposition signed by deponent and other parties concerned?
A, It is,

4. It 1is,

Defense document mumber 27, produced by the witmess, was submitted to
the judge advocate and to the commission and by the accused effered in
evidence, There being mo objection, the document was so received and is
appended marked "Exhibit 50%.

Examined by the accused concerning Exhibit 50t

53, Q. Will the witness read Exhibit 50 except imterrogatory 14, since
interrogatories 13 and 1) are entirely identical?

(The witnese read the first, second, third, fourth, fifth, sixth and
seventh interrogatories and the amswers thereto, and the eighth interrogatory.

The eighth interrogatory was objected to by the judge advocate om the
ground that it called for an opinion ef the witnesa.

The accused replied,

The commiseion announced that the objection was not sustainmed,

(The witness read the answer to the eighth interrogatory.)

The judge advocate moved to strike out the first and last sentences
?ﬂmh:h eighth imterrogatory on the ground that they were an opind

The sccused made no reply.

" The commission directed that the last sentence of the answer to the
eighth interregatory be stricken.
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(The witness read the nimth, temth, eleventh, twelfth, and thirteenth
interrogatories and the answers thereto, and the fifteenth interrogatory.)

The fifteenth interrogatory was objected to by the judge advocate on
the ground that it was irrelevant, immaterial, incompetent, hearsay, and
called for a self-serving statement,

The accused replied.

| The commission announced that the objection was not sustained, subject
to a motion to strike,

i (The witness read the answer to the fifteenth interrogatory.)

The judge advocate moved to strike out the answer to the fifteenth
| interrogatory on the ground that it was hearsay, self-serving, immaterial and
| incompetent.

The accused made no reply.
The commission was cleared.

The commission was opened and all parties to the trial entered,

i
Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman firet class, U. 8. Navy, reperter, |
|

|

| .
] The commission directed that the fifteenth imterrogatory and the answer
I thereto be stricken out.

Examined by the accused concernming the offer in evidence of defense
’ document #28:

]:5!»- Q. Do you have in your possession interrogatories propeunded to
| Kawamura, Torso and a deposition in amswer thereto?

; l- I d-“-

|

| 55, Q. Did you inmterrogate Kawamurs, Terao?

| A, I did,

| 5. Q. Are these interrogatories signed by the parties concerned?
A They are.

! 57. Q. Inwhat language is this deposition written?
A, English,

|i . Q. Is this deposition signed by the deponent and other parties concernpd?
A, It is.

59, Q. Is the interrogatories and deposition marked as defense document

| number 287
|1. It s,

Defense document mumber 28, preduced by the witness, was submitted to
|th.julp|hluhulhth-u-inul,udwm:m-ﬂ-rdu
evidence, There being no objection, it was so received and is appended
marked "Exhibit 51%,
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| which time it reconvened,

| 62. Q. How did you come to possess this interregatory of Shoji Takashi?

Exanined by the mccused concerning Exhibit 51s
60, Q. Will the witness resd Exhibit 517
(The witness read Exhibit 51.)
The witness was duly warned.
The commission then, at 11320 a.m., tock a recess until 2:05 p.m., at

Present: A1l the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his
counsel, and the interpreters.

Paul F, Coste, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8. Navy, reporter,
No witnesses not otherwise conmected with the trial were present.

Maurice E, Currie, the witness under examination when the recess was
taken, entered, He was warned that the oath previously taken was still
binding, and continued hie testimony.

Examined by the mocused comcerning the offer in evidence of defense
document #291

6l. Q. Have you in your possession interrogatories propounded to Sheji
Takashi marked as defense document mumber 297
A. I de.

A. Both the defense and the prosecution in the present case prepared

were prepared as interrogatories and cross-interrogatories and forwarded to
the Australian Govermment which designated a person to question 8hoji Takashi

queetion and answer form and returned through official chanmels to the offio
of the Director of War Crimes Pacific Fleet.

63. Q. Does the defense document mumber 20 contain origimsl interrogatori
which were propounded by the defense to Bhoji Takashi?

A, We have coples of the original questions that were prepared by the
defense and prosecution, The original was not returmed from the Australian

Government.
64, Q. Are the questions of the interrogatory which wae received from the

interrogations that they wanted prepounded to Bheji Takashi, These questions

These same questions were propounded to Shojl, the answers were taken down 1:

Australian authorities the same as the interrogatories propounded by
Headquarters Commander Naval Forces Marisnas?
A, Yen,

65. Q. Where is Bhoji Takmshi residing mow?
A, At the War Criminals Compound, Rabaul, New Britain,

66. Q. Whe interrogated Bheoji Takashi?
A. Representatives of the Australian Government,

67. Q. Did Bhoji Takashi duly teke cath before being interregated?
4. He did,
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|
| 68, Q. In what language is the interrogation written?
| A,  Bnglish,

69. Q. Is thie interrogation signed by Sheji Takashi and other parties
| concerned?
ll‘ ‘- I't 1!.

I Defense document number 29 produced by the witness, was submitted teo
the judge advocate and to the commiseion, and by the accused, effered im
evidence, There being mo objection, it was so received and is appended
marked "Exhibit 52",

| Examined by the acoused concerning Exhibit 52:
| T70. Q. Will the witness read Exhibit 527

(The witness read Exhibit 52 as requested.)

| Examined by the accused concerning the offer in evidence of defense
|| dooument #30:

Tl. Q. Have you in your possession an interrogation and deposition of
Sakamoto Takaharu which ie marked as defense document number 307
| A I de.

| 72. Q. How did you come to possess this interrogatory?

| Ao Questions were prepared by the defense in thie case to be propounded

| to Sakamoto Takaharu, They were forwarded to the, Australian Government who
| designated a person to propound these queetions to Sekamoto Takaharu. These
| same questions were propounded to Sakamoto Takaharuj the answers were taken
| down in question and answer form amd returned through official channels te

| the effice of the Directer of War Crimes Pacific Fleet.

i 73, Q+ Was Sakamoto duly sworn before being interrogated?
A, He was,

Tie Qo In what language is this interrogation written?
| ll In m'h.

il 75, Q. Is this imterrogation signed by Bakamoto and other parties con-
| cerned?
A. It is.

Defense document mumber 30 preduced by the witness, was submitted to
the judge advecate and to the commission, and by the accused, offered in
" evidence, There being mo objection, it was so received and is appended

marked "Exhibit 53V,

Eamined by the accused cencerning Exhibit 53
76, Q. Will the witness read Exhibit 537

(The witmess read Bxhibit 53 as requested.)

Bxanined by the accused concerming the effer in evidemce of defense
document #311
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|
‘ T« Qs Have you in your possession interrogatories propounded to the | '
Director of the Second Demobilization Bureau, Iiquidation Division, Japamese |
Government, and the depesition im answer thereto?
A, I do.

I
'78. Q. Are these interrogatories signed by the parties comcerned?
IL. They are.

I| 79. Q. In what language is this deposition written?

—

| Ao In _mﬂh;

|

|B=0. Q. Is this depesition signed by the depement and other parties
concerned?

A It is.

| Defense document mumber 31 produced by the witmess, wae submitted to the
judge advocate and to the commissien, and by the accused offered in evidence,
' There being no ebjection, it was so received and is appended marked "Exhibit

54 .

The witness was duly warned.

The commission then, at 3 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomerrow,
Saturday, December 18, 1948.




THIRTY=-FOURTH DAY
United States Paciflc Fleet,

" Guam, Marlanas Islands,
Saturday, December 12, 1948,

The commission met at 9:10 a.m.

Present:

Rear /dmiral Arthuar G. Robinson, U. 5. Navy,
_ Captain Daniel J. Sweeney, U. 5. Havy,
| Lieutenant Colonel Harry W. MeCormieck, Quartermaster Corpes, Tnited
States Army Reserve,
Lieutenant Colonel Newton L. Chamberlasin, Signal Corps, Tnited
States dArmy,
Lieutenant Commander Ralrh I. Cerber, U. £. Navy,
Captain Kermit H. Shelly, U. S. lMarine Corps, memhers, and
Lieutenant David Relton, 7. S. Navy, Judge advocate,
irchie 1., Haden, junior, yeoman first claes, . 5. Navy, reporter.
The accused, his counsel, snd the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the thirty-third day of the trizl was read
and approved,

Ho witnessesz not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Maurice E. Currie, the witness under examination when the adjournment
was talen, entered, He wae warned thet the cath previously taken was still
binding, and continued his testimony.

Eoamined by the accused concerning Exhibit 54:
£l., Q. M1l the witnese read Exhibit 547

L1

(The witneas resd the “irst throush the ninth interrogatories and the
answers thereto,)

The judge advocate moved to etrike out the words "He helleved that such
a dispatch was presumably not sent, Judglng from the nature of the econtent of
guch a dispatch" on the pround that it was an opinion and epeculative,

The aceused replied.

The commission dirnctad:hat the words "Althourh™ and the words "he
belleves thet such & dispatch was nresum=bly not sent, judging from the
nature of the content of such a dlspatch™ be stricken out.

(The witness read the tenth through the twelfth interrogatories, the
answers thereto, and annex 4,)

The judge advocate moved to strike out the third paragraph of annex 4
on the ground that it was an opinion,

The acoused replied,

The commisslon announced that the motion was not sustalned,
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| which time it recomvened,

li and the interpreters.

Igaduutin and traiming for maval personnel? If yeu were, please state briefl;

for twe and ome-half years. Also when I was lisutenant commander I was onm
beard a training ship for ome year imstructing the midshipmen, Whem I was
commander I was attached to the Naval Gemeral Staff ¢ for three years and
carried out trainmimg amd instructioms amd mameuvers, When I was captain T
was attached te the Navy Mimistry as section chief of the Education Bureau,
Alsc when I was captain I was imstructer at the Naval Staff College, Whem I
was rear admiral I supervised midshipmen for three months as captaim of the
|training ship. When I was rear admiral I was Vice-presideat of the Naval
lhcademy for eight months., That is all.

(The witmess comcluded the reading of Exhibit 54.)

The judge advocate did mot desire to cross-ecamime this witmess,
The commissiom did mot desire to examime this witness.

The witness said that he had nothing further to state.

The witness was duly warmed and withdrew.

The commission them, at 10:05 a.m., took a recess until 10:30 a.m., at
Present: All the members, the judge sdvecate, the accused, his counsel,

Faul F. Coste, junior, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter.
No witmesses not otherwise commected with the trial were present,
A witness for the defense entered and was duly swora,

Examined by the judge advecate: |
Q. Will you state your name and former ramk in the Japanese Naval
Arima, Kaoru, vice admiral,

Q. Where are you presently regiding?
At the War Criminal Witmess Camp, Guam,

Q. If you recognize the accused, state as whem,
Hara, Chuichi.

Examined by the ncnuna&:

Q. While you were im the mavy were you im any way connscted with the

"

When I was lieutemant commander I was am imstructer at the Naval Academy

%

Q. Were you ever attached to a maval establishment on Truk? If so,
Yes, I was. From February 23, 1944 ti11 August 17, of the same year,

Q. What was your positionm during your teur of 4 on Truk?
¢ Commandant of the Fourth Base Ferce and Chief nru:{-:r of the Fourth
L
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|

7. Q. TWere you assigned to the posts at the Fourth Base Force and the

Fourth Fleet concurremtly?
A, I held both posts during March 30, 1944 till April 30, 1944.

8. Q. Whe did you relieve when you became Commandant of the Fourth Base

Force?
A, Vice Admiral Wakabeyashi,

9., Q. Were you briefed by TWakabayashi whem you relieved him?
A, Yes, I was,

10, Q. When you were briefed by Wakabayashi, were there any matters per-
taining te priscners of war?
A. DBo, there were none,

11. Q. Im what manmer were you briefed by Wakabayashi?
« At that time he was sick and I was briefed by him while he explained

| from & written decument.

%’12. ?. Whe did you relieve when you became Chief of Staff of the Fourth
aet
A, I relieved Rear Admiral Sumikawa.

« Q. Were you given a brisfing when you relisved Sumikawa?
A, ©Neo, there was none,

14. Q. When you relieved Sumikawa, did he give you a briefing om prisoners
of war?

This question was objected te by the judge advocate on the groumd that
it was repetitious.

The accused replied,
The commission announced that the objection was mot sustained.
A. No, there was none,

15, Q. BState briefly what you know regarding the kind of education give to
naval personnel in the navy regarding prisonsrs of war.

A. At the Naval Academy the students are taught as part of the imstructioms
international law, general idea regarding prisoners of war. Im the first
peried of the midshipmen's curriculum intermational law is taught and a cepy
of the Navy Regulations are given them, The captaim ef a ship teaches the
young officers em the ship international regulatioms., At the Navel Staff
Cellege the students are givem lessons on intermationsl law frem scademic
authorities on internatiomal law, Regarding intermationsl lew, the Navy
Ministry distributes references books om intermational law to the various
units, and sometimes appeints lecturers te the various umits to lecture om
international law,

16, Q. During your teur eof duty em Truk, did you kmow of amy arrival of

prisoners of war om Truk?
A. I recall there were one or twe, but I am mot definite, °

7. Q. When you say "ene or twe", do you mean ome er two persons, er one or
two occasions?
+ 1 mean one or two perseons on one or two eccasioms,




18, Q. Which was the unit that cenfined the prisoners whe were either cap-
tured en Truk or who arrived en Truk?
A. The Headquarters of the Forty-first Naval Gﬁgrd Unit.

19, Q. Whe was the Commanding Officer of the Ferty-first Naval Guard Unit
during your tour ef duty em Truk?
A, Captain Asane.

20. Q. Did you receive a report around Jume 1944 frem anyone regarding the
death of POWN's whe were in custedy of the Forty-first Guard Unit?
A, Ne, I d1d net.

2l. Q. TWhe was the Head of the Fourth Naval Hespitael in July 19447
| As Surgeon Captain Iwanami.

|
| 22, Q. Around July 1944, did Iwanami talk to you about prisoners of war?
A. No, he did not.

23. Q. De you kmow whether Vice Admiral Hara went to the Fourth Naval Hesp-
| ital around July 20, 19447

I

|

{|[A. Vice Admiral Hara used to go occasionally to the hespital but I do net
| recall when,
1

|

24. Q. Do you know for what purpose Vice Admiral Hara went to the hospital?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that

|1t called for an opinion of the witmess, and was irrelevant and immeterial
|88 no time was specified,

| The accused made no reply.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

ﬁ
“l. At one time Vice Admirsl Hara used to go there to have his teeth treated
qbut he used to go frequemtly to wisit the patients.

|
25, Q. Around the 20th of July 1944 did you hear from Vice Admiral Hars
regarding an incident concerning prisoners of war at the Fourth Naval Hospital?

This question was objected to by the judge advecate on the ground that
it was hearsay.

The accused replied.

The commission anmounced that the objection was mot sustained,
1. H“ I did “t‘.

« Q. Around that time did you hear that an experiment with Spears was com-
ucted at the Fourth Naval Hespital.

This question was objected to by the judge advecate on the groumd that
t was leading.

The accused withdrew the questionm,

o Q. Around July 20, 1944 did you know there was an experiment with
t the Fourth Naval Hospital? .

lthii question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that it
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The accused replied that the experiment with spears is a problem at
issue,

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,
A:. I 4id not hear,

28, Q. When you were Commandant of the Fourth Base Force, what were the
islands under your command?

A m,rmmmammmm-,mmmm
Illlﬂl.

29, Q. th:m:mhhuhmh-u_udmﬂmﬂtymhm
and Ocean?

30. Q. If you kmow the general reputation of Hara and his traits in regard
to the supervigion of his subordinates, and protection of POW's and natives,
please state briefly,

Mlqunlmmuhjuhdhlvth:ﬂpmuuthmtht
it was multiple, and alsc on the ground that no foundation was laid and the

dhumm“qmummwmuwmuu
’l.dtnihntthm.

The accused made no reply,

The commission anmounced that the objection was not sustained.

ill. mmmtm#ﬂu&hﬂhnmmthmnm
mmmmmn-nmm,mmﬂ.mmm.mm

care of them very earnestly,

Cross-examined by the jwdge advocate:

. q. Iou testified that you heard of the arrival of prisonmers of war at
Tﬂk;hﬂﬂdmhundth-mlnl'uplmntthupﬂmur-ﬂ
A, Irm]lthtitmmtiﬂhthhﬂhﬂpﬂrtfr-th?ﬁrﬂrﬂ
Naval Guard Unit,

32, Q+ To vhom were these battle reports addressed?
“L lﬂmllriti-nrmththﬁ—lu-ruﬂhufﬂnilﬂnlm
3. Q. mu-um-n-uuumn-nu-uumuu

A, hnrﬂnﬁnmﬁsmﬂmht&“hﬁhﬂhﬂlmm
wmmmm-.mnmdnm.

Hdmn-nthtit-ltnhﬁhmhiiﬁnh-"#
mentioned or merely one battle report!?

is not olear as I stated previously, I recall, I recollect that therel
or two cccasions.

hm.wmuﬂnmummmmm
lhhhmm-uwﬂ-wmmm

is
the battle the consmption of ssmumition and casualties. Under
battle this item is included,
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| Ko I am not clear whether this was durimg the time I was Commandant of

36. Q.- New at the time you received this report, this battle repert frem
the Forty-first Guard Umit, was the Fourth Base Force still im existemce?

the Fourth Base Force or Chief of Staff of the Fourth Fleet,

37. Q. What happened te the units under the Fourth Base Force when it was
dissolved?
A. They came directly under the Fourth Fleet.

98, Q. New you'wve testified that durimg your tour of duty you heard of the
arrival of prisoners of war on one or two occasienms; did you ever hear of
any prisoners of war being sent to Japan durimg your teur of duty?

A. I do not recall hearing that, but I assumed that they were sent back.

The judge advocate moved to strike the words "But I sssumed that they
were sent back®™ out of the answer em the groumd that they were the epimnien
of the witneas.

The commission directed that the words be stricken eout,

39. Q. Were Japaness maval personnel traimed that a mam who was takem &
prisomer of war had lest all homer amd all right te be treated as a human
being?

A, As T d4id not mctuslly take part im the imstructiems regarding inter-
national law, I cam mot say, but I cam say that whem a Japanese naval
persomnel is captured as a priscner of war, then he'll be punished umder
the Japanese Naval Crimimal Cede,

40. Q. Whem you assumed your duty as Commandant of the Fourth Base Force
and later as Chief of Staff of the Feurth Fleet, you learmed of mo standing
erder regardinsg prisoners of war, is that correct?

A, There was a regulatien en the treatment of prisomers issued by the
Navy Mimistry.

4l. Q. Were these regulations brought te the attentiom of the forces und
your commamnd during your teur of duty either as Commandant of the Fourth Bas
Force or durimg your teur of duty as Chief of Staff of the Fourth Fleet?

A, Quite obvieusly they should have known abeut it, se I did mot brinmg it
te their attentien.

Reexamimed by the accused:

42, Q. By what chamnels is the general battle repert received from the
Forty-first Naval Guard Umit?

A. The repert frem the Ferty-first Naval Guard Unit will be taken dewn by
the telephome eperator and this will be sent te the staff officer whi will
then take it te the chief of staff and te the commamder im chief,

43. Q. You testified that thers was a ohause im the Naval Crimimal Cede

where it is punishable for amy Japamese maval persemnsl te be captured as
priseners of war. De you kmow if there is a clause saying that at any

I;ﬂli;l Japanese naval persemnel will be pumished whem he becomes a prisemer
of war

This queatien was objected te by the judge advecate unless the mccused
is trying te impeach his own witness,

The acoused made ne reply.




The commission announced that the objection was not sustained. *

A, Accurately stating, it means when a Japanese naval personnel for ne
reason becomes a prisoner of war, :

44. Q. During your tour of duty as Commandant of the Fourth Base Force and
Chief of Staff of the Fourth Fleet you testified that you did not bring the
regulations to the treatment of prisoners of war to the attention of the
subordinate unite., Did you have any reason for that?

A. At that time the air raid had become very intense and I was very busily
occupled and I believe that this sort of regulation was presumably issued
by the previous commander in chief or the commandant if necessary, and I did
net bring it to their attention.

The judge advocate did not desire to recross-examine this witness.
‘I The commission did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness said that he had nothing further to state,
The witness was duly warned and withdrew,

The commission then, at 11:45 a.m., adjournmed until 9 a,m., Monday,
December 20, 1948,
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THIRTY-FIFTH DAY

Commander Naval Forces, Mariamss
Guam, Marianss Islands,
Monday, December 20, 1948.

United States Pacific Fleet, 4

The commispion met at 9115 a.m,
FPresent:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robimsem, U. 5. Navy,

Captain Daniel J, Sweeney, U. 5. Navy,

Lieutenant Colonel Harry W, McCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United
States Army Reserve,

Lieutenant Colomel Newton L, Chamberlain, Signal Corps, United States

¥
Iieutenant Commander Ralph I, Gerber, U. S. Havy,
Captain Kermit H, Shelly, U. 5. Marime Corps, members, and
Lieutenant David Belton, U. 8. Navy, judge advecate.
Paul F, Coste, junior, yeomam first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter.
The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of preoceedings of the thirty-fourth day of the trial wase
| read and approved.

No witnesses mot otherwise conmected with the trial were present.

Higuohi, Nobuo, a witness for the prosecution, wae recalled as a
witness for the defense, and was warned that the oath previously taken by hin
was still binding.

! Bxamined by the acoused:

1. Q. Flease state your name?
A. Higuchi, Nobue,

2. Q. Have you previously testified as a witness for the presecutiom on

the twenty-first day of this trial?
A. T do mot recall the date, but I did take the stand as a witness,

3. Q. Please state once more your tour of duty as Benlor Staff Officer nﬂr
the Fourth Base Force and as Assistant Benior BStaff Officer of the Fourth

Fleet.
A. Senlor Staff Officer of the Fourth Base Force from October 1943 te

1944, Assistant S8taff Officer of the Fourth Fleet from May 1944 to
March 1945.

be Q. When you were Assistanmt Senler Staff Officer of the Fourth Fleet,
was the sccused Hars Commander im Chief of the Fourth Fleet?

. Yesn.

5, Q. During the period you were Assistant Senier Staff Officer, who was

the Chief of Staff of the Fourth Fleet?
A. First it was Rear Adwirel Arims, and later it was Rear Admiral

6. Q. Emh-thipﬂdﬂltthmmm“m-fdm
please state the peried.
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A, Rear Admiral Arime was the Chief of Staff of the Fourth Fleet frem
March 1944 te August 1944, Rear Admiral Sumikawa was the Chief of Staff of
the Fourth Fleet from that time to the end of the war,

Te Q. Who was the Senior Staff Officer of the Fourth Fleet?
4. First it was Captain Inoue, mext Captain Imazato, and mext I was the
Senior Btaff Officer.

8. Q. Flease state the tour of duty of these persons ss Senior Staff |
Officer of the Fourth Fleet? [
4. Captain Imoue was the Senior Btaff Officer of the Fourth Fleet up
through May 1944. Captain Imasato was the Senior Staff Officer of the Fourth
Fleet from that time t1l1l March 1945 and I was the Senlor Staff Officer of
the Fourth Fleet from that time umtil the end of the war.

9% Q. Do you know the situation of the Fourth Fleet when Admiral Hara
toock command?
A. I do,

10. Q. Flease state briefly what the situation wae.

Thie question was objected to by the judge advecate on the ground that
it was too general and too vague.

The accused made no reply.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

As When Commander in Chief Hars took command it was right after the task
force raid on Truk and Truk was in a state of confusion., Almost all the
war ships under its command were destroyed by this raid and I recall that
there were mo war shipes that were able to operate, It was the same for air

planes,

11. Q. During the time you were staff officer of the Fourth Fleet, what
wae the usual procedure followed whem members of the staff wished te submit
a repert or request to the Commander im Chief?

A, It was done through the Chief of Staff.

12, Q. When you assumed your post as Assistant Senler Staff Officer of tha
Fourth Fleet, were there headquarters senmior to the Fourth Fleet?
A, There was.

13! Q- 'ht ‘l‘l.l 'ﬂﬂ.l?
A, Central Facific Area Flest and Combinesd Flest.

14, Q. Of these two, which is the senier?

This lime of questioming was objected te by the judge advocate on the
ground that it was repetitious and immaterial.

The accused withdrew the questien,

15, Q. When was this Central Facific Area Fleet organized?

' I believe it was in March 1944.

16, Q. Until whem did it funotien? i

A. Until July eof the same year whem it was annihilated on Balpan,

434




17. Q. De you know what the mission of the Central Pacific Area Fleet wan?
|I A, I’I‘l, I do,

i 13-& Qf Pl“'. state it'!
A The main mission of the Central Pacific Area Fleet wae to defend the

Central Faeific Area.

l19. Q. Is that @112
Ad. The Central Facific Area Fleet Headquarters was Ilt-lbluh-d at the sa
time the 31st Army was ,Elhblishnd and one reason for ite establishment was
| to unify the commands,

Area Fleet other than the Fourth Fleet?
4. Yee, there were,

21, Q. What were the subordinate unite of the Central Pacific Area Fleet?

i This question was objected to by the judge advocate om the ground that
I it was repetitious, irrelevant and immeterial.

| The accused replied.
]

The commission anmeunced that the objection was not sustained.

A, In the Army there was the 31lst Army = im the Havy there were the Fifth
Base Force and the Thirtieth Base Foroce,

! 22, Q. During your tour of duty as etaff officer of the Fourth Fleet did
the Fourth Fleet exercise judicial and administrative authority; that is feor
example, to maintain peace and order, protectien of civilians and matives in
all the area under the jurisdiction of the Fourth Fleest?

This question was objected te by the judge advocate on the ground that
is was leading and multiple.

The acoused reframed the questionm.

] 23. Q. During your tour of duty as staff officer of the Fourth Fleet, did
| the Fourth Fleet exsrcise judicial and administrative authority im the ares
under the jurisdictiomn of the Fourth Fleet?

A, No, 1t did met.

24y Q. Do you know who exercised these authorities?
A, I am mot definite as to this poinmt, but I believe the Central Facific
Area Fleet were these authorities.

25. Q. De you know who pessessed the autherity to maimtain peace and order
in all the areas under the jurisdiction of the Fourth Fleet?

ds I believe I know.

26, Q. Who had this autherity?

A, On Truk, the Commanding General of the Army, Iieutemant Gemeral
Mugikura possessed this autherity. In the same way I believe on all the
various 1mu-m--nu-w-rﬂmh4thumtmh.

27. Q. De you kmow who actually exeroised the judicial and administrative
autherity in the area under the jurisdiotion of the Fourth Fleet?
A, I believe I know,
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28, Q. Who actually exercised this authority?
Ll. At firet the Governor of the SBouth Bea Govermment actually exercised
|

|| Commanding Officer of each island exsrcised these autherities.

cane to possess thie authority?
‘I A. I do know,

30. Q. Flease state it,
A, I recall that Senior Commanding Officer of each island received this
authority from the Commander im Chief of the Central Facifiec Area Fleet.

Fleet?
4. II., there was,

| 32, Q. Did the Fourth Fleet have jurisdiction and control over these
| kempeitai?
W No, they did not.

33. Q. Flease state who had this jurisdictien and contrel if you know.

A. In the SBouth Sea Islands there was a South Seas Kempeitai, and this

| kempeital received over-all instructions directly from the Eempeitai Head-
quarters in Tekye. Locally they received command from the Army Units.

34. Q. The guards of the Construction Cerps, could they exercise their
power given to them to all personmel?

| This question was objected to by the judge mdvocate on the ground that
the witness was mot qualified to answer this question.

The accused replied.
The commission anmeounced that the objection was not sustainmed,
A4, It was restricted to the personnal empleyed by the Constructiem Corps.

I 35, Q. What were the restrictions as teo place imposed on the Civil Nawval
Guards of the Construction Cerpe in the execution ef their duties?

This question was objected te by the judge advocate om the ground that

| or autherity of the Fourth Comstruction Cerpe.

ll The sccused made mo reply.

The commission ammounced that the objection was met sustaimed.
|l.. They were restricted to the compound of the Comstructiom Cerps.

36, Q. During your tour of duty as staff officer of the Fourth Fleet, did
p:nnnrmu-ﬂt.-nwp:l.lm-t-ﬂ 5
A, No, I have mever seen any.

37, Q. Do you lmew whether there were amy prisomers confined at the
Ferty=first Naval Guard Umit around Jume 1944
A, I did net know,

the civil administration of the whole area and later I recall that the Senien

31. Q. Were there any kempeital in the area of Jurisdiction of the Fuu.r"t.hii

29. Q. Do you kmow how the Senior Commanding Officer of the various islands

the witness had mot been qualified as to knowledge of intermal lili.ld.lt-rltiuT
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38, Q. Did the Fourth Fleet Headquarters receive a report from the Forty-
firet Naval Guard Unit as to the death of five prisoners of war or later the
death of three of the prisoners, and them of two of the prisomers?

Thie question was objected to by the judge advecate on the ground that
it was multiple, leading, and called for an opinion of the witness.

The accused reframed the question,

39. Q. Do you know whether the Fourth Fleet received amy report from the
Forty-firet Naval Guard Unit cencerning the death of five prisomers of war?
A. As far ae I know the Fourth Fleet Headquarters did met receive such a
Hpﬂl‘t.

40, Q. Do you kmow whether the Fourth Fleet received a report from the
Guard Unit as to the death of three prisoners of war around Jume 19447
A. Neo.

41. Q. Do you know whether the Fourth Fleet received a repert concerning
the death of two prisoners of war?
A. No, they did not receive any such reports.

42. Q. Do you knmow whether there were twe prisomers of war confimed at |

the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit in July 19447
A. After the termination of the war I heard there were, but during that

time I did not know,

43. Q. Do you kmow whether the Fourth Fleet Headquarters received a nm
from the Fourth Naval Hospital as to the death of two prisomers of war ar

this time?
4. No, they did mot receive such a repert.

Lhe Q. Flease state briefly the repert you heard after the termimation of

the war?
A. It was that two prisomers of war which were confined at the Naval Guard
Unit were taken to the hospital and executed.

45. Q. Is that all?
4. Ten.

46, Q. Did you know whether or ere was an espiomage incident

met th
concerning two missionaries and four Nauruam matives?
A, At that time I did not kmow, but I heard about it after the termimation

of the war,

47. Q. What did you hear after the terminatien of the war?
K. T heard that a mative on Uman in the Truk Atoll communicated with the

American submarime,

53- Ql Is "trhlt I.].l!
A And that the missiomaries were invelved in this incident.

49. Q. Is that all?
A Yesn,

50, Q. Did you hear whether this imcident was true or that this imcident
never existed?

This question was objected to by the judge advecats om the ground that
it was irrelevant, called for an opinion of the witmess, and a hearsay
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The accused reframed the gquestion.

51, Q. In what you heard, did you hear whether or not that these
suspicions were true or false?

Thie question wae objected to by the judge advecate om the ground that
it called for am opiniem of the witnees and a hearsay answer,

The accused withdrew the question,

52, Q. Do you know or did you know about the food incident concerning one

Nauruan native around September 19447
4. I do not know and I did mot know,

53, Q. About this time do you know whether the Fourth Fleet received amy
report concerning this incident?
Ad. The Fourth Fleet did mot receive such a repert.

54+ Qs Do you kmow or did you know of an incident concerning food which
invelved one Chinese who was a resident of Nauru Island?
4. I do not know and I did met know,

55, Q. Did you kmow whether the Fourth Fleet received any reports from the
subordinate units en Nauru or Ocean around December 1944 concerning the
incident of ome Chinsse native, a resident of Nauru, relative to a foed

incident?
4, No such repert was received,

56, Q. Do you knmow whether or not there was a unit other than the navy
unit at Jaluit around April 19457
A, I do know,

57, Q. What unit was this?
A, It was an army unit commanded by Majer Furulkd.

58, Q. Do you recall the mame of this umit?
ds I believe it was a part of the Firet South Sea Detached Unit,

59. Q. Do you kmow or did you kmew whether or net there were two spy
inocidents cencerning seven Jaluit matives and one Jaluit mative around

April 19457

This questiom was ebjected to by the judge advocate omn the ground that
it was multiple and leading.

The accused reframed the guestion,

60. Q. De you know er did you know whether there was a spy incident
concerning seven Jaluit matives around April 19457

This question was objected to by the judge advecate om the grounds that
it was multiple and leading.

The accussd made mo reply.

The commission anmounced that the objection was met sustained.
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|| A, At that time I did met kmow, but after arriving om Guam Major Furuki
|m tried and through the Guam News I came to kmow that there was am imcidenmt!
l on Jaluit but I did mot kmow how mamy matives were imvolved.

The judge advecate moved to strike the words "but after arriving em
Guam Major Furuki was tried and through the Guam News I came to kmow that
there was an imcident em Jaluit but I did met kmow how many matives ware
invelved” out of the amswer om the groumd that it was irrelevamt and
Mtnrill+

The accused anmounced that he had mo ebjectiom to the striking,

e

The commissien directed that the words be strickenm sut.

The commission them, at 10:20 a.m., took a recess until 10:40 a.m., at
which time it reconvemed, I

|
| Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counmsel|
and the interpreters.

Archie L. Haden, jumior, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter,
f No witmesses mot otherwise connected with the trial were present,
K

Higuchi, Nobuo, the witmess umder egamination whem the recess was taken| K
entered., He was warned that the oath previously teken was still bimding, and
contimued his testimonmy,

(Examination contimued,)
6l. Q. Do you know, or did you know, whether there was a epy imcidemt

around April 1945 cemcerning ocme Jaluit mative?
A, Ho, I did not know,

62, Q. De you kmow whether the Fourth Fleet received a report from the sub+
erdinate umit om Jaluit concerning these incidents aroumd April 19457
I|A . No such reports were received.

63. Q. Do you kmow, or did you kmow, about a spy incident invelving twe
Marshall matives which teok place around August 19457
A. Neo, I did mot,

|64 Q. Do you know whether the Fourth Fleet received a report from the
[subordinate umit om Jaluit around August 1945 comcerning a spy incident
invelving two Marshall mnatives?

. No such reports were received,

65. Q. Did you know whether the Fourth Fleet received amy reports from the
subordinate unit om Ocean concerning the deaths of twe humdred matives of
ilbert and Ellice Islands around August 19457

. Ne such reports were received, .

m:mmnmu-mhmm-u-m-:mmt
tting facilities um:mnmmmumm-r
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The accused made me reply.

The commission directed that the werds "S3" and "I think that trans-
ﬁthg facilities on Nauru and Ocean were met im commiseien,® be strickem

67. Q. De you kmow amything else comcerning the wireless cemmunicatiem
ln'blnl Truk amd Nauru-Ocean area?
. Ne.

68. Q. Dees the witness kmew whether Nauru amd Ocean were frequemtly
attacked by Americam Task Ferces because Nauru amd Ocean Islands wers en the
read threugh which the Americam Task Ferces came te attack Truk?

This question was ebjected te by the judge advecate om the greund that
it called fer am epinien of the witmess and was leading. '

The accused withdrew the questien, !

€9. Q. De you kmew for am actual fact what the battle conditien of Nauru-
Ocean area was areund August 19457 |
4. NHauru amd Ocean Islands were damaged to am extent that they ceuld met |
even send any dispatches, I de met kmew amythimg abeut the bembings, i

The judge advecate meved te strike eut this answer em the greund that
it was an epinien of the witmess,

The accused made me reply.

The cemmission ammeumced that it weuld rule em the metien after the |
next questiom amd amswer, |

70. Q. Hew de you kmew that Nauru-Ocean area were damaged te extent that
they ceuld net send any dispatches?

A, As e reperts cencermimg the battle conditiems of the Nauru-Ocean area
were received by the Feurth Fleet I presumed that the tramsmitter was i

d..h‘wl
The cemmissien directed that the twe previeus amswers be strickem eut,

Tl. Q. Did yeu er did you met fer an actual fact kmew that the cede beek
of the Japanese Navy fell inte the hands ef the Americams abeut this time?

This questien was ebjected te by the judge advecate em the greumd that
it ealled for an epinien of the witmess,

The accused made ne reply.
The cemmissien amneunced that the sbjectien was met sustaimed,

A. I de met know,

72, Q. De yeu kmew what the gemeral reputatien of Vice Admiral Hara, the
commanding officer of the Feurth Fleet, was cemcerning the supervisien and
contrel of his suberdimates?

A. Admiral Hara's cemtrel, supervisiom, and imstructien ef his suberdimates
were landable. The fact that he was very kimd te imdividuals was kmewn by
all en Truk., BEespecially he was very kind te patients in the hespital amd

persens suffering frem malmutritiesn., These facts wers laudable and kmewn by

all em Truk,
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4. Yen.

A. I de knew,

4, I believe they empleyed them,
78, Q. Did the Fourth Cemstructiem Department gumsekus have autherity ever

these Nauruam matives?
4. I believe the gumsekus did met have amy sutherity ever matives.

Fourth Cemstructiem Cerpes?
A. It is true with civil guards, but met trus with the guasekus,

A. I deo met pessese a cemplete kmewledge as to whether the ecivil guard

Crese-examined by the Judge advecate:

73. Q. Did the Feurth Fleet exercise judicial amd admimistrative autherity
regarding the persemmel under ite cemmand?

This questien was ebjected te by the mccused em the greumd that it was
vague and called for am epinien of the witmess,

The judge mdvecate made me reply.
The cemmissien anmeunced that the ebjection was met sustained,

4, The Fourth Fleet Headquarters cemmand the suberdimate mavy persennsl
and gunsekus cencermimg military administratien and in case of cemmission ef
unlawful actes the mavy crimimal cede and mavy disciplinery punishment
erdimance were applied.

T4s Q. Did the Feurth Fleet Headquarters threugh its suberdimete umit, the
Feurth Censtructien Department, exercise this autherity ever the ecivilian
pergennsl of the Feurth Cemstructiem Department? -

A, If they were gunsekus we had the autherity.

75. Q. Were the maval civil guards ef the Feurth Censtructien Department
gungekus?

76. Q. Dees the witnmese knew whether the Feurth Cemstructiem Department
empleyed Nauruam matives?

T?l Q- D:l.d th.ﬁ

79. Q. Did yeu previeusly testify em direct examimatien that the Feurth
Censtructien Department guards had autherity ever persems empleyed by the

80. Q. Did the civil guard sectiem of the Feurth Cemstructiem Department
have autherity to investigate crimes committed by Nauruam empleyees of the
Censtructien Department?

This questien was ebjeoted te by the mccused em the ground that it was
vague and tee gemeral im scepe.

The judge advecate made ne reply.
The cemmissien ammeunced that the ebjectien was met sustained,

unit of the Feurth Cemstruction Department pessessed this autherity te matives
lecally empleyed.

. Did testify this merming that yeu did net lnew that there were
o B d-’:-mnmgmmtum1mf
° That is se,
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82, Q. Did yeu alse testify that you did met kmew that prisomers of war
had been killed at the hospital until after the war?

A, That is mot se. I learned of this execution at the hespital at the
cognizant commanding officers' conference which was held in September, but
I did pnet kmow whether there were any prisoners comfined at the Guard Umit
| in July until after the war.

| 83, Q. Did you testify om the twenty-first day of the proceedings of this
| case?
'Ii. Yea, I did teatify,

!BJ.'.. Q. Were you asked the following guestion amnd did you give the fell

| answer "About July of 1944 did amy prisoners of war arrive on Truk?" amd you
| answered "Yes."?

A, I do kmow,

85. Q. Were you asked the following question and did you give the follewing
answer, "53, Q. Hew did you learan of their capture?™ "A., I lesarned of theip
capture through the commanding officer on Puluwat Island."?
A, Yes.

§6. Q. Did you see this dispatch after it arrived?
A, I recall seeing it,

87. Q. Thenm when you testified today that you did not know at that time
that these prisoner had arrived im July you were im error, Is that true?

|
| This question was objected to by the accused on the groumd that it mis=
|quntud testimony of ths witness.

. The judge advecate replied,

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained, |

A, I only saw this dispatch and I do mot know whether these prisoners
arrived on Truk because I did mot receive or see any repert.

The witneas was duly warned,

The commission them, at 11:30 a.m,, took a recess umtil 2:10 p.m., at
which time it recemvemed,

Presemt: All the members, the judge advecate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Elvin G, Cluba, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reperter.
Ne witnesses not otherwise commected with the trial were presemt,

W.I;.uughi, Nebus, the witmess under examination whem the recess was taken,
an . cmnrnodthltthauthprninuhm-lmltmw
contimued his testimomy. e

(Cress-examingtion contimued,)

« Q. You testified that you did met receive amy report that the prise
£ nr!m:l.vid at the Forty-first Guard Umit im July of 1944, is that cerrect
* o8,
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89. Q. De you knmow if the Fourth Fleet Headquarters received a report of
the arrival of these priscners of war at the Guard Unit?
A, I do mot recall thet it received such a repert.

90. Q. Do you know if during the tour of duty of the accused Hara the
Fourth Fleet Headquarters received amy report concerning the arrival or cap-
ture of any prisoners of war at Truk?

A, From my recollectiom I recall that the Fourth Fleet Headquarters received
a report of the capture of one prisoners of war in the Truk Atoll inm January
1?4-5 .

91s Q. Do you recall if the Fourth Fleet received any other reports con-
cerning the arrival or capture of priscmers of war during the tour of duty
of the accused Hara?

A, I was not aware of it,

92. Q. Thenm, during the tour of duty of Hara did you know of the arrival
or capture of any other prisoners of war on Truk Atoll other tham the cne in
Janaury of 19457

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
[vague and gemeral, repetitious and called for a speculative answer and an
opinion of the witness.

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was mot sustained,

= I believe it was on the 24th or 25th of February 1944 that one American
ier of the Task Force was captured im Truk A40ll and confined at the Forty=
rat Navel Guard Umit,

3« Q. Was he confined at the Forty-first Guard Uait on Dublen after the
ccused Hara was Commander im Chief of the Fourth Fleet?
Z I believe it was so.

4« Q. Do you recall amy other prisoners of war besides the one in Jamuary
945 and the one after thes February air raid in February 1944 arriving or
ing captured en Truk Atell?

» There was another one. I believe it was around March or April 1944 one
erican flier was captured on Hotaru Island im Truk Atell amd confined at the
uard Unit,
5¢ Q. Then you recall the prisoners of war inm J 1945, in Feb 1
in March of April 1944, is that correct? e T

Yes,

?. And these prisoners of war arrived on Truk, is that correct?
a8,

The accused moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it was am
n of the witness.

The judge advecate replied.
The commission anmounced that the motien was not sustaimsd,
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97. Q. Om the twenty-first day of the preceedings of this court and in
this case were you asked the following questions and did you give the
following snawers: %48, Q. During the tour of duty of Vice Admiral Haras,
do you kmow if any prisoners of war arrived om Truk Atell? A, I do met
ihmr." P50, Q. Was the arrival and confinement of prisomers of war on
{Dublom Island reported to the Fourth Fleet? A, I do mot recall having re-
| cedved such a report."?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
irrelevant and immaterial umless the judge advecate was laying a groumdwork
for impeaching the testimony of his ownm witness on the twenty-first day eof
this trial,

The judge advecate replied,

The commissiom anmoumced that the objection was mot sustained.

A, I do mot recall exmctly how I answered.

98, Q. While you were senior staff officer of the Fourth Base Force were
reports concerning the arrival of prisoners of war made by the Guard Unit
to the Feurth Base Force?

This question was objected to by the accused om the groumd that it was
irrelevant and immaterial,

The judge advocate replied,
The commission ammoumced that the objection was not sustained.

A, I do not recall having received the report concerming the arrival of
prisoners of war from the Guard Umit,

Unit to the Fourth Base Force mot whether you persennally received them o

9. Q. The guestiom is do you knew if those reports were semt from the GuT
r mofj?

I This question was objected to by the accused on the grouamd that it was
[1rru1ﬂ'ut and immaterial, s

I! The judge advecate replied.

The commissien annoumced that the ebjection was noet sustained,
- I do mot kmow,

» Q. While you were assistant staff officer of the Fourth Fleet wers re-
rts of the arrival of priscners of war made directly te the Fourth Fleet
sadquarters?
g From my recellectiem I recall there was this ome repert directly frem
Unit of the arrival of the prisener of war captured im Jamuary 1945, o

¢« Q. Do you kmew if it was a practice of the Ferty-first Guard Unit te
eport the arrival of priseners eof war, teo the Fourth Fleet?

This question was objected to by the accused om the groumd that it
relevant and immaterial andcalled for am epimionm of the witmess,. G
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The judge advecate replied.
The commissien announced that the objectieon was met sustainmed.

a, They should have according to regulatioms, I wlish to change that word
"regulations” to common sense,

102, Q. De you kmow how im fact the reporting of arrival of prisoners of
war was handled by the Forty-first Guard Unit?

A, As I have stated I only know of only one incident when the Forty-first
Naval Guard Unit reported concerning the confinement of one Americam prisoner

in Jenuary 1945.

103. Q. While you were with the Fourth Base Force didn't they report conceriimg

this ome prisoner captured during the February air raid?
| A, I do mot recall clearly whether there was & report or mot concerning
| the confinement of that prisoner.

f{ 104s Q. Do you recall anything concerning how you learmed of the arrival or
capture of that prisoner of war?

A, I do mot recall whether it was a report from the Ferty-first Naval Guard
Unit or whether I learmsd of this threugh other sources. I do mot recall.

105. Q. De you recall anything else in conmection with this prisomer who was
captured in February?
A, I recall hearing something to the effect that this prisoner was a Navy
lieutenant commander.

106, Q. Did you participate in any way in the capturing of this priscner of
war or learnm anything about him er the manner in which he was captured?

This question was objected to by the accused on the groumd that it was |
irralevant and immaterial, 4

The judge advecate replied,
The commission ammounced thet the objection was mot sustained.

A This happened after Rear Admiral Arims became Commandant of the Fourth
| Base Force. He ordered the investigation to be made through Truk Atell andbhd
persons who carried out this search were the Ferty-first maval Guard Uait, and
I recall that this prisomer was captured om am island situasted im the northe
west part of the atell.

107. Q. De you kmow if the Ferty-first Guard Unit reperted to the Fourth
Base Force the capture of this prisoner of war and or his confinement?

A, I believe it maturally should be made, but I de mot recall at presemt
having seem such a report.

108, Q. Did you testify im effect that you did met know what the practice o
th-!ﬂn-rd Unit was with regard to the reporting of the arrival of prisoners -ﬂ
war

A, I testified that in case the Guard Umit did confine a pris common
senss it should have reperted te the higher eschelenm. o ad
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1 109, Q. At the War Crimimal Stockade om May 1, 1948 did you make the follews
ing statement in the presence of Commander Ogden and Mr, Savory: "While the
Fourth Base Force was still in operatien I believe the ,lst Guard Unit tele-
“ phoned a report on the arrival and confimement of each prisoner of war, to th
4th Base Force Headquarters, As no specific staff officer was assigned to
handle prisoner of war matters, these reports would go to the commandant
elther directly as written down by an enlisted man at the telephone, or

some staff officer who might receive the report or because of its importance,
deliver it himself to the commandant, After the dissclution of the Fourth
Bage Force on lst May 1944, its fumctions were absorbed by the 4th Fleet.
Azme who had been the commandant of the 4th Base Force and concurrently Chief
of Staff of the 4th Fleet continued as the Chief of Staff of the 4th Fleet
after the 4th Base Force was dissolved, Handling of prisoners of war matters
continued in much the same way as before except that reports were now made
directly to the 4th Fleet. The 4lst Guard Unit I believe continued to report
when prisoners of war arrived and were confined at the Guard Unit and these
reports were made directly to the 4th Fleet Headquarters. These reports were
not addressed to amy specific staff officer or the Commander im Chief but
like regular reports to the 4th Fleet would be routed through staff officers
to the Commander im Chief."?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
irrelevant and immaterial unless the judge sdvecate was geing to introduce the
| statement into evidence, that the statement was made pest litem motam, that 1%
was untrustworthy, that it was made in a past perled and had mo claim te con-
fidence, and that it was made with an idea to manufacture evidence.

The judge advocate replied,

The commission annoumced that the objection was not sustained.
A, I do recall making this statement,

110. Q. On that same day did you make a statement, with regard to the Feb-
ruary alr raid aviator, saying: "I remember that I wrote the order for the
search that resulted im the capture of this aviater and sigmed it in Arima's
name so I remember the approximate date. As in accordance with the regular
procedure after being signed by me it was submitted to Arima and aporoved by
him and issued ae an order. The prisomer of war was later captured and brought
llim and confined at the 41st Guard Unit. The 4lst Guard Umit telephoned the
headquarters of the 4th Base Force and reported that the prisoner of war had
been confined,"?

This question was objected to by the accused em the ground that it was
irrelevant and immaterial,

The judge advecate replied.

The commission annoumced that the objectiom was not sustaimed,
A, I recall writing se.

Reexamimed by the accused:
111. Q. You testified to the prosecution's question did the Feurth Fleest
Headquarters through its suberdimate the Fourth Comstructiom Department exer-

cise suthority ever the civiliams of the Fourth Comstruction Department., Te
this question you replied it was so as teo gunsokus. What de you meam by this
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I thimk that the Fourth Fleet Headquarters through the cognizant command:

ing officer of its subordinate units possessed authority over militery persemmsl
gunsekus concerning military sdmimistratiem,

Q. These matives employed by the Fourth Comstruction Corps, were they
kus or mot?

They were not gumsokus,

3. Q. TYou testified that you knew of the arrival of the prisoners in Jamuazy
945 and of one prisoner im February 1944 and ome im March or April 1944, but
uring this February 1944 and March and April 1944 you were not & member of the
taff of the Fourth Fleet were you?

I was not a staff officer of the Fourth Fleet up until through April 1944,

Do you know what the degree of responsibility of the commanding offid
f a guard unit has, especially the responsibility concerning the confinement
treatment of prisomers of war?

ar

This question was objected to by the judge advocate om the ground that it

beyond the scope of the cress-examination unless it was restricted to
eports concerning prisaners of war,

The accused made mo reply.
The commission annoumced that the objection was mot sustaimed,

I do mot kmow what degree of responsibility he possesses.

115. Q. Was the responsibility of the commanding officer of a
cerning the cenfinement and treatment

This question was objected to by the Judge advocate on the groumd that it
Was vague, repetitious, and imcompetent,

br

The accused reframed the question,

6. Q. De you know whether or mot the commanding officer of a guard umit
ssessed full respons

ibility comcerning the confinement and treatment of
isoners of war?

This question was ob

Jected to by the judge advocate
repetitious,

on the ground that it
incompetent, and leading,
The accused reframed the question.

117, Q. Im a guard unit was there a person who bore part of the responsibility
along with the commamding officer of the guard unit?
A, What I think personally

I believe the commamding officer of the guard
unit had the respomsibility,

The judge advocate meved to strike out this answer on the grousd that
it was am opimion of the witmess,

The accused replied,

The commission directed that the amswer be stricken out,

1s8. Q. Mmlumlmlmnfm,m'm-rmﬂmpuﬂtuh
confined at the Guard Umit about

February th and the prisoner of that
mnptﬂdlhutﬁruhl,lmmmlﬁmmt o
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THIRTY-SIXTH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,
Guam, Marianss Islands,

Tussday, December 21, 1948,

The commission met at 9:15 a.m.
Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U. 8. Navy,

Captain Daniel J, Sweeney, U, 5. Navy,

Lisutenant Celonel Harry V. McCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United Stat
Army Reserve,

Lisutenant Colonel Newton L, Chamberlain, Signal Corps, United States
Army,

Lieutenant Commander Ralph I, Gerber, U, 5, Navy,

Captain Kermit H, Shelly, U. S, Marine Corps, members, and

Lieutenant David Bolton, U, 5. Navy, judge advocate,

Paul F, Coste, junior, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter.

The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the thirty-fifth day of the trial was read
and approved,

No witnesses not otherwlse connected with the trial were present.

Ueno, Chisato, a witness for the prosecution, was recalled as & witness
for the defense and was warned that the cath rreviously taken, by him, was
etill binding.

Examined by the accusedi

le Q. Btate your name,
i, Ueno, Chisate.

2 Q. Do you recall testifying on the twenty-fourth day of this trial as
a witness fer the prosecution?
A, I do.

3 Q. State what period of time you served as Chief Surgeon of the Forty=
first Naval Guard Unit,

A, From May 17, 1944 till May 27, 1945 I was acting Chief Surgeon of the
Forty-firet Guard Unit and on May 27, 1945 I was appointed Head of the Fourth
Detached Hospital at Fefan Island and I continued in this post until Decem
26, 1945, During this time I was nominally Chief Surgeon, but from Decem .
1945 ti1l February 5, 1946 I was Chief Surgeon.

be Q. A48 a prosecution witness you testified that on June 17, three priso
ers of war died by bombing at the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit, Did you know

if the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit reported these deaths to the Fourth Fleetf

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was repetitious and that the accused had questioned, and had full opper-
tunity to question this witness on this subjeet during cress-examination
when the witness testified as a prosecution witness,
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front difficulties, I desire that you call to the attention of your subord=
inates the necessities for prevention of leakage of information and abandon
the idea of 'Everyone for himself', If this incident should come to light
we must expect a reprisal of great magnitude and I, Asano, am convinced that
the prevention of leakage on information can be carried out successfully at
the guard unit.” That is what he said,

The judge advocate moved to strike out this answer on the ground that
it was hearsay and incompetent and apparently made long after the incidents.

The accused requested permission of the commission to ask the witness
one more question before ruling on the motion by the judge advocate.

The commission announced that the request was granted,

8. Q. Then was the date when Asano gave this instruction. 8
A, I recall it was around ¥ August 25, 1945,

The commission announced that the motion was not sustained, but that the
witness' testimony would be given its proper weight by the commission,

" The commission then, at 10120 a.m., took a recess until 10:45 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters,

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. S. Navy, reporter,

Ueno, Chisato, the witness under examination when the recess was taken,

entered. He was werned that the oath previously taken was still binding and
continued his testimeny,

| (Examination continued;) AB

b- Qs Whe was present when Captain Asano gave these instructions as you
testified previously?
. I definitely know that only officers Nakase the executive officer, myw

elf, surgeon lieutenant Kune, and surgeon lieutenant (Junior grade) Eriguchi
re thare,

10, Q. Was there anybody else?
I recall there were about two persons other than thess,

¢ Q. Vhere did it take place?
In the official room of the commanding officer,

2+ Q. De you know whether or not an investigatien regarding prisoners was
nducted around the middle of August 19457

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
t was irrelevant and immaterial,

The accused withdrew the question,

Q« Do you know whether or not an investigation was conducted of priluu-rr
e

war which were under the custody of the Ferty-first Guard Unit in the middl
f August 19457
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This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused made ne reply.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

A, I saw the memorandum regarding the confinement of prisoners at the
Naval Guard Unit.

14. Q. Did you note something special in this memorandum?
A, I discovered that it was altogether different frem our memory.

15. Q. Please state in what way it was so erronecus?

The judge advocate objected to continuation of this line of questioning
regarding a memorandum unless it were established that the memorandum was
competent and from whom and to whom it was written,

The accused withdrew the question.

16, Q. Who made this memorandum?
A. It was made in the name of the commanding officer of the Guard Unit.

17. Q. To whom was it addressed? |
A, I recall that it was a memorandum to be submitted to the Fourth Fleet
IHudqunrhara. : |

18, Q. Did you or did you not discover wide discrepancies between this ]
memorandum and actual fact?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it called for an opinion of the witness,

' The accused replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
A, I discovered that there was a wide discrepancy.

19, Q. Please stete briefly regarding this,

A, On the last day of May 1944, two prisoners of war were confined at the
Naval Guard Unit and both were suffering from burns, I treated them for
one week at the sick bay until they were completely recovered but this was not
entered and instead it was entered in the April column which was prior teo this|
I did not assume office as yet in April and the five prisoners of war who were
bembed in June air raid were net entered at all,

zﬂ- q - IS thﬁt Iu!

. That 1s all the errers which I learned of the prisoners of war during
tour of duty. i

21, Q. During your tour of duty at the Guard Unit on how many occasions did
u ses prisonars of war?

. On four eccasions,

« Q. lhmudhnrnqmﬂrh.thnppnuhthpﬂum-rprunm
you saw on the first eccasien?




A, On the first occasion it was two prisoners of war who were confined on
May 29, 1944. They were suffering from burns on their faces and hands, They
weres treated for one week and recuperated completely. Soon after they were
sent to the homeland via Saipan,

The Jjudge advecate moved to strike out the werds "Scon after they were
sent to the homeland via Seipan.® on the ground that they were an opinion.

The mccused requested permission to propound an explanatery question
prior to a ruling by the commissien.

The commission announced that the request of the accused was granted.

23. Q. How do you know that those two prisoners were sent back to the
homaland?

A, I was sick in bed around 3 June and on 8 June Eriguchi who was newly
appointed came to Truk, After the courtesy call, in our conversations,
Eriguchi said that on the seventh when he was in Saipan two prisoners of
war came from Truk and during this conversation at the wardroom another
officer said that the two prisoners who were at the Guard Unit were not
there any more. The next batch of orisoners was the five prisoners who were
captured in June and I am certain from this that those two prisoners had
returned to the homeland, On the occasion when I went to the Guard Unit and
saw the memorandum I went to the commanding officer and executive officer
and pointed out theerror in the memorandum and on that occasion I learned
from them to the same effect.

The commission announced that the previous motion by the judge advocats
was not sustained,

24. Q. How mbout the second group of prisoners of war?

A, The second occasion was the five prisoners of war who were confined in
June 1944 which I have already testified,

25. Q. What about the next ocecasion?

A,  On the third occasion it was the two prisoners who were confined at the
Guard Unit in July 1944 and sent to the hospital.
26, Q. What about the last occasion?

and he was sent back to the homeland,

27. Qs Do you recall anything special regarding this one prisoner who was
confined on February 2, 1945,

A, I saw this prisomer of war with four or five officers and the officers
ordered the handcuffs taken from the prisoner and I heard them telling some-
one to bring tea and cigarettes to give them to the prisoner,

?;. g;ﬂbo Lﬂu km'm tl;udg-mrl.l ::Euutiun of the accused, Vice Admiral

ra 8 tour o his supervision and cent over
ehenitaatant S SO e b,
A. The subordinates were very much attached to Vice Admiral Hara te the
extent that instead of considering him as Commander in Chief, they would
address him more intimately by saying Hara, San (TN. An expression of intima
Irauﬂluﬁruumimbuthlhurthhrmthnmthlt-rn-ndthl

wﬂﬂ.ﬂhnnmﬂhrhﬁamﬁmﬁdmﬂmﬁhﬂinmw

A. - The fourth occasion was one prisoner who was confined on February 2, 1945

.




_ﬂ T —————

The witness wes duly warned,

The commission then, at 11:25 8.m., took a recess until 2:10 p.m,, at

which time it reconvened,

Present: All the members,
and the interpreters.

the judge advocate, the acoused, his counsel|

Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

Ueno, Chisato, the witness under examination when the recess was taken,
entered, He was warned that the cath previously taken was still binding, and .
continued his testimeny,

Cross-examined by the judge advocate:

29. Q. Since the conversation
this conversation to anyone?
A, Then in the course of
spoke to him about it,

that the commanding offi

by Asano in August 1945 have you ever relatedl

an interrogation by Lieutenant Bolton I believe I
It wasn't all the contents but I told him to the effeq
cer had forgotten to report it to the headquarters,

t

LT §

Q.

30, Pid you just prior to the commen
afternoon sitting in that chair over there

cementyf of this proceedings this
(indicating a chair at the backef

the court room) tell Lieutenant Bolton that
to anyone until you spoke with defense couns

you did not tell this conversatie
el when they came to see you rece

ftayt

A, At the time when I was seated there I said that I did not speak to any-
one, but I thought about it afterwards and recalling the fact that I spoke to
Lieutenant Bolton, T at once returned andbold him that T had spoke about it
to him .

Q. Tn addition to Lieutenant Bolton who was present at the time you tuﬂd
| Lieutenant Bolton ebout thie conversation?
4, There were Commander Ogden and interpreter Savory.

A8

"!I-_'!‘_.

Q8+ Do you recall that you told
&lleged conversation after the

A I recell that T snoke of that

them anything ahout the contents of this
=ar? |

fact and T sti1] rememher the answers therjets, |

33, Qs How much of that statenent 914 rou tell Lieutenant Bolton and Mr, |
Savory and Commander Ogden? 1
A s That T sald at that time was that iAsano said he hed intended to make the
report but postponed 1t day by dar vntil eventually he completely forgot about
it, and to this I was asked "Don't you realize thut Asano knew that he was
fabricating to youi" and that questlon put me off and made me reluctant te
continue further,

24« Q. Vhen did this allegrd conversation take
and Commander Ogden and lr, Savory?
: It was around Anril of this year when I was flrst examined by Lieutenant

place with Lieutenant Bolten

olton,
s+ 8. Did you ever mention the conversstion with Asano to anyone slee?
. I spoke sbout it to a question put forward by defense counsel Mr, Takano,
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l l Lieutenant I

36, Q: To the beat of our recollection 414 ou speak to anyone else becidpa
olton, Commander Ogden, lir, Savory, and iir, Takano shout it?

ik After T had the conversation with Captain Asano before I returned 4o

sefan Island I spoke to my subordinates at the sickbay. I relayed to t%CH .

the poliey determined hy the higher sfficers regarding the orevention of leakp

age of information and cautioned them to follow that policy and I returned to
Fefan Island, I do not know if I am justified or not but I firmly believed iph
" my superiors anddconsidered that to bring up the incident after the cessation| A8
of the war was unnecessary and this is the first time that I testified regard

ing this incident after the cessation of the war on the witness stand.

LI

37. Q. From the time you returned to Fefan Island to April 1942 4id you
diseuss this Asanc conversatlon with anyone?
A. I did not speak to anyone,

38. Q. Before you returned to Fefan Island did you know that there were
conerete plans of the Fourth Fleet Hesdquarters to attempt to conceal from the
American authorities all prisoner of war incidents?
A, I did not know,

39« Q. Then you knew nothing about conferences held in August 1945 which
Asano attended at the Fourth Fleet Headquarters concerning prisoner of war
mattera?

A, I do not know,

40 Q. You testified regarding this alleged conversation with Asano, that
he told you that the Fourth Fleet knew nothing ebout the June incident, At !
that time did you not know that Iwanami knew about your indiscreet operations | |
in June?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it went |
beyond the scope of the direet examination.

The judge advocate replied,

, I The commission announced thet the objection was not sustained,

A, In the beginning of June when Iwanami came to the Guard Unit I recall him
mentioning briefly that there had been an operation.

| 4le Q. Was it Iwanami who mentioned to you that there was an operation or was
it you that mentioned to Iwanami that there had been an indiscrest operation?
A, I merely told Iwanami that I operated,

42. Q. Did you tell him that they were indiscreet operations on priscners
of war?
A, I did not say so.

43. Q. On the twenty-fourth day of these proceedings were you asked the
following question: "Did you at any subsequent time inform the Chief Medical
Officer of the Fourth Fleet that you had performed operations upon these pris-
oners of war? and did you give the following answer: "I told the Chief
Medical Officer after my conversation with him that I had conducted some in-
discreet operations on a priscner of war at an. inopportuns moment."?

4. T testified then that I eoperated on a prisoner of war at an inopportune | 48
moment,
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44. Q. Did this conversation occur at a time when the Chief Medicel Officel
'1 told you that he desired to conduct experiments on prisoners of war?

This question s objected to by the accused on the ground that it was | W03
irrelevant and immaterial,

| The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

A, He said to the effect that he wanted to examine something.

| 43. Q. Did he say he wanted to examine something on prisoners of war?
I A, What Iwanami said & that time was that he wanted to examine the functign
of the kidney of the prisoners of war,

46, Q. Now, you have testified in considerable detall about this conver=-
sation with Asano. Are you sure about all the details of that alleged con=-
versation?

A, It is accurate. |

!I 47. Q. And yet you did not speak to anyone asbout the incident from the |
period of August 1945 until April 1948, is that correct? '

- A, For a long period I have been interrogated ani thersfore I cannot say
| definitely.

4B, Q. TYou said that you never testified in any trial ebout this conver=
sation with Asano, In any trial have you ever been asked whether or not the
Forty-first Guard Unit reported the June ineident te the Fourth Fleet? |

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was |
irrelevant and immaterial, -

The judge advocate replied.
The commiseion announced that the objection was not sustained.

II A, I recall that I wasn't asked.

49. Q. On the twenty-fourth day of this trial were you asked "Do you know
if Commanding Officer Asano submitted any reports to the Fourth Fleet conce
ing your operation and the execution of the prisoners of war"?

A, I recall now that I was asked this question by the defense.

50, - Qs+ At the time you were asked that question by the defense did you s
| anything about this alleged conversation with Asano in which Asano told you
that he had not reported te the Fourth Fleet?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it callled
for a repetitious answer,

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the ocbjection was subtained, &6

31. 123&"!!“thurumurnidlttmkuuundth-mdnrlanb-ﬁmngnt
une

A, I arrived on Truk from Japan on May 17, 1944. I was aware of the air
rald before that time by reading the newspapers.
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l 52, Q. During the time you were on Truk in May or June of 194/ was there ah

air raid? _
A, Tharsa wasa, !

53. Q. Now, you referred to two prisoners of war who were captured around
that time, is that correct?
A, That is correct,

54. Q. You testified that after the war you heard that these two prisoners
of war had been sent to Japan, is that correct?
A, YWes, I was able to confirm this after the war also. M

55 Q. Do you recall if these are the two prisoners you referred to in a
statement you made on March 24, 1947%
A, I do not clearly kmow,

56, Q. Did you on March 24, 1947 make a statement in which you said that
you were informed that after an asir raid two prisoners of war were tied to
a tres and beaten to death at the Fourth Fleest Headquarters and were then put ,
in a truck and taken to the hospital but they had already died?
A, Yes, I did write that I heard about this,

57« Q. With reference to the prisoners of war at the Guard Unit in June 1944,
were they treated properly by the personnel of the Guard Unit prior to the
time of the bombing?

This question was nhja&tnd to by the accused on the ground that it called |
for an opinion of the witness.

The judge advocate replied, !
The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

58. §. Do you know of any mistreatment of American prisonsrs of war at the
¥ Guard Unit in June of 194.L7

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
repetitious,

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
A, I testified that I heard that such a thing ocecurred.

59« Q. What did you testify that you heard concerning mistreatment of
prisonsrs in June of 19447
A, I testified,

The commission then, at 3:15 p.m,, took a recess until 3:35 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Fresent: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Paul F. Coste, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8. Navy, reporter,

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial wers present,




Ueno, Chisato, the witness under examination when the recess was taken,
entered. He was warned that the cath previocusly taken was still binding, and
continued his testimony.

(Cross-examination continued,)

60, Q. Did you learn of any mistreatment to prisoners of war in June 1944,
other than the operationa, spearing, stabbing and beheading of theae prisoners
of war?
A. At that time I testified that I once heard from the prisoners of war that

they were beaten,

61, Q. Was that the only source from which ;f::u heard that these POW's had
been beaten? .
A, I vaguely recall that there was such a rumor.

62, Q. Do you recall any specific individual informing you concerning the
mistreatment of those prisoners of war besides the prisoners of war themselves?
A. I do not remember,

63. Q. Do you recall who beat or mistreated these priuonnr; of war?
A, I recall a person relating about this matter,

64. Q. Do you recall where you heard this matter related?
4a. When I was resting on the veranda of the official wardroom I heard
some persons pass by who were relating this matter,

The accused moved to strike out this enswer on the ground that it was
h“n“i

The judge advocate replied.
The commission directed that ths answer be stricken out.

65. Q. Do you know if this mistreatment of prisoners of war in June 1944
occurred prior to the bombing of the guard unit?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
vague and tec general,

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

66, Q. On 24 March 1947, did you make the following statement "Ensign
SHIRAKUNI (construction), succeeded Ensign YOSHINUMA as head of construction &t
the 4lst Guard Unit, In the Guard Unit there was the rumor that in ths liﬂdl:
of June 1944, he did vielence to American prisoners among those incarcerated
at the 4lst Guard Unit at that time, Even in the officer's mess hall it was
easily discernible from his own words and behavier, The general opinion was
against this whole business. Of the five incarcerated priscners, three died
from an explesion during an attack and two were left alive., We could presume
that the surviving two prisoners of war were daily undergeing mistreatment by
these people, However, I did not see this, I can only assume this through tie

rds and behavier of SHIRAKUNI himself,"
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This gquestion was objected to by the accused on the ground that 1t was
irrelevant, immaterial, hearsay, and beyond the scope of the direct examinatipn,

|
The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

67. Q. The next prisoners of war were the prisoners who were confined in

the guard unit in July 1944; is that correct?
A, That 18 correct,

68, Q. And you testified that they were sent to the hospital., Do you know
if they ever returned from the hospital?
A. Thgrdid not return from the hospital. B

69, Q. You were asked the question "what about the last occesion® and you
paid "the last occasion was February 2, 194.4", Wasn't there a prisoner of war
confined at the guard unit in late January 19457

! A, I recall that it was late January or beginning of February.

T0¢ Q. Now you testified that somesthing special happened to this prisoper jof
war, namely that his handcuffs were removed and he was brought tea and cigir-
ettesa. Do you know why this prisomer of war received special treatment?

A, This is what I just saw and heard and on the same day much later at |
dinner Nakase, when we were at the table, said that there waes & telephone cal ‘
from the Fourth Fleet to the Commanding Officer instructing him that the pri
oner should be sent to the homeland on the first available transportation |
that special consideration should be accorded him and to be prepared so that
no deficlency of cigarettes or other items,

H

TL. Q. Was such a directive from the Fourth Fleet an unusual directive?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it
. called for an opinion of the witness,

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained.
72. Q. Were similar orders or instructions previously received from the
Fourth Fleet?

A. I do not know of anything that ocourred prior to this, but I recall
Nakase saying that it was very unusual.

73. Q. Did Nakase do anything else or say anything else at the time he
told you about this directive?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
irrelevant, immaterial, and called for a hearsay answer,

The judge advocate replied.
The commission annmounced that the objection was not sustained.
A, 1 recall that that was all he seid,

T4e Q. Do you know if he did anything else at the time or made explanat
tion concerning this directive? -
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THIRTY-SEVENTH DAY

United States Pacifiec Fleet,
Commander Naval Forces, Mariamss,
Ouam, Marisnas Islands,
Wednesday, December 22, 1948,

The commission met at 9:110 a.,m,
Presenti

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinsom, U, 3. Navy,

Captain Daniel J, Sweeney, U. 5. Navy,

Lieutenant Colonel Harry W, MoCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United
States Army Reserwe,

Ideutenant Colonel Newtom L, Chamberlain, Signmal Corps, United States
Arny,

Lieutenant Commander Ralph I, Gerber, U, 8. Havy,

Captain Kermit H, Shelly, U, S. Marine Corps, members, and \

Lieutenant David Bolton, U, S. Navy, juige advocate,

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. S. Navy, reperter,

The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters,

1
ll The reccrd of procesdings of the thirty-sixth day of the trial was

read and approved, .
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present, i |

A witness for the defense eantered and was duly sworm,
| Exanined by the judge advocate: |

1., Q. Will you state your name and former rank in the Imperial Japanese

Havy?
. A, VWakabayashi, Seisaku, former vice admiral, Imperial Japanese Navy.

2. Q. If you recognise the acoused, state as wham,
A, Vice Admiral Hara,.

Exanined by the accused:

3, Q. Did you ever serve in a naval establishment on Truk? If so, state
the peried,

A. I was Commandant of the Fourth Base Force from July 24, 1943 to
February 22, 1944.

4+ Q. What Naval Guard Units were under youwr ccsmand when you were
Commandant of the Fourth Base Foroe? 4 l
A. Forty-first Naval Guard Umit, the Fortypsecond Neval Guard Unit st M3
Ponape, and another guard mnit at Palau, These are the three Guard Units,

5., Q. Who was commanding officer of the Forty-firet Guard Unit on

February 17, 19441
A, Captain Tanaka, Masaharu,




7. Q. What was the period of time you were sieck?
A, I was sick from January 18, 1944 wntil I left the post of Commandant of
the Fourth Base Foroe.

8. Q. Did anything unusual ococeur on Truk on February 17, 19447
A. There was an air raid by a Tnited States Task Force.

9: Q. On that day did you assmme oommand over your subordinate wmite? If
80, how d4id you exercise your ocommand?

A:. At that time I was sick and was either im the sick room or in the air
raid shelter adjacent to the offieial room of the Commandant and I only
received reports from my staff offiocers regarding important matters and gave
m.'u_'

10, Q. On that day were you asked for directions from the Forty-first Nawval

Cuard Unit regarding prisoners of war?
A. Absolutely not,

11, Q. Did you take the stand as a witness for the proseoution at the
Tanaka trial?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
was incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial unless the acoused were at
to impeach his own witness,

The accused made no reply.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

12, Q. Was there a conference om that night at the Fourth Base Force
Headquarters?

A. In order to hear the reports on damages sustained and for the
preparation for future operations there was a conference on the war prepara=-
tions,

13. Q. Were you present at this conference?
A, I was present during the time when important matters were discussed.

1. Q. Who attended this conference?

A, I recall that those attending were all my staff officers, three staff

officers from the Fourth Fleet Headquarters, the various cognisant commanding

rmﬂ:l: o . e
L]

15, Q. Was Tanalka, NMasaharu, oommanding officer of the Forty-first Guard
mit,nm.tuim:
A WalN,.




16, Q. During the time you were present at the conference did Captain
Tanaks make a report? If so, what repert did he make?

‘Il.. At the conference Captain Tanaks made a repert on the damages sustained
by the air raid at the Forty-first Guard Unit and the report on supply of
ammunition and reenforcements of personnel in preparation for the next battle.

17. Q. Did Ceptain Tanaka make a report concerning prisoners during the
time you were present?
A. There was no such report.

18, Q. Did you ever receive any reports from the staff officer of an
|imi:hnt regarding prisoners on February 17 at the Naval Guard Unit?
A, I did not receive any repert.

19. Q. From when did you know the accused Hara, Chuichi?

A. As Hara was my classmate at the Naval Academy I was acquainted with him
from then on until the present, which is about forty years I have intimately
known him,

20. Q. ©State, if you know, what general reputation of the accused, Hara,
regarding his traite of protection of prisoners of war and matives in the
occupied area.

A. I have known him for forty years and he is one of my dearest friends, and
I am well acquainted with his private as well as his official life. He has a
very good manner and a studious and inquiring mind, He was a good sportsman
and was champion in the Japanese nation sport of jude and of wreetling and was
'known throughout the Navy. In arder to exp@lin the

necessity for this brief explanation and I think that it is important that this
should be stated before I go into the ma « 48 such he upheld the spirit of
the Japanese Navy tradition and the of sportsmanship and he applied
this to his subordinates as well as to matters involving international rela-
tions which I shall refer to later with precision and consistency. For exampls,
I would like to refer to the Amoy incident in 193€ and 1939 when Hars was
|Supreme Commander of the Navy in Amoy. It was firmly reputed that the accused
"Hln, tock measures to take every precaution for the protection of natives and
foreign residents in Amoy and gave this the highest prierity. In 1940 when
the Japanese Army entered French Indo~China Hara was Chief of Staff of the
China Seas Fleet and at that time, conforming te the wishes of the Japanese
people as well as the Navy, he opposed and ignored the Army there which desired
to operate outeide the scope of the Imperial headquarters' orders; and Hara,
i|{followed the orders of the Imperial headquarters, especially in regard te
international relations, As I have stated in the above examples Hara was very
careful in the matters of international law and tock every precausion and
measures to see that it was observed and he had every regard for international
relations. On the other hand, he was well known as a fighting adwiral in the

Navy and a8 a champlen of the weak,

The comrission then, at 10110 a.m,, tock a recess until 10135 a.m., at
'which time it reconvensd.

Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Elvin G, ﬂlﬂh. ]‘I-.lfi‘l'lt dﬂ.' U. 8. “’ m-
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
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taken, entered, He was warned that the cath previously taken was still
binding, and contimued his testimony.

Cross-examined by the judge advocate:

21, Q. Did the Fourth Base Foroe receive reports concerning the capture or
arrival of priscners of war on Truk?

A, As far as I know I did not receive any reports but some of my staff
officers might have received reports,

22, Q. Then prisoners of war arrived at the Forty-first Guard Unit did the
Fourth Base Foroe advise the Fourth Fleet that prisoners of war were oconfined

there?
A, As a matter of course I believe that the staff officers would have

reported to the Fourth Fleet.

23: Q. Did you ever receive a report regarding the arriwval of the SCULPIN
prisoners of war? '
A, As I have stated before I received the repert from Commanding Officer |
Mipematsu, |

2,. (. Where were prisoners of war confined at Truk?
A, At the Forty-first Guard Unit,

Wakabayashi, Seisaku, the witness under examimation whem the recess was ‘

25. Q. Was this a subordinate unit of the Fourth Base Force which was your ,
command? !
A. That is right, .

26, Q. Now, you have testified that you did mot now anything about the
incident that occurred on February seventeenth and did not receive any
uwﬁu{r:wdmmﬂmtmuﬂ-ﬂ, is that correet?
lg m “l

27. Q. Now, isn't the real reason why you testified you received mo reports|
concerning this incldent the faoct that you wish to deny your personmal
responsibility for the mistreatment of prisoners of war that occourred?

28. Q. You realise that as commanding officer of the Fourth Base Foree you
had a responsibility to control the Forty-first Guard Unit and to protect
priscners of war?

A. The responsibility for the custody of prisomers at the Forty-first Guard
Unit was the responsibility of the commanding officer of the Ferty-first
Guard Unit. My responsibility was to supervise the commanding officer of the
Forty-first Guard Unit and to that effect I have repeatedly stated.

29. Q. Did you have a duty te instruct your subordinates = all of your
subordinates?
A. Faturally I had the duties to comtrol and instruct my subordinates,

30. Q. Did you have the duty to comtrol and instruct them in regard to the
treatment of prisoners of war? .
A, Quite obvicusly se,
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instruct his subordinatas vith regard to the treatment of prisoners of war?
T abaolutely have no such idea. It 1s as I have stated at my triel and
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portant funetien ef ‘he Commender in Chief of t! Evyes The responsibility
for the mistreatment of ‘risoners of wur falls not only on me, tut also on thé
Commander in Chief 4th Fleet unl the Commander in Chief of the Combined Flest

who 1s the Commander in Chief of the Navv, The fact that the Combined Fleet
and the 4th Fleet never issued any order specifically dealing with the treat-
ment, protectlon, or safe guarding of prisoners of wer, evidences a lcose
pollcy concerning the treatment of r~risoners of war. The only order that was
ever recelved directly concerning rriscners of war was the order that they
should be temporarily confined at the Guard Unit and then sent to Japan, This
order did not specify that the prisoners of war should be humanely treated or
protected from abuse. The failure to issue specific instructions for the
protection and handling of prisonere of var indicates to some degree that the
policy of the higher echelons was to disregard the rroblem of protection or
treatment of prisoners of war, In my opinion the failure to establish def=-
inite instructions for protecting and handling prisoners of war was largely
responsible for the mumerous instances of mistreatment of prisoners of war,
For this reason I believe that the responsibility should not only rest on the
{18t Guard Unit and other units direetly involved in the mistreatment of
prisoners of war and upon myself es their superior officer, but also must be
placed upon the Commender in Chief of 4th Fleet .nd even on the Combinad Fleed.
I studied International Law at the Japanese Naval College, and later when I
vas a Member of the Dureau of Military Affeirs of the Naval Hiniatry, T alse
attended lectures on Internationsl Lar at war college. Beesuse of this traine
ing T am familiar with the responsibilities un’ duties under Tnternational
Law tn vrotoet nrisoners of war end to trect them humenely., I swear that the

(SR ] =

voluntarily mede by me, an? T have not been induced to make this statement W

e

foregoing 1= Hfle to the hast of my knonledge, recollection and belief, and 1s

the use of any foree, threats, cromises of reward or other intucemonts, s
This question was ohjeeted %o by the sceuse’ or +he ground thet 1t was

irrelevant 2nd immaterie), und that the stotement wes an opinion of the wit-

ness and thet the stotement was a se¢lf serving statement made by the witness,
The Jjudge advocats replied.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,




A, I do not mean this statement, Regarding the statement the judge
advocate read, I was induced by Lieutenant Bolton and Commander Ogden to
write this. I made objection regarding the words "loose policy” and "my
opinien® but that objection was not accepted and it was left without
corrections and I cannot approve the whole of this statement,

The accused moved to strike out this question and the answer thereto
on the ground that they were irrelevant and immaterial in view of the
witness' answer regarding the ciremmstances under which he was induced to
make the statement,

The judge advocate replied,

The commission directed that the guestion and the answer thereto be
stricken out,

33. Q. VWhea did you leave Truk?
A, I left Truk om February 26, 1544 on a hospital ship,

3. Q. On what day were you officially relieved as commanding officer of
the Fourth Base Foroe?
A, I recall it was February 26, 1944.

35. Q. From February 17th to February 26th were you still sick and
incapacitated for much of your duties?
d. Since the twenty-second I went to the hospital and I did not carry out

any duties but from the seventeenth to the twenty-second in my sick bed, 1
carried on my duties,

36, Q. Did you handle all of your duties from February 17th to February 22md

ar :ﬂtm merely concentrate on the more important duties during that

per

A. T was receiving reports regarding important matters from my staff

foﬂl,m“lﬂmﬁInmhﬂmaﬂiﬂu{m-wﬁﬂﬂ
control,

37. Q. You say you received the important reports, did you receive the
undmportant reports as well?
A. I cannot say specifically what is important and what is unimportant,

but what I received I regarded as impertant,

Reexamined by the accused: -
38. Q. Regarding your actual assmption of duties as Cesmandant of the
Fourth Base Force, you testified in the direct examinmation to the effect

that it was until Pebruary 22nd; is that correct?
A. That is o,

39. Q. Then is it incerrect when you said that you assumed duties '"#111
the 26th of February in your cross-exsmination?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was a misstatement of the witness' t-lilq.

The commission announced that the objection was mot sustained,

A, hﬁMIMmMIth—mw
seoond to the twenty-sixth and I carried on my duties watil the tweaty-
“i
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l 40, Q. State what day you completed your briefing to your successor as '
: the Fourth Base Foroe Commandant, '

This question was objected to by the juige advocate on the ground that ,
it was irrelevant and immaterial,

The accused replied,
The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

41, Q. When were you relieved by your successor?
A. Onm February 22, 1944.

42, Q. Were you ever officially relieved of any of your duties or command
responsibility during your sickness while Commandant of the Fourth Base
Force until you were relieved officially by your successcr on February 22,
19447

A, No, I was not,

The judge advocate did not desire to recross-examine this witness,.
The commission did not desire to examine this witness,

The witness said that he had nothing further to state,

The witness was duly warned and withdrew,

|
The commission then, at 11:15 a.m,, adjourned until 9 a.m., tomerrow, I |
Thursday, December 23, 1948,




Ot t 0 ‘

THIRTI=EIGHTH DAY

United States Faclfic Fleet,
Commander Naval Forces, larlanas]
Guam, lariansas Ieglands,

Thursday, December 23, 194E.

The commlssion met at 93105 a.m.
Fresent:

dear aAdmiral Arthur G, Jdcblnsen, U, S, Havy,

Capteln Daniel J. Sweeney, U. 5. Navy,

Lieutenant Colonel Harry I. licCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United
States Army Leserve, w

Lieutenant Colonel Nowton L. Chamberlain, Signal Corpa, United States
Army,

Lieutenant Commander Ralph I. Gerber, U. 8. Navy,

Captain Kermit H. Shelly, U, 5. Marine Corps, members,and

Lieutenant David Bolton, U. 5. Navy, judge advocate.

Paul ¥. Coste, junior, yeoman first class, U. 3. Navy, reporter.

<he accused, hls counsel, and the interpreters,

The record of nroceedings of the thirty-seventh day of the trial was
read and avnroved,

Mo witnesses not otherwise conrocted with the trial were vreszent,
4 witness for the defenze ontered an? wasz 2uly sworn,
Examined by the judge advocate:

1. 4: State your name and former rank 4n the Immerial Japanese Navyr,
- Former Lieutenant Commander Nakase, Shohichi,

24 Q. If you recognize the accused, state as whom,
A, Former Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, Vice Admiral Hara.

Examined by the accused:

3 Q. Did you ever serve on a Japanese Naval Installation on Truki If 50,
please state the perlod you served there,
' I have. I served at the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit on Truk from abouf
Hovember 7, 1943 to the end of the war,

be . 4. lihat was your position while serving at the Forty-firet Naval Guard
Unit

A, ky positions were acting Lxecutive Officer of the Forty-first laval
Guard Unit, Chief of the Land Defense Department, Section Officer of the
guards, and division head, During thsat period from the beginning of May 1944
to the mlddle of July 1944 I was relieved as exscutive officer, and Commander
Lﬂttugawn became the executive officer. e

B Q. Vhen you arrived at the Forty-first Navael Guard Unit to teke up
your duty, were you briefed by your predecessor?
A, I was briefed.
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6. Q. In this briefing was there anything concerning the handling of
prisoners of war; if se, please state what it was, ,
A, There was. In the briefing there was mentioned about the handling of |
prisonera of war, It was as follows: When there are prisoners of war they ,
were to be temporarily protected at the guard unit until such time as trans-
portation to Japan was available and at which time they were to be sent back

to Japan.

Te Q. During your tour of duty on Truk, did you ever receive instructions
concerning the policy of treatment of prisoners of war from higher authority;
ii 1f so, please state what these instructions were?

A, I did receive, I recall that it was in the latter part of December 19&3
or the beginning of January 1944 that a rear admiral or a vice admiral of th
Navy Ministry in Tokyo came to Truk and after instructing us on various mat-
ters he instructed us concerning the handling of prisoners of war as follows:
When prisoners of war were captured at the front they are to be sent back te
Tokye as soon as possible because at Tokyo there are systematic facilities ta
investigate these prisoners and as there are no other ways to get any inform-
ation, please send the prisoners of war captured at the front to Japan as sodn
as possible, That was the instructions.

8. Q. TWhen this rear admiral or vice admiral gave this instruction, were
you present there and heard it yourself?
A, Yes, I was there,

9. Q. Who was at the scene when this admiral gave the instructions?
A.  Other than myself, all the cognizant commanding officers on Truk and |
the executive officers, and the Commandant of the Fourth Base Ferce was also
there, and T recall that the Staff Officers of the Fourth Base Force were
also present,

10. Q. Have you ever had a conversation with the members of the Fourth
Fleet Headquarters concerning the treatment of prisoners of war after 23
February 19441

Thie question was objected to by the judge advocats on the ground that
it was too bread in scepe.

The accused reframed the questien.

11, Q. Have you ever had a conversation with the members of the Fourth |
Fleet Headquarters concerning the treatment of prisoners of war after Feb= |
ruary 23, 1944; if se, please state when this conversation took place. |
4, I frequently had conversations with members of the Fourth Fleet Head-
quarters concerning the treatment of prisoners of war, whenever there was
an opportunity to send the prisoners of war back to Japan, they should be
sent back as scon as possible,

The judge advocate moved to strike the words "whensver there was an
opportunity to send the prisoners of war back to Japan, they should be sent
back as soon as possible” out of the answer on the ground that they were not
responsive.

| The commission directed that the words be stricken out,

12, Q. Please state the contents of the conversatien you had with the mem-

b;nn:‘thnhwthnutﬂudqmrhnmmthtmh-ﬂnfmﬂn
of war

Se— ——w

This question was objected to by the judge advecate on the ground that
e it called for a hearsay answer, J

469

s e ——— e .




|
L

| 4. I received briefing, but not instructions,

The acoused reframed the question.

13. Q. With whom did you have the conversation?
A, I had this conversation with the transportation staff officer of the

Fourth Fleet Headquarters,

14i. Q. Pleases state the contents of the conversation you had with this
transportation staff officer of the Fourth Fleet?

A, Paymaster Officer Arakawa of the guard unit was promoted around Novem-
ber of 1944 and was assigned to a new post in Japan, therefore I went to see
the transportation staff officer to request that he be sent back as soon as
possible. The transportation staff officer told me that there was a sub=
marine and an airplane leaving very soon that could take him back to Japan,
Later I was notified by the transportation staff officer that Arakawa would
be sent back on a submarine, I told this te Arakawa and Arakawa requested
that he be sent back on & plane for his health was not very goed,

The commission directed the witness to come to the polnt and answer
the question which deals with prisoners of war rather than Arakawa,

(The witness continued his answer,)

Therefore I requested of the transportation staff officer that he be
sent back by plane, but the transportation staff officer said that the pris-
oners of war had to be sent back on the plane and that Arakawa would not be
able to take the plane, and the staff officer told me to put Arakawa on the
submarine, This plane did reach Japan, but the submarine which Arakewa was
aboard, I heard that it sunk off Saipan.

The judge advocate moved to strike the last sentence out of the answer
on the ground that it was irrelevant and immaterial,

The commission directed that the last sentence be stricken out,
Cross-examined by the judge advocate:

15. Q. You have testified that you were briefed and received instructions
that pﬂ.unnnrs should be temporarily protected at the Guard Unit, is that
correc

16. Q. Did you consider that one of the functions at the guard unit was
the protection of priscners of war -+ that were in its custody?

A. It is so, it was to confine and protect the prisoners of war temporaril
until such time as they were sent back to Japan,

17. Q. De you know if this function of the guard unit with the protectien

:{ pr::;!mﬂ of war was carried out on February 17, 1944 at the time of the
rr

A, On that date I had amoebic dysentery and was hospitalised at the ise-

lation ward, so I do not know about anything that happened about this time,

18. Q. To the best of your knowledge during the time were executi
officer of the Forty-first Guard Unit, 51.: the hm—ﬂn{ngurd Unit pﬂ::nt
:h- pr;.nn-r- of war in its custedy?

. ince I arrived en duty at the guard unit I had everything do
I could for the prisomers of war, I swear this before God. ol o
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!19. @ Were you in fact, not only the executive officer, but also head of the
specific unit that was in charge of guarding the prisoners of warf?
A. Yes.

20. Q. Do you know that during the sir reid om February 17, 1944, seven
prisoners of war were executed at the guard unit?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
irrelevant and immaterial.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

A, On the 5th of March I was released from the isolation ward and at this
time I heard what had happened.

|21, Q. Now on February 17, did you in any way carry on your duties as
executive officer of the Forty-first Guard Unit?
A, As I was a patient in the isoclation ward I did not perform the weork

of tha axecutive officer,

22. Q. Did you leave the isolation ward in the hospital on the 17th eof

:Fabrunnr for any purpose during the air raids?
ll. I did leave the isolation ward,

23. Q. Briefly, what did you do when you left the isolation ward?

A, I was in the air raid shelter during the first and second raids, but I
believe it was around eleven o'clock when the preparations for land warfare
was ordered, so I was head of the Land Defense Section went out te command
the Land Combat Unita.

24. Q. DNow Nakase, when you learned what happened to these prisoners of
war during the air raid that you stated you learned on March 5, did you issus
any instructions to the guards who were guarding these prisoners not to permit
more violence on priscners of war?

A, I did not give any instructions. The reason is that these guards were
well trained from before in the treatment of prisoners eof war.

25. Q. Were all your guards at the Forty-first Guard Unit similarly trained
in the treatment of prisoners of war?
A. I did train the guards in general.

26, Q. Now, on March 5 you learned of the incident that occurred on Febru-
ary 17; how did you learn about the incident?
A. I learned of this after March 5 through rumors.

27. Q. Now on June 19th er 20th, were there any prisoners of war at the
guard unit?

A, Thers ware,

28, Q. Did know about the mistreatment of these prisoners of
war by Decter Uene on June 1 or 20th?

This question was objected te by the accused on the ground that it was
outside the scope of the direct examinatien, and alse as te the ferm of the
question.




The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
A, Around June 19th or 20th there was no such thing.

29. Q. Now on June 19th or 20th, did you hear of any other type of mis=
treatment of these prisoners of war who were in your guard unit?
A, I de not know.

The commission then, at 10:20 a.m., took & recess until 10:35 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

Hakase, Shohichi, the witness under examination when the recess was
taken, entered, He was warned that the ocath previously taken was still binds«
ing, and contimed his testimony.

(Cross-examination continued,)

30. Q. In June 1944 did you know anything of the bayoneting and beheading
of the prisoners of war at the Guard Unit near the dispensary?

A, I learned the details of this incident in thie court room and I believe
it took place around the early part of July.

The accused moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it was
hearsay.

The judge advocate replled.
The commisaien announced that the motion was not sustained.

31. Q. Could priscners bes moved from the Guard Unit without your permission
as the executive officer or without the permission of the commanding officer?
A, Permission of the commanding officer is necessary to move prisoners of
war, PFPrisonere of war can not be moved even with the permission of the exec-
utive officer.

32, Q. On June 19, or 20 did you know that there were prisoners of war
present at the Guard Unit and guarded by your own unit?
A, I de.

33. Q. After the prisoners had been there several days did you learn that
the prisoners were missing and were no longer there?

A. I know for an actual fact that the prisoners were there until the
twenty-ninth of June, I de not know how many days after that but I heard
later that several dtnl:!‘t-rthnttheym- operated on at the sick bay,

The accused moved to strike out the words "I heard later that several
days after that they were operated on at the sick bay, ™ on the ground that
they were hearsay.

The judge advecate replied,
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| The commisslon announced that the motion was not sustained,

34+ Q. In June or early July, shortly after the day that you say that the
prisoners were in the Guard Unit did you learn that they were no longer in
the Guard Unit?

A, I am certain that there were five prisoners of war at the Guard Unit
until 29 June and after that the three disd by bombing and there were two
who were wounded seriously and I know that these two surviving prisomers of
|| war were at the Guard Unit about four or five days after this time,

35. Q. Four or five days after you knew these two prisoners were at the
CGuard Unit, did you then learn what happened to them?

A, After this time from rumors circulating in the Guard Unit I heard that
these two prisoners of war were cperated on at the dispensary and later died
and T also heard this from the commanding officer.

36. Q. Where were you d,g!‘ihg this entire period from approximately June 19| AR
through Juns 29%
A, I was at the Guard Unit,

37. Q. And where were you from June 29 to the tine you heard this rmeor
that the prisoners of war were killed?

A, I was at the Guard Unit, but I may have been another place than the
Guard Unit headquarters because I was carrylng out my duties,

38, Q. On July 1944 did you know about the incident which occurred at the
Fourth Naval Hespital involving the prisoners whom it was your duty to protect]?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
beyond the scope of the direct examination and called for hearsay testimony.

The Judge advocate replied.

The commission anncunced that the objection was not sustained.

|

11. I do know,

39. Q. When did you learn about it?

A, I do not recall when I heard this but I heard that something happened
at the hospital,

40. Q. Did you know that the prisoners of war who were killed at the hospi-
tal at that time were the prisoners of war who had been confined at the Guard
Unit?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that the
Judge advocate was interjecting testimony into the question,

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

Q. Did the Fourth Naval Hospital receive these prisoners from the Forty+
st Guard Unit?
» What do you mean by these prisoners?

2. Q. These prisoners who were killed at the hospital in July 19447




This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that the
Judge advocate was interjecting evidence into the question,

The judge advocate made no reply.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

43. Q. In July 1944 did the Fourth Fleet Hoapital obtain any prisoners frop

the Guard Unit?
A. Yes, two were turned over to them,

4he Q. Were they ever returned to the Forty-first Guard Unit?
A, No, they were not returned,

45. Q. You have testified that after March 5, 1944, after you returned teo
the Guard Unit from your illness, you heard of the incident which occurred
on February 17, Did you, at thut time, also hear of the incident that
occurred at the hospital in late Jamuary or early February, 19447

4, I do not know for an actual fact whether I heard it at this time or
not, but at present I know there was an incident,

46. Q. Did you make a statement on 15 April 1948 in the presence of
Commander Ogden, Lieutenant Bolton, and Mr, Savory?
A, I do not recall what date, but I recall that I made one.

47. Q. I show you this statement and ask if this is the statement you made?
A, That is what I wrote.

48. Q. In this statement did you state "With regard to the experimenting
with POW's which occurred at the 4lst % Guard Unit dispensary and the 4th AR
Naval Hospital around the end of Janmary, 1944, I did not know about this
when it happened but definitely learned of it when I left the dispensary in
March, 1944. I learned at that time that POW's had been disposed of at the
hospital and that the medical officers were involved."?

A, Yes, I did write that,

49. Q. You testified that you did not know about the killing at the time
of the killing of the priseners in July, Isn't it true that Captain Iwanami
phoned you and asked for the prisoners of war and told you that he had obe
tained the approval of the Fourth Fleet Headquarters?

This question was objected to by the mccused on the ground that it waas
misquoting the testimony of the witness.

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,
A. Yes, it is,

50¢ Q. When you heard these various rumors that prisoners of war had been
disposed of, did you make any report to the Fourth Flset Headquarters?

Q. Did you make any reports to the Fourth Fleet from the Forty-first
Unit concerning prisoners of wart
Yes.
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52, Q. Vhat reports did you make to the Fourth Fleest?
A, Vhen they were confined and when they were sent back to Japen,

53. Q. You heard various rumors concerning these incidents. Did you ever
hear about any Japanese naval persconnel being punished for any of these in-

cldents?}
A, There?

Bde Q. At Truk?
L. I never heard of this.

The accused moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it was
irrelevant, ilmmaterial, and hearsay.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission directed that the anawer be stricken out,
Reexamined by the accused:

55, Q. You testified that you were at the, lsclation ward suffering from

amoebic dysentery but please state the periof you were in this isolation ward, Af |

A, I was at the isolation ward from 25 Jamuary 1944 to March 5, 1944.

56. Q. VWhile you were at this isclation ward was there anyone who acted
in your place as acting executive offlicer?

A, Lieutenant Commander Ishil, who was the next in rank to me, scted as
senior officer,

57. Q. You teatified that during the February 17 air raid you took command|
of the landing party unit, but where were you when you took thie command?
A, The command post of the landing rparty unit was on the slope of the hill
and was located to the east of the guard unit headquarters, I was at this
command post and took command.

58, Q. You testified that these five priscners were definitely at the Guarf
Unit until 29 June, What is your basis for this?

e On the twenty-ninth of June there was an air rald and the Guard Unit
was bombeod et this time and three of the prisoners of war died at this bomb=
ing and two sustained severe wounds. At the same time a sailor named Saiteo
who was the guard of these priscners died, so I know definitely that it was
on thies date.

59« Q. Concerning what you testified concerning the three prisoners of war
who died on the June 29 raid and the two who died after the operation at the
dispensary in the early part of July, did you yourself report this to the
Fourth Fleet Headquarters?
A. Right after the air raid, by telephone I reported that three of the
ﬁu:m h:fd:z md as th: result of the bombing and two were wounded. But
s two w er operation at the dispensary this
to the headquarters. o 7 = T S

60, Q. Did you ever attempt to report this?

This question was objected to the o advooat
it was irrelevant and immaterial, v e 9530 sveond. ek




The accused replied.
The commission anncunced that the objection was sustained.
The witneas was duly warned.

The commission then, at 11:30 a.m., took & recess until 2:10 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Fresent: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel;
and the interpreters.

Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U, 8. Navy, reporter,

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

Nakase, Shohichi, the witnsas under examination when the recess was
taken, entered, He was warned that the ocath previcusly taken was stlill bind-
ing, and continued his testimony.

(Reexamination continued.)

6l. Q. On cress-examination you testified thut you trained the guards.

Will you tell in what way you trained these guards?
Il. I was the officer of the guards and below me there was a deputy officer
of the guard, and I gave instructions to him to train the guards. I instructs
| od as follows: I instructed that the prisoners of war should be treated
humanely and that inhumane acts should not be perpetrated. Prisoners of war
are here after putting up a brave fight. They had fought until their spears
had splintered and swords broken, therefore do not consider them &s an enemy
and do as much as you can for them as you would de our own men,

62. Q. This deputy officer in charge of the guards, what was his name?

Thie question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused replied,
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,
A Ensign Kawaharaseki.

63. Q. Now, in addition to you and Ensign Kawaharasaki, did the duty efficer
have any duty in connection with the supervisicn of these guards on the day
that he had the duty?

A, The officer of the guard and the deputy officer of the guard is respons-

ible for the training of the guards. The officer of the dey has the duty te
see that the guards carry out their duties that day,

64. Q. FWas the officer of the day elways a commissioned officer?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the und that
it was irrelevant and immaterial. e

The accused replied.
The commission announced that the ebjectien was not sustained.
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‘ | A, The officer of the day is an officer above the rank of warrant officer.

65. Q. Now, when Iwanami, Hiroshi, the commanding officer of the hospital,
phoned you that day, what did he say to you and what did you say to him re-
gerding those two prisoners of war the hospital took that day?

A. I received a telephone call from Iwanami stating that he would like teo
perform a health examination, so "will you please let me have the twe prison-
ers of war at the Guard Unit?" As the commanding officer was not at the
Guard Unit at that time I asked Iwanami whether he had the permission of the
headquarters and Iwanami answered that he had an understanding, therefore I
turned over the prisoners.

66. Q. What headgquarters did he say to you he had the understanding with?
A, He did not specify which headquarters; he just said headquarters.

67. Q. Was there more than one headquarters?
A There was the Fourth Base Force Headquarters and also the Fourth Fleet

Headquarters.

68. Q. Did you turn them over without the authority of Captain Asano?

A, As Commanding Officer Asano was away on another island and as I was th ‘
"

next senior and when he left he told me "I will leave everything in your car
tharefore I handed the prisoners over without Asanc's permission and after
Commanding Officer Asano came back that evening I reported to him,

69. Q. Now, you testified that the Guard Unit made reports to’the Fourth
| Fleet regarding prisoners of war, What specifically did the Guard Unit
report regarding these prisoners of war? I
| A. It was reported when the prisoners were confined and when they were
sent back to Japan, Other than this I do not recall.

70. Q. Do you know to whom these reports to the Fourth Fleet went?

A, I personally did not make this report, so I do not know, I had the
officer of the day make this report to the Fourth Fleet Headquarters by telet
phone, so I do not know to whom it was made,

7l. Q. Vere these reports also made to the Fourth Base Force?

A, Yes, they were made to the Fourth Base Force alse, When the Fourth
Base Force was in commission I had the report made directly to the Fourth
Bgse Force and the report was not made to the Fourth Fleet Headquarters, 1
After the Fourth Base Force was dissolved the reportis were made to the
Fourth Fleet Headquarters.

72. Q. Were these reports made in accordance with orders from the Fourth
Base Force?

A, The report was not made because we were ordered, but as it was our ,
duty to report what went on and the result at the Guard Unit, we made the -
reports.

73.Q, Do you remember when you made the report regarding the confinement of
the five prisoners, twe of whom you said you heard died as a result of an
operation, when were those twe and the other three that were killed in the
explosien, captured and when was the report made and to whem, of their captufe
and confinement?

A I do not recall the date these prisoners were confined, but I am def-
inite they were not cenfined all at once, probably one at a time and the
report was submitted when each prisoner was n-un.ﬂ.t'od. A%

74. Q. To whom were the reperts submitted?
A, I had the officer of the day report this to the headquarters,
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75. Q. Which headquartera?

A, I do not recall the date these priscners were confined, but as I stated
before they were not confined all at once, and about the beginning of May the
Fourth Base Force was dissolved and the Fourth Fleet became our superior,
therefore I do not know but I think that some of these reports were made to
the Fourth Base Force and some to the Fourth Fleet Headquarters,

76. Q. Do you know if the death of three of the prisoners by bombing and
the death of two of them as you heard by operation was reported?

A, I had the officer of the day report the three who died of the bombing
stating that two others were wounded. As to the two who died after the oper-
ation at the dispensary I did not report this. It was on the seventeenth or
eighteenth of August 1945 the commanding officer and I discussed matters con-
cerning prisoners of war and at that time the commanding officer said that no
one other than the Guard Unit personnel knew as to the incident or of the two
prisoners of war, so not to report this, I rejected this clause from the re=
port, and also the three who died by bombing was not reported at that time,

The judge adveocate moved to strike the words "It was on the seventeenth
or elghteenth of August 1945 the commanding officer and I discussed matters
concerning priscners of war andat that time the commanding officer sald that
no one other than the Guard Unit personnel knew as to the incident or of the
two prisoners of war, so not to report this, I rejected this clause from the
report and also the three who died by bombing was not reported at that time"
out of the anawer on the ground that they were beyond the scope of the gques=
tion and of the cross-examination, and hearsay.

The accused replied,

The commission directed that the words be stricken out on the ground
that they were not responsive.

77« Q. Do you know whether any report was made regarding these two prisonefs
that you turned over to Captain Iwanami?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was too broad and too general. :

The accused withdrew the question.

T78. Q. Do you know when these two priscners of war you turned over te Cap-
tain Iwanami were captured and confined at the Guard Unit?

A, These two prisoners were sent by the Army unit at Puluwat to the Army
Unit on Truk and then were brought te the Guard Unit, I de not recall when
but I recall that it was semetime in July.

79« Q. Do you recall whether Captain Asano made a report to the Fourth Bas¢
Force after you had told him you had turned these two priscners over to the
hospital? -

A, He did not make this report in my presence,

804 Q. Do you know whether he made a report?
A Ne, I do not,

The judge advocate did not desire te recress-examine this witness.
The commission did net desire to examine this witness.
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| which time it reconvensd.

The witness made the following statement: "It does not pertain te
anything I have testified to in this court up to nmow, but it deals with
the attitude which Admiral Hara had towards the natives which I saw with
my own eyes, and I would like to state it at this time,"

The judge advocate objected to the witness' stating anything regarding
specific incidents, on the ground that with regard to general character and
reputation testimony, the relation of aspecific inecidents not otherwise con=
nected with the charge, are Inadmissible and irrelevant and immaterial.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained and directed
the witness to confine his statement to the general reputation of the accused

The witness contimied his atotement as followas: The Commander in Chief
Hara gesgorlpted with us ond even with the natives as though we were related
to him blood ties, This relationshin weza in no way affected by the sur-
render, Ve all felt, especlally after thes Ameriean forces came to loen Ie-
land, that the good wlll of the natives towards the Japanese ineresased. To
back this up since I came to Truk and until I left Truk, no inecidents nccurre?.

The witness was duly warned and withdrew.

The commission then, st 3110 p.m., took a recess until 3:30 pem., at

Present: ALll the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters,

Paul ¥, Coste, junicr, yecman first class, U, S, Yevy, reporter,

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Herbert L. Ogden, a witness for the defense, wus recalled and warned
that the oath previously taken by him was still binding.

Examined by the accusedt

Eanined by the sccused concerning the offer in evidence of defense
document #32:

la Q. Have you in your possession a document C, L. O, mumber 4172 paren
three point one naren dated 20 December 1948%
A, I have,

3 Q. How wes it received, end from whom?
A, At the request of counsel for the accused, it was obtained from the
Central Liaison and Coordination Office through SCAF,

be Qs Does this dooument relate to information concerning an Tmperial
:usaag;ia:d important orders with regard to cessation of hostilities?
» ces,

Defense document mumber 32, produced by the witness wis submitted to thel
Judge advocate and to the commission, and by the accused, offered in evidence.
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Cross-examined by the judge asdvocate concerning the offer in evidence
of defense document #32:

Bs Q. Were the English and ths Jepanese coples both received from the
Central Lialson and Coordinotion O0ffice st tho same timel
A. |, P— AT E .
b0 Q. T observe thit the transnittel of Dosember 20, 1942, the English
cony, 15 girmed W "0, Toshids r|, b 4 prpdd B e e '|_:r M cend Troaol av rod
glened ¥ him., dAre the Japannse of these certifloates Wy Favel Twao signed
or otherrise ssaled B hinmg
e They purpart *0 he, on? T am edvised thaet they are,

There belng no objection, the document wer 5o recelv nd is apprended

ap) ¢ } 1

r‘-\.
marked "Exhibit 55" (Japanese) and "Erhibit 552" (Inglish

. N N : T - g
Evamined by the aeccus eoneerning Lx i1 1
L .l R L a T4 =E
. Qe 111 the witness 2wl i
4 & - el & Yo & Pl
i tneas reed Exhidblt 55.)
::_-u_ ..iﬁl_.-,j 'I\.* -I;'l-I Locluse -:"":"-‘_”.;1‘*"'1,._,_ _.'!. % -'l'l_. 1.-“
o 1 ~ S dn ry N LY d ol = R s a4 aw il w5
'l L I - e '} L - i ai el PRSI e oL LE g BN l
suids F F1 - s T — wed 1.8 maysd eyl Y - plg— | T o = i 27
. 1.5 C L= Ll ay L.'rg---n[]"' 1L K00 LACUGEVEIT WIS - -:..q."'. ~LOE8 L A
oLt 0 1 ] e = q B a5
of this exhibit show ihail Licutenani Comrmander Suzuki, ¥aooml was duly aworn
& . .
as a witn
—‘ L2
Ay i L DD 5
Y [ =TT 4 | A — . = i . = 7 " &} o f SR . 1 ol e
O Q. 1 the vitness read from nage 51=12, the first question asked by
4 1 - 214 1 - -~ T4 oy ¥ 5L I 1 |
il Baler o - LilE nant Co nder Suzuki and the anesver thereto
¥ g mi + 4 m
ree cieni
. ' . 2 " A
Wi ra 1 J it 1 Llowst
! i I | ] i e e i el L e il T F A BT = BTN oSyl
Qs he 5 the relatlonship between the IQ of &7 Nawval Garrison
T d 4 bl iy Al Dy F oo 1T # UL |
nit at liauru ar the Superlor [I§ at Truk.

ae In Aug 45 the Ocean end neighbouring islands were entirely
independent and that wes ordered by the HQ in Feb 44."

Cross-examined by the judge advocate concerning Exhibit 16:

O Q. ¥ill the witness read from page eleven the question beginning "Thed
was your superior headquarters" and the answer, ¥ and the following three
questions and enswers thereto?

The witness read from Exhibit 16 as follows:

"Q. There was your superior HQ.
A, It was at Truk.

Q. TVere your superior HQ not at Nauru,

A, Up until the fall of the Marshall Islands it was under the
supervision of Nauru Island but after the fall it came under the
4th Fleet,

Q. Was the 67 Naval Garrison Unit on Nauru also.
A, Yes, that is so,
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Q. And wvas the HQ of the 67 FNeval Garrisen Unit on Mzurua.
A. For normal business it was supervised by Neuru HQ."

11, 3. 4Are those gueations and answars alao part of the teatimony of Suzukl
- 1 L "

Naoomi?
Ra They are,

The acoused 414 not desire to reexamine this witness.

The commission did not desire to examine this witness.
The witness said that he had mothing further to state,
| The witness was duly warned and withdrew,

| The commission then, at 4:25 p.m,, adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
Friday, December 24, 1948,
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THIRTY-NINTH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Cosmander Naval Ferces, Marianas,
Guam, Marianas Islands,

Friday, December 24, 1948,

The cemmissien met at 9:15 a.m.
Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Rebinsen, U, 3, Havy,

Captain Daniel J, Sweensy, U, 3., Navy,

Lisutenant Celenel Harry W, MeCormick, Quartermaster Cerps, United
States Armny Reserwve,

Lieutenant Celenel Newtom L. Chamberlain, Signal Cerpe, United States
Aray,

lieutenant Cosmander Ralph I, Gerber, U, 3, Navy, -

w Eermit H, ﬁll].r, U, 8, Marine wl m" and

lieutenant David Bolten, U, S. Navy, juige advecate,

Archie L, Haden, junier, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reperter,

The accused, his ocnni, and the interpreters,

The recerd of preceedings ef the thirty-eighth day of the trial was
resd and approved,

Ne witnesses net otherwise connected with the trial were present,

The sccused was, at his ewn request, duly swern as a witness in his
own behalf,

Examined by the judge advecate:

l, Q. Are you the accused in the instant oase?
As Yeos.

Examined by the accused:

2. Q. State your name and fermer rank}.
A, Hara, Chuichi, vice almiral, Imperial Japanese Navy.

3. Q. Did yeu, at cne time, serve as the Commander in Chief of the Feurth

4+ Q. Flease state your tewr of duty as Cesmander in Chief, Feurth Fleet,
A: I served as Cesmander in Chief, Fourth Fleet from 23 February 1944 wntil
the terminatien of the war,

5¢ Qe You use the term "termination of war", Will yeu fix a date signi-
e iRt A 1005 1 widl detesntss thde dabe September 2, 1945, the
day en which the Japaness ferces surrendered to the imerisass, -
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=going unites did you have in your cosmand when you were

February 19447
the crulser NAGARA which, at that time, was undergeing

at 1500, 23 February 1944.

But, unfertunately, I

That was the missien of the Fourth Fleet when you became its

Commander in Chief?

Where did you serve as Commander in Chief, Fourth Fleet?

On Dublem Island, Truk Atell,

Q.

Then did you relieve your predecesser?
Were you briefed by your predecesser on your duties?
I received a briefing in accordance with Naval customs and usage.

Q.
Q.
Q.

A.

A, The missien of the Fourth Fleet was to centrol the

Eastern and Westera Carolines,

these areas and the defense of these 1

8.

A.

10,

A

13.
located,
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A, As provided Fleet Ordinance they were to submit their reperts
via the Chief of Staff,
IIB. Q. Mmm—l_ﬂdmrnﬂhﬂutmmnwn—dn

19. Q. Do you knew the missien of the Cembined Fleet? If se, please state,
A, TIts missien was to coordinate and assume ocmmand of all the fleets.

2, Q. mtw 2
A. In the early part of March 1944 the Central Pacific Area Fleet was I
newly organised and the Fourth Fleet was placed under its immediate command.

|22. Q. Do you know the reasem why the Central Pacific Area Fleet was
established and what its mission was? If se, please state, .
A. The object in organising the Central Pacifioc Area Fleet was te coerdinatie
the army and navy commands in face of the American effensive that I have
referred to previeusly and to consolidate the defense of the Central Pacifie
Area.

23, Q. Until what date did this Central Pacific Area Fleet continue in -
encel

A, As I recall we received the last dispatch frem the Central Pacifis Area

Fleet stating "We are about to launch our last attack” around the middle eof




27. Q. What was the area of jurisdiotion ef the Central Facific Area Fleetl
Ad: The area of jurisdictien of the Central Pacific Area Fleet covered the
Marshalls, Eastern and Western Carclines, and the Marianas.

28, Q. Were there units other than the Feurth Fleet subordinmate te the
Central Pacific Area Fleet?

A. There were under the command of the Cemmander in Chief, Central Pacifie
Area Fleet, the Fourteenth Air Fleet, the 3lst Army, the Fourth Fleet, and
other ocrganisations.

29, Q. De you know when the 3lst Army which you stated as being one of the
subordinates of the Central Pacific Area Fleet, was organised?
A, It was organized in the early part of March, 1944.

30. Q. Flease state, if you know, the mission of this 3lst Army.

A, The 3lst Army had subordinate units on all of the islands im the area
of jurisdiction of the Central FPacifie Area Fleet and its main funotion was
the land defense of these islands.

A, Lieutenant General Obata.

32, Q. Do you kmow until when the 3lst Army centinued in existence?
A, It was in commissien until the termination of the war,

33. Q. Where was the headquarters of this 3lst Army?
A. It was en Saipan.

.?ni;tﬁ. Were there any command relationships between Feurth Fleet and the
3 Army?

A. The Commanding General of the 3lst Armmy commanded all army units. The
Commander in Chief, Fourth Fleet commanded Navy units in the area of juris-
diction of the Fourth Fleet. Comsequently there were no command relations
between the twe commands,

35. Q. Did you then, as Commander in Chief, Fourth Fleet, have autherity
to command Army units within the area of jurisdictioa?

A. On principle I did not have this suthority, If the Cosmander in Chief
of the Central Pacific Ares Fleet were to delegate his authority to myself
I naturally would then have the autherity to command Army units, however

during my teur of duty such autherity was not delsgated to me.

36, Q. Were there Army units om Truk during tour of duty?
A, TYes, there were, oy

3:. Qe What was the designatien or designations of the Army unit er units
l!ﬂkl
A. The 52od Divisien was the nucleus of the Army units on Truk,

38, Q. If you kmow state the mission of the 52nd Divisien,
A, Tts missien was the defense of Truk and neighboring islands,

39. Q. What was the name of the Cemmending General of this divisien and
his former rank?
A, Ideutenant Gemeral Mugikurs.

40, Q. Where was the headquarters of the 52nd Divisien loocated?
A, Dublen Island, Truk Atell,
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41, Q. Who was senior, the Commanding General of the 52nd Division or
yourself?
A, Ideutenant General Mugikura was senlor to me,.

42, Q. Did you ever receive any orders from the Central Pacific Area Fleet
in regard to command of army and navy unite in the area of jurisdiction of
the Fourth Fleet?

i. The Commander in Chief, Central Pacific Area Fleet issued the following
order immediately after he assumed command "The senior commanding officer,
(Army or Navy) on the island shall command all army and navy units in the
event of invasion by American forces," :

The commission then, at 10:20 a.m,, took a recess until 10:40 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

FPrepent: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, hie counsel,
and the interpreters,

Elvin G. m. Yeoman first ﬂ]...ll. U. 8. hﬂ. ﬂpﬂtﬁ'.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

Hara, Chuichi, the accused, the witness under examination when the
recess was taken, resumed the stand as a witness in his own behalf, He was
warned that the oath previously taken was still binding, and continued his
testimony.

(Examination continued,)

43. Q. You did not mention Nauru and Ocean Islands when you stated the
islands in your area of jurisdiction, Were these islands in the area of
Jjuriediction of the Fourth Fleet?

A, I omitted by mistake these two islands; Nauru and Ocean were in the
area of jurisdiction of the Fourth Fleet,

44e Qs You testified that Lieutenant General Obata was the Commanding
General of the 3lst Army. Did he continue in command right up to the end?
A, Iieutenant General Obata died in combat in the Marianas. The date of
his death 1s not definite., After it was ascertained that lLieutenant General
Obata was deceased, the Commanding General of the 52nd Division, ILieutenant
General Mugikura, at Truk, was officially appointed Commanding General of the
Jlst Army. As I recall, Lieutenant General Mugikura was officially desig-
nated Commanding General of the 3lst Army in March or April of 1945, and as
I recall until the death of Lieutenant General Obata at the 3lst Army Head-
quarters was made definite, Lisutenant General Mugikura as second in command
of the 3lst Army, was acting in the capeacity of Commanding Ceneral,

45, Q. What happened to the Commanding General of the 52nd Division?

A, Ilieutenant General Mugikura became the Commanding General of the 3lst

mw'ﬁimthMMﬁquitiunmem&m5m
on.

46, Q. What were the major unite of the Fourth Fleet when you became the
Commander in Chief, Fourth Fleet?

A. The Fifth Base Force, the Thirtieth Special Base Force, and Fourth
Base F the Sixty-second, Sixty-third, Sixty-fourth, Bi:tru::i. and
m-mummmn,mummrmw-

ment, the Fourth Naval Hospital, the Fourth Supply Depot, and the F
Bnnirmm-,ulthmmfmurﬂummtnhmu.
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47. Q. Of these subordinate units what was the missi
A, A base force is composed of two or more naval guard units, and its main
function is to command the operations of the naval gunard 8.

base force was a base force which was composed of one
unusual strength, and as a rule a chief of staff i
base foroe,

:
g
:
i
2
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48, Q. Where was the Fifth Base Force located?
A; It was located on Saipan,

49. Q. Do you recall who the Commandant of this base force was?
A, Rear Admirel Sujimura.

50, Q. Where was the Thirtieth Speclial Base Force?
A, It was located in the Palaus,.

51. Q. Who was the Commandant?
A, It was Vice Admiral Ito,

52. Q. Where was the Fourth Base Force?
A. It was located on Dublon Island, Truk Atoll,

53. Q. Who was the Commandant of the Fourth Base Force?

54. Q. Ddd the Fourth Base Force continue in existence throughout your
tour of duty?
4, No, it did net.

55. Q. What happened to it and when the change, if any, ocour?
A, The Fourth Base Force was deactivated on the first of May 1944.

56, Q. During the time that the Fourth Base Force was in existence, did
it have nunits subordimate to itself?
A It did.

57. Q. That were the subordinate units of the Fourth Base Force?

A, The units were the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit, the Forty-second Naval

Guard Unit at Ponape, Sixty-seventh Naval Guard Unit on Nauru and Ocean. Be-

:iiduﬂtho above there were the Harbormaster's Office and the Fourth Comsunicas
on Corps,

$ commission then, at 11 a.,m., adjourned until 9 a.m,, Monday, Decembef
27, 1948,




FORTIETH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Cemmander Naval Ferces, Marianas,
Guam, Marianms Islands,

Menday, December 27, 1948.

The commispien met at 9220 a.m,
Presants

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Rebinsen, U. 5. Navy,
Captain Daniel J, Sweeney, U. 5. Navy,
Lieutenant Celensl Harry W. McCermick, Quartermaster Cerps, United
States Army Reserve,
PR Lieutenant Celenel Newten L. Chamberlain, Signal Cerpe, United States
[ ]

Ideutenant Cesmander Ralpk I, Gerber, U. 8. Navy,

Captain Kermit H, Shelly, U. S. Marine Cerps, members, and
Lieutenant David Belten, U. 8. Navy, judge advecate.

Faul F, Ceste, junier, yeeman firet class, U, 8. Navy, reperter.
The acoused, his ceunsel, and the interpreters,

The recerd of preceedings ef the thirty-ninth day ef the trial was read
and appreved,

Ne witnesses net etharwise cemnected with the trial were present,

Hara, Chulchl, the accused, the witness under examinatien when the

adjeurnment was taken resumed the stand as a witness in his ewn behalf, He
as warned that the eath previeusly taken was still binding, and centinued hig
testimeny.

(Bxaminatien centinued, )

58, Q. What happened te the Headquarters eof the Feurth Fleet after the

deactivatien of the Central Facific Area Fleet?
A, The Cembined Fleet then became ite immediate superier headquarters.

59« Q¢ What happened te the suberdinate unite ef the Feurth Base Ferce

r ite deactiwatien at the end of April 19447
These units became immediate suberdinates ef the Feurth Fleet.

e Q. What were the duties ef the Naval Guard Unit?
Its main functien was te defend the installatiens, et cetera, at the

val bases,
Q. What was the scepe of the autherity and respensibility of the

Na ening

the duties assigned it, and he alse

full respensibility in regard te educatien, training, merale, and military
of the suberdinates and persennel under his cemmand.

Q. Where was the Ferty-firet Naval Cuard Unit lecated?
It was in Dublen Island, Truk Atell.




63, Q. Whe was the Commanding Officer ef the Ferty-firet NHaval Guard Unit

during yeur teur ef duty?
Asane, Bhimpei, Captain, Imperial Japansse Navy.

64e Q. Were there suberdinate units eof the Feurth Fleet on Jaluit Island?
A, Yee, there was,

65. Q. What was the designatien of this unit?
' The S8ixty-secend Naval Guard Unit,

66. Q. Whe was the Cemmanding Officer of the Sixty-secend Naval Guard Unit

during yeur teur ef duty?
A, Nasuda, Nisuki, Rear Admiral, Imperial Japaness Havy.

67. Qs Were there Army Units en Jaluit Island during yeur teur ef duty?
. There was,

68, Q. What was the designatien, if yeu knew, of this Army Unit?
A, ds I recall, it was a unit frem the First Seuth Seas Detachment,

F. Q. Was this Army Unit en Jaluit Island under the cemmand ef the Feurth

eet or net?
It wae net under the cemmand ef the Feurth Fleet.

70, Q. If yeu knew, state under whese cemmand this Army Unit was,
A, It was under the cemmand ef the 3let Army.

Tl. Q. Were there suberdinate units ef the Feurth Fleet en Hauru and Ocean

Islands?
iA. There were.

72, Q. What were these unita?
A Tt was the Bixty-seventh Haval Guard Unit.

73. Q. Where was this Sixty-seventh Naval Guard Unit? Was it en Nauru er

wae it en Ocean?
A The Headquarters ef the Sixty-seventh Naval Guard Unit was en Naeuru and

a detachment of this Naval Guard Unit was statiened en Ocean,

T4e Q. Whe was the Cemmanding Officer eof the Sixty-seventh Naval Guard Undf

during yeur teur ef duty?
A, Captain Seeda, Imperial Japanese Havy,

75. Q. Whe was the Cemmanding Officer eof the Detachment en Ocean Island?
I s

didnthnﬂnun&mﬁuqtmdduﬁn}utﬁwﬁlﬂlu
pame was Lieutenant

e aware frem the charge and specificatiens that
emmander Susuld.

Q. Yeu testified that there was the Feurth Naval Hespital under the
onmand ef the Feurth Fleet; where was this Feurth Naval Hespital lecated?
On Dublen Island, Truk Atell.

7. Q. Did this Feurth Naval Hespital centinue in existence umtil the

termination of the war?
It did. .

78. Q. If you knew, will yeu state the missien ef this Feurth Nawval
_ | Heapd
A Tt was a place where patients were treated,

1
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Q. Whe was the Head ef the Feurth Naval Hespital during yeur teur ef
Iwanami, Hireshi, Burgeen Captain, Imperial Japanese Navy.

80, Q. Yeu testified that the Feurth Censtructien Cerps was a suberdinate
unit ef the Feurth Fleet; where was this censtructien cerps lecated?

A, The Headquarters ef this Feurth Censtructien Cerps was lecated en
Dublen Island, Truk Atell.

79
o=

€l. Q. ©State briefly the missien ef the Feurth Censtructien Cerps, if yeu
knew,

(A  The Feurth Censtructien Cerps was cempesed of appreximately ten theusand
laberere, and its missien was te censtruoct and engineer naval installatiens.

82, Q. Whe was the Commanding Officer ef the Feurth Cemstructien Cerps
during yeur teur ef duty?
A. Captain Harada, Imperial Japanese Navy.

83 Qe When yeu became Cemmander in Chief ef the Feurth Fleet, did yeu hav
‘I:.he adninistrative and judicial autherity, and autherity te maintain peace and
£ and autherity te pretect matives in the area of jurisdictien ef the
Fleet?
l.. These autherities and duties were vested in the Governor of the South

bility in regard to these matters,

to maintain peace and order and the authority and responsibility to protect
natives were vested in the Governor of the South Seas Covernment Office; were
there any changes in these authorities during your tour of duty as Commander
in Chief of the Fourth Fleet?

A:.  There was a change,

85, Q. What sort of change ocourred?

A, After the organization of the Central Pacific Area Fleet, the Commander
in Chief of this fleet issued the following ordert 1., The Senlor Commanding
Officer of the Islands within the area of juriediction (the senior army or
navy commanding officer) in case of necessity shall command officials of the
South Seas Government Office in matters pertaining to administration and the
judiciary., 2. Maintenance of peace and order will be assigned to the Army,
above matters were decided at a cabinet conference, Besides the above ths
overnor of the South Seas Government Office issued instructions to the

of ficials in his office which was in effect that subordinate officials of the
outh Seas Government Office place themselves under the command of the senlor
tary or naval commander of the military ﬂffiﬁl in matters pertaining to
nistrative and judicial matters in case of' necessity.

Q. You have testified to this order issued by the Central Pacific Area
nt.‘hutﬂidthlnﬂ.Grummd‘ﬂulrutthummth
o effect what was set forth in the order and exercise administrative and
udicial authority?

T do not know how this order was put into execution in the ialands,
hether such authority was exsrcised not, On Truk I was in no way cob=

with the administration and j  but I was aware of the fact tha
the Governor of the South Seas Government Office on Truk was receiving orders
from Iieutenant General Mugikura, the senior commanding officer on Truk,

4390

Seas Government Office and I did not have any authority nor duty nor responsis

84 Q. TYou testified just now that the administration and judicial authorify
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quarters was?

87. Q. Who then, had the rﬂpmlihﬂitytn‘iﬂﬁinptuiuﬂm'd-rlﬁtu
protect the natives on Truk?

A, The senior commanding ﬂffiﬂll‘ on Truk, Iieutenant General Mugilkura,
controlled such matters.

;Ig. 'Q. When wae thie order referred to, issued by the Central FPacific Area
est
d. As I recall, it was around March or April 1944.

89, Q. Were kempeital stationed within the area of jurisdiction of the
Fourth Fleet?
4. Yea, they were.

90. Q. What was the mission of the kempeitai?
A. Their mission is that of military police.

91. Q. Did the Fourth Fleet have authority to command these kempeitai?
A. The Fourth Fleet had absclutely no relations with the kempeitail after I
aspumed my command.

92, Q. If you know, state who commanded the kempeitai and where his head=
Ao The senior local Army commanding offlicer commanded the kempeital.

Kempeital Headquarters was located in Tokyo. The organisation of the kempeitgi
was highly ocomplicated and I do not know of ite organisation,

93, Q. Will you state briefly and clearly how the conditions were as to

traneportation between the islands in the area of jurlsdiction of the Fourth
eet during your tour of duty as Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet.
The transportation conditions within Truk Atoll, especially in reference
o Dublon Island: After I assumed command of the Fourth Fleet heavy damages
ere sustained on Truk Atoll because of the daily and nightly air raids by
erican Army planes and by U. 8. Task Force attacks and transportation on the
delands forming Truk Atoll, especially Dublon Island, was immobiliged and was
put into a state of chaos very frequently. FNext on the transportation of the
inter-islandss The sea and air supremacy of the Marshall and Eastern Caroline
lands had completely fallen into the hande of the Americans and transporta-
ion to and from these islands was completely severed. Consequently, it was
: possible to supply these islands with food or ammunition and as a result
he subordinate unite on these islands were suffering from great shortage of
food, According to the American wireless after the termination of the war
here were from five to six thousand subordinates on these islands suffering
from malnutrition, Further the transportation between Truk and the Japanese

nd was severed.

: Q. BState clearly and briefly the communications conditions
within the area of ction during your tour of duty as Commander in »
of the

Fourth Fle
Firet on the transmiseion and reception of wireless on Truk:s it is my

A e S e ——




Commanding Officer of the Communication Unit, the transmission conditions -on
the islands in the Marshall area, and in thie I include Nauru, was almost
imposeible from the latter half of 1944, with the exception of Jaluit Island,
Consequently, these islands in that area maintained communications through
Jaluit, however I heard that commencing with the year 1945 transmitting on
Jaluit had terminated and communication became diffiocult.

The Judge advocate moved to strike the last sentence from the answer on
the ground that it was incompetent and hearsay.

The commiseion mnnounced that it would rule on the motion after hearing
the next question and answer,

95. Q. From whom did you hear this?
A. It wae related to me by the Commanding Officer of the Communication Unif,

The commiseion announced that the motion was not sustained.

The commission then, at 10:20 a.m., took a recess until 10:35 a.m., at
which time it reconvened. :

Fresent: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junlor, yeoman first clase, U. 8. Navy, reporter,
No witneeses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Hara, Chuichi, the accused, the witness under examination when the
recess was taken resumed the stand as a witnese in hies own behalf. He was
fwirned that the oath previously taken was still binding, and contimied his

testimony.
(Bmmination contimed.)

96, Q+ Will the witness contimme his answer?

Next, I will state on the condition regarding code. Very soon after I

lassumed command of the Fourth Fleet I received the following report from my

iChief of Btaff: "It appears that when Kwajalein fell the enemy took pu-u:ﬂ..r
N

of our code and therefore precautions have to be taken in sending secret code
sages to the ielands because there is danger that these messages be dec
Chief of Staff further reported after the fall of the Marianas that from
s estimate of the situation based on the observation of the battle condi-
ons, it appeared that the Americans may have possession of the newer code
booksj that therefore secret code messages should be restricted to those whiek
ould not effect the situation even if they were decoded by the enemy., And
ithe. gist of this was relayed to all the islands, I failed to mention this buf]
to the reception of messages at all the islands, the hours were desigmated |~
or two hours a day - when they would be open to reception,

What were the communication conditions between Truk and Nauwru and

: partioular?
Hauru was in the radio network of Truk but Ocean was a detachment of
garrison and theref not within this network., When the commu-

- on was maintained through uit as I previously testified, even w
O Lt 10 s R i s 2oy Hachs 20 maitiais Sesmesioatton Witk

acoount of the distance in between.

You testified previously that transportation with the Japanese home=
been severed but was there not some other means of transportation?

m:mwmm:mm&w AR g
: in operation once or twice a month, I

ro
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99. Q. When you were briefed by your predecessor were you briefed on mattexs

relating to prisoners of war?
. I was abeolutely not briefed on matters relating to prisonerse of war,

100, Q. When you assumed your duties as Commander in Chief of the Fourth
eet did you receive reports or were you submitted representations concerning
ir!.lonm of war by your staff officers or other officers?
. No, I absoclutely did not receive reporte nor was I submitted represen~

tations,

(101 Qe When you assumed your command were you submitted reports or
rcpnnnhtinm by your subordinate cognisant commanding officers or did you
[become aware of reports concerning priscners of war or were you made aware of
lor did you hear of matters concerning prisoners of war?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was leading.

The accused withdrew the question.

102, Q. When you assumed your command did you receive reporte concerning
incidents involving prisoners of war from your subordinate cognisant command-
ing officers or did you learn of such incidents?

This question was objected to by the Jjudge advocate on the ground that
it was lm-.

The accused made no reply.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
A, I did not receive reports or hear of this,

103, Q. What were your duties prior to your assumption of command of the

Fourth Fleet?
A, I was, prior to assuming the command of the Fourth Fleet, Commandant of

the Air Training Command, My duties involved the basic training of flyers
||ground crews of the Navy. There were between 120,000 and 130,000 naval men
under my command and it was a purely educational and training mission that I
then had,

104, Q. Had you heard of any incldents involving prisoners of war before ¥y
assumed command of the Fourth Fleet?

lA. A8 I just now testified my duties were those connected with a purely
training and educational organisation and it was entirely unconnected with
combat and therefore I did not hear of such matters.

105, Q. Did you see prisoners of war after you assumed command at Truk

during your tour of duty?
A. No, I never saw any prisoners of war,

106. Q. Dldm,-rnmﬂhmhnrlm.hwthtthmmpﬂlmﬂl#
enﬂiﬂaﬁﬁ-ﬁﬂ-ummmm#mmwﬂ
A, No, I did not

107. Q. Did you, around March
Jalui

{
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This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was leading.

The cc-used withdrew the question.

108. Q. Did you receive, around March of 1944, a report from the Sixty-
second Naval Guard Unit concerning the deaths of three prisoners of war?
A, I did not.

109, Q. Was Truk subjected to a heavy bombing rald around June of 19447

This question was cbjected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was leading.

The accused withdrew the question,

110, Q. Did anything unusual occur on Truk around June of 1944%
A. I do not understand the counsel when he says "anything unusual®,

111. Q. Was there not an air raid on Truk around June of 1944%
A. There was an air raid, Truk was subjected to continued severe bombings

112, Q. Did you know that in June of 1944 there were prisoners of war con=
fined at the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit at Truk?
4. No, I did not know,

113, Q. Did you receive a report from the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit
around June of 1944 to the effect that these prisoners had died at the Guard
Unit dus to the bombinga?

Thie question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was leading.

The accused withdrew the guestion.

114. Q. Did you, around June of 1944, receive a report from the Forty-first
Naval Guard Unit concerning prisoners of war?
A. No, I did not receive a report,

115, Q. Did you, around June of 1944, receive a report from the Forty-first
Naval Guard Unit concerning the deathe of two prisonera?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it wae leading and Frcr.utitimu.

The accused replied.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

116. Q. Did you know, around July of 1944 whether two priscners of war were
confined at the Forty-first Navel Guard Unit?
A H’U. I did not.

117. Q. About July 1944 were there requests submitted either by the Fourth
NHaval Hospital or by the Forty-first NHaval Guard Unit in regard to two

prisoners of war?
A. No, such a situation did not arise.
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118, Q. Did you, in July of 1944 know that there were prisoners of war in
the custody of the Fourth Naval Hospital?
A. Such a eituation is impossible from the standpoint of the mission of

the hospital.

The commission stated that the answer was not responeive and directed
the witness to answer the question,

The question was repeated.
' No, I did not know,

119. Q. Did you, around July of 1944, entertain suspicions that there might
be prisonere of war at the Fourth Naval Hospital?

Thie question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was leading, called for an opinion of the witness, and was speculative.

The accused withdrew the question.

120, Q. Do you recall Surgeon Captain Iwanami, the Head of the Fourth Naval
Hospital, testifying as a witness for the prosecution on the twenty-sixth day|
of this trial?

Thies question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it makes reference to prior testimony in this current trial.

The accused withdrew the question.

121, Q. D44 you, around July of 1944, visit the Fourth Naval Hospital?
l. I did-i

1122, Q. Do you have a recollection of having visited the hospltal on the

twenty-third of July 19447
4. It was my custom to visit the patients at the hospital once or twice a
month, however I do not have a definite recollection of having been at the

hospital on the epecific date of 23 July.

123, Q. Did you ever hold conferences with Iwanami and one cther person at
the Fourth Naval Hospital when you were visiting there on a veranda?
A, Yes, I recall such a conference.

124. Q. Who was this third person of this group? The person other than

Iwanamd 7
4. ds I recall, it was Burgeon Captain Taneda,

125, Q. While you were in conference on the veranda did you see a truck pass

in front of the hospital?
4. No, I do not have such a reccllection,

126, Q. Did you see prisoners of war in or about the hospital on a vieit to

the hospital in the month of July?
4. I have absolutely no recollection of having seen prisoners of war at the

naval hospital.

127. Q. Did you receive a report concerning the death of two prisoners of
war from the Fourth Naval Hospital around July 19441

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was leading.
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The acoused withdrew the question,

128, Q. Did you, around July of 1944, receive a report from the Fourth Naval
Hospital which related to prisoners of war?
A. No such report was received,

1129, Q. ©Subsequent to that date did you receive any report from the Head of
the Fourth Naval Hospital concerning prisoners of war?
A. Surgeon Captain Iwanami came after the termination of the war to report

and apologize in that he had executed two prisonere of war.

1130, Q. Was a conference held at the Fourth Fleet Headquarters in the early

part of September 19447
e Yes, a conference wae convened.

The commission then, at 11:30 a.m., took & recess until 2:10 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

|
| Present: A1l the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U. S. Navy, reporter,

! No witnessee not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

| Hara, Chuichi, the accused, the witness under examination when the
recees was taken resumed the stand as a witness in his own behalf, He was
warned that the cath previously taken was still binding, and continued his
testimony,

(Examination continued.)

|

131, Q. What type of conference was it which was convened in the early part
of September 1944 at the Headquarters of the Fourth Fleet?

1-1. It was a conference of the cognizant commanding officers,

132, Q. Did you attend this conference of the cognizant commanding officerst
A. I did.

133. Q. What were the main toples discussed at this conference?
A, They were mainly concerned with the defense of Truk.

134, Q. Who presided at thie conference?
[|A. Chief of Staff Sumikawa presided,

135, Q. Who attended this conference? Btate the namee of those you recall,
A, There were staff officers of the Fleet present besides myself and the
Chief of SBtaff, and there were the following officers: Transportation Departs
ment Head Kojima, Head of the Naval Hospital Iwanami, Commanding Officer of
the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit Asano, Head of the Hepair Department Morita,
||Head of the Munition Depot Kofu, Commanding Officer of the Fourth Communica~
[tion Corps Kaneko, Head of the Air Repair Shop Miyasaki, and Senior Staff
Officer of the Twenty-second Air Group Tamura, Those are the names I recall.

136, Q. Did Iwanami speak about prisoners at this conference?
A. He did.

1137, Q. Please give the substance of what Iwanami said at this conference,
I heard Imanami say that they had stabbed two prisonere of war at the

A,
hospital.
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138, Q. On hearing Iwanami state this what judgment did you draw?

it called for an opinion of the witness,

A. I thought it a strange story. The hoepital was by international law a
neutral sone and it was the only peaceful haven on Truk, Furthermore Iwanami
was a quiet and kind man and previous to thies he had tcld me on several

ccoasions that at hies previous post at Ofuna he had treated prisoners of war

_;thuu,ght that he had become unbalanced.

139, Q« Did you say anything in view of this statement?

(A, I had heard at this conference that persons had been wounded in fighta
over foodstuffe and I felt that the personnel on Truk were victimized by fear
jand excitement and as the Chief of Staff offered me the opportunity to addres

-

t the present moment, Two monthe more however and the food situation will

aged and the defenses will be completed, if cognizant commanders will see to
t that the personnel under them not excite themselves and that they act with
ortitude and resclution and that they retain the resclution to act right@uslﬂ MR

bout prisonerg of war in a manner to provocate your subordinates®™. That is
he substance of what I told them.

. Several days later Chief of Staff Sumikawa, who concurrently held the
o6t ae Commandant of the Twenty-second Air Squadron, epoke to me as followes:
The talk on priscners of war 'braufhtr up at the conference came up at the
eadquarters of the Twenty-second

orbade this discussion to go on",

nvestigation?
. After the conference I debated with myself and gave great thought to thip

ould postpone the investigation till some other date, I would see to it that
o recurrence of such an incident would occur on Truk, and it was my judgment

t was irrelevant.

—
(2 ]
e

’

This gquestion was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that

The accused made no reply.

The commission announced that it would hear the answer before ruling.

ith kindness and consideration and this statement coming from Iwanaml I

The judge advocate withdrew the objection.

conference before the conference dispersed, I addressed the conference
ingtructions were in substance as follows: "Iruk is faclng imminent death

that they fight with true courage. It is not my policy that LE:;E:L
wiul aects be done to weak prisoners of war and that food be pr d from
tives, et cetera. In partiocular you as cognizant commanders will not talk

« Q. Did facts come to light later which in any way was connected to these
tructions that you issued?

ir Bquadron and I, Sumikewa, strictly
. Q. DP1d you, on the basis of this statement by Iwanami, conduct any

tter and resolved that although under the existing circumstances on Truk, I
t there would be no fliers from larger type of aircraft who would be taken

soner in the future.

« Qe What were your reasons for judging that no crew members from larger
of aircraft would be taken prisoner in the future?

This question was objected to by the jJudge advocate on the ground that

The acoused reframed the question,
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1.3« Qs Why bhad you judged that there would be no prisoners taken from
American aireraft in the future?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was miasquoting the witness' testimony.

The accused replied,

The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

1ibe Q. Were the circumstancee then prevailing such that it made possible
the capture of prisoners of war?

Anti=gireraft ammunition had almost been spent and ammunition for largexn
of aircraft, by which I mean those flying at higher altitudes, was abso=
utely gone, and the Americans while conducting their air raids on Truk had
etationed submarines in the waters around Truk which very successfully resc
the fliers from planes which had been downed by the Japanese. There were fiw
six fighter planes which could be used to intercept the larger type of
erlcan aircraft, but I had issued orders that they do not attack these
ecause they were to be saved to attack the dmerican aircraft carrlers in the
vent that these aircraft carriers participated in an invasion operation
irected against Truk,

5. 4. You testified that American submarines rescued downed fliers. Did
u actually see such an operation on their part?
. Yes, these submarines were witnessed by the Japanese and it was judged
hat if these submarines were to be systematically attacked, the air raide on
ruk would diminish and such a plan by use of seaplanes wae attempted although
do not recall the exact date of this attempt, The resultes did not show any-
hing tangible but as a result of this attempt there was a week's lull in the
rican air raids, The Americans changed their tactice and attacked our
aplane base on a large scale and as a result of which ouwr seaplanes sustained
eat damages and as a result of this it was decided not to attempt any more
ttempts by seaplanes., The American attacks were again renewed,

« Q. Were priscners of war ever captured after that date?
I believe it was around January of 1945 when one prisoner of war was

ptured.,

7« Qs What happened to this prisoner?
He was sent to the Japanese homeland.

« Q. DPid you confirm the fact that he was sent to the Japanese homeland?
» He was a flier from a fighter plane. May I tell the circumstances undeﬂ
hich this flier was captured?

The judge advocate objected to the witnese' continuing his answer with
egard to the circumstances of this capture on the ground that anything further

ould be irrelevant and immaterial,
The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

(The witness continued his answer as follows:)

I did confirm the faot.
149. Q. Were prisoners ever captured after that date, meaning January 19457
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4. I believe it was around June of 1945 that an Englieh Task Force attack
Truk and during the shelling and bombing which I observed from a hill, I
noticed that one fighter plane was downed., Search was made for the pilot but
|he was not discovered. In short there were no prisoners after January of 1945.

150. Q. Did you arcund August of 1944 know of a suspected espionage inciden
in which were involved two missionaries and four Nauwruan natives?

A I did know of an espionage incident at that time, but whether it involv
missionaries and Nauruan natives I did not know,

151. {. Under what circumstances did you come to know about this inoident?
4. It was through a report made by Harada, the Head of the Fourth Gonstrue+

corps stationed on Uman Island, Truk dtoll, had heard of an esplonage incident
and had handed 1t over to the kempeitail, but as a result of subseguent inves-
j'l:.:l.gaft.j.f::-]:t,, the incident had been proved as having been groundless,

152, Q. Did you receive further reports on this incident from the Fourth
Construction Corpa?
‘- . HD, I d-id ﬂﬂt-

153. Q. Did you know around September of 1944 of an incident on Hauru Island
:uncerninx foodetuffe involving one Nauruan native?
. I did not.

from the Sixty-seventh Naval Guard Unit on Nauru concerning an incident of
(ifoodstuffes involving one Nauruan native?
. I did not receive this report.

55. Q. Did you know of an incident concerning foodstuffs which oececurred on
uru around December of 194/ and which involved one Chinese national who was
resident of Nauru?
. I did not know,

56, Q. Did you around that time, December of 1944, receive a report from
e Sixty-seventh Naval Guard Unit at Nauru concerning an incident of food-
tuffs involving one Chinese national who was a resident of Nauru?

> I did not receive a report.

57. Q. Did you know what the food situation was on Nauru Island in the
riod between September and December of 19447

. ds I did not receive reportes on the food situation I did not know, but
8 no foodstuffe had been sent to that island since I had mssumed command of
e Fourth Fleet, I firmly believe that Nauwru was in great difficulty in

onnection with food.

The judge advocate moved to strike the words "I firmly believe that
uru was in great difficulty in connection with food" out of the answer on
ground that they were an opinion of the witness.

The commission announced that the motion was not sustained.

58, Q. Did you know in April of 1945 of an espionage incident on Jaluit

nvolving seven natives?
- I m not m'

59, Q. Did you receive a report or reports from the Sixty-second Naval
Unit on Jaluit concerning a native espionage incident on that island

ound April of 19457
. I did not receive any reports,
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160, Q. Did you around April of 1945 know of an espionage incident involv-
ing one pative on Jaluit?
d. I did not.

{161, Q. Was there a report submitted by the Sixty-second Navael CGuard Unit oh
Jalult concerning an espionage incident on Jeluit involving one native around
April of 1945%

A, I did not receive a report.

162, Q. Did you know of an espionage incident involving two natives around

dugust of 1945 on Jaluit?
A. I did not know.

[Unit on Jaluit concerning a spy ineident on Jaluit around August of 1945%
A. No, I did not receive any reports,

164. Q. During your tour of duty as Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet
did you ever meet your subordinate commanding officers of Jaluit, Nauru, and
Ocean garrisons at Truk?

A. No, I never met them.

Iilﬁﬁ. Q. Did you know of an incident in which approximately 200 natives were
killed which occurred on Ocean Island around August of 19457
A. I did not know,

16€, Q. Did you ever receive a report from Nauru or Ocean concerning an
incident in which were killed approximately 200 natives around August of 19457
A, I never received such report,

|
I The commission then, at 3110 p.m., tock a recess until 3:30 p.m., at
.Fthiuh time it reconvened,

Present: Al1l1 the members, the judge advocate, the mccused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Faul F, Coste, junicr, yeoman first class, U. &. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise comnected with the trial were present.

Hara, Chuichi, the accused, the witness under examination when the
recess was taken resumed the stand as a witnese in his own behalf, He wae
warned that the cath previously taken was still binding, and continued his

testimony.
(Bxamination continued.)

167. Q. Did anything unusual ocour in Japan around the 15th of August 1945
concerning the termination of the Pacific war?
A, It did.

168, Q. What oocurred?
. At noon on August 15, 1945 the following order was promulgated by the
or of Japan: "The mcceptance of the provieions of the Fotsdam Declara-
tion, the cessation of hostilities and surrender®,

169. Q. When did you learn of this Imperial Reseript?
A, I learned of it at noon August 15, 1945.
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163, Q. Did you receive a report or reports from the Sixty-second Naval Guard
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170, Q. Did you receive instructions from the Central authorities concern=
ing cessation of hostilities and surrender?

A, I received orders from the Chief of Naval General Staff which ordered
the cessation of hostilities in the name of the Emperor after hearing the
Imperial Rescript, foslowing which I received an Imperial order which was in
gubstance as follows: The Emperor's words expressed gratitude to personnel
of the army and pavy for services rendered in face of the surrender and they
stated that the surrender be carried ocut smoothly.

171. Q. Did you relay this Imperial order or instructions from the Central
suthorities to your subordinate units of the Fourth Fleet?
A I did so immediately.

172, Q. Will you state the substance of your message, the method by which
you relayed it, and the time when you did so?

i, I relayed the order from the Central authorities as it stood and added|
the following as the message from the Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleetp
"In the name of the Emperor, as Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet I ordpr
the surrender and express gratitude for services rendered, Cognizant commanf=-
ers will effect the surrender smoothly and expediently.®™ And after this
order, I lowered my flag, (T.N, the flag of the Vice Admiral)

173. Q. Did you or did you not issue an order te your subordinate units on
Nauru and Ocean Island which was contradictory in its substance to the Imper|
lal order or instructions for the Central authorities}

|

Thies guestion was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that|
it was leading.

The accused reframed the question.

174. Q. Did you issue orders to subordinate units on Nauru and Ocean which
were different from orders that you issued to your other subordinate units?

This queation was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground thnﬁ
it was leading and counsel wee attempting to coach the witness. '

The accused made no reply.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained,
175. Q. Did you issue instructions to your subordinate units on Nauru and
Ocean Islands which were similar to those 1ssued to vour other subordinate
units?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it wes leading,

The accused reframed the question,

176. Q. TVhat instructions did you issue to your subordinate units on Naury
and Ocean?

A, I did not issue orders other than those which I have just previously
testified to.

177. Q. Will you state briefly end elearly the course of events 1 ding
to the surrender? w = %
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A. As I recall it was on the 18th of August 1945 that I received the
following order from the United States Marianas Commander: "Show by white

il erosses on all alr strips that you are prepared to surrender - I shall
|ascertain this from the air", After discussing the matter with Lieutenant
||General Mugikura we placed these esigns on the air strips, Soon thereafter
American planes appeared over Truk and ascertained these signs and I relayed
the fact to my subordinate units the fact that Commander Marianas had ascer- |
tained our will to surrender, at the same time reporting to the Central
{|muthorities this fact. Following thie, around the 20th of August 1945
Erigadier General Hermle, U. S. Marine Corpe came to Truk aboard the United
States Ship "Stack" and he negotiated the preparations for the surrender on
September 2, 1945, That is all.

178. Q. When was the surrender of Truk cffected and who represented the
Japanese Armed Forces?

A, The eurrender was effected on 2 September 1945, Representing the
Japaness - Lieutenant General Mugllkura and myself, the Governor of the South
Seas CGovernment was present also,

179, Q. Who represented the United States Government?
A. Vice Admiral Murray, United States Navy was representative for the United
Statee in behalf of the Commander of the United States Pacific Fleet.

180. Q. TYou have just now testified to the surrender and how it was effected
on Truk; how“ere the surrenders on the other islande under the command of the
ourth Fleet effected?

' Each’ 1sland surrendered by themselves to commanding officers in the
United States Armed Forces. 4s I recall the units in the Marshall area sur-
rendered to the United States Commander at Kwajalein, those in the Eastern
Carolines surrendered to Commander Marlianas, those in the Western Carclines g
the United States Commander at Peleliu, and as I recall the unite on Nauru and
Ocean gsurrendered to an Australian Commanding Officer.

81, Q. By whose order did these units surrender separately to these separate

ormanders?
» There were instructions to that effect both from the Central authoritiea

n Japan and from Commander Marianas.

82, Q. What were the terms of the surrender?

The terms were a8 Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet to represent
Fourth Fleet and commanding the naval personnel on Truk to surrender
conditionally, There were other provisions on the terms relating to disposal
arms and munitions, control of communications, polieing of Truk, et cetera.
esides the above it was permitted that Fourth Fleet Headquarters could retain
te funotion as a headquarters.

83. Q. Did you ever report to your superiors the situation of the Fourth
eet as to ite ability to carry out its mission, particularly such islande -1
aluit, Ocean and Nauru?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
t was irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused replied.
The judge advocate withdrew the objection.

I reported the above condition to the Chief of Staff of the Central
oific Area Fleet when he came to Truk around the middle of March 1944,
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N&4. Q. What, if anything did the Commander in Chief of the Central Pacific
| ea F%aat, or the Chief of Staff say to you at that time when you made your
report
. Generally speaking, the Chief of Staff outlined the operational policy
of the Commander in Chief of the Central Pacific Area Fleet: In the event of
American invasion in the Marshall and Caroline areas, no support would be
extended to these 1slands, The Senior Commanding Officers of the islands in
iithese areas will therefore command army and navy units and will defend these
|islanda. In the event of American invasion of the Western Carolines and the
ianas, Task Forces of the Combined Fleet as assigned, the First Air Fleet
t Tinian, Sixth Fleet at Saipan and the Fourteenth Air Fleet which was
immediately subordinate to the Central Pacific Area Fleet would launch a
counter-of fensive, The Sixth Fleet was a submarine fleet.

The commiesion then, at 4:15 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
Tuesday, December 28, 194&.
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United States Pacific Fleet,
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A, The detachment on Ocean was under the command of the commanding officer
of the Sixty-seventh Naval Guard Unit on Nauru, and therefore the detachment

on Ocean wes subordinate to my command but I do not believe it
subordinate,

505

tly subordinate to thi

o

at Ccean Islang

was immediately




203, Q. On or about August 20,
at Nauru direetly subordinite to
A, Yes,

204 Q. Vas communiecation from
Islanc as well os with Nauru?

a4, 411 orders issued from the
to the commanding officer of the
1ssued to the commanding officer
Captain Sceda,

205. Q. After t!

th: formetion of
1944, did the Sixty-se
= 4

cond Nawval

1945 was the Sixty-seventh Naval Guerd Unit
the Fourth Fleet?

the Fourth Fleet held directly with Ocean
Commander in Chief of the fleet are issued
Guard Units and therefore the orders were

of the Sixty-seventh Naval Guard Unit,

the Central Pacific irea Fleoet in early March
suerd Unit on Jeluit remain directly sub- |

ordinate to the rth Meet?
R | M -'l
206, Q. After the formation of +'e Central Pacific Area Tcet in Merch dia
the Sixty-gevanth Maval Guard Unis maln dircetly aphordinnt ta the Tourth
™ and
By Tes,
:}F"I -.:-I -.'-;.: ...n'.‘ J"--l. ! 5| ninr L“: ranlr to +! | Bl Bt 71 hll';“_ I.#:
o AR e J=TN=4 40
Ll |
L L]
"'nH; . Cartain Sr nior in nk to £ | nicir vy offic
C R " ) I-
.
|
no. r ap o F 3 A . - A st S T A N et t
=t bl e v mled = g — MY e A v | - 7 o
el i [ - S I AN X Ji o P ) '--_r..qr __'.,‘_‘:
: . Bl s e | S ¥ e i i & T LT L T umm—. T . "™ an
. - . s . - 5 K J ™ s "’ I
1T 1 ? I L b -
. o
.
210s Qe Did this alleg Centrae) Pued e leet apply to
L] (| - # -k -
w o &i
. ! R - : AT | i w ik & - | - S
“ g . e SR ? E 7 = B
L]
-5 | J & - it 0
<11, Q. Did s tusbily that E5 an order ohe Centrel PacifMde
daa Tl ] ? 1 ¥ sy + | . . i 10 g
L ; .L o
2 v T ngt oul ! et it Teh el & I's = M ol
v " : i1 ney 187
- = 4 ] VAR i i il v
il e - - R L "
- Liig mwdas 1 11 4 ] e 3 T
12: Q. g 8 eI &pPiiceble to liauru, Occan, &nd Jaluit Islands?
i Lids | . - & | - % A L L 1 B
08, This &1 J t &1l subordinats units of 4 sentrol
s o = = : g : s .
Lic arca fleet, I myself received this crder andfo did thoe commanding
& - ! - L 3
LCer n LTigge 1t 'l_:.r:.-;,.
o n - . —] 1 male | -] - 1 .
~Lis e 43 epplied to Truk 444 you consider this or er solely applicghble in
case of land invasion? i
i . r . P ¥ = .
b g The meaning of this order ma: not that 1t became effective when the
- 1 e . - M A T " " ¥ .
cnemy started tc land on the beaches but that when the enemy approached with
intent to 4invode,




221,

e

= e e
T R T ] ~
[
-
..
- M,
- .
ar
-l #
- - H—|4 A -
ol o L
L]
.
.
iy ¥ | ¥
P
i
. 4 1
=
.
=

we

o T T 4

i
ivno sent

. J
addressed to the pers

i

onnel of tha South

",

-~

o

-

& ¥y ek alal
L | I
T - 3

.
-
C L]
. B
=4 I

-

17

1 2 i- dsmatch was
Seas Goverrment Office at Tr

uk,




| (‘f g { )

226. Q. Do you know that in his deposition Hosogaym, the Governor of the
South Seas Government office, states in the answer to the 8ixth interrogatory
that he only informed the Commander in Chief, Central Facific Area Fleet
about this?

A. I remember that he stated in his deposition that he informed the
Commander in Chief, Central Facific Area Fleet, but I do not recall the word
"only" in that connection.

227. Q. Do you recall that he answered "I informed the Commander in Chief
of the Central Pacific Fleet, Admiral Nagumo, Chuichi, of this order, le wasg
on Saipan at this time, As the army came under Admiral Negumo, who was the
supreme commander, I thought it was sufficient to inform him only."?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
. irrelevant and immaterial.

The Judge advocate replied.
The commigssion anncunced that the objection was sustained.

228, Q. When you observed these alleged instructions in this alleged
\ dispatch, did you notify your subordinates on the various islands?
A. I did not.

229, (. Are you sure that the Fourth Fleet did not notify ite subordinates

concerning this maetter?
&, By no reasoning am I cbliged to relay an order issued by the Governor I
of the South Seas Government to my subordinate units,

230. Q. Did you relay the information of this order to your subordinate
units?
4. I do not recall informing my subordinates of this matter.

The commission then, at 10115 a.m., tock a recess until 10340 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: 411 the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman firet clase, U. 8. Navy, reporter,
No witnesses not otherwlse connected with the trial were present,

Hara, Chuichi, the acoused, the witness under examination when the rto-#-
wae taken, resumed the stand as a witbese in his own behalf, He was warned
that the cath previocusly taken was still binding, and continued his testimony

(Cross-examination continued.)

231. Q. You testified that you did not notify the subordinates of the F
Fleet concerning this order by the South Seas Governor; is that correct?
A. I do not have that recollection. However I believe that such dispate

have as information addressees besides myself, the Commanding General of the
31lst Army and also commanding officers of units on the islands.

232, Q. Did it bhave the commanding officere of the subordinate units of the
Fourth Fleet on this dispatch?
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A, I do not heve a clear recollection but that was the usual procedure
followed.,
233. Q. In such a case it would be the South Seas Governor who notified

the units, is that correet, and not the Fourth Fleet notifying ite units?

A.

diction of the Central Pacific Area Fleet, and therefore simultaneously with
this order from the Governor of the South Seas Government office an order wasg
issued from the Centrasl Pacific Area Fleet.

234.
4,

such an order,

235,

subordinates concerning the order?

i,

236,

Advocate handed a statement to the witness,)

A,

%37,

Yea, However this was a problem concerning the whole area of juris-

Q. Did the Fourth Fleet issue any order to its subordinates?
As T testified previously I do not have a recollection of having issued

Q. Do you have any recollection of the Fourth Fleet notifying its
I do not have that recollection.
Q. I show you a statement, Did you make this statement? (The judge

Yes, that is my statement,

Q. Did you in this statement, referring to this alleged order from th

Pouth Seas Governor say "The Fourth Fleet notified this to its subordinates"

Ao

When I said notified in that statement I meant thet this order was gen

out through the communication installations of the Navy, At that time the
wireless equipment that the South Seas Government had was in poor condition ]

and the naval installations were used.

238. Q. Did you, however, say that "the Fourth Fleet notified its subordi-
nates"?

A, Will you repeat that question? I aid not grasp the meaning,

239. Q. Did you say in that statement that "the Fourth Fleet notified its
subordinates"?

A, Yes,

240. Q. Now, you testified concerning communications on direct examination

and you said that the installations at Truk, the wireless transmitting and

receiving installations, barely managed to funetion until the termination of
the war; is that correct?

A.
2.

ordinate units was complete and effective throughout your tour of duty?

A,

effective because owing to the bombings, the effectiveness of the transmissioch
deteriorated and for tworor three days it ceased to function altogether,
mission of messages from Truk ordinarily carried out completely?

not effective unless it is received therefore the transmissi t
considered effective, ’ glon cannot be

243-

operate at any time other than these two or three days ¥ou referred to 4in
your testimony?

Yes, I stated that on this witness stand,
Qe Is it not a fact, Admiral, that transmission from Truk to the sub-

No, it cannot be said that the wireless transmission was completely

Q. With the exception of these alleged two or three days, was the trang-

No, it still could not be said to be complete and the transmission 1is

Qs Was the transmission apparatus at Truk dameged so that it could not
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A, What I meant by two or three days was not that there were two or three
days during my entire tour of duty that the cemmunications were discontinued.,
That I meant was®that the transmitters would go ocut of funotion fer twe or
three days at one time and these periods repsated themselves during my tour

of duty.

244. Qs Disregarding the question of acknowledgement or receipt of these
messages and confining your answer to the question of transmissien, would
you say that ordinarily during your tour of duty transmission of messages
from Truk was completed.

ks Transmission of communicatinng is a two-sided matter and depends on the
receiving end, Do you mean transmi¥sien from Truk to Tokye or frem Truk te

the islands under my command?

245, Q. With regard to messages from Truk to its subordinate units, was

such transmission ordinarily completed?
A, The sending forth of wireless woves was possible, Do you mean in your

question = did you want that in my answer or were you asking for this acknow-
ledgement or receipt of the messages? I

246, Q. I am referring to the sending ocut, of what you referred to as Twird=

less vaves", Vas that ordinarily completed to the subordinate units of the
Fourth Fleet during your teur of duty?

A, It depends upon what the judge advecate means by "completed", But in
relation to the conditions prior to the date when Truk sustained damages, it
wes not complete in that reletion, but messages could be transmitted,

247. Q. On June 15, 1948 did you make the following statement: "The sendirng

of messages from Truk was ordinarily carried out completely but tranemission
end receiving of messages on the other wvarious islands hecame very weak bee
cause of damage by bombings, wearing out of the telegraph and the wearing ouf]
of its requisite tools™?

A, Yes, I have stated to that effect in my statement.

2,8, Q. You testified with regard to the Eastern Carolines and the Marshall
that communications with these areas were almost impossible; is that correct?
A, hen was this? Are you referring to my tour of duty?

2,9, Q. That is correct.
A Yes, I recall making that testimony.

250, Q. Did you not in fact relay communications through Jaluit Atell teo
the other islands?

A, Yes, that is true. However, in communications in the military sense the

factor of code enters the pilcture,

25l. Q. Did you at any time send any messages in either plain langusge or
in coede to your suberdinate units at elther Jeluit or Nauru instructing them
on the humane treatment of prisoners of war?

Ao Neo.

252, Q. You have testified that on August 15 you received an order promul-
gated by the Empereor of Japan; is that correet?
A, Yes.

253. Q. On or sbout August 15 did you instruct your subordinate units at
Nauru or at other places that in' event of hostile enemy actien or offensive
action by the ensmy they should repel such action?

A, No.
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| to the date of surrender?
s By surrender do you mean the signing of the surrender document?

| Ao No, I did not know of such matter.

254. Q. Did you lssue any instructions to your subordinates ss to what they
should do in the event that the enemy attacked prior te actual surrender?
A, No instructions were given,

255, Q. Did you issue any instructions to your subordinates as to what to
do in the event that the allies tried to arproach or land on the islands priof

256, Q. Prior to surrender of the armed forces under thelr command,

A, As I testified yesterday, to show my subordinates an example I notified
them of my will to surrender and ordered them to sxecuts ths surrender smoot
quickly, and without mistake and I had further notified my subordinates that

| the United States Commander had acknowledged my will to surrender., Besides :
the above I jssued no instructions but I am convinced that my subordinates fﬂﬁ

grasped my will.

257. Q. Are you convinced thut your subordinates on Nauru and Ocean Islands
alao grasped your will?

A I cannot say, but as I have repeatedly testified, the communication com
ditions were extremely poor snd I was not able to ascertain whether they had

fully grasped these instructions.

s
258. Q. TYou testified that on August 1ith you received this order promulgated a8

by the Emperor of Japan accepting the provisions of the Potsdam Declaration;
is that correct?
A, Yes, I did receive the Emperor's Rescript.

259. Q. Had you previously known the contents of the Potsdam Declaretion?
A, I did not know of the details of the Potsdam Declaration, but I knew of
its general import.

260. Q. Did you know that under the Potsdam Declaration the Allied Nations |
had stated that "stern justice would be meted out to all war eriminals ineluds
ing those who had visited cruelties on their prisoners"?

A, I did not know of such fact until August 15th, but subsequent to that
date T learned of that fact,

261. Q. Prior to that date either during or before Yyour tour of duty as
Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, did you know that the Allied Forces
had warned Japen against mistreatment of prisoners of war?

262, Q. Then you learned on August 15th that the Allied Forces would bring
to Justice all war criminals, did you authorize your subordinates to congeal
the prisoners of war incidents which had occurred on Truk?

A, No, I did not authorize.

263, Q. Did you know tiat they were attempting to conceal the incidents whigh

had oceccurred on Truk?

A, I did not know definitely that they were attempting to conceal anythi
but T knew they were up to something, ™

264. Q. Did you know that they were up to something with regard to trying td
conceal the prisoner of war incidents which had occurred on Truk?

This question was objected to by the amccused on the ground that it went
beyond the scope of the direct examination and was irrelevant,
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| A. I sensed that there was something in the air,

The judge advocate replied.
The commlission announced that the objectlon was not sustained.

4. I did not know that they were attempting to conceal such incidents, but|
I sensed that they were considering something.

265, Q. What do you mean by "eonsidering something"? Do you mean something
with relation to concealing these incidents? |

266, Q. Of what nature?
A, Not something of a epecific nature but something wague, something in
general.

The commission then, at 11:30 a.m., took a recess until 2:10 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: A1) the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Paul F, Coste, junior, yeoman first class, U. S. Navy, reporter.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Hera, Chuichi, the accused, the witness under examination when the
recess was taken, resumed the stand as a witness in his own behalf. He was
warned that the cath previously taken was still binding, and continued his
testimony.

(Cross~examination continued,)

267. Q. At the time of the surrender on September 2, 1945 at Truk, did you |

| surrender all of the Japanese Naval Forces under your command wherever
situated?

A In my capacity as Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet I represented |
all the unite of the Fourth Fleet and cormanding the Naval Forces on Truk, I
purrendered,

268, Q. In your capacity as Commender in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, did you
surrander the Japensse Naval Forcee stationed outside of Truk which were under
the Fourth Fleet?

A. The units subordinate to the Fourth Fleet which were stationsd outside

of Truk surrendered independently.

269, Q. Did you sign s document of unconditionsl surrender on Truk on

September 2, 1945%
A. I did.

270. Q. Did paragraph two of this document of surrender state "We hereby

the unconditional surrender to the Representatives of the Government
of the United States of all Japanese Armed Forces and all Armed Forces under
Japenese control wherever situated under our command"?

A. I did eign.

271, Q. Was there s third paragraph in this document of unconditional sur-
render which read in part as follows "We hereby command all Japanese forces
wherever situated under our command and the Japanese people within our area
of command to cease hostilities forthwith, to preserve and save from damage
all shipe, aircraft, and militery and civil property" et cetera?




1t ? )

A, The details have glirped my mind, but on hearing it read I recall it
was in the doocument,

272, Q. Do you also remember in this document in paragraph four it was
stated "We hereby command all commanders of units under our command to issue
at once orders to their respective forces wherever situated to surrender
unconditionally themselves and all forces under their control"?

A, Yes, I recall,

273, Q. TYou testified yesterdjay that you had no authority and no duty and
no responsibility to protect natives in the area of jurisdiction of the
Fourth Fleet, 1s that correct?

A, T believe I testified to the effect that I vas not vested with the aut}

ority nor given the duty to so protect the natives.

274. Q. Did you have the responsibility to protect natives?

A, I cannot fully gresp the meaning of this word, the sense in which you
used this word responsibllity, but I sincerely regret and deplore the fact
that 1llegal acts were committed againat these nativea,

275« Q. TVithin the area of jJurisdiction of the Fourth Fleet, were there
areas occuplied by military forces?®

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
vague, :

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

276. Q. Vithin the area of jurisdiction of the Fourth Fleet were any areas
occupied by Naval Forces under the command of the Fourth Fleet?

This question was objJected to by the accused on the ground that it was
repetitious,

The judge adveoecate replied.

The commiseion announced that the cbjection was sustoined,

277. Q. Vere Naval Forces under the command of the Feurth Flest in occu;ﬂid

of Nauru Island?
i- Yﬂai

278, Q. Was Captain Soeda the Commanding Officer of the Sixty-seventh Naval

Guard Unit the senior officer on Nauru Island?
A, Yes,

279« Q. Were the Naval Forces under the Fourth Fleet in occupation of Ocear

Island?
A, Yas,

280, Q. Vas the Commanding Officer of these Naval Forces the senior officer

on Ocean Island?

Thie question wes objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
vague and indefinite.

The judge advocate replied,
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The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
A, Yes,

281, Q. Were Naval Forces in occupation of Jaluit Atoll?
4, Jaluit Atoll was not occupied.

282, Q. TVas Admiral Masudes of the Sixty-second Naval Guard Unit, the senidr

military officer on Jaluit Atoll?
A, Yes,

283, Q. Vere the Naval Forces on Jaluit, on Nauru and on Ocean, all sub-
ordinate Naval Units of the Fourth Fleet?
A, Yes.

284, Q. Did you have the authority and the duty to control the Naval Forc
on Nauru, Ocean and Jaluit?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it wa
muiltiple.

The judge advocate renlied,
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

A, Yes, I had that duty but it wae extremely difficult to exercise this
duty.

285. Q. Did you also have the duty and authority to control these Naval
Forces on Nauru, Ocean and Jaluit if they abused or mistreated the nativea?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it vas

irrelevant and immaterial,
The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

A I was qevur vested with such duty or authority, but as Commander in

Chief of the Fleet and as I had the responsibility te control my ﬂuburdin&tnT
over whom I exercised command, It was becauss as their Commander in Chief I

had the duty to lead these men to wage a war in an upright manner,

286. Q. On Truk Atoll, did you elmilarly have the authority and duty to conpe

trol your subordinate units?

A, Tes, it was similar to the case on Jaluit that I Just now testified to,

1

287. Q. And did you have any responsibility to protect natives from mistredt-

ment by your subordinates on Truk?
A, No, I did not have the duty to protect the natives.

288. Q. In the event that your subordinate units nintrnat.diﬂ;tivaa on Tr:j:
th

did you have any responsibllity to control your subordinates

prevent
mistreatments of these natives?

4, As I testified, the duty to conduet an upright war and I had the respon

8ibility to see that my subordinates acted in an upright manner,
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| 289. Q. Did you similarly have a duty to control personnel attached to the
Fourth Fleet Headquarters and prevent their mistreatment of natives?
| A Yes, as I have previously testified.

290, Q. Do you know one Ishihara, a court reporter for Naval Gerfigal Courts M
Martial attached to the Fourth Fleet Headquarters?

A, The Court Martial was an independent organization. It was not attached
{| to the Fourth Fleet Headquarters,

' | 291, Q. TWas 1t subordinate to the Fourth Fleet?
| A Yes, ;

292, Q. Do you know who ordered Ishihara to assist in the investigation of
|| the natives in connection with a spy incident on August 2B, 19447

|| A I do not, but I believe that around that time, August 28, 1944 there

|| no court martial because all the legal officers had been detached to the
Central Pacific Area Fleet,

|| 293. Q. You testified thet the Commanding Officer of the Neval Guard Unit
had "the absolute responsibility in regard to the fulfillment of the duties df
| the Guard Unit and also had full responsibility in regard to education, trairling,
|| morale and military discipline of the subordinates and personnel under his

!l command,.® Is that correect?

4, Yes, that is correct.

294. Q. Do you mean by that that you had no responsibility for the actions
|| of your subordinates at the Forty-first Maval Cuard Unit?
| A I do not say that I had absolutely no responsibility,

295. Q. Did you have the duty to supervise militury discipline, morale,
education and training of the fleet under your command?
A, Various interpretations may be pluced on this, but I did have the duty

;; supervise the education, training and morale of the personnel of the Fourth
leet,

296, Q. Did you also have the duty to supervise the military discipline of fthe
Fourth Fleet?

A, Yas,

297. Q. To the best of your knowledge during your tour of duty, were prisonprs
of war confined ashore at Truk ever confined in any place other than the Forty=
first Naval Guard Unit?
A No.

| 298, Q. After the Fourth Base Force was dissolved on Vay 1, 1944, was the .
p iuurth Fleet the immediate superior of the Guard Unit? {
| Ae Yes, :

| 299. Q. During your tour of duty, was any Naval organization superior to the
P Fourth Fleet ever stationed ashore et Truk?

A, Then I assumed command of the Fourth Fleet there was ashore at Truk the
Commander in Chief of the Sixth Fleet,

300, Q. Wes the Fourth Fleet a subordinate organization of the Sixth Fleet?
A, No, that is not se.

301. Q. Was there any orgeanization superior to the Fourth Fleet ever ashore
T at Truk during your tour of duty?

A, No, there were no superior Naval Headquarters,
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302, Q. As the immediate senior of the Forty-first Guard Unit and the
highest organisation superior to the Guard Unit ashore at Truk, were jyou award
that you had a duty and a responsibility to protect the priscmers of war
confined by Naval Forces on Truk?

The form of the question was cbjected to by the accused on the ground
that there was no testimony to indicate that the accused knew that there were

Friwnrs confined on Truk,
The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

o Are you asking whether I realized that I had the duty to protect and the
responeibility to protect these prisoners?

303, Q. Yes, that is correct.
k. Are you aeking whether on the premise that there was this duty and that
I was aware of its existence, or are you asking whether there wae such a duty

or not?

304« Qe+ Whether you were aware of its existence,
t. I did not have the direct duty nor obligation to protect prisoners of
AT »

05, Q. Did you have any duty to protect them?

. As I have stated, as Commander in Chief of a fleet, I had the responsi-
i1ity to lead my subordinates in an upright war and illegal actions cannot
ve any part in such war, and therefore I had the responsibility in that

Bpect.

06. Q. What steps did you take to carry out that responsibility to protect

isoners of war during your tour of duty?
As I judged that prisoners of war should not be exposed to the intensi
bing and the extreme heat of a climate such as Truk, I instructed that

sent to Japan as soon as possible,

07. Q. What other stepe did you take to protect the priscners of war held
subordinate units of the Fourth Fleet?
. There were the Naval Regulations issued by the Navy Minister which were

omplete and sufficient in themselves in regard to this matter,

The judge advocate moved that the witness be directed to answer the
uestion which was ™what other stepe did you take"™ et cetera.

The commission announced that the answer by the witness seemed to be
esctly clear.

08, Q. What steps if any did you take in connection with the implementing

these Navy Regulations by the Navy Minister?
- T had no such duty because such regulations issued by the Havy Minister

ere not directed to me in person, but to all Naval Units,

09. Q. Did you take any other steps to carry out your responsibility to
otect prisoners of war?
I do not grasp the meaning of the question.
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310. Q. You have testified that the stepe you tock to carry out your
responsibilities to protect prisoners of war were: 1, That you instructed
your subordinate units to send prisoners back to Japan. 2, That there were
regulations issued by the Navy Minister and you took no steps to implement
these regulations because you considered none were necespary. Now were therd
any additional measures which you took to protect prisoners of war?
4. No, I did not take measures other than the above. The reason was that
the articles in the treatment of prisocners in the Naval Regulations were com=
ﬁ:hﬂnﬂi‘vl and complete in themselves and there was nothing to be added to
m,

311, Q. HNow you stated that you instructed your subordinates to send prisoners

of war 'I'.g Japan; when did you issue this instruction and in what form did you
issue it

A. These instructions were ilesued in March, 4dpril or May of 1944; the
greatest probability being in April. It was on a battile report sheet that I
saw that priscners of war had been confined at the Naval Guard Unit. That
was the first time that I was made aware of the presence of priscners and

is when I issued these instructions, I do not clearly recall whether I gave
this order orally to the person who brought the battle report who was a staff
officer, or whether I wrote in this battle report sheet this order. I do not
recall clearly which it was. At that time T was living in a cell in the cave
and therefore this manner of the order may be explained,

The commission then, at 3:20 p.m., tock a recess until 3:35 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

- Fresent: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, hie counsel
and the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junlor, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter,
No witnesses not otherwlse connected with the trial were present,

Hara, Chuichi, the accused, the witness under examination when the
recess was taken, resumed the stand as a witness in his own behalf, He was
warned that the oath previously taken was still binding, and continued his

testimony.
(Croes=examination continued, )

312, Q. In addition to this occasion in March, April, or May of 1944 when
you issued this instruction to send priscners of war back to Japan did you
issue such instructions at any other time?

A. I believe it was around the end of May 1944 when I ordered three
submarine chasers back to the Japanese homeland to be repaired. At that time
a staff officer approached me and sald that as there were many numerous
civilians desiring to return to the Japanese homeland and as he had cbtained
permission from the Chief of Staff that he would like to have my permission
on this matter. I told this staff officer that my permission was given on
the condition that if there were priscners of war then they be given first

priority.

313, Q. Did you issue this order at any other time?
A, There was a priscner of war taken in Jamuary of 1945 and however the
Chief of Staff had made arrangements for his return to Japan by flying boat

and came to ask my permission which I gave.
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314 Q. With regard to the end of May 1944 did this staff officer of yours
ever inform you whether there were any prisoners of war on Truk at the time?
A. He did not.

315. Q. Did you inguire whether there were any prisoners of war on hand at

that time?
A. I did not,

316, Q. In this first instance in March, April, or May of 1944 when you
|learned for the first time that there were prisoners of war on Truk did you
|ask to ascertain how many prisoners of war were confined there?

A, I do not recall.

317. Q. Do you recall whether you sought to ascertain whether any prisoners
of war had beepn on Truk before this date?

|| A Until thit time I had not heard anything concerning prisoners of war so| p8
I didn't ask about them.

318. Q. DHid you ask to ascertain how prisoners of war had been handled befofe
March, April or May 1944 by the subordinate units of the Fourth Fleet?
4. There had been no talk of prisoners of war and I did not take such

action,

319, Q. When you took over as Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet on
February 23, 1944 did you examine the battle repcorts concerning the air raid
which had oeccurred on February 17 and 18, 19447

A. I did not. |

320. Q. Did you ask to ascertain when you tock command of the Fourth Fleet
the available intelligence information affecting the Fourth Fleet?
A. What intelligence?

321. Q. General intelligence concerning enemy operations and forces and
concerning damagee to the Fourth Fleet and ite organizations?

A, Do you mean intelligence concerning Truk or a general intelligence
covering a wider area?

3220 q» ch“ one .
A, No American intelligence concerning Truk and its viecinity wae available,

1923, (. Was there any intelligence available concerning the size of American
| forces in the area and concerning their disposition?
A, No,

924. Q. Did the thought ocour to you that if there were prisoners of war
captured in the air raid of February 17 that they would be valuable sources

of intelligence information for your fleet?
A. No, I did not think of that. It did not arrest my attention.

925, Q. Prior to your commencing your tour as Commander in Chieff of the
Fourth Fleet where were you stationed?
A. I was Commandant of the Air Training Command,

326, Q. Where was this Air Training Command located?

A. * The Headquarters of the Air Training Command was at a place called
Kasumigaurs and it had units under its command all over Japan and in ocoupled
territories in Shanghal, Teingtac and Hainan,
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327. Q. Where in Japan is Kasumigaura located?
iI&e It lies approximately 50 to 60 milee northeast of Tokyo. I cannot
vouch for the distance,

328, Q. Did you receive Japanese newspapers at your headquarters?
4. Yes.

329. Q. Did you read in any of these newepapers or from any other sources
learn of notlcee from the allied powers that stern justice would be meted out
for mistreatment of prisoners of war?

(| A. I do not recall having read such matter in these papers.

|

1330. Q. In any of these papers did you read of atrocities alleged to have
|been committed by American forces?

4. NHo.

i(331. Q. In your position as training officer for the flying and ground
perscnnel dld you train them in matters of international law as well as cther

matters?
A. Yes,

332, &. Did you train them in regard to the laws and customs of war?
A. Yes.

333, (. After you assumed your duty as Commander in Chief of the Fourth
Fleet did you instruct or trein any of your subordinates of the Fourth Fleet
with regard to the law and custome of war?

A. I did not. These instructions were fully set forth in the Navy Regula-
tions and a lieutenant (junior grade) or a lieutenant of the Paymaster Corps
or a lieutenant who was well versed in these regulations perlodically
instructed the officers and it was not necessary for me to give instructions

lin person,

§'33¢. Q. Did you ever discuss in person prisoner of war matters with your
|subordinates other than at the September conference?

1f I never discussed priscners of war except for the occasions I have
(imentioned.
335, {. What do you by the occasions you mentioned?

A, I would like to regord my answer., I never dlscussed matters pertaining
to prisonere of war other than the two occasions that I mentioned when I

tione I issued at the conference in September 1944 and then one other occasi
when I cautioned my subordinates concerning the treatment of the one prisone
of war who wae in confinement in January 1945.

336, Q. 0Other than these occasions you never discussed prisoner of war
matters with any of your subordinates; is that correct?
4. I do not have a recollection of it.

337. Q. When you say that you did not discuss prisoner of war matters with
these subordinates do you alsc mean that they did not talk to you about
prisoner of war matters?

‘l I.‘.;

instructed that they be sent home as scon as possible and besides the inatruq
r

338, Q. That applies to all of your subordinates of the Fourth Fleet does if
A, Yes.
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339, Q. Prior to your tour of duty as Commander in Chief of the Fourth
Fleet did you ever speak to any of these subordinates with regard to prisoner
of war matters?

Thie question was objected to by the mccused on the ground that it was
f irrelevant and immaterial.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained.
340, Q. Did you in your testimony yesterday, in response to question 138

anawer "I thought it a strange story. The hospital was by international law
a neutral zone and it was the only peaceful haven on Truk, Furthermore
Iwanami was a quiet and kind man and previcus to thie he had told me on
several occasions that at his previous post at Ofuna he had treated priscners
of war with kindness and consideration and this statement coming from Iwanami
I thought that he had become unbalanced™?

A, I did testify to this effect.

341. Q. At what times during your tour of duty did you know that prisoners

|| of war were confined at Truk?

A, The only two times that I knew of prisoners being confined on Truk were
onge around March or April 194/ when I saw this report and the other occasion
wag in January of 1945.

conference you learned of disposal of other prisoners of war in July; is that

correct?
A. I did not hear about the confinement of the prisoners of the September

conferanoce,

343. Q. But you heard of the spearing of these prisoners gt the hospital in
|| July and therefore you realized that they had been confined at Truk; i1s that
|| correct?

A. I could imagine such things but I could not have known them as facts

that I knew,

34s Q. In your testimony in answer to question 112 you testiflied that you
did not know in June of 1944 that prisoners of war were confined at the Forty
firet Naval Guard Unit on Truk; is that correct?

A, Yes, that is correct.

I 345. Q. Are you positive that you did not know in June 1944 that there were
prisoners of war confined there at the Guard Unit?
4, Yes, I am certain.

346. Q. Have you always since that date been certain that you did not know
in June of 1944 that priscners of war were confined at the Guard Unit?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
irrelevant and immaterial.

The judge advoocate replied.
The commission announced that the cbjection was not sustained,
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A. T will not say that this recollection has been a firm reccllection.

347. Q. But you are now positive that you did not know in June 1944 that
there were prisoners of war at the Guard Unit; is that correct?

A. After the termination of the war the Commanding Officer of the Forty-
first Naval Guard Unit reported to me concerning prisoners of war through a
,Hnit-tun report,. In that written report there was no mention of three pris
of war having died through the bombing. I received a separate report after
thies written report which etated that three priscners had died through bomb.
and when I received this later report my reccllection seemed to stir that I
had received a report concerning the details of three prisoners of war in
June, Studying this matter later I discovered that what I thought was the
(stirring of my memory had been mistaken and my present thinking is the right

thinking. :

348, Q. When did you come to this conclusion that your present way of think<
ing was the right way of thinking?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
Hrrelevant and immaterial.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

After the commencement of my trial I heard my Chief of Staff Arims and
Senior Staff Officer Higuchi testify in court that they knew of no such
tter and therefore I came to this conclusion.

9. Q. Then this conclusion of yours that you did not know prisoners of war

ere confined at the Guard Unit in June of 1944 is a positive conclusion that
have reached in this trial; is that correct?

. Yes, I stated in the statement which I executed prior to the time the
ge and specifications were given to me that my recollection of this matten

not a definite recollection.

50, Q. What other portions of your testimony have been the result of ocon-
usions you drew during this trial?
. Conclusions on what.

51, Q. What other portions of your testimony have consisted of conclusions
t you drew in this trial?
I do not recall specific instances at this moment.

The commlssion then, at 43135 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m,, tomorrow,
, December 29, 1948,




FORTY-SECOND DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,
Guam, Marianas Islands,
Wedneaday, December 29, 1948,

The commission met at 9:10 a.m.
Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robinsen, U, S, Navy,

cm Dandel 7, mm, U, 8. hﬂ’

Iieutenant Colonel Harry W. McCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United
States Army Reserve,

Lisutenant Colonel Newton L, Chamberlain, Signal Corpe, United States
Aray,

Lieutenant Commander Ralph I, Gerber, U, S, Navy,

Captain Kermit H, Shelly, U, S, Marine Corps, members, and

Iieutenant David Belton, U, S, Navy, judge advocate,

Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter,

The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the forty-first day of the trial was read
and approved.

No witnesses not otherwise oonnected with the trial were present.

Hara, Chuichi, the accused, the witness under examination when the
adjournment was taken, resumed the stand as a witness in his own behalf, He |
was warned that the cath previously taken was still binding, and continued
his testimony,

(Cross-examination continued,)

352, Q. Around July 1944 did the Fourth Fleet receive a dispatch from
Enderby.Island concerning two prisoners of war captured by the army
reque that the Guard Unit take custody of them?

ll I ﬂﬂ ﬂﬂt h“-

353. Q. TYou testified yesterdey that you received a battle report in March,
April, or May 1944 from the Guard Unit. During your tour of duty on Truk
did you receive any other battle reports from the Forty-first Guard Unit?
A, Yes, I did receive battle reports,

354. Q+ Did you also receive battle reports from other subordinate units of
the Fourth Fleet?
A, Yes.

355. Q. Ddd you receive any battle reperts from Jaluit?
-l' !..'

356, g. Did you receive any battle reperts from Wake Island?
A, (TH

357. Q. Mmumﬂmﬂw“ﬂmuwdﬂ-lﬂ!ﬂ
rlﬂ;lﬂﬂrdmtlillhllllﬂlﬁhﬂmuuﬂtﬂftMFmﬂ
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| Fleet interrogate any priscners of war on Truk?

This question was objected to by the mccused on the ground that it was
irrelevant and immaterial in that there was no allegation in the charge and
specifications in regard to Wake Island,

The judge advocate replied that the extent of the command of the
acoused is relevant, and it is relevant and material to show that Wake
Island was a subordinate unit of the Fourth Fleet even though there are no
allegations concerning Wake Island in the charge and specifications in the
instant case,

The commission announced that the objeotion was sustained,

358, Q. Was Captain Sakaibara of the Fourth Fleet garrison unit at Wake
Island a direot subordinate officer of yours?

This question was objected to by the acoused on the ground that it is
irrelevant and immaterial and is only a collateral issue.

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the cbjeotion was sustained,

359. Q. At or near the date you assumed command of the Fourth Fleet did you
inow that Wake Island had been captured from the American armed forces and
that large numbers of prisoners had besn taken captive at that time?

This question and line of questioning was objected to by the accused on
the ground that incidents on Wake are outside the scope of the charge and
specifications.

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained and that this
line of questiofing would not be permitted,

360, Q. During your tour of duty on Truk did staff officers of the Fourth

A, I recall that my Chief of Staff visited the one prisoner of war in
January of 1945, However I do not know whether he went to interrogate him
or to lssue instructions concerning his treatment, He did, however, report
to me that I, Hara, need not worry because he would see to the proper treat-
ment of this priscner,

361, Q. Did your air staff officer interrogate prisoners of war?
A, He may have sean this prisoner who was captured in January of 1945.
Whether he went to interrogate, I do not know,

362, Q. Do you know whether he went to interrogate any of the prisoners
prior to January of 19457
A. I do not,

363, Q. Do you know whether he went to interrogate the prisoners who were
captured in March, April, or May of 19447
A, I do not recall,

364, Q. Did you ever seek to ascertain whether or not any of your staff
officers were interrogating any of these prisconers of war at Truk?
A. No.
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il 370. Q. Durmlﬁhil-tmmth‘r

365, Q. You testified that at certain times you knew there were prisoners
of war confined at Truk, Did you ever take steps to ascertain how these
priscners of war were being treated by the subordinate unites of the Fourth
Fleet at Truk?

A, As there were regulatiocns concerning treatment of priscners of war, I
firmly believed that the priscners were treated in accordance with these
regulations and treated well,

The commission stated that the answer was not rnpﬂuirf and directed
that the question be repeated and that the witness answer the guestion.

The question was repeated,

A, I 4id pot take any steps pricr to January 1945, when I did take steps
oconcerning the priscner.

366. Q. Prior to the end of the war did you ever ask Asanoc, Arima, Inoue,
or Higuchi if they knew or had heard of any mistreatment or killing of
prisoners of war by subordinate units of the Fourth Fleet?

A. No.

367, Q. Now, in yesterday's testimeny you admitted that you spoke to
Iwanami several times in connection with prisoners of war; is that correct?
A, VWhat I meant when I testified then was that Iwanami often talked to me
about prisoners of war, It was not that I discussed prisoners of war with
him but it was a one-sided conversation.

368, Q. How often did Iwanami speak to you sbout prisoners of war?
A, I do not recall how many times but as I testified, he spoke saying that
he had been kind and considerate to priscners of war.

369, Q. How often did you see Iwanami prior to July 1944 during your teur of]

duty on Truk?
A, I do not recall how many times I met Iwanami, but prior to the

A, Yes, I met him every month,

371. Q. Did you see him every week?
A. I doubt whether I met him every week,

372, Q. Did you meet him almest every week?
A, I 4o not recall,

373. Q. How frequently did you see Iwanami after July 19447
A, I do not recall such details,

375. Q. How frequently did you see Iwanami after that?
A, It is difficult for me to state the frequency.

'

the Chief of Staff],

Viece Admiral Arisdy had left, his successor held the command of the Twenty-
second Alr Squadron at Moen conowrrently, and he was away half of the time,
and the senior staff officer nmdﬂmnﬂtﬁmtmi.WE

was
in Chief met men of the rank of captain more frequeatly. That
noy increased after Arima left, but I cannet
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| 381. Q. What did yon discuss with Iwanami while you were on the veranda?

—
.
(=

376. Q. Would you approximate that you saw Iwanami almost every week from
the period of the departure of Arima?

A. TYes, I can testify to that effect, that I met him once a week or once
in ten days on an average, and this I can say for all my subordinate
cognizant commanding officers,

377. Q. In July 1944 prior to July 20 or July 23 when you were on the
veranda, did Iwanami speak to you about prisoners of war?

A. No, outside of the fact that he told me about priscners that he had
treated well at his previous post at Ofuna to which I have testified, he did
not mention prisoners of war,

378. Q. Did he speak to you about his treatment of prisoners at Ofuna prier
to this July 20 or 23 meeting on the veranda?

A. I do not recall definitely whether he talked abeut the prisoners at
Ofuna before or after July 23, 1944.

379. Q. Then you are not certain as to what date you spoke to him about the
prisoners at Ofuna; is that correct?
A: I do not remember definitely.

380. Q. On July 20 or 23, 1944 when you were on the veranda at the Fourth
Naval Hospital did Iwanami speak to you concerning the priscners of war at
Of'una?

A, As I have just testified I do not recall., I wish to state here that it
was only after the surrender that I learned of this incident that oocurred
July 23, 1944. Ihﬂuntuntﬂth-nhm?th-dnh,u!hdmtnm
the incident itself,

A. I do not recall,

382, Q. Do you recall whether or not you spoke to him conocerning thie
dispatch received in the middle of July 194} from the Central Pacific Area
Fleet saying that they were abeut to launch their last attack?

4, 1 do not recall and I do not remember discussing matters concerning
battle at the hospital.

383, Q. Did you discuss with Iwanami the recent bambing of the hospital?
A, T do not recall, The reason was that all the buildings other than the
bospital had been demolished, The damages sustained at the hospital in
relation to the damages sustained elsewhere were comparatively small.

384. Q. Didn't Iwanami inform you that he planned to take revenge for the
bombing of the hospital?

A, No, he did mot. I judged from my observations of the damages caused by
the bombing that the United States commander in charge of the air operatiens
was not conducting a systematic bambing of the hospital, that what damages
the hospital had sustained were dus to the poor bembing on the part of the
fliers caused by the excitement teo which they were exposed, That was my
estimate. Whether Iwanami shared that with me I do not know.

”.fﬂ. De you know whether or net you spoke to Iwanami about this at that
time

A. Neo, I did not discuss such matters. When Iwanami came to apolegise to
me after the termimation of the war and when he stated that he had killed
priseners angered by the bombing of his hospital, I judged that Iwanami hed
arrived at a conclusion which was his own, This what I stated now, is writ
hqrht-mtﬂ&lmltm.




repetitieus,

|| at the hospital; is that correct?

| e No.

The judge advocate moved to strike out all ef this answer except the
first sentence on the ground that it was not responsive,

The sccused objected to this testimony being stricken out en the ground
that the witness was explaining his answer,

The commission directed that the wordes "This what I stated now, is
written in my statement which I executed at Truk"™ be stricken out,

386, Q, Now, you are certain that you did not discuss this judgment of
yours on July 20 or 23 on the veranda with Iwanami; is that correct?

This question was objected to by the mccused on the ground that it was

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,
Ay, Yes, I am certain that I did not discuss this,
387. Qs Now, you testified that at the September 194, conference you heard
Iwanami say that they had stabbed two prisoners of war at the hospital; is
that correct?
A, Yeps, that is Mrﬂat.

388, Q. Now, you testified that after the conference in September 1944 you
did not order any investigation of the spearing of the two prisoners of war

A I'.-

389. Q. Did you ask Iwanami any questions about the ineident at the conference?

390. §: At any subsequent time prior to August 194{&1:! you ask Iwanami any
questions about the inecident?
A, FNo,

391. Q. Even though you saw Iwanami at least every week or ten days from the
time of this cenference in September 1944 to August 1945 you never asked him
any questions concerning this prisoner of war incident; is that cerrect?

This question was objected to by the acoused on the ground that it was
repetitious,

The judge advocate replied.
The coamission announced that the objection was not sustained,

A, Yes, that is true, The reason was that I had resolved that ne
investigations be held and in view of the fact that this was a criminal case
I had resolved that no repetition of such ineident ocour.
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5 investigation of this eriminal incident, this spearing of priseners of warj

at the hospital?
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292, Q. Now, you testified that after the conference you postponed the

is that correct?
A, Yes, that 1s correct,

393. Q. Was this investigation ever ordered by you prior to the termination
of the war?
‘-i lﬂ.

39%. Q. TWhen you heard at the conference of the spearimg of these two
prisoners of war at the hospital did you take any steps to ascertain whether
any other prisoners of war had been tortured or killed or otherwise
mistreated by any of your subordinates at the hospital or at any other place
under your command at Truk?

A, No, I did not ascertain,

395. Q. Frier to the termimation of the war did you at any time take any
steps to punish your subordinates for the murder of the prisoners of war

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
irrelevant, immaterial, and repetitious, and that there had been no evidence
that the prisoners had in fact been murdered.

The judge advocate replied,

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

‘-- ‘nl

396, Q. You testified that the Naval Regulations contained adequate and
complete provisions regarding the treatment of prisoners of war; is that
aorrect?

A, Yes, that is true,

397. Q. Did you have the duty to see to it that the forces under your
command obeyed these Naval Regulations?

This question was objected to by the acoused on the ground that it was
irrelevant, immaterial, repetitious, and called for an opinien of the witnesd.

The judge advocate replied.

The commission that the objection was not sustained and sta
that the question was s t repetitious but that it would permit it, [

A, Did I have the duty to see to 1t?

The commission then, at 10:15 a.m., took a recess until 10:30 a.m,, at
which time it reconvened.

Fresent: All the members, the judge advocate, the scoused, his n:mul,.l.
and the interpreters,

Paul F, Coste, junior, yecman first class, U, S, Navy, reporter.
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x No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

It Hara, Chulchi, the accused, the witness under examination when the

|| recess was taken, resumed the stand as a witness in his own behalf, He was
warned that the cath previously taken was still binding, and continued his |
testimony,

(Crose-examination continued,)

| 398, Q. Did you have any duty to see to it that the forces under your

| command obeyed the Naval Reguletions?

| A I cannot fully grasp what you mean by duty, but I will answer as

‘ follows: unless Naval Regulations are followed, a fleet can not operate,

399. Qe Did you have any responsibility to see that the Naval Regulations
were followed by your subordinates?
A, I did,

| 400, Q. TVhen you became aware of violations of these Naval Regulations by |
your subordinates, did you have any duty to order investigations of such ]

II violations? -

| A.  In the event of violations of the reguletions, I had the authority to
order prosecution of such violations. I cannot fully grasp the meanings of
the words duty, authority and responsibility in the sense in which these
concepts are understood by the occidental, but I will attempt to answer to
the best of my capacity on my understanding of these terms, I had the duty
to investigate,

| 401, Q. Dia you also have the duty to punish or teke messures for the I
punishment of your subordinates who committed serious violations of Naval
Regulations?

A, I had the authority to indict these offenders, but I did not have the
authority to sit in judgment over them,

402, Qs During your tour of duty, did you indiet any of your subordinates
| for their violations of the Naval Regulations with regard to treatment of

|| prisoners of war?

A, No,

Reexamined by the accused:

403. Q. In your testimony of yesterday, you testified concerning the a
of jurisdiction of the Fourth Fleet, How many miles north to south ﬂnd-iigz
to west did the area of jurisdiction of the Fourth Fleet measure?

A, At the time I assumed command, the area of jurisdiction of the Fourth
Fleet was approximately 2,000 miles east to west and 1,000 miles north to
south, After the establishment of the Central Pacific Area Fleet it was
approximately 1,500 miles east to west and 500 miles nerth to south,

404 Qs In your cross-examination yeeterday, you testified concerning your
subordinates, as to the number of rersonnel under your command, Vhat were
the figures broken down into naval personnel, naval gunzokus, and naval
employees?

A, When I assumed my command, there were approximately 70,000 pergons undef
my command of which approximately 40,000 were naval personnel, appro tely | A& |
10,000 gunzokus end the remaining approximately 20,000 were so-called employ-
ees which included personnel of the construction corps, After the
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1411. Q. Did you es Commander in Chief of the Fourth Mleet have the duty to
| ¥ -
i;retuct netives of the islands in the arca of Jurisdietion of the Fourth
Flest?
1 I did not.

2+ Qs Who then had this duty?
i Until the time the Commender in Chief of the Central Paeific area Flect

was appointed, this duty was incumbent upon the Governor of the South Secas
Government Office. After that date, the senior comranding officer on these
islands had this duty,

413, Q. In the protection of the natives » under whose command were these
senlor commanding officers of these islands?

o I think that they were under the command of the Central Paecifiec Area
Fleet, but circumstanses were such that it was difficult even to exercise

pperational command, And it is my Judgment and therefore I do not know, if
puch duty in comnection with protection of natives was exercised or carried oufl
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| 418, Q, What relation have these stories of kindness done, to the gquestion

414, Q. As Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, did you have obligations
or responsibilities directly to protect prisocners of war confined on Truk?
4, I did not have obligations or responsibilities directly to protect
prisoners of war.

415, Q. Mention was made in your testimony during the cross-examination that
Iwanami spoke to you about prisoners of war at Ofuna Prison, Under what
circumstances were these conversations brought up?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was too broad in scope unless particular dates and conversations were
specified.

The accused withdrew the questien,

416, Q. You testified during the cross-examination that Iwanami spoke to
you on several occasions concerning priscners of war confined at Ofuna, How
many times did he approach this subject?

A, I heard Iwanami's story expanding on his exploits at least two times,

417, Q. What do you mean by this Iwanaml story of his exploits?
4. I mean by that that he was telling his own story about kindnesses that
he had done to other people,.

of prisoners of war?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant, immaterial, and repetitious.

The mcoused replied.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained, subject
to a motion to strike,

A. Yes, that is what I mean by others, I mean prisoners of war,

419. Q. TYou testified that Iwanami, after the termination of the war

apologized to you for the execution of two prisoners of war., Were thare any
other cognizant commanding officers who apologised for execution of prisonerd
of war?

This question was cbjected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was irrelevant, immaterial, and hearsay.

The acoused made no reply.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.
A, Yes, there were,

420, Q. Please state who he was, or who they were,

A, Tt was in July of 1946, approximately a year after the termination of
the war that Commanding Officer Asano of the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit

suddenly requested that I give him an interview, He reported and apologised
to me as follows: "Besides the three prisoners of war who were killed through
the bombing, there were two other prisoners who were fatally injured during
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the bombing. Although these latter two were treated, there was no hope of
their recovery and they subsequently died. I asked under what conditions
these two prisoners had died. As there was no hope of their recovery, their
deaths were expedited. However, in actual fact, I learned of this later., I,
Asano, am in no way connected with this incident, I observed that the
Americans had a clue of this incident, and as I do not think it right not to
report this matter at all wuntil the whole incident is discovered by the
Americans, I hereby report the above to you. I apologise for the fact that 1
did not report this matter before this date.”™ The above is a glst of what
Commanding Officer Asano reported to me. Prior to this date Captain Asanc
had repeatedly told me that as Commanding Officer of a Naval Guard Unit, he
had taken every precaution in regard to treatment of prisomers of war. When
I heard this from the commanding officer, I deeply deplored the fact that
here again was another onlawful act committed against the Americans, r
421, Q. Did Asanoc state -taut time that these two groups of three and two
prisoners of war were prisoners under his custody?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was leading.

The accused made no reply.
The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

The commission then, at 11:35 a.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
Thursday, December 30, 1948,
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423. Q. Uhen you referred tc dispatches in your testlmony yesterday, were
you referring tc dispatches that were received from your subordinates?

A, No, they were not dispatches from my subordinates., Truk, at thet time,
had this duty in relation to communications which was to relay all mesaages
coming in from New Guinea, lMew Britain, Bougainville, coming in from the
Southeast Area Fleet, the Eighth and Ninth Fleets stationed in New Culnes,
New Eritain, and Bougainville,

) - | 4 . . ar 5 o b - Lhm &
424. Q. Do wou understand what is meant by the term outage an e term
duration of outege 28 anmlied to communication transmlssion?
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| Ae Yes, they did, This fact could be known from the circumstances that
neither the Navy Minister nor my immediate supericr commanding officer ever
gave me forces for fleet support operations,

428, Q. Did you know if there were prisoners of war on Nauru, Ocean, or
Jaluit during your tour of duty as Commander in Gbilr, Fourth !'1--1;1
A, No, I absolutely did not know.

| 429+ Q+ One of the definitions of the word "occupy"™ is "to hold®, Is this
| the way you used the word in answering the judge advocate's questions

| regarding cocupation of Ocean, Nauru, and Jaluit Islands by Japanese naval

| forces? If not, in what sense did you use the word when answering the judge
| advecate's questions 278, 280, and 2827

|
|
! This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
' it was leading.

! The accused made no reply.

I The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

| 430, Q. In what way did you use the word "oocupy" in answering the judge
sdvocate's questions, specifically 278, 280, and 282, regarding the occupa~-

| tien of the islands of Ocean, Jaluit, a.nd Hmru by 'I;hu Japanese forces?

1 A, Jalult was one of the Japanese Mandated Territory Islands, Nauwru and

| Ocean were occupied by the Japanese naval forces.

431, Q. After August 15, 1945 did the Americans ever viclate the terms of

the Japanese Armistice and attack any of your subordimate units, particularly

) the units on Nauru, Ocean, or the units on Truk?

il This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
i it was irrelevant and immaterial,

The accused replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,
A, 1 do pot know, but I judged that such things could not have occurred.

Guard Unit be exercised in the ocoupled territory of Ocean Island?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was vague, general, meaningless, and immaterial,

The accused replied,
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,
4., The juriediction was still in effect.

433. Q. You have testified that in January 1945 you knew that there was a
prisoner of war confined at the Forty-first Naval Guard Unit. Who was the
oommanding officer of this Guard Unit having custody of this priscner of war?
A. Captain Asano, Imperisl Japanese Havy.
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| from the standpoint of the Navy, the jurisdiction covers primarily the ocean

| A There was only a very small percentage,
| 439. Q. Are you able to appraximate the number?

436, Q. You testified yesterday about the area of jurisdiction of the Fourth

|| repetitious,

434. Q. Had he been designated and was he the official responsible for the
custody of this particular prisoner of war at the Guard Unit?

This question was objected to by the juﬂ;u advooate on the ground that
it was leading and repetitious,

The accused replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

A. Yes, In the Imperial Japanese Navy the Navy Minister assigned
cognisant commanding officers to their positions and in his selection he gave
minute consideration.

435, Q. Is this the same Asano who was commanding officer of the Forty-first
Haval Guard Unit in June and July 19447
A, Yes.

Recross-examined by the judge advooate:

Fleet under your command; during your tour of duty did not your command con-
sist primarily of land-based units on specific islands within that area of
Jjurisdiction?

A, VNo, that 1s not the case., Where areas of jurisdiction are considered

437. Q. How many of the approximately 70,000 persons under your command whe
¥you assumed your duty were at sea and how many ashore?

A, These men were there to defend the bases from which sea and air operati
were conducted and they were there for example to build air strips, to main-
tain aircraft and ships, et cetera, During my tour of duty there were
hardly any at sea.

438, Q. Will you approximate how many you mean by "hardly any"?

This question was objected to by the acoused on the ground that it was

The judge advoocate replied.
The cemmission announced that the objection was sustained,

440, Q+ Approximately how many of the 70,000 perscnnel when you took over
the command of the Fourth Fleet were stationed on and in the immediate
vicinity of Truk?

A. Do you mean on the islands of Truk Atell?

441, Q. Yes, How many were stationed on Truk Atoll?
A, mﬂ’-w Zﬁ,ﬂmu

m. Q. Does that include naval personnel, employees of the Construction
and gunsokus?
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| 443. Q. After the creation of the Central Pacific Area Fleet how many
personnel remained on Truk Atoll under your command?

‘1. The figure did not materially change.

|

I

|

|

4bhe Qs In view of the difficulties that you have outlined in exercising
your command over outlying islands such as Nauru, Ocean, and Jaluit, did yeu
not concentrate more on carrying out your duties on Truk?

A, It did not follow that because supervision could not be exercised over
| Nauru and Ocean that I concentrated on the supervision of units at Truk,

| 445. Q. Approximately half of the total armed forces under your command were
| at Truk, Is that ococrrect?
A, Yes, that is about right,

| 446, Q. Were you in communication with Jaluit, Ocean, and Nawru?
| 4« The conditions are exactly as I have testified previously,

44T, Q. TYou have testified that you did not know that there were prisoners
of war on Jaluit, Ocean, and Nauru, Did you ever try to ascertain whether
there were prisoners of war on any of these placea?

| A« No,

.! 448, Q. Tou testified yesterday that until the fall of the Marianas approxi-
| mately seven hundred to a thousand dispatches came to you for perusal evary
day. Is that correct?

4, Not all of these dispatches were brought to my desk,

449, Q. TYou testified yesterday concerning 700 and 1,000 dispatohes until
the fall of the Marianas, Do you mean 700 or 1,000 dispatches came to your
headquarters?

4. Do you mean addressed to the fleet?

450. Q. TYou testified about 700 to 1,000 dispatches until the fall of the

| Marianas yesterday, What did you mean when you testified sbout them?

|| Ao Brt.hntImtmtnuwuth-ﬂlqmmtfornnumaminghu
| New Britain and New Guinea and Bougainville to Tokyo and Truk received this
number of messages; and the communication officer or other officers whose duty
it was to see these dispatches brought to the attention of the Commander in
Chief such dispatches as they thought should be brought to his attentien,

The commission then, at 10:15 a.m., took a recess until 10:40 a.m,, at
1 which time it reconvened,

Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the mccused, his counsel,
and the interpreters,

Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U, S. Navy, reporter.

No witnesses not other$ise oonmected with the trial were present, b

Hara, Chuichi, the accused, the witness under examination when the
recess was taken, resumed the stand as a witness in his own behalf. He was
warned that the cath previously taken was still binding, and continued his
testimony,

(Recross-examination continued,)
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451, Q. Of these seven hundred to a thousand messages received daily at
Truk, how many of them did you personally peruse, on an average?
4, I do not recall the number,

452. Q. Can you approximate the number of dispatchea?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was |
irrelevant, immaterial and repetitious.

i The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

i
|
The judge advocate replied. i
|| 4. I do not have a recollection of the figure, !
,; 453, Qs TYou testified that after the conclusion of the Marianas rations !

the dispatches dropped to between five hundred and eight hundred, Do you have
| any approximate recollection of how many of theese dispatches you personally

|
|| saw daily? [
|

| This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
| irrelevant and immaterial.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

| Ao I do not recall. |
| 454 Q. After entering the year 1945 do you recall approximately how many
| dispatches came to Truk daily? .
'i . No, I do not recall.

455. Q. 4dnd similarly do you recall how many of these dispatches after
| entering the year 1945 came to you for your personal examination?
I A, I do not recall,

il
| 456, Q. Now, you have testified as to the average mumber of dispatches that|
had come to Truk from variocus places you ocutlined. Did this number include
i any dispatchee from subordinate units outside of Truk Atoll?
4. Yes.

| 457. Q. Approximately how many dispatches were received daily from your
subordinate unite prior to the fall of the Marianas, do you recall?
‘-i Hn.

458, Q. Do you recall approximately how many dispatches were received from
your subordinate units after the conclusion of the Marlanas operation and

prior to 1945%
J' A. I do not recall,

459. Q. Do you recall how many dispatches were received from any of your
subordinates after entering the year 19457
‘- I do not.

460, Q. During all these periods however from the periocd prior to the fall
of the Marisnas, and the period up to 1945, and the period from 1945 on, you
were receiving messages from your subordinates, however, is that correct?

i II A.  Yes.
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| A I recall receiving dispatches from my subordinates but I do not recall

irrelevant, immaterial and Repetitious,

| fall of the Marianas?

461. Q. Now, during the period prior to the fall of the Marianas from what
subordinate units or islands of yours were you receiving messages at Truk?

from specific subordinates, I do not recall the names of the islands.

462, Q. Do you recall the names of the islands or your subordinate units on
those islands from which you received dispatches after the conclusion of the
Marisnas operation and prior to 19457

A. No, I do not recall,

i 463. Q. Do you recall the names of any of your subordinate units or any of ,

the islands on which they were located from whom messages were received after|
the beginning of the year 19457 |

This question was cbjected to by the accused on the ground that it was

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

[| &a I do not recall. |

464. Q. Were any messages received from Jaluit, Hauru, or Ocean prior to thL

This question wae objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
multiplu.

The judge advocate replied,

The commission announced that the objectlion wes not sustained.

Il A I recall receiving dispatches from Jaluit although I do not recall that

: 466, Q. During the year 1945 do you recall any messages being received from

I irrelevant and immaterial.

diap&.tchﬂ were received from Nauru or Ocean, :

465. Q. After the fall of the Marianas and prior to 1945 do you recall
whether any messages were received from Jaluit, NHauru or Ogean?

A. I recall dispatches from Jaluit, but whether there were any from Nauru
or Ocean I do not recall.

Jaluit, Nauru or Ocean?
A. I recall receiving messages from Jaluit, but I do not recall concerning

Nauru and Ocean.

467. Q. You recall receiving messages from Jaluit during the year 1945.
Can you approximate how many you received?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

4. I do not recall.




—

468, Q. But you do recall that some messages were received from Jaluit
in the year 1945; is that correct?
A. Yea, I do,

469. Q. In question 94 in your direct testimony when you were asked "State
clearly and briefly the communications existing within the area of jurisdic-
tion during your tour of duty as Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet.", |
did you include the following in your answer "Consequently, these islands in|
that area maintained communicatione through Jaluit, however I heard that '
commencing with the year 1945 transmitting on Jaluit had terminated’?

This question wae objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
irrelevant and immaterial,

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

s I did not meke that reply. In my answer I used the word "teika" which
means deteriorated.

I
470, Q. DNow, you t4stified that approximately a year after the war in July |
1946 Asano came to you and told you about the five prisoners of war at the
Guard Unit in June of 1944; is that correct?
A, He did not report directly to me that there were five priscners of war
at the Guard Unit in June,

4T. Q. Prior to July 1946 did you ever learn that five prisoners of war
had been at the Guard Unit in June of 19447
4. I did not know of this fact until the termination of the war,

472. Q. Did you know this prior to July 19467 i

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it naal
irrelevant and immaterial.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection wae not sustained.

A. I heard after the termination of the war that three priscners of war
had been bombed to death.

473, Q. Did you hear anything about two other prisoners of war being at tha
Guard Unit at that time?
A. No, I did not,

474 Q. When did you first learn that there were two other prisoners of
war at the Guard Unit at that time?
A. I learned of that fact when Adsano reported to me.

475. Q. And when wae this report made?

This question wae objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
repetitious.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,
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| Ao It was either in July or August of 1946 and it was four or five daye
| prior to Asano's arrest.

476, Q. A&nd from the end of the war up until July of 1946 you did not know
that there were two more prisoners of war at the Guard Unit in June of 1944,
is that correct?

, This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
| repetitious, irrelevant end immaterial,

' The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

The judge advocate replied.

i A. Mo, I did not. |

| 4T7. Q. In August of 1945 and in September of 1945 was an investigation mdl
|| by the Fourth Fleet concerning the prisoner of war incidents and concerning
|| prisoners of war who had been confined at Truk?

i| This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
|| repetitious, irrelevant and immaterial,
i

If The judge advocate replied,

| |
!I The commission announced that the objection wae not sustained. |
I |
|: A. Instructions were issued to all commanding officers of Naval Guard ‘El’nitii

|Ea.nd cognizant commanding officers to report on matters concerning prieoners ofi
war,
|

1478. Q. By cognizant commanding officers do you include Captain Imanami of |
| the Fourth Naval Hospital? i
| A Tes. !

|;.m. Q. Did your Chief of Staff Sumikawa also participate in this?

| This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was

II irrelevant and immaterial, and that it called for an opinion of the witness.

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

A, The lnvestigations were ordered to all cognizant commanding officers.
I do not well know whether Sumikawa directly participated in these investiga-
tions or not.

480, Q. You testified that one of the reasons you did not order any investi=
gation after the September conference was because you did not want to be
placed in the position of responsibility of having to indict any of your
subordinatgs; is that correct?

. Ne, I did not mean it in that sense.

481, Q. Did you not have the responsibility to indict your subordipates when|
they directly admitted in yowr presence the commission of a serious violation
of Naval Regulationa?

N This queetion was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
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—tl, Q. A4re you a counsel for the accused in this case?

-

The judge advocate replied.
I The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,
| 4. Yee, if what he sald was proven true.
Examined by the commissions
|| 462+ {. During your testimony you referred to the Governor of the South Seas
Government and alsc officers of the South Seas Government, The commission
| would like you to clarify whether or not this Governor and his officers were

!m:L'Lita.r}" personnel or clvilian personnel,
| A The Governor of the South Seas Office was a retired vice admiral,

483, Q. How about his subordinates? Were they civilians or military |
| personnel? I
[ A A3 to the subordinates, the District Covernor at Truk was a rear admir
| on the retired 1ist and I believe the District Governor at Falau was a retire
(| engineer captain of the Navy. 1

| 484 Q. TWere these retired officers acting in a military or civil cmpanit;r’?!
A, Their status was that of civilians., The retired rear admiral at Truk
may have been recalled to active service, but in the execution of his duties
he was acting in the capacity of a civilian,

; Reexamined by the accuseds:

{ﬂES. Q. Were the officials in the South Seas Government Office in the lower
achelons civilians or military?

il Aa 411 of the subordinate officisles in that office did not have military

'I status, They were civilians, BExcept for the officers I mentioned, the rest

quru all civilians,

The judge advocate did not desire to recross-examine this witness.

! The commission did not desire to reexamine this witness.

|
| The witness said that he had nothing further to state.
” The witness resumed his status as accused.

|

, The commission then, at 11:25 a.m., tock a recess until 2:10 p.m., at
|which time it reconvened,

Present: 411 the members, the judge advocate, the accused, hie counsel,
and the interpreters.

Paul F, Coste, junior, yeoman first mas, U. 8. Navy, reporter,
lio witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Mr, Sanagl, Sadami, a counsel for the accused, was recalled as a witness
for the defense and was warned that the cath previcusly teken by him was etill

||h1nd1.n¢.

Bamined by the judge advocates

e Yes.
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| 8. Q. Is there a translation of each document? |

| and to the commiseion, and by the accused, offered in evidence.

| of the eight character documents:

2. Q. Have you previocusly testified? |
A, Tes,

Examined by the accused:

3. Q. Flease state your name,
A, Sanagl, Sadamu.

de Q. Do you have in your possession documents of character evidence in

behalf of Hara, Chuichi?
4. I have eight documents in my possession, .

5. §« Do these character documents have any relation to the accused's
handling and protection of prisoners of war and natives which is a point of
issue in this trial?

A. To the best of my knowledge, in inspecting these documents, they are al
from naval officers who knew the accused very well, and they do state in
general the reputation of the accused concerning the handling and protection
of natives and his general supervision of his subordinates.

=1

G. §. How many do you have in your possession?
A, Eight in all,

Te Q. In what language are the originals written?
&s The origioals are written in Japanese,

4. Yea, there are translations.

The documents produced by the witness were submitted to the judge advocate,
Cross-examined by the judge advocate concerning the offer in evidence

9. Q. Were these statements in character evidence sworn to by the makers

of these statements?
A, A1l except the last one made by Taneda, Tsunio are sworn to. i

10. Q. Do the Japanese of these statements contain the signature or personil
seal of the affiant in each case where the statements have been sworn to?
4. They are signed or sealed by the makers.

There being no objection, the documente were so received, and are
appended marked "Exhibit 56" (Japanese), "Bxhibit 56a" (English translation);
"Bxhibit (Japanese), "Exhibit 57a" fEngliah translation); "Exhibit 58"
(Japanese), "Exhibit 58a" (English translation); "Exhibit 5?" (Japanese),
"EBxhibit 59a" (English translation); "Exhibit 60 (Japanese), "Exhibit 60a"
(Englieh translation); "Exhibit 61" (Japanese), "Bxhibit 6la" (English
translation); "Exhibit 62" (Japanese), "Exhibit 62a" (English translation);
"Exhibit 63" (Japanese), and "Exhibit 63a" (English translation).

Examined by the accused concerning Exhibits 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, &2,
and 63t

11, Q. W11l the witnese read Exhibit 567
(The witness read Exhibit 56 as requested.)
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15.
16.
| 1.

- 18.

Q. TWill the witness please read Esxhibit 577

(The witness read Exhibit 57 as requested.)

Q. Will the witness please read Exhibit 587

(The witness read Exhibit 58 as requested.)

Q. Will the witness pjagee read Exhibit 597

(The witness read Exhibit 59 as requested.)

Q. Will the witness please read Exhibit 60%

(The witness read Exhibit 60 as requested,)

§. Will the witness please read Exhibit €17

(The witness read Exhibit 61 as requested.)

Q. Will the witness read Exhibit 627

(The witness read Exhibit 62 as requested.)

Qs ¥ill the witnees please read the last document, Exhibit 637
(The witness read Exhibit €3 aes requested.)

The judge advocate did not desire to cross-examine thie witness.
The commission did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness resumed his seat as a counsel for the accused.

The defense rested.

The commission then, at 3:25 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., Thursday,

January 6, 1949, in order to allow time for the prosecution and the defense
to prepare their final arguments.




FORTY-FOURTH DAY
United States FPacific Fleet,
Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,
Guam, Marianas Islands,
Thureday, January 6, 1949.

The commission met at 9115 a.m.

Present:

Rear Admirsl Arthur G. Robinson, U. S. Navy, .
Captain Daniel J. Sweeney, U. S. Navy,
Iieutenant Colonel Harry W. McCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United States
| Army Reserwve,

Iieutenant Colonel Newton L. Chamberlain, Signal Corps, United States
| Army,

Lieutenant Commander Ralph I. Gerber, U. 5. Navy,

Captain Kermit H. Shelly, U. 8. Marine Corps, members, and

Lieutenant David Bolton, U. S. Navy, judge advocate.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8. Navy, reporter.
| The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

i
| The record of proceedinge of the forty-third day of the trial was read
and approved,

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

The accused requested permission to reopen his case in order to present
I a deposition which had been received since the commission last adjourned. ‘

The commission announced that the request wae granted.

The defense reopened.

Herbert L. Ogden, a witness for the defense, was recalled and was warned ’
that the cath previously taken by him was still binding.

Examined by the accused:
1. Q. Have you in your possession a deposition signed by Vice Admiral Ceorge 4

Murray?
A. T have.

2., Q. Is this deposition in answer to the interrogatories that were
submitted to Admiral Murrey by this court in behalf of the defense?
A. It is,

3. Q. Does this deposition relate to the surrender on Truk of the Japanese

naval forces?
A. Tt does,

The document produced by the witnese was submitted to the judge advecate
and to the conmission and by the accused offered in evidence, There being no
objection it was so received and is appended marked "Bxhdbit 64,

4s W Will the witness read this interrogatory and the answers thereto?

(The witness read Exhibit 64 as requested.)
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|

The judge advocate did not desire to oross-examine this witness.
The commission did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness said that he had nothing further to state.

The witness was duly warned and withdrew,

The defense rested.

The accused read a written statement in his defense in Japanese,
appended marked "FF",

An interpreter read an English translation of the statement by the
accused, appended marked "GG",

The judge advocate read his written opening argument, appended marked

An interpreter read a Japanese translation of the opening argument of
the judge advocate.

The commission then, at 10 a.m., tock a recess until 10:20 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: A1l the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters,

Faul F. Coste, junior, yeoman firet class, U. 5. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Mr. Takano, Junjiro, a counsel for the mccused, commenced the reading of
a written argument for the defense, appended marked "II",

The commiseion then, at 11:30 a.m., tock a recess until 2:10 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Presents A1l the members, the judge advocate, the accused, hie counsel,
and the interpreters.

Elvin G. Gluba, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

Mr, Tekano, Junjiro, a counsel for the accused, continmed the reading of
a written argument for the defense, appended marked “IIV,

The commiseion then, at 3:05 p.m., tock a recess until 3:30 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, hies counsel,
and the interpreters.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8. NHavy, reperter.
No witnesses not otherwise comnected with the trial were present.
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Mr. Takano, Junjiro, a counsel for the accused, continued the reading of
a written argument for the defense, appended marked "II",

The commission then, at 4:15 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
. Friday, January 7, 1949.
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FORTY-FIFTH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,
Guam, Marianas Islands,

Friday, January 7, 1949.

The commission met at 9:15 a.m.
Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. 5. Navy,
Captain Daniel J. Sweeney, U. 8. Navy,
ILieutenant Colonel Harry W. McCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United Sta

Army Reserve,
Iieutenant Colonel Newton L. Chamberlain, Signal Corpe, United Statee

Army
de.eut-cmnt Commander Ralph I, Gerber, U. 8. Navy,

Captain Kermit H., Shelly, U. S. Marine Corpe, members, and
1ieutenant David Bolton, U. S. Navy, judge advocate.

Paul P, Coste, junior, yeoman first clase, U. 5. Navy, reporter.
The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the forty-fourth day of the trial was read
and approved.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Mr. Sanagl, Sedamu, a counsel for the accused, continued the reading of
a written argument for the defense, appended marked "IX".

The commission then, at 10:10 a.m., took & recess until 10:40 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: A1l the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters,

Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter.
No witnessee not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Mr. Sanagi, Sedamu, a counsel for the accused, continued the reading of
a written argument for the defense, appended marked "IIV,

The commission then, at 11120 a.m., tock & recess until 2:10 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Faul F., Coste, junior, yeoman first class, U. 8. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Mr. Senagl, Sadamu, s counsel for the accused, concluded the reading of
a written argument for the defense, appended marked "II",

lnlntmmdmwilhtnnﬂltimntmmthnmntrm
the defense, appended marked "JJV,

The commission then, at 3 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomerrow,
Saturday, January 8, 1949.
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i hies counsel, and the interpreters.

FORTY-SEVENTH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Naval Forcee, Marlanas,
Guam, Marlenas Islands,

Monday, January 10, 1949.

The commission met at 9:10 a.m,
Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U, 5. Navy,
cﬂpﬁliﬂ m.lﬂ.ﬂl J‘ &G'm?. U+ El l{-.w,
lieutenant Colonel Harry W. McCormick, Quartermsster Corps, United

States Army Reserve,
Iieutenant Colonel Newton L. Chamberlain, Signal Corps, United States

Army,
Lieutenant Commander Ralph I. Gerber, U. 8., Navy,

Captain Kermit H, Shelly, U. 5. Marine Corpe, members, and
Lieutenant David Bolton, U. 8. Navy, judge advocate.
Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman firet class, U, 8. Navy, reporter.
The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the forty-sixth day of the trial was read
and approved.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

The judge advocate commenced the reading of hie written cloeing argument,
appended marked "LL",

The commiession then, at 11:20 a.m., tock a recess until 2:05 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: A1l the members, the judge advocate, the reporter, the accused,

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

The judge sdvocate concluded the reading of his written closing
argument, appended marked "LL".

The accused waived the reading of the judge advocate's written closing
argument in Japanese in open court.

The trial was finished.

The commission then, at 4:05 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
Tueaday, Januvary 11, 1949.




FORTY-EIGHTH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,
Guam, Marianas Islands,

Tuesday, January 11, 1949.

The commiesion met at 9:05 a.m.

Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U. S. Navy,

Captain Daniel J. Sweeney, U. 5. Navy,

I1ieutenant Colonel Harry W. McCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United
Stltu Army Reserve,

Iieutenant Colonel Newton L. Chamberlain, Signal Gurpa, United States
Army,

Iieutenant Commander Ralph I. Gerber, U. 5. Navy,

Captain Kermit H. Shelly, U. §. Marine Corps, members, and

Lieutenant David Bolton, U, S. Navy, judge advocate.

Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman firset class, U. S. Navy, reporter.

The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

i The record of proceedings of the forty-seventh day of the trial was read
and approved.

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

The commission was cleared.

The judge advocate was recalled and directed to record the following
findings:

The first specification of the charge proved in part, proved except
i the worde "Nauru Island, Ocean Island," in line four,

the worde "British nationales, a Chinese civilian," in lines twelve and
thirteen,

the words "the Carcline Islands,"™ in line thirteen,
| the words "Nauru Island and Ocean Island,® in line fourteen,

the words "(a) The unlawful killing of three (3) unarmed American
prisoners of war, names to the relator unknown, by shooting and
stabbing, on or about March 10, 1944, on the island of Aineman,
Jaluit Atell, Marehall Ielandes, by MASUDA, MNisukl, rear admiral,
| IJN, YOSHIMURA, Teuglo, lieutenant junior grade, IJN, KAWACHI,
Mamoru, ensign, IJN, TASAKI, Tadashi, ensign, IJWN, wun
Toshimote, warrant u.t‘i‘:l.u-r, IJN, all attached to the lﬂ.li‘t-lr:
installation of the Imperial Japanese NHavy at Jaluit Atell,
Marshall Ielands.®
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l the words "(f) The unlawful torture, sbuee end inhumene treatment of i
six (6) eivilians, residents of Nauru Island, namely, Ruben FOLIAFE,
Marie FOLIAFE, Rudolph HARRIS, Albert HARRIS, Father Pierre CLIVAZ,
and Father Alois KAYSER, by cruelly beating them, on or about
August 28, 1944, at Truk Atell, Caroline Islands, by SHOJI, Takashi,
elso known as SYOJI, Takashi, civilian employee of the Imperial
Japanese lavy, ISHIWARA, first neme unknown, a naval civll guard, |
TAXENOUCHI, first name unknown, a naval civil guard, SHOJI, Hideo, I
also known ae SYOJI, Hideo, a navel civil guerd, ANETAI, Soji, a
naval civil guard, all attached to the Fourth Neval Construction |
Department, SAKANOTO, Takaharu, sergeant of the Japanese Military
Folice Corps, and others, names to the relator unknown, all
attached to the Imperial Japanese ermed forces at Truk Atoll,
Caroline Islands.®

the words "(g) The unlawful torture, abuse and inhumane treatment of
RUKA, a civilian, resident of Nauru Island, by beating him upon the head
and body with sticks and closed fists, and by tying him to a tree T
for approximately two nights end three days, during the period of
about three days during the month of September 1944, at Nauru Island
by OGAWA, Haruzo, then e& lieutenant junior grade, IJN, SAKODA, Hiroej
also known as SEKOTA, Hiroe, then & lieutenant junior grade, IJN,
NAKAJIUA, Hiroshi, then e warrant officer, IJN, TAIRA, Tokuji,
also known as TAIRI, Tokuji, then a werrant officer, IJN, TSUKADA,
Eizo, then a warrant officer, IJN, TAKAHASEI, Shigenobu, then a
warrant officer, IJN, all attached to the Sixty-seventh Naval
Gerrison Unit."

the words "(h) The unlawful killing of NG LEE, a Chinese civilien, | |
resident of Neuru Island, by beating with sticks, on or ebout
December 3, 1944, at Nauru Island by HATAKEYANA, Yasumori, aleo
known as HATAKEYAMA, Yosuteki, peymaster warrent officer, IJN,
TORIUMI, Tomeo, alsc known ee TORIWUIT, Tomeo, engineering petty
of ficer, IJN, TONINACA, Gorozo, also known as TOMINAGA, Gorozi,
| peymaster chief petty officer, IJN, SANO, Takeo, chief petty
' officer, IJN, ITC, Hiroshi, peymaster chief petty officer, IJN,
SASAKI, Aguma, also known as SASAKI, Hazuma, paymsster chlef petty
officer, IJN, and CHIBA, Tsuneo, paymaster chief petty officer, IJN,
all attached to the Sixty-seventh Kawval Garrison Unit.®

the words "(1) The unlawful killing of esbout two hundred (200) British
nationals, namely, UBANTEITI, FALAILIVA, and other persons unknown,
all civilian residents of the Gilbert and Ellice Islends Colony,
by shooting, on or sbout August 20, 1945, at Ocean Island, by
SUZUKI, Neocomi, lieutenent commander, IJN, NARA, Yoshio, lieutenant,
IJN, MIYASAKA, Denji, lieutemant, IJN, KOYOHARA, Naoyoshi,
lieutenant junior grade, IJN, ISHII, Sedezo, also known as ISHIE,
Satazo, lieutenant junior grede, IJN, IIJIMA, Tadashi, ensign, IJN,
SAKATA, Jiro, lieutenant, IJN, SHINOZAWA, Yoshiharu, ensign, IJN,
KONNO, Hiroshi, warrant officer, IJN, ARAI, Kakuzo, chief petty
officer, IJN, SAKUMA, Wataru, lieutenant, IJN, OTONO, Torizo,
lieutenant junior grade, IJN, SAKANOTO, Chujiroe, lieutenant junior
grade, IJN, YAJIMA, Eiichi, lieutenant junior grade, IJN, YAMAGUCHI,
Nobuaki, lieutenent, IJN, HIRAKI, Sakame, also known as HIRAKI,
Sekai, lieutenant junior grade, IJN, TSUCHIIKE, Masataro, lieutenant
junior grade, IJN, HANAWA, Eiji, lieutenant Junlor grade, IJN,
YOSHIDA, Itsuo, lieutensnt junior grade, IJN, SUGINO, Teuchinesuke, =
ensign, 1JN, and YASUDA, Harumi, ensign, IJN, all attached to the
Sixty-seventh Naval Gaerrison Unit."®




which words are not proved.

The

the

the

the

the

the words "(f) The unlawful torture, sbuse &nd inhumane treatment of

the

second specificetion of the charge proved in part, proved except

words "the Marshall Islands, Nauru Ieland, Ocean Island," in
line four,

words "and residents of Nauru Island and Ocean Islami’, then residing
at sald Nauru Island and Ocean Island occupied by armed forces of
Janen under his command and subject to his control and supervision,"
in 1ines twelve, thirteen, fourteen, and fifteen.

worde "end said residents of Nauru Island and Ocean Island," in
lines sixteen snd seventeen,

words "(a) The unlawful killing of three (3) unarmed American
privoners of war, names to the relator unknown, by shooting and
stebbing, on or mbout March 10, 1944, on the island of Adneman,
Jaluit Atoll, Marshall Islands, by MASUDA, Nisuki, rear admirel,
IJN, YOSHINURA, Tsugio, lieutenant junior grede, IJN, KAWACHI,
Memoru, ensign, IJN, TASAKI, Tadashi, ensign, IJN, TANAKA, Toshimoto,
warrant officer, IJN, all attached to the military installation of
the Imperiel Japanese Navy at Jaluit Atoll, Marshall Islands."

RUKA, a civilian, resident of Nauru Island, by beating him upen
the head and body with sticks and closed fists, and by tying him
to a tree for apprroximately two nights and three days, during the
period of ebout three days during the month of September 1944, at
Neuru Island by OGAWA, Haruzo, then a lieutenant junior grade, IJN,
SAKODA, Hiroe, mlso known as SEKOTA, Hirce, then a lieutenant
junior grade, IJN, NAKAJIMA, Hiroshi, then a warrant officer, IJN,
TATRA, Tokuji, elso known as TAIRI, Tokuji, then & warrant officer,
IJN, TSUKADA, Eizo, then a warrant officer, IJN, TAKAHASHI,
Shigenobu, then a warrent officer, IJN, all attached to the Sixty-
gseventh Naval Cerrison Unit,"

words "(g) The unlawful killing of NG LEE, a Chinese civilian,
resident of Nauru Island, by beating with sticks, en or about
December 3, 1944, at Nauru Island, by HATAFEYAVA, Yasunori, also
known as HATAKEYAKA, Yosutaki, paymaster warrant officer, IJN,
TORIUMI, Tomeo, also known as TCRIWUMI, Tomeo, engineering petty
officer, IJN, TOMINAGA, Gorozo, also known as TOMINAGA, Gorosi,
paymaster chief petty officer, IJN, SANO, Takeo, chief petty officer)
IJN, ITO, Hiroshi, paymaster chief petty officer, IJN, SASAKI, Azuma
also known as SASAKI, Haguma, paymaster chief petty officer, IJN,
and CHIBA, Tsuneo, paymaster chief petty officer, IJN, all attached
to the Sixty-seventh Maval Garrison Unit,®




time it reconvened.

| and the interpreters.

+ Senagl,
for the defense in mitigation and was warned that the oath previocusly taken
was stil] binding.

1. Q. ©&tate your name.

A. Sapagli, Sadamu.

2., Q. Are you a member of the defense counsel in this present trial?
A. Tes, I am,

3. Q. Do you have in your pessession statements in mitigation for the
accused Hara?

A, I have,

L. Q. How many in all do you have?

4. Twenty-nine.

-
=
(X

&

the words "(h) The unlawful killing of about two hundred (200) British
nationals, namely, UBANTEITI, FALAILIVA, and other persons unknown,
all civilian residents of the Gilbert and Ellice Islands Colony,
by shooting, on or ebout August 20, 1945, at Ocean Island, by
SUZUKI, Naoomi, lieutenant commander, IJN, HARA, Yoshio, lieutenant,
IJN, MIYASAKA, Denji, lieutenant, IJN, KIYOHARA, Naoyoshi,
lieutenant junior grade, IJN, ISHII, Sadaszo, slso known as ISHIE,
Satazo, lieutenant junior grade, IJN, IIJIMA, Tadashi, ensign, IJN,
SAFATA, Jiro, lieutenant, IJN, SHINOZAWA, Yoshiharu, ensign, IJN,
KONNO, Hiroshi, warrant officer, IJN, ARAI, Kakuzo, chlef petty
officer, IJN, SAKUNA, Wataru, lieutenant, IJN, OTOMO, Torizo,
lieutenant junior grade, IJN, SAKAMOTO, Chujiroc, lieutenant junior
grade, IJN, YAJIVA, Eiichi, lieutenant junior grade, IJN, YAMAGUCHI,
Nobuaki, lieutenant, IJN, HIRAKI, Sekae, also known as HIRAKI, Sakai,
lieutenant junior grade, IJN, TSUCHIIKE, Masataro, lieutenant
junior grade, IJN, HANAWA, Eiji, lieutenant junior grede, IJN,
YOSHIDA, Iteuo, lieutenant junior grade, IJN, SUGINO, Tsuchinosuke,
ensign, IJN, and YASUDA, Harumi, ensign, IJN, all attached to the
8ixty=-seventh Naval Garrison Unit."

which words are not proved.

And that the sccused, Hara, Chuichi, is of the charge gullty.

The commission was opened and all parties to the trisl entered.
The commisesion announced ite findings to the accused in open court.

The commission then, at 11 a.m., took & recess until 2:15 p.m., lt-_*lhiuh
Present: A1l the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,

Paul F, Coste, junior, yeoman first claes, U. S. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwlise connected with the trial were present.
Mr Sadamu, a counsel for the acoused was recalled as a witness

Emmined by the acoused:
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5¢ Q. In what language are they written?
A. The origimals are written in Japanese.

6. Q. Have you prepared an English translation?
A. Yes, I have prepared English translations.

7. Q. Are the signatures affixed on the original of these petitiona?
A. In the originals in Japanese the signatures are affixed.

|8, Q. In what relation are those makers of the petitions to the accused?
A. Some are written by the accused's family, some by former maval officers,
and the others by close friends and acquaintances.

| The twenty-nine petitions produced by the witness were submitted to the
|| judge advocate and to the conmiseion, and by the accused, offered in evidence|
There being no objection, they were so received and are appended marked
"Exhibit 65" (Japanese), "Exhibit 65a" (English translation); "Exhibit 66"
(Japanese), "Exhibit 66a" (English translation); "Exhibit 67" (Japanese),
"Exhibit 67a" (English translation); "Exhibit 68" (Japanese), "Exhibit 68a"
(English translation); "Exhibit &5" (Japanese), "Exhibit 69a" (English trans-
lation); "Exhibit 70" (Japanese), "Exhibit 70a"™ (English translation);
"Bxhibit 71" (Japanese), "Exhibit 71a" (English translation); "gxhibit 72"
(Japanese), "Exhibit 72a" (English translation); "Exhibit 73" (Japanese),
"Exhibit 73a" (English translation); "Exhibit 74" (Japenese), "Exhibit 7 a"
(English translation); ™Exhibit 75" (Japanese), "Exhibit 75a" (English trans-
lation); "Exhibit 76" (Japanese), "Exhibit 76a" (English translation);
"Exhibit 77" (Japanese), "Exhibit 77a" (English translation); "Exhibit 78"
(Japanese), "Exhibit 78a" (English translation); "Exhibit 79" (Japanese),
"Exhibit 79a" (English translation); "Exhibit 80" (Japanese), "Exhibit 80a"
(English translation); "Exhibit 81" (Japanese), "Exhibit &la" (English trans-
lation); "Exhibit 82" (Japanese), "Exhibit 82a™ (English translation);
"Exhibit 83" (Japanese), "Exhibit &3a" (English translation); "Exhibit 84"
(Japanese), "Exhibit 84a" (Bnglish translation); "Exhibit 85" (Jepanese),
MExhibit 85e" (English translation); "Exhibit 86" (Japanese), "Exhibit 86a"
(English translation); "Exhibit 87" (Japanese), "Exhibit &7a" (English trens-
1ation); "Exhibit 88" (Japanese), "Exhibit 88a" (English translation);
"Exhibit 89" (Japanese), "Exhibit 89a" (English translation); "Exhibit 90"
(Japanese), "Exhibit 90a" (English translation); "Exhibit 91" (Japanese),
"Exhibit 9la" (English translation); "Exhibit 92" (Japenese), "Exhibit 92a"
(English translation); "Exhibit 93" (Japanese), and "Exhibit 93a" (English
translation).

9., Q. Will the witness read Exhibits 65 through 937
(The witness read Exhibite 65 through 93 as requested. )
The judge advocate did not desire to cross-examine this witness.

The commiesion did not desire to examine this witness.

| The witness resumed his seat as ocounsel for the accused.

Commander Martin E, Carlson, a counsel for the accused, read a written
|statement in mitigetion, appended marked "MM",

The accused waived the reading of Commander Carlson's statement in
Japanese in open court,

The commission was cleared.
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The judge advocate was recalled, and directed to record the sentence
of the commission as follows:

{f"‘ﬁ-—\{u—u[?fw Mﬁ*ﬁ(‘)#w

e A

Rear Admiral, U. &,/Navy, President.

Lieutenant Colonel, Signal Gnrpu ’
United States h'lur, Mamber,

m-‘I GERBER,

Lieutenant Commander, U. 8. Hlv;r, Member.

Ilu'iu Gorpu y Member,

m &ﬂ%

DAVID BOLTON,
Lieutenant, U. 5. Havy, J’udg- Advocate.
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The commission was opened. A1l parties to the trial entered.

The commission then read and pronounced the sentence to the accused.
The commiseion, having no more cases before it, adjourned to await

the action of the convening authority.
r%ﬁ_\

-

ARTHUR G,-ROBINSON,
Rear Admiral, U 8./ Navy, President.

I DAVID BOLTON,
Iieutenant, U. 8. Navy, Judge Advocate.
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MOTION FOR A CHANGE OF VENUE DELIVERED BY COMMANTER MARTIN E, CARLSON
IN BEHALF OF HARA, CHUICHI,

May 1t please the Commission:

The accused HARA, Chuichi, a gsoner of war hereby makes this motion fqr
a change of venue on the grouuh tm the action is bmbrﬁght in the ﬁu y

place of digtrict.

In crisinal cases the proper venue at common law is the country, that
is the place, where the erime was committed.

Tho erines alleged in the specifications are said to have taken plaes
on Aimepan Island, Joluit, Dublon Island, Truk, Nauru Island and Ocean Island.
These were not within the command of the Commander Maval Forces Marianas
during the pericd from February 23, 1944 bo August 20, 1945 or even to
Beptember 2, 1945, nor is it now in Commander Naval Forces Marianas Area,
Ocean Islend particularly is not now nor ever was U, S. territory.

Sipce the prosecution do not atate what the lar and the customs of

war are which the accused vioclated or what the law states or sets forth as
duty of Admiral Hara, the accused, toward the viotims especianlly the natives
of these Japanese islands and the natives of the island of Nauru and Ocean
and toward the the Chinese or what the law sets forth wore appropriate measurps
that /dmiral Hara must take to protect the alleged viclations such as the
Jopanese natives of these islands and the natives of Nauru and Ocean Island
and residents of the Gilbert and Ellice Islands Colony, we are at a loas to
know what these vague end indefinite lawe are, if any, and particularly as
to what venue is provided by such laws,.

It is true that the nccused is in the custody of the convening suthority
but we gtrongly mointain the accused, HARL, Chulchi, a Japanese natiomal, is
not legally a prisoner of war and as a prisoner of war must be treated in
accordance with the Hague Convention and the Geneva Priscners of Par Conven-

tion.

It is also true that the accused is charged with ten offenses of
criminal negligence against mationals of the United States, natives of
these Japanese 1slands, Chinese and also civilinn residents of Gilbert and
Ellige Colony but this does mot meke him guilty of a war crime or of any
oerime, Ve maintain that the offenses alleged in the specifications are not

wor érimes.

This 48 a motion for a change of venue nnd in the case of Southern Sand
and Gravel Co. v. Massaponax Sand and Gravel Corporatien 145 Va. 317, 133
S.E., 812, 813 it was stated that venue dosignatod the particular county or
clty in which a court with jurisdiction may hear and deternine the case,

Ve are of the opinion that Ocean Island and Nauru Island are mot a part
of the military compand of Commander Naval Forees Marianns, There is no
inherent suthority in the convening authority to appoint this military
cormission to try a Japanese prisoner of war for alleged offenses said to have
been committed on Ocenrn and Nauru Island particularly after the aceused

obeyed his Emperor and on August 15, 1945 stopped all fighting and subse-
surrendered.




f).C D)

REPLY TO MOTION FOR CHANGE OF VENUE

Delivered by
Lieutenant David Bolton, USN,
Judge Advocate,

Counsel's motion is without sound basis, The nccused is charged with
violation of the law ond customs of war. The convening authority possesses
inherent authority as a military commonder and specific delegated authority
as set forth in the precept to convene military commissions for the trial

of war cripmes.

HARA is charged with a recognized war erime (see re Yamashita,
129 4.8, 1). He is in the custody of the convening authority and thereby
car properly be tried before a military commission convened by Commander

Nowval Forees Marianas,

Tt is well established that an accused war criminal may be tried
without regard tc whether or not he is tried at the scene of his crimes,
That the defense counsel recognizes this fact is clearly shown from his
own request for a change of venue to Japan or Australia, No crime
charged agninst the accused has been alleged tc have been committed in

either of these countries,

Defense counsel is in error when he contends that no witnesses are
available here on Guem, The prosecution has apprised the accused of
witnesses who are available on Guam, Some of them are confined at the
War Criminal Stocknde and others are residing at the Vitness Camp, The
accused has made no request for witnesses other than those avaflable
here on Guam, nor has he named any in his motjon, and the factual basis
for his contention that convenience of witnesses justifies change of

venue, is therefore wholly lacking.

There is no legal or moral requirement which requires that military
officers senior in rank to the accused be members of the commission, and
this ground of the defense motion is similarly without merit,

The judge advocate respectflly requests that the defense motion be

enied. Q;-K:J

DAVID BOLTON,
Lieutenant, U, S, Navy,
Judge Advoeate.
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OBJECTION TO THE CHLRGE LND SPECIFICLTIONS
Dclivered by

Mr. TLELNO, Junjiro,
Counsel for the accused, H'RL, Chulchi.

The nccused, H.RL, Chuichi, objects to the charge and specificotions
in this ecnse for the following reasons:

1. In Specification 1 of the charge the rccused HLR/, Chuichi is
chorged with negleot of duty in that he failed to control his subordinotes
ra Commander in Chief of the Fourth Flect and in the second specifiention |
the accused is charged with negleet of duty in that he feailed to protect
lLmorienn prisoners of war hold ecaptive by units under his commnnd and
rosidents 1iving in arcas under occupation by his suberdinate units.
However excluding pearagrophs (f), uff (i) end (k) of Specification 1,
the basic facts alleged in the two respective specifications are completely
identical. In short the allegation is that militery and civilion personnel
of the Imporial Japoanese Nevy, subordinate to the accused, tortured, nbused;
inhumanely treated and killed these prisoncrs and residents. In othor
wvords in these two spocifications, the complotely identical alleged facts
are viowed on the one hand from the standpoint of the rcletionship of the
accused to the perpetrators of the crimea and on the other from thet of
the relationship of tho nccused to the victims of the erimes, and the
accused is brought to account for his responsibility in the matter, The
presont is a clear case of multiplication of accusation, It goes without |
comment that multiplication of accusation from the stondpoint of proce-
dun]l  low in erimins] eascs is ipapproprinte.

However, in substance the responsibility of the sccused, HIRL,
a8 Commandor in Chief of the 4th Flect to superviee and control his sub-
ordinates end his responsibility to protect prisoncrs of war and metive
residents er and the seme, In short the substence of the responsi-
bilities ig/ond, but in ite mode of presentation this is merely broken !
down into two or three forms in the present case. To parephrnae the iden |
in still other words; according to the allegations of the judge advoonte,
it was because the supervision and control of the sccused HLRL wre not
thorough thot the torture, abuse, inhumone trentment and murder of the
prisoners aond pative residents by subordinates of the accused ocourred.
Therofore, if thore were no neglect of duty on the part of the accused to
supervise and control ke subordinates, there would not have been any |
torture, cbuse, inhumone trectment and murder of prisoners and pative |
residents, and consequently there would not have been neglect of duty on
the part of the accused to protect these victims,

Spocification 1 is based on the .of  the-slleged neglect -of
duty of the accused and Specification 2 on the gffect of the same alleg
neglect of duty, However the alleged neglect of duty of the sccused is
in actusl fect one alleged noglect of duty to supervise and control sub-
ordinates, It is prejudicinl to the substantive rights of the accused to
nultiply the cocusation of the alleged singlo act of nonfeasance designated

as neglect of duty.

2. It is generaelly or specifically set forth in the lav and customs
of war what acts constitute actes in viclation of internatiopal law or are
war ocrimes, It is axiomntig thet statutes creoting and defining crimes
cannot be extended by intendment, Purely statutory offenses ocannot be
established by implication.

- 1-
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fithough it is stated at the beginning of both specifications
| "in vioclation the law and customs of war as follows," it is not

| specifically and clearly stated whot law or customs of war the accused
| HLRL wiolated.
|

I

|

The duty is incumbent on the Prosccution to show which providon

of the law and custons me%w
accused HARL violated through his alleged neglect of duty as ndor in

. Chief of the 4th Fleet to control and supervise his subordinates and pro-
| tect prisoners of war and netive residents, The accused cannot appropri-
| ately or fully propare his defense unless this is cleorly ond definitely
| shown hinm,

| - |

| The charge in the present case which however does not clearly |

| show which of the lav ond customs of war were effective prior to September |

| 2, 1945 tho cecused allegedly violated, is itsclf a violation of neval

| law ond at the same time is prejudicial to the substantive rights of the |

| acoused,

I I
3. It ia stated in the beginning of Specification 1 as follows:

" .e.. permitting them to torture, sbusc, inhumanely treat and kill Lmerican

prisoncrs of war held captive by the armed forces of Japan, British

nationals, & Chinese civilian, and residents of the Caroline Islands, the

Marshell Islands, Nauru Island and Ocean Island,....."

However of the 12 incidents cnumerated in peragraphs (a) through
(1) of this Specification there is no incident wherein
Ceroline Iplonds were tortured, abused, inhumonely treated and ed,

: Hence to list residents who were in no way connected with the ! I'
incidents in the charge is a violation of naval low and at the seme time
prejudicial to the substantive rights of the accused,

I

! 4, Tt 1s alleged in paregrephs (i), (j) and (k) of paragreph 1 as
| follows: ".....by mssaulting, :trik:l.ng,. wounding and killing, with an
| instrument, a deadly weapoh....."

| However it is a prineiple of legal procedure in criminel cases

| thet vhen there are acts of assault, striking, wounding and killing ocour
in one incident the lesser offenses other than killing should meturally

| be merged under the offense of killing, and that they should not be
|
I
|

| viewed as independent offonses. I quote dmerican Jurisprudence on this

subject:
MM%% - The general
rules governing the doo of merger of one

cerime in another are applicable to a prosecution
for assault and battery, The general principle is
| thtmulﬂm“dlpdaﬁnmw.m-
erime of a lesser degree will mar crime
| o!ihhhthhn-riluni -n't-' (
| me.m ?ﬂlt ‘-;
Para, mufhmmmum.mlm}

Hence assaul -nﬂull in thl incidents
of pnn;nphl (1), (1) n‘ micun offenses which should
not be 14 nts, BSuch an mwht- description of the

incidents is mjmlhthm'um the accused.
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l | The judge advocate may rebut by saying thet certain victims mentioned

' | in the incidents of parcgraphs (1), (§) and (k) were mssaulted, certain
| others wounded and still certain others struck and killed; and that
| therefore it is necessery to mention assaulting, striking, wounding and

killing. The duty is then incumbent upon the judge advocate to show
clearly who of the viotims vere assaulted, who struck, who wounded and
vho killed. If the judge advocote does not clarify this, it will meon
that the accused will not be granted an opportunity to quash the evidence
of the Prosecution or to submit counter ovidenee. Such would be prejudicial
to the substontive rights of the nccused, |

On the foregoing grounds, the accused HARL, Chuichi, objects to the
chorge nnd specifications of the present case.

———

Respectfully,

/e/ Tekano, Junjire
5 TLEKLANO, Junjire

j I certify that the forogoing is a true end complete translation of the
|| original in Jepancse, to the best of my ability,

i

EUG E. KERRICK, OR,
4 nant, U. §. Newvnl Reserve,
Interpreter,

.r';'
|
|
|
|
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OBJECTION TO THE CHARGES AND SPECIFICATIONS IN THE CASE OF
HARA, CHUICHI, VICE ADMIRAL, IMPERIAL JAPANEBE NAVY

Delivered by
CDR Martin E, Carlson, USHR,
Counsel for the accused.

The aecused objects to the charge and specifications on the ground
that they are vague and indefinite.

The phrase, "in violation of the law and customs of war," does not
fully apprise the accused of the law of the custom of war he is charged
with having violated. .

The charge does not set forth an offense either at common law or by
statute, We know of no international law which imposes upon a commander
of a fleet, a duty to personally protect prisoners of war held by navy
and army units in islands hundreds and even a thousand miles away from
his headquarters. We know of no internatioml law which imposes a responsi=
bility upon a commander in chief of a fleet for prisoners of war held by
army unite on for away islands from that navy commander's headquarters,

We know of no international law which defines the duty of a commander
in chief of a fleet under battle conditions such as existed daily through

the period from February 23, 1944 to September 2, 1945.

Mr., Justice Murphy in his dissenting opinion, Application of Yamashita,
Yamashita v, Styer, cited as 66 5, Ct., 340 at 347 held:

"Intermational law makes no attempt to define the duties cf a
commander of an army under constant and overwhelming assault; nor does it
impose liability under such circumstances for failure to meet the ordinary
responsibilities of command."

That was the mature and studied opinion by one of the justices of the
Suprema Court of the United States,

In this present case, HARA, Chuichi, who was a vice admiral, the
commander in chief of the Fourth Imperial Japanese Fleet, is charged with
neglect of duty and the prosecution now seeks to extend the majority
opinion ruling in the Yamashita case to Vice Admiral HARA, Neither inter-
national law nor local law defines the duties of an admiral like HARA, and
the commission dhould decide that the prosecution has not brought a legal
charge against HARA, Chuichi,

There was an army commander on Truk who was senior to Admiral HARA
and who commanded Truk as the senior officer present both of the army units
and the navy units, Adairal HARA was subordinate to him,

Even Mr, Justice Stone in the majority opinion in the Yamashita case
quoted General Order 26, Headquarters of Philippines, September 9, 1501
that an officer could mot be foumd guilty for failure to prevent murder
unless it appeared that the accused had the power to vreveat it, Nowhere
lt:- t.h.uu;pauiﬂmtim is it glleged that Admiral HARA could have prevented

ers, 3

We further object because of the allegation "to control as it was his
duty to do, eto," without the further allegation or recital of the statute
or law or customs of war which made it his duty to control these persons,
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We further object because of the allegation "to protect as it was
his duty to do, etc....in that he permitted the unlawful torture ete,"
This is too vague and uncertain for the accused to know what duty the
statute, the law or customs cf war set cut as his duty under the allezed
circumstonces. It is too vague an allegation to simply nllege that he
permitted the unlawful tortare. The ancoused must be informed of the
statute, the law or the customs of war which specifically does not permit
him the accused in his capacity as Oommander in Ghief, Fourth Fleet to
continue his lawful assigned duties at Truk, but required that he be
personally present to supervise the work of both Army and Navy cfficers
including Mavy doctors and Navy Construction o“ficers on far away islands
even after he as the Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet had received
orders from the Emperor of Japan to cease all hostilities on August 14, 1944.

Truk was no hostile territory as to Japan but Japanese territery.
Any invasion or coming upon Truk by Americans was an invastion of hostile
Japanese territory by such Americans and in time of war of necessity
attended with danger to such invaders., In the case of Yamashita the
Japanese hod invaded American territory and occupied such American terri~-
tory, the Philippines, In this present instance during the period from
February 23, 1944 to September 2, 1945, we made continuous raids upon
Truk and although unsuccessful until the Emperor of Japan ordered all
Japanese troops to surrender on August 14, 1945, we are in this present
charge alleging that it was Admiral HARA's duty to protect American
invaders of this Japanese territory not his duty to protect Truk, Such
allegations as are here charged are without any merit whatsoever, We
challenge the judge advocate to produce the law which sets forth such a
duty upon the commander of maval forces who had been crdered to defend the
Japanese ialand of Truk from the American invaders, The legitimate power
and authority on Truk during the period from February 23, 1944 to September
2, 1945 was the suthority of Japan,

The charge permits the commission to make the erime whatever it wills
dependent upon the victor's biased view as to what the accused duties were
and his disregard thereof. The element of personal culpability has been
entirely disregarded, Vice Admiral HARA is being charged with an
unrecognised crime, This must of nocessity be ourconclusion unless the
judge advocate can show the law which Admiral HARA violated and the law |
setting forth his dutdes, '

The authority of a court martial is statutory, citing the case of
Runkle v,United States, 122 U.S. 543, 30 L. ed, 1167, 7 S, Ct. 1141, A
military commission is but ancther military court, an exceotional
military court, According to Article D-13, Appendix D, Naval Courts and
Boards, the "specification should show on its face the circumstance conb=
ferring jurisdiction.” This is not done in the two specifications of the
charge, For this reason the specifications are further objectionable,

We further cbject to the specifications because the second speci~
fication is but o duplicate of the first specifiscation, The rule that
unlym-ﬂ-mmhuhnradhmmtutmindinhanthnnh
that should be known to every pleader, From page 45, U.S. Code Annotated,
Title 18, pocket part, the case of U,S, v, Runion: D.C. Ky. 1942, 4T F.
Supp. mncihdtoruppurtﬂumhthat"lhaum_mﬁian
consitutues a violation of two distinot statutory provisions the test
tahmudtod-mﬂummmmhooﬂmnwnmmu
mwn&woﬁuimmﬂmmdumumlfutﬁiﬂh
other does not," We hold that the second specification is btut a du _
uﬂmwmrmmmmmmmmhmmm
charge. It is true the specifications are jumbled to make it appear
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that there are different coffenses charged in speeifieation 2 but the
of fenses are but duplications of thoese sot forth in specification 1,

Section 19 of Naval Ccurts and Boards states, "The law parmits as
many charges to be preferred as may be necessary to provide for evary
possible enntingency in the evidence." We foil to find anywhere a rule
which permits a duplication of the same offense under a second specifi-
cation to the same charge, If this were permitted an accused could be
charged with the same offense ad finitium and could be found guilty of
the same offense many times,

There has been much misuse ¢f the privilege granted a pleader by
Section 19, N.C.&B, by war crimea prosecutors and this court should take
the initiantive in stopping this abuse, Strike the duplicate specifications
in the charge, and laot us proceed in a legnl way.

The makers of our Constitution provided for this by the Fifth Amend-
mant, which in part: ",,.nor shall any person be subject for the
same offense to tvice put in jeopardy of life or limb," Not even the
ex post facto SCAP rules allow trianl twice for the same offense.

The prosecution cannot blow hot and cold and therefore if this ia
a separate offense then it must be charged in a separate count,

In 27 Am, Jur, "Indictments and Informations," Section 124, pp 683~
684, the rule is: "Duplication in criminal pleading is the joinder of
two or more distinct and separate offenses in the same count of an indict-
ment or information,(B8) As scmetimes stated, the rule is that offenses
created by different statutes, (9) or thcse to which different punishments
are annexted, cannot be included in the same count, (10) Citing the
case of Hamilton v. State 129 Florida 219, 176 So, 89, 112 A.L.R. 1013,
citing RCL and the ceses of Crain v, U,S. 162 U,8, 625, 40 L, ed, 1097,
16 8, €t, 952; Hotohkiss v, District of Columbia, 44 App. DC 73, LRA 1917
C 922, Ann, Cas, 1918 D, 683; Joslyn v. State, 128 Ind, 160, 27 N.E, 492,
25 Am, St, Rep. 425; State v, Green, 104 Kan. 16, 177 P 519, citing RCL
State v, "arren, 7 Md. 121, 26 4 500, 39 Am, St. Rep. 401; Scales v,
State, 46 Tex, Crim. Rep, 1014, Not only do we have duplication but we
have multiplicity. As recently as March 8, 1948 in the case of W, M,
Gardner A 17-20, 160667 the Judge Advocate General of the U, S, Navy
said: "While the law prrmits as many charges to be preferred as may be
necessary to provide for every possible contingency in the evidence (N,
C. & B, Sec. 19) it is contrary to the policy of the Navy Department to
prefer multiplicity of charges covering the same transaction unless the
legal character of the offense cannot be precisely kmown or defined until
developed by the proof or there are agsravating circumstances distinguishing
it from the ordinary case contemplated by the Articles for the Governmend
of thglﬂlg. cf, C.M,0, 2-1939, 15, 155; Naval Digest 1916, p, 66, 67,
sec, 61, 68"

This is the navy rule and as in the Gardder case so in this case
there is multiplicity and we object to such multiplicity.

One offense only can be charged in one count., We know of no navy
rule of law or Federal rule which permite such pleading as is found in
the present charge and specifications, Therefore the specification must
either be struck from the charge altogether or it must be made a separate

m-
The specifications are vague and indefinite,

-
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We further object particularly to specification 1 (1) and 2 (h)
wherein it is alleged that about 200 British pationgls were killed, There
may have been a time when England claimed dominion over most of the pecples
of the world, There may have been a time when peocple referred to them=
selves as British nationals, That day has long passed however.

It is common knowledge that the people of Australia, Canada, and other
places have for many many years regarded themselves as Australians or
Canadians or a word describing their particular country, It is such a
well known fact that I cannot understand how the convening authority has
gone agninst this practice and referred to the victims as British nationals,
This is a most important point especially in view of the action taken at
the Commonwealth Prime Ministers meeting at which it 1is said "The word
'British' has been dropped from the officinl title of the British Common-
wealth of Nations. A United Press relense of October 22, 1948 stated "A
communique issued at the close of the Commonwealth prime ministers meeting
refarred throughout to the 'Commonwealth of Nations' and a spokesman
confirmed that the word 'British' had been purposely omitted,"

We object to the word "British" as being obsclete, no longer in good
repute, and in no way descriptive legally or otherwise of the victims
thereby attempted to be described in specification 1 (1) and 2 (h),

We further object to the charge and specifications dated October 5,
1948 Serial 14975 From Commander Naval Forces Mariannas because the precept
is dated 25 October 1948 and the charge and specifications are dated
5 October 1948,

According to the rule set forth in Section 345, N.C. & B, "The
precept must be drawn before the order for trial and the reference of the
charges and specifications to the judge advocate, as otherwise the latter
is issued to an officer nonexistent,”

Now, the judge advocate says this is no longer true or necessary in
war crimes. A military commission is an exceptional military court, The
rule laid down in C.M.0. 114-1918, pages 260=261 Compilation of Courte
Martial Orders, 1916-1937 clearly states the rule and gives the reason
for it. We quote: "The record in a recent case disclosed that the order
to the judge advocate directing the trinl of an aocused was dated
June 4, 1918, whareas the precept cohvening the court before which the
case was tried and appointing the judge advocate thereof was dated June 18,
1918, The jurisdiction for the trial cf a person is acquired by reason of
the convening anuthority referring the case to a specifiec court convened by
bim, It 1is usually accomplished by said authority referring to tha judge
advocate thereof the criginal of the charges and specifipaticns, inferming
him of the jurisdicticn ecnférred, and directing him to nctify the presi-
dent of the court and to inform the accused of the date set for his trial
and empowering him tc summon the necessary witnesses, Such action pre=
suppcses that the precept convening the ecurt has been issued, ctherwise
there would be np court or judge advocate, The precept is the order of
appointment of the members and judge advccate of a general court-martial
and is the only authority for them to act as such during the trial."

Now the authority to convene a military commission vests cnly in the
;11:&:?- :n;nnﬂu of an cocupied territory, See Seotion D-18, Appendix
] - - -

Section D=19 restriots the use of military courts to "the trial of
offenses in breach of the peace, in viclation of military orders or
r-gulnt::u:, ar otherwise in interference with the exercise cf military
authority.

- -
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On July 27, 1948 the Commonder Marianas Area, Rear Admiral C. A,
Pownall, U, S, Navy convened a military commission, Six officers only
mere ordered to compose this commission, any five of whom were empowered
to act, Of those six officers only throe did act in the case of KATSMI,
Selshi,

On Ogtober 18, 1948 the military commission and I quote from the
record of proceedings of the 13th day of the trial of KATSUMI, Seishi:
"The commission, having no more cases before it, adjourned to await the
action of the esonvening aunthority, "

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U, S, Navy was the only member of
the commission appointed by precept dated July 27, 1948 vhich tried
Enteumi, Seishi, That commissicn had no more cases before it on
October 1B, 1948,

But the present judge advocate says it mokes no difference all you
have to do is add a parngraph stating the contrary to be the fact and state
as autherity Section 542, note 13 of Naval Courts and Boards, We are of
the opinion that Section 542, Naval Courts and Boards does nct overrule
Section 345 or CMO 114-1918 nor does paragraph 3 of the precept serial
16462 dated 25 October 1948 leeally justify the legal requirement that
the precept must antedate the charge and specifications,

The specifications are founded upon the same incidents, and the
charge as set forth in the specifications are not the basis for a war
crime, The precept is dated after the charge is dated.

For the above reasons fully set forth we do object to the charge
and specifications dated 5 October 1948,

Paspeotiuily, 7

F _.' i
S Lt . aliian .

s , MARTIN E.
Commander, U, S, ﬁaml Reserve,
Counsel for the Accused,
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REPLY TO OBJECTIONS TO CHARGE AND SPECIFICATIONS

Delivered by
Liesutenant David Bolton, USN,
Judge Advoeata,

In view of *he fact thnt the judge advoeate did not receive the
argutent of defense counsel until eight o'clecek yeaterday evening, having
beern regelived for proscssing in our office along with seven additional
arg:ments in the late merning and afternoon of yesterday, the judge
adv-cate reques s the indulgence of the commission in regard to the
del.very of his reply as well as in regard to the cbvious inability at such
late date to check the citations of defense counsel and provide a broader
sooma of legal dccumentation which would perhaps be desirable, but is
cleu:'ly not necessary before this commission,

1, Te first crgument of I, Takano expresses the contention that there
are not two distinet reglecte of duty but merely one nerlect of duty and it
is therefore unjustified toc allege separate specifications covering such
neglect of duty,

The breach of duty to control and the breach of duty to protect may
oceur coincidentally and simnltanecusly, but they nevertheless constitute
dis inct and separate ~ffenz-3 in violation of the law and customs of war.
It nauy be that f'or clemency considerations, a convening authority or
reviewing authority may, when the circumstances justify, set aside ocne or
tuo or more offenses growing out of the seme transaction or series of trans-
actlons or events, but, a.uc-.h action cn the part of a convening authority is
an exercise of clemency, and not a recognition that only one offense was im
fact committed, Naval Courts and Boards provides in Section 23: "Different
of ‘'anses, ho-ever, if of the same nature, should be included in separate
sp-ifiecations under the same charge." The fact that the offenses are
different and distinect is clearly ascertained when we examine the nature
of the duty, whose breach is alleced to constitute a crime. The breach of
duty to ccntrol subordinates may well constitute an offense without regard
to whether or not priscners of war are in fanect injured, Such breach cf
duty to control may constitute a erime in violation of the law and
mrutml of war where the victims are civilian population and not priuouarﬁb
of war,

In additition it must be pointed cut that the nature of the duty to
control arises, even in its orystallized form under international treatdies,
from different sources than the duty to protect prisoners of war, The duty
tc control cne's subordinates is recognized in Article 1 of the Annex to
the Fourth Hague Convention wherein it is laid down as a copdition which an
armed force must fulfill in order to be aceorded the rights of a lawful
belligerent that it must be "commanded by a person responsible for his
subordinates.” (36 Stat, 2295) The nature and existence of this duty is
discussed briefly by the United States Supreme Court in the Yamashita case
(327 0,8, 1), The duty to protect prisoners of war and others is separate
and distinet, It is evidenced in crystallized treaty form and may be found
under two distinct and separate conventions, as well as under distinet
provisions where the duty to protect is provided for in the same convention
with a duty to comtrol., In Article 4 of the Annex to the Fourth Hague
Convention it is provided that prisoners of war must be humanely treated.

(uumuﬂnhﬁ,mmﬂmimuhthghmtlnhnf
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particularly against acts of violence, insults and nublie curiocsity.

Measires of reprisal against them are prohibited.” From the difference

in c-igin of the duty, from the difference in the mature cf the duty,

it is clear that a different offense results for a btreach of these duties

and it is alleged so epecifically in the specifications - specificntion 1

:;alixawith the duty to control and specification 2 dealing with the duty
protect.,

2. Defeanse coursel has contended that the offenses must arise from a
gpecific law or onstom of war which the judge advocate must set forth
clearly, ‘his hus boen done, as specification I clearly alleges Aisregard
and failure to control subordinates, and specification 2 specifically sets
forth the failure to protect prisoners of war, The law and customs of war
are not statutorr provisions and no greater specificity is required in the
churping of such offenses than is fully complied with in the charge and
specifications served upon te accused. I refer the commission to the
charge 1in the Yamakhita case :-hich was upheld upon appeal to the Supreme
Court of the United Statea and point out that no specific treaty or statutory
provision is alleged in that charge, nor was such allegation deemed mcaamﬂ
by the Supreme Court,

3. The third ground of objection by the accused counsel Mr, Takano is the
cocntention that subparagravh: (a) through (1) do not specifiecally allege
the vietims who were rosidents of the Caroline Islands, while the main bedy
of the specification does irclude reasidents of the Carocline Ialands,

It is the burden of the prosecution to prove the allegatiocns of the
initial paragraph, but that is a burden which the prosecutiom deces mot and
obviocusly cannot sustain prior to the actual submission of evidence, This i
o problem to be faced by the prosecution in its proof but not by its
ellegations, Failure to prove any part of the allegations in the specifi-
cations must result in a finding of not proved as repgards any such unproved
portion, but such failure of proof if it occurs, relates solely to the
decision of the commission and not to the technical correctness of the chargd
:txhnd sﬁuﬂ‘imtiunl. And it is the burden of the prosecution, ani not of

e ense,

The langunge with regard to residence and natiocnality is set forth in
the initial portion of the specification, and it was designed to adequately
provide for any poasible continpemcy of proof, and to allepe the facts
relating to the residence and nationality for its bearing on the question
of jurisdiction., Aa the commission ia undoubtedly aware there are certain
authorities who contend that it is necessary in order to establish a war
erime, that the vietims be of a nstionality or residents, of some country
other than Japan, The initial languyage of the first paragraph of the
specification is designed to set forth in general terms thia aspeet of the
nationdlity or residence of the victims of the alleged crime, This has been
dope and as I will show in subsequent citations of the Yamashita case, the
allegation in the initial paragraph completely satisfies the mecessary require
mént concerning allegation of residence or nationality of the wvictims,
Further particularity with regard to specific victims im specific incidents,

is not required in law,

zmna-rm-muppmmrm-

gation of ewvidence on which the initial paragraph

the subparagraphs of the is to set
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The functior in the specification is essentially
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It may be that the allegations in these subparagraphs go beyond the
necessary allegation, fcr it is probable that the vietims are sufficiently
ider.tified without allegation of their natiomality or residence, but if this
is so, it merely increases the burden of the prosecution but does not render
the specifications defective (Naval Courts and Boards, Seection 38 and Section
30), The ccnvening authority has apparently desired to give the accused as
much specifio-infornatich de rossible, regardless of the irreducible minimum
of allegation-which would be necessary for a valid specification,

In the subparagraph the attempt was made to set forth definite informatibn
with regard to rotionality or residence of the vietims concerned in such
incidents in order to better identify the victims and the incidents. In a
number of the sutparagraphs the incidents relate to cccurrences on Truk
Atoll which is in the Caroline Islands, ™ith resard to these incidents it
is v2leged in (b), (e), (d), and (e) that the victims were American
| prigoners of war, but there is no allegation of residence with regard to
| them, With regard to (f) it is alleged that the victims were residents of
Nauru Islend. The prosecution will endeavor to prove this, but it is
possible that the prosecution will not be able to prove that all of the
victims set forth in (f) were residents of Nauru, To provide for every
5 possible contingency of oroof that some of these victims were residents
of the place where the incicents occurred, the intial paragravh, which is
the only paragraph desirned to cover the jurisdictional requirements,
provides for this addit‘onal jurisdictional possibiltiy, by alleging that
certain victims were rcsidents of the Caroline Islands., As has been noted,
it is completely unnecessary for these subparasraphs to contain any |
allegation of residence or nationality and it is therefore obviously true
that it is not pecessary for such subparagraphs to specifically set forth
therein, the residence of the victims, I would like to point out the
lrastion of dual residence, which is one the commission is familiar with,

prosents interesting, difficult, and possibly applicable rroblems, but
that such considerations will Mecome significant only if and when there
ariges a failure on the part of the prosecution to establish the residency
llof any victims in the Carolines Islands.

The charge and specifications as set forth meets all the requirements
in content and form for proper specifications and in this regard I will
refer the commission to the charge in the Yamashita case and to the items
in the bill of particulars ~hich corresponds to the subparagraphsof the
instant specifications, The Supreme Court of the United States did not deem
lit necessary to allege any greater particularity with regard to nationality
or residence than which is set forth in the instial paragraph of the

pecifications in the instant ccse, On the contmary the items of the bill
e f particulars and the charge in the Yamashita case are much less definite
specific in this respect than those presented in HARA charge and
pecifications. The charge in the Yamashita case describes the victime as
of the United States and the Philippines", The items in the bill
particulars do not refer to either nationality or residence of the
tims, for example the fifth paragraph of the Bill of Particulrs recds:
5+ During November 1944, in northern Cebu Province, massacre, without
use or trial, cf mare than 1,000 unarmed non-combatant civilians", It is
that there is no allegation of whether these victims were Philippine
tives, or nationals of the United States, or residents of the Philippines,
mirwmmuutinth-mﬂimm-utmﬂnmdphunfm
ident,

From the foregoing it is apparent that the initial paragraph of the
tions which alleges the victims $0 have been American wrisoners
war'held captive by the armed forces of Japan, British nationals, a Chinese

vilian, and residents of the Caroline Islands, the Marshall Islands,
‘ -3 a(3)
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Nauru Island and Ocean Island is more than adequate to satiafy the
requirements of a proper charge and specifications, Questions with
regard to the adequacy of proof are not relevant nor is it necessary to

consider them further at this time.

4., The objection by Mr, Takano to the use in paragraphs (1), (3), and (k)
of specification 1 of the words "by aseaulting, strikine, wounding, and
killing" is apparently based upon unfamiliarity with standard forms of
alleging murder, I need merely to cite the gsapola mracifisabion for
murder, set forth in Naval Courts and Boards, Section 53, .to robut the
contention of the accused, The wording of this-sample specilicdtich
fnelodes tha words “assault,shcot at, and strike with a bullet fired by him"
Further to rebut this contention by the accused that the wordihg of these
subparagraphs is defective, I need merely to point out the fact which will
subsequently he established in proof, that these specific phrases in the
subparagraphs are identical with the language of the original charges and
specifications from the records of the cases upon which these incidents are
based, and that these records have been reviewed by hipher authorities,
including the Judge Advocate General of the Navy, without criticiesm of the
language to which the accused here cbjects.

5, With regard to the further objections by Commander Carlson, I will
merely confine myself to the briefest remarks,which are all that the sub=
stance of these objections justify, Counsel at great length ineists that
he knows no international law, which defines the duty of a commander in
chief of a fleet in regard to contrclling of his subordipates or protection
of priscnera of war, The very Yamashita case which defense counsel so
strongly cites, particularly with regard to the minority opinion,
recognized the application, and legality of the application, of command
responsibility as a duty in international law which carries with it the
burdens nnd penalties of criminal 1liability for its neglect or disregard,
The Supreme Court of the United States, Chief Justice Stcne in his cpinion
therein states that "the gist of the charge is an unlawful breach of duty
by petitioner as an army commander to control the operatiocns of the
membérs of his o~mmand by ‘permitting them to commit' the extensive and
widespread atrccities specified., The gquestion then is whether the law cf
war imposes on an army commander a duty to take such appropriate measures
as are within his pover to ¢ontrol the troops under his command for the
prevention of the specified acts which are viclationa of the law of war
and which are likely to attend the occupation of hostile territery by an
uncontrolled soldiery, and whether he may be charged with peracmal responai-
bility for his failure to take such measures when violations result, That
this was the precise issue to be tried was made clear by the statement of
the prosecution at the opening of the trial.

"It is evident that the conduct of military cperations by tyoope whose
excesses are unrestrainéd by the orders or efforts of their comsasder
would almost certainly result in violations which it is the purpose of
the law of war to prewent, Its purpose to protect civilian populaticns
and prisoners of war from brutality would largely be defeated if the
commander of an invading army could with impunity neglect to take reasop-
able measures for their mrotection, Hence the law of war presupposgs that
jts violation is to be avoided through the control of the operations of war
by commanders who are to some extent responsible for their subordinates."

mmrmuuuummm“muuwﬂ'
that the charge in the imstant gase adequately alleges o violation of fhe
law and customs of war,
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Defense counsel contends that a distinction must be drawn between the
Yamoshita case and the instant ocnse, because in the Yamashita case the
incilents occurred in an occupied country, It should be pointed ocut that
the lncidents which ocecurred on Ocean and Nauru Islands were incidents
which cceurred in an ococupied country, However, the essence of the
rebuttal of the line of reasoning which forms the basis of this contention
by defense counsel, is that such reasoning is unsound in faet and in law,

The nature of the duty under international law to control subordinatep
and to protect prisoners of war and others, is not limited to a duty to
protect such prisoners of war or control subordinates when one's armed
forces are in an occupied country, To establish this fact it is only
necessary to note the numerous war crimes casea which have tried and
punished the commission of atrocities and war crimes committed within
the prisoner of war camps and displaced persons camps in the country of
the acecused war criminal, There have been numerous cases tried in Germany
and similar cases tried in Japap, in which orimes committed within the
country of the accused have been punished as war crimes, The offenses
charged occurred within tha country of the accused and it should therefore
be clear that the point of alleged distinction between the Ynmashita case
and the instant case is not sound, even if Truk Atoll, ete., is to be
considered to have been Japanese territary rather than occupied territory
at the time of the incidents, It is unnecessary to point out therefore,
that considerable well grounded doubts must exist ns to such contention
that these islonds in the Carolines and Marshalls were Japanese territory,
They were mandated snd thus in fact were not integral portions of
Japanese territory but possessed a specifiec and distinet status in inter- |

nntional law,

6, Commander Carlscn's argument that the specifications are dupliocitous
has already been answered in answering the objections made by defense
counsel Mr, Takano, I cited Section 23, Naval Courts and Boards, which
deals with the fact that different offenses should be included under
separate specifications under the same charge if they are of the same
nature, and I have cited the authorities on international law to establish
that these are separate and distinct offenses. It should be noted in
passing, that the Office of the Judge Advocate General has not at any time
indicated in its review of cases dealing with similar charges of negloct
of duty to protect and neglect of duty to control, that such charges or
specifications were in fact duplicitous. The Judge Advocate General's
office has set aside specifications of this nature, although such offenses
under the duty to protect are separate and distinct from offenses under
the duty to control, on the ground that the offenses arose cut of the same
transaction, In the instant case the offenses are set forth in sevarate
specifications and this is all that is required in proper pleading, There
is no "eount" in naval law, for the purpose and fucntion of a specificat
is equivalent to that of a separate "count" as ordinarily prescribed in
procedure of civil eriminal courts,

7. Defense counsel in his capacity as a lexicographer as well as tha
of an Anglophobe has taken exception to the use of the

the spegifications, While it may be true that the term has been used or
omitted from some use rather loosely in recent times, the word neverthe-
less contains a definite and ific meaning, both in 1a
nMiumumh:EerpnMnuthMmum.
counsel had consulted Webster's New International Dictionary, Second
Edition, instead of the newspeper and magasine articles ﬂlﬂhlllhllﬂll&
he would have discovered that the definition of the word "British® inelud
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"of or pertaining to the people of the British Empire”, The term "British
pational" ia one that is in common use in international law and further
discussion of counsel's chjection would be frivolous.

8, Defense counsel as his final ground of objection contends that the
charge and specificatious are invalid because they were issued to a
nonexistent officer. Apparently defense ecounsel has not considered the
matter fully., The charge and especifications are duly addressed to the
judge advocates, Lieutenant David Bolton and Lieutenant James P. Kenny,
and the forwarding letter instructs the judge advocates that the case will
be tried before a military commission of which they are the judge advocates,
The military commission was then in existent., There was this existing
militory commission which was convened by precept dated 27 July 1948 and
in accordance with the letter addressed to the judge advocates this
commission was empowered to hear the charge and specifications in the
instant case. The fact that individual members of that commission were
from o time relieved and the fact that a new commission had subse-
quently, ted with specific authority to hear cases pending before the
previous commission, has no bearing upon the fact that the original char
and specifications was properly issued apd directed to an existing legal
body for trial, It ia_a well renognizcd fact that since the charge and
specifications was legally and properly issued, by the convening authori
such charge and specifications may properly be tried by a subsequent
commission duly authoriszed to try the charge and specifications, This wa
done in the instant case, the precept dated 25 October 1948, parae

graph 3 of which reads: "This military commission is hereby authorized
and directed to take up such cases, if any, as may be now pending before
the military commission of vhich Rear Admiral Arthur G, ROBINSON, U, S.
Navy, is president appointed by Commander Mariamas Area precept of

July 27, 1948, except cases the trial of which may have been commenced."
The trial of the instant case hnd not been commenced as of that date,
This commission convened by precept of 25 October 1948 therefore possesse
the authority to try cases pending the trial of which had not yet
commenced before the prior military commission referred to in the precept,

Defense counsel has apperently been unable to reconcile im his mind
the CMO's which he has cited with the pertinent portions of Naval Courts
and Boards, Section 542, footnote 13, which, specifically and definitely
sets forth the precedent for this commission in regard to the trial of
the instant case, Defense counsel's failure to reconcile them does not
mean that they cannot be reconciled in law and I believe that brief
consideration of this reply will enable him to resolve his difficulties.

There are no further arguments in defense counsel's objection which
merit comment,

The judge advocate respectfully requests the commission not to sustaip
the objections to the charge and specifications,

o Bollon

DAVID BOLTON,
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PIEA TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE MILITARY COMMISSION TO TRY
HARA, Chuichi, former VADM, IJN

Delivered by Counsel for the
Accused, HARA, Chuichi,

Mr, TAKANO, Junjiro
May it please the Commission:
The accused, HARA, Chuichi, enters this plea to the jurisdiction on

the ground that this Commission has no jurisdiction to try him on the
following grounds:

(1) The acoused, HARA, Chuichi, is charged in the Charge of this case
with having unlawfully disregarded and failed to discharge his duty
as Commander in Chief of the 4th Fleet during his tour of duty as
Commander in Chief of the said Fleet from February 23, 1944 to
September 2, 1945, Namely:

(a) In specification 1 it is alleged that he failed to discharge
his duty to control, as it was his duty to do, the operations of
members of his command and,

(b) in specification 2 it is alleged that he failed to take such
measures as were within his power and appropriate in the ciroum-
stances to protect, as it was his duty to do, American priscners

of war, held captive by the armed foreces of Japan under his cn-n.nd;

and subject to his control and supervision, and residents of
Nauru Island and Ocean Island,

and is thereby charged with violation of the law and customs of war.

e —— e s
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Vhen we refer to the precept addressed to this Military Commission |

we discover that it is authorised to try all erimes within the juris-
diction of Exceptional Military Courts, There is no doubt therefoye
that 4t is authorised to try war crimes,

There is however not a single provision in international law of the
past or in the law and customs of war of today which recognises the
fact that neglect of duty to control and supervise subordinates on
the part of a superior officer in the armed forces constitutes a war
crime,

However, as stated above, the accused, HARA, Chuichi, is charged
in this case with vioclation of the law and customs of war; in short
with neglect of duty as Commander in Chief of the 4th Fleet to control
and pupervise his subordinates,

Therefore this case lies yithout the jurisdiction of this
Military Commission,

(2) 1In raregreph 3 of the precept addressed to this Mili Commission
the persons against vwhom criminal offenses may be committed (for which
the Commission has jurisdiction to try the offenders) are saumerated
ap follows: United States nationals, persons referred to in the
Commander Marianas despatech cited in paragraph 1 above and white
persons whose natiomality has not prior to ordering of the trial been
established to the satisfaction of the convening authority.

-le-
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However in the present case, the persons against whom offenses
were allegedly committed inmclude, in specification 1, Nauru natives
(£), a Chinese national (h), Marshall Islands natives (i, j, k) and
British nationals (1), and in specification 2, Nauru natives (f), a
Chinese national (g), and British nationals (h). It goes without
saying that these nationals and natives cannot be considered as be- '
longing to the third category, let alone the first category of the l
divisions mentioned above., It remains to be seen whether they fall |
into the second category. However the defense has no means of
knowing what this second category is nor what nationals or natives are |
included in this category, The basie prineciple of penal laws and
regulations in regard to problems which embrace undecided issues or
doubtful points, is that these be interpreted in favor of the
accused, %hen we refer to this basic prineiple of penal laws and
regulations, it is to the interest of the accused that the above
mentioped nationals and natives of this present charge do not fall
into the above mentioned second eategory and to so interpret it would
conform to the same basic principle,

us t.hur accused maintains that the incidents of paragraph (f),
(n), '[1}. f (k:} and (1) of specification. 1 and the incidents of
£} (g) and (h) of specification 2 are without the juris=

dintinn of this Military Commission,

The prosecution may rebut by citing the last sentence from para-
graph 3 of the precept which reads: "Nothing herein limits the
Jurisdiction of the military commission as to persons and offenses
which may be otherwise ly established." However, it is not
clear (in this sentence) whether the versons here mentioned refer
to the perpetrators of the crimes or the victims or to both, In
eriminal cases the most important elements are the doers of the
erimes and the eriminal acts; in short the facts of the crime, The
victims of the crimes are elements of a secondary order, If such is
the case, then the purport of the precept which goes out of its way to
stipulate that nothing limits the jurisdiction of the military
commission must be that no limits will be placed on the most important
element of the orime, narely, the perpetrator of the crime, I maintain
that the persons referred tr.r in the last sentence mean the doers of
of the crimes and that the victims of the erimes are nct included
under this heading, There is no need to provide limits for elements
of secondary or lessor importance within those elements constituting
a ﬂ-ri";

In short, there is not a single provision in the law and customs of

war in the put. (up to the present) which sets forth that neglect of duty

of a Commander in Chief of the armed forcea such as the accused constitutes
a war orime, Hence this present case lies without the jurisdietion of this
Military Commigsion, Next, even -ming it puuuul th- jurisdiction,
according to the precept this Hﬂ.ﬂ'ﬂ'{ urisdiction to

try the incidents of mph- (), (n), {1} }1; (k} uu {13 of smeci-
fication 1 and the incidents of purngrnphl (r and (h) of specification 2,




' accordance with the policy of the United States.
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PLEA TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE MILITARY COMMISSION TO TRY
HARA, Chuichi, former Vice hdmiral, IJN

Delivered by

Mertin E, Carlsen,
Commander, USHR,
Defense Counsel, |

The accused Vice Ldmiral HARA, Chuichi objects to being tried by
this Military Commission and hereby entors this plea to the jurisdietien,

This plea to the jurisdiction is made on the grounds that he, H/RLA,
Chuichi, is not subjeet to the court's jurisdiction and that the offense
is not one cognisable by this Military Commission.

The nccused Vice Admirel HARL, Chuichi wae never regulerly demobilised,
or returned to Jopan aes was provided for by the Surrender terms end in

The precept for this Military Commission reads thot this commission
is ordered to convene "for triel of such persons as may be legally brought
before it." We maintain that HARA, Chuichi, the accused, is not legelly
brought here for trial. |

Vice Ldmiral HARL, Commander in Chief 4Lth Fleet and Lt.-Gen, WKUGIKURL
surrendered to the fmerican forces under commond of Vice Ldmire]l Murray on
September 2, 1945. L few days later Ldmiral H/RL was ordered to make
aveilable all Jopanesc Naval Forces on Truk to assist the Lmericans in the
construction of the U. 8. Naval Bose at Truk, Lt,.*Gen, MUGIKUR. represented
all the Japanese Military Forees on Truk until February 1946 when he peturned
to Japan, [dmiral H'RL then became tho senior Japanese Military Officer at
Truk and remeined on Truk until Lugust 1, 1946 when Ldmirel H/R.L was sent
to Guam. On Guam Ldmirel H/RL was placed in charge of the Japanese FOW
Comp ag the senior Japanesc Military Officer, acoting under orders issued
by Lmerican officer in charge of all Japanese FOW's on Guam.

On lugust 22, 1946 he was without any explapation, suddenly trans-
ferred to the War Criminal Stockade Guam ond placed in solitery confinement.
Vice Ldmirel HIRL, Chuichi, Imperial Japanese Navy, without any charges
being preferred against him, wae confined at the War Criminal Stockade,
Guam, on fugust 22, 1946, Ho was denied the benefit of counsel until after
he was served with the origimal charge and specifications on October 5, 1948,
more than two years after he was placed in solitary confinement.

Not until October 5, 1948, more than three yeors after he, ss the
ropresentative of Japan, surrendered Truk on September 2, 1945 to the
Loerican Nevel Forces under the command of Vice [dmirel Murray, U. 8. Navy,
and after more than two yeors since he was placed under arrest and in
solitary confinement at Guam, wos he told why he was being held under arrest
apd in solitary confinement, On October 5, 1948 he was for the first time
saxrvod with the charge and spevifications dated that same date. Then for
the first time he was told thot he would be given the benefit of counsel.

The ¢ and specifications are for neglect of duty as Commender in
Chidef of the Fleet, Imperial Nevy, during the from
Fabruary 23, 1944 to Beptember 2, 1945, in connection with ents
pocurring more than four ago., His triel is by a W14 Commission,
a court of limited j restricted to the trial of offenses
breach of the peace, in viclation of militery cxders or tions
otherwise in interference with the exercise of military ty.

T
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Eortiel law is not retrospective, This means that an offender
cannot be tried for a orime committed before mortial law was proflaimed, i
Our authority for this is found in Winthrop's "Military Law and Precodonts,
pege 837, wherein he cites footnote 95 Finleson, Coms. on Mer. law.,

Clode, M.L. 189, Thring, Crim., Law of Navy, 42-3, Wells on Jurisdiction
§77; 12 Opins., 4t, Gen,, 200; G.0. 26 of 1866; Do. 12 Dept. of the South
1868; Do, 9 first Mil. Dist, 1870 Digest 507. "Martial law is not
retrospeotive, &n offender cannot be tried for a crime committed before
martial law was proclaimed.” Pratt 216, {Ind see Jone 12. The jurisdicti
of such & tribunal is “determined and limited by the period (end territoria
extent) of the militery ocoupation," G.0. 125, Scoond Mil, Dist, 1867,

The jurisdiction of this Military Commission convened by Commander
Navel Forcee Marianas is limited by the period and territorisl extent of |
the Military Occupation of Dublon Island, Truk Atell by the Lmericen Naval
Forces, (Sec Winthrop, rgn 837, Ibid, and footnote 95). Japen was still |
in possession of -Dublen ¥sland, Truk itoll during the peried from Fobruary |
23, 1944 to September 2, 1945, so the offcnses charged were committed long |
before the United States Navy occupied these islands end atoll or declared |
mortial lew or military law on these islands. !

Viinthrop, "Military Law and Precodents," page 836, scts forth the rule
as to jurisdiction of a Militery Commission:

w Mil4 Commission, (except where otherwise suthorized
by statute) can legelly assume jurisdiction only of offenses
committed within the fleld of the command of the convening
commipnder. Thus a commission ordered by & commender oxercis-
ing military government by virtue of his occupation, by his
egymy, of territory of the enemy, cannot take cognisance of
en offense committed without such territory." Footnote (88)
eiting Finnlson, Repression of Riot and Rebellion, 106;
Fronklyn, Outlinecs of Mar, law; Pratt, 216; G.0, 125 Second
Mil, Dist., 1867; G.0, 20, 1847 (Cen, Scott).

The place must be the theatre of war or a place where mili-
tary government or martial law may be legally exercised,
otherwise a military commission (unless specifically om=
powered by statute) will have no jurisdiction of offenses
committed there, Footnote (89) citing Clode, M.L. 189."

Thus the United Statcs of Lmerica had no jurisdiction of or on
Dublon Island, Truk, on Jaluit, Nauwru, or Ocean Island February 23, 1944

tﬂ B‘-m 2’ 1“5!

Truk, Jaluit, Nauru and Ocean Islands were not within the field of
command of the convening authority of this Military Commission at any time
during the period from February 23, 1944 to September 2, 1945.

Weo call the commission's attention to peregraph 273 of the Rules of
Lend Warfore of the War Department of the United States, which provides:

"Being an incddent of war, military occupation confers upon the
force the right to exercise control for the peried
the
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So in the case of Dublon Island, Truk Atoll, Jaluit, Nauru and
Ogean Jeland, the military occupation of these islands by the United
States conferred only the right to exercise control during the neriocd of
occupation., The sovereignty of Japan over these islands was not trans-
ferred by the mere act of cecupation by the United States forces. Only
the authority to exercise some of the rights of sovereignty were, because
of the neceseity for maintaining law and order, indispensable to both the
inhabitants of these islands and to the cocupying force, the United States,
transferred to the United States.

The neceasity for maintaining law and order by the United States in
these islands only cormences on the date of ceccupation of these islands
by the United States, It doea not go back to March 10, 1944, or to February
23, 1944, or August 15, 1945, or to September 2, 1945. Between February 23,
1944 and September 2, 1945 Japan exercised sovereignty in these islands,
There was no relinquishment or transfer of power until after August 14, 1945,
yes, not until the date when United States Ferces ococupied these islands
when Admiral HARA and Lieutenant General MUGIKURA officially surrendered
Truk to the United States Naval Forces under Vice Admiral Murray on
September 2, 1945.

Even the exercise of a state's jurisdiction over its citizens 1s
strictly limited to territorial boundaries, Fenwick in his book, "Inter-
national Law," states the rule, and we quote:

"We have seen that a state may exercise personal jurisdiction over
its nationals for acts committed abroad and may make its juris-
dioction effective when such nationals return again within the juris-
diction of the state, Can a similar jurisdiction be exercised with
regard to an alien for gn act committed abread when such alien
happens to come subsequently within the territorinl jurisdiction of
the State? The question has given rise to much controversy. JAgts

of Lhe het directly %o the gtate or to itg cltizeps
may be I:ﬂmm'

The acts of the accused, an alien and a Japanese national was not
injurious to the United States, for the offense of neglect of duty
ted agoinst any of the viotime some Chinese, others natives of the

Japanese mandated islands, and others alleged to be British mationals named
in the specifications is not alleged to have been the proximate cause of the
injury complained of nor is it alleged the negligence was wilful, There can
be no jurisdiction therefore to punish the accused for the alleged offense of
neglect of duty against the victima; most of whom were British nationals,
Chinese, and native inhabitants of these Pacific Islanda,

There is no jurisdietion in this commission to try the accused, HARA,
Chuichi, for the alleged crime of neglect of duty and failure to protect

the victims because we in the United States follow the traditions of the
common law which holds that crimes must be tried at the place where committed
and since the offenses were committed outside the territorial boundaries of
the United States, they cannot be tried by this commission, ™e again cite
Fenwick, Ibdd, p., 2401

" .. 0reat Britain and the United States, following the traditions

of common law, hold that crimes must be tried at the place where

they ars committed and that their criminal courts have no juris-
8 .
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Lrticle 42, Section III, Military luthority over the territory of
the Hostile States, Annex to the Hoguc Comvention No. IV of 18 October

1907 provides:

"Territory is considered occupied when it is actually placed
under the authority of the hostile army. The occupotion ex-
tends only to the territory where such authority has been est-
ablished and con be exorcised.”

Thercfore, even the Hegue Convontion of October 1907 lays down the
principle that there is no jurisdiection until occcupation and since there
was no ocecupation until aftor Lugust 14, 1945 yes not until September 2,
1945, there was no jurisdiction from Februsry 23, 1944 to Beptember 2,
1945, ond there cannot, therefore, be any jurisdiction now,

So with the Rules of Land Warfare, Section 275 which lays down the
rule distinguishing between subjugetion ond conquest reads: "Military
eccupation in a foreign war, being based upon the fact of possession of
enemy torritory, necessarily implies that the sovereignty of the ooccupled
territory is not vested in tho occupying power. Tho occupation is
essentially provisiomal,

On the other hond, subjugation or conquest implies a transfer of
sovereignty, Ordiparily, however, such tronafer is effected by & treaty
of peace, When sovereignty passes, military occupation as such must of
course fcase; slthough the territory mey, and usually does for a peried
at least continue to be governed through militery agencies which have
such powers as the President or Congress may prescribe.®

Eugene Borel, the Arbitrater in the Ottoman Debt., Lrbitration ||
(Rackworth, Vol, VI, Ibid, poge 3687) held: "that mere military occupation
did not operate oe & transfer of sovereignty.®™

The case of Alexandre Kemeny, C'Etat Serve-croato-slovene held thet
an armistice agroement did not heve thoe effect of transferring sovereignty.
(VIII receuil dee decisions des Tribumaux Arbitreux Mixtes 588; Annual
Digest, 1927-28, Case No. 374). (See Hackworth Ibid, Vol. VI, page 387).

In tho case of Naoum et sutree o, Min., Public et Colonde de |
1'Africque occidentale frencalse the French court of Causation, Criminal
Chembers in 1919 held: "That Territory under military occupation cannot
be held to be part of the Netional Territory.® Lnmual Digest, 1910-22,
Case No, 312; Casette du Palais, 1920, 162, (See Hackworth, Ibid, Vel.

VI, page 388).

In a case decided November 17, 1924, the German Reichsgerricht held
valid a marriage contracted by a German subject, a member of the army of
occupntion in Russian Poland in 1917. "The German subject had petitioned
for a declaration that the marriage was mull, since it had not been
ooncluded in accordance with Germen law. The court stated that the
ocoupled territory was to be regarded ns foreign territory where German
marriage law did not apply.® (See Hackworth, Ibid, Vol. VI, page 388).

G_Hum‘mt in his exercise of military government
over Truk, Jaluit, Nawru and Ocean Island legally bring to trial before
this commission, HLRL, Chuichi, In footnote 95 on page 837 of Winthrop,
Ibid, we read the rule of law: "Martial law is not ve, An
of fander cannot be tried for a crime committed before law was
proclaimed.” Pratt 216, And see Jones 12, The jurisdiction of such a
tribunal is “determined and limited by the period (and territorial extent)
of the military occupation." G.0, 125, Second Mil, Dist. 1867,
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And Fiptrhop lays down the rule: "Thus, a military commander, in
the exercise of military government over enemy's territory oeccupied by his
army, cannot, with vhatever good intentions, legally brinmg to trial before
military commissions ordered by him, offenders whose crimes were committed

prior to the ocgupation," (Winthrop, Ibid. page 837).

Commander Naval Forces Mariaonns cannot legally therefore assume juris-
diction hecause these islands were not within the field of command of the
uamnniing‘nuthnrity at the time the offenses were comm'‘tted, The mrecept,
serial 62, dated 25 October 1948, states: "Pursuant to the authority
veated in me by virtue of my office ns the Commander Naval Forces, Marianans
and further by the specific authority vested in me by the Commander im Chief|
Pacific and U, S, Pacific Fleet, and High Commissioner of the Trust Territory
of the Pacific Islands (CinC U,S, PacFlt serial 0558 of 8 Mar, '46;
ComMarianas desp, 292336Z Sept. '47; CinCPacFlt Deap, 020103Z Oct, '47;
Seclav Desp, 0819462 Oct, '47; CinCPacFlt Desp, 0923532 Oct, '47; CinOPac
and CinCPacFlt 1tr., dtd, 1 Aug. 1948, CinCPac serial 2955 and CinOPacFlt
Sérdial 3490)." The specifications of the charge allege the neglect of duty
was committed dyring the period from Pebruary 23, 1944 to September 2, 1945,
During this periocd Commander Naval Forces Marianas did not have jurisdiction
of these islands either as the Commander Naval Forces Marianas or by specifiq

anthority.

The precept further states: ",.,.by the specific authority vested in
me¢ by the Commander in Chief Pacific and U, S, Pacific Fleet and High
Commissioner of the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands (CinC U.S, Pae,
Flt. seriel 0558 of 8 Mar, '46,...)" But the serial 0558 is
dated B March 1946 and the offenses were commit from February 23, 1944 to
September 2, 1945. Thus neither by virtue of his office or by authority of
the gonfidential serial 0558 dated 8 March 1946 did the Commander Naval
Forces Marianas have authority to assume jurisdiction of these islands durd
the period from February 23, 1944 to September 2, 1945. Neither did Command
in Chief Pacific and United States Pacific Fleet legally have jurisdiction
of these islands during this porioed, The use of classified dispatches as a
reference in the precept of 25 October 1948 is highly irregular and we refer
the commission to the rulings of CMO's 317-1917, p. 3; 133-1920, p,135 2-1917;
15=1916, p. 3. This precept states the commission will eonvene at 10
o'clock a.m,, on Monday, October 25, 1948, The precept was not even signed
at 10 a.m,, on Monday, October 25, 1948,

The Commander Naval Forces Marianns is no longer the civil adminds-
trator of these islands and therefore has no authority as the civil adminis-
trator of these islands. The enforcement of law and order on Truk, Jaluit,
Nauru or Ocean Islands is the responsibility of the civil administrator or
gomecne glges and not Commander Naval Forces Marianas,

Laet the judge advocate show the jurisdiction of Commander Naval Forces
Marianas over Ocean Island and over Nauru Island, This is not an inter
national tribunal but a Navy convened military commission, There can be no
authority over islands like Nauru and Ocean Ialands,

I quote from 36 American Jurisprudence, "Military" section 98, page
252, which reads as follows: "It is provided by statute that at the time
of arrest the person acecused must be furnished with a true of the eharges
801, 25 Sup. Ct. 489; Bishop v, U,S, 197, U.S, 3%, 49 L, ed, 780, 25 S,
D}"ﬂl Vs m' 20 How {“-B-} 65. 15 L, ed, mql ;

The commission can have mo jurisdiction of HARA, Chuichi, former-wice
admiral, IJN, for the crimes of negligence committed on these islamiy-of

Jaluit, Ocean and Nauru during the perdod from February 23, 194 to
September 2, 1945,
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l According to C.M.0, 15-1917, p. 9, "The authority to convene the
above mentioned exceptional military courts vests only in the military

i compander or military governcr of an occupled territory, and all such

!|' courts may be ordered only in the nome of such commander or Governor,...

|| Insofar as practicable, the employment of exceptional military courts

| should, as a general rule, be restricted to the trial of offenses in
breach of the peace, in vioclation of military orders or regulations, or
otherwise in inteference with the exercise of military authority,”

If we follow C.M.0, orders for the low on military commissions con=
veped by the Navy, rather than to ex post facto rules promulgnted by
|| SCAP on December 5, 1945, addressed to Commander in Chief, United States
Army Forces Pacific, Commanding General, Sixth Army, Commanding General,
Eighth Army, and Commanding General XXIV Corps, this commission has no
jurisdiection to try the accused HAHA, Chuichi,

The charge, dated 5 October 1948 from Commander Naval Forces

Marianas, under which Vice Admiral HARA is being tried does not allege
| that he either committed or directed the commission of the acts, or
| that he had knowledge of the acts, and consequently no violation is
i charped agnlnst him, The siat of the charge against Admiral HARA is an |
unlawful breach of duty, a criminal neglsct of duty, as Commander of the
| Fourth Fleet, IJN, but neither wilful neglect is charped nor is knowledge

charged, In specification 1 it is alleged he failed tc contrel certain
persons permitting them to torture and kill not only American POW's but |
British nationals, Chinese and native inhabitants, In specification 2
it i1s alleged he failed to take such measures ns were appropriate to |
protect nct only American POW's but British nations, Chinese and natives
of these Paecific Ocean Islandas,

We hold that this commission has no authority to try the accused,
Vice Admiral HARA, the Commander inm Chief of the Fourth Fleet, Imperial
Jopanese Navy, for criminal neglect of duty, particularly as set forth
in nrcﬂimtﬁm 1 (f), (g), (h), (1), (3), (k), and (1) and specification
2 (), (g), and (h).

! We-also maintain that the offense of neglect of duty particularly as ]
| set forth in specification 1 (f), (g), (h), (1), (3), (), and (1) and
specification 2(f), (g), and (h) alleged in the charge is one not cosnizable
|'hr this commissei. i,

|i Since there are no common law offenses against the United States, the

'| orime of neglect of duty must be statutory erime, In 1§ American Juris-

|1 prudence, "Criminal Law," Section 15, p., 766, the rule is clear and

| uncontradicted: ",.,it is now well settled that except as to treason which

| 48 defined by the Federal Constitution, there are no common-law offenses
against the United States (13)," Citing Donnelly v. United States, 276 U,S.

‘f 505, 72 L,ed. 676, 48 8, Ct, 400; United States v, Gradwell, 243 U,.8, 476,

!Iﬁl L.ed, 857, 37 8, Ct, 407, Annotation: Ann, Cas, 1918 A 991,

I "In order that an act be prosecu... is a crime in the courts of the

United States, statutory authority therefore must exist.” (Citing 144

(u.8, 677, 36 L. ed, 581, 13 S, Ct, 764; United States v, Brewster, 139
U.S. 20, 35 L. ed, 190, 11 S, Ot, 538).

"The courts of the United States in determing what constitutes an
offense against the United States must resort to the statutes of the
United States enacted in pursuance of the Constitution.” Re Kolloek,
165 U,8, 526, 41 L, ed, 813, 17 8, Ct. 444,

o
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"The courts have no right to treat an act done within a state as a
against the United States unless Congress has dedlared it to be
citing United States v, Reese, 92 U,5, 214 23 L, ed, 563."

If it is o statutory offense, that former Vice Admiral HARA is charged
with haviog violated, what 1s the statute and does the statute define it as
a misdemeancr or a felony? What punishment does the statute provide and
\what eourts have cognisnnece of the offense? Doea the statute provide that
|a Navy Military Commission has jurisdiction over offenses committed on Truk,
|iJu1uit, Nauru, and Ocean Islands, particularly against British nationmals,
|Chinese and native inhabitants of these Pacific Ocean Islands?

1 We hcld that the neglect of duty charced is no crime because knowledne
'iu not charged neither is it charged the accused wilfully and kncwingly

I naFlichd his duty.

In 14 imerican Jurisprudence, "Criminal Law," Section 14, page 764,
we find the rule that "In some states no act is to be regarded as a
ljorime unless it is sc declared by statute."
79 Fla., 651; Soper v, State, 169 Ind, 177; Steward v, Jessup, 51 Tod,
413; Btate v, Campbell 217 Iowa 848; State v, Koontz, 124 Kansas 216;
State v. Shaw, 79 Kan, 296; Kennan v, State, 86 Neb, 2343 People v,
Lewis, 260 N.Y, 171, 183 N.E, 353, 86 A.I R 1001, write of certiorari
denied in 289 U.S. ’?09, 77 L, ed, 1464, 53 S, Ct, 786; People v, Knavo
1226 N,Y. 373, 99 N.E. 841 inn. Cas. 1914 B. 243; Toledo Disposal Co. v.
State, 89 Ohio St. 59; State v. Ayers 49 Ohio 61; Ex parte Lincenfelter,
|64 Tex, Crim, Rep, 30, 142, S.C. 55, Ann, Cas, 1914 C, 765; Annotation:

m- Cas, 1913 E, 1252; m Cas, 1913 A, ﬁ.

!l.tnla

of Oklahoma,"
707, 45 IRA (N.S.) 153,

At common law one perscon has no legal duty to protect another perscn
sa there is a duty to aot, Clark’ and Marshall, A Treatise on The Law

of Crimes, 4th Edition, Sec. 262, pp. 332-333 says this:

In this some footnote wo find the rule:

"Fhat is known as the higher law has no place in the jurisprudence
Lickfield v. State, 8 Okla, Crim Rep. 164, 126 P,

"(e) ZIhere must be s Duty to ggt.--To render one

reaponaible for a homicide beecause of mere non-
feasance, he must have omitted scme legal duty
which he owed to deceased, Failuwre to perform
acts cf mercy or mere moral cbligantions is not
enough.” (Citing Wharton Crim. Law, para. 329,
330; State v, Reitse, 86 N,J, 407, 92 Atl, 576
Burrellv, State, 18 Tex., 713; Comnoughty v.
State, 1 Tise, 159, 60 am. Dee. 370,
stranger %o neglect to give warning sc

prevent a collisicn between railroad t-r"

or to prevent a man from taoking polson, op
foilure to rescue o drowning person, io '
MulMﬁiMﬂlﬂMnﬂnhhMl&
of manslanghter, for he is only under a moral
obligation tc interfere in such cases and the
law does nct undertake to for mnﬂ.

owing to the EM. (Citing the
s ¥, hiﬂl, 11 Cex C.C, ml Rex v, mﬁ.
2 « & P. 449,

o=

Citing Bradley v. State,
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"Encmledes <f Facte Glving Rige Lo Duty.--It is
alsoc necessary, in cases of thls character, that

the accused shall have known of the facts making
it his duty to act, for a man cannot be snid to
neglect to perform a duty unless he knows of the
condition of things which requires performance at
his hands, (Citing the cases of State v. Smith,
65 Me, 257; TMestrup v. Com, 123 Ky, 95, 93 S.W.
&6’ m H Iﬂﬁ R’.‘p- 5‘19', 6 L-Hq'rli (H!sl} ﬂﬁj

124 Am, St. Rep. 316."

The offense charged is criminnl neglect of duty in violation of the
law and customs of war, Clark and Marshall have this to say about the
Jurisdiction of federal courts on common law jurisdiction in ecriminal
;| Iﬂ.ttﬂr!. -Sﬂctiﬂh m’ p- ﬂsl

i "In this country, as we have seen, the federal
]I courts have no common law jurisdiction in
eriminal matters, They can punish no act
i until Congress has made it a crime, affixed
| the punishment, and conferred upon them
i jurisdiction of the offense. (Citing Section
| 12 b, wherein is cited the case of U.S. v.
Hudson, 7 Cranch (U.S.) 32, 3 L. ed. 259;
U.S. v. Eaton, 144 U.S, 677, 36 L, ed, 591,
12 S. Ct, 764,) Tithout this, therefore,
they could not punish offensea againat the
law of nations.,"

|

|

[

I And what does the state of New York say about this question of

| beglect of duty? This same footnote (2) seta forth the New York rule
| of law:
|

|

|

i

|

|

"Under the New York Penal Law a bare neglect
of a legal duty is not a crime unleas a
statute so prescribes, as there is no common
law erimes in the state," (Citing People v.
Knapp, 206 N,Y, 373, 99 N.E, 841, Ann, Cas,
1914 B, 243.)

What does intarretional law have to say about neglect of duty?

Thnghtutt-hiahnrgninthﬂlmluummunmmfm
of duty by YAMASHITA as an army commander. Mr, Justice Stone in the
majority opimion said:

II "The question then is whether the law of war
imposes on an army commander a duty to take
such appropriate measures as are within his
power to oontrol the troops under his command
for the prevention of the specified acts which
are viclations of the law of war and which are
likely to attend the occupation of hcetile
territory by an uncontrolled soldiery, and
whether he may be charged with persomal res-
ponsibility for his failure to take such
measures when violations result,”

-8
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In his dissenting opinion Mr, Justice Rutledge said:

"lnd in thet state of things petitioner N
hns been convicted of a crime in which
knowledge is an essential eldment."

We see how different is the YLMLSHITL conse. Thot cose wos the case
of an ormy commander who had taken hostile territory and wos the militery
governor of the Philippines, "Bllls of particulers, filed by the prose-
cution by order of the commission, allege a series of feacts, one hundred
and twenty-three in number, committed by members of the forces under
petiticner's command, during the period mentioned. The first item speci-
fies the execution of '# deliberate plan and purpose to massacre and ox-
terminnte a large part of the civilien population of Batangas Province,
and to devastate and destroy public, private and roligious property thereins,
ag a result of which more than 25,000 men, women and children, all unsrmed
noncombatant eivilians, were brutally mistreated and killed, without cause
or trinl, end entire settlements werc devastated and deetroyed wentonly
and without militory necessity.' Othor items specify acts of violence,
cruelty and homicide inflicted upon the eivilian population and prisoners
of war, acts of wholescle pillage and the wanton destruction of religious
monuments,® /Lpplication of Yamashita, 66 8. Ct. 340 at 7.

The specifications in this HLRL caso are altogethor different from
those in the YLMLSHIT. case, HLRL wns defending Japanese territory from
the invading Lmerican forces until hie Emperor ordered him to surrender
he held Truk egainst the invading [mericens. He could not, however, leave
Truk because the Lmerican forces controlled the nir and the sea and in
effect Ldmiral HLRL wae priscner on Truk long before the surrender.

The Japanese Navy Department hed ordered responsible mavy officers
to command the navy guerd units, They were responsible for their acts.

Vice Ldmirel HLRL, however, 1s not responsible for the scts of these
gunrd unit commonders because they werc derelict in their duty.

This YLMLSHIT. cose, when brought to the Supreme Court of the United
Stotes, was not upheld by all the Supreme Court justioces.

Mr, Justice Rutledge dissented cond said of the YLNLSHITL case:

"Much less have we condemned one for failing to
toke action, I have not been able to find pre-
codont for the proceodings in the system of any
nation founded on the basic prineiples of our
Constitutiopal domocracy, in the law of war or
in other intermationally binding authority or
usage."

Mr, Justice Murphy of the United States Supreme¢ Court in his dis=
senting opinion said:

"International law mokos no attempt to define the
dutieas of a conmander of an army under constont
and overwhelming assault; nor does it impose
liability under such circumstences for failure #o
meet the ordinary responsibilities of commapd, The
omission is understandable, Duties, as well aw
ability to control troops, vory according to the
pature and intensity of the particular battle. To
find on unlowful deviation from duty under battle
conditiong requires diffioult and speculative
oaloulations,

.
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"Such calculations are usually highly untrust-
worthy when they are mn'e by the victor in
relation to the actions of a vanquished commander;
objective and realistic ncrms of conduct are then
extremely unlikely to be used in forming a judgment
as to deviations from duty. Tha probability that
vengeance will form the major part of the victors'
Judgment 18 an anfortanate but umescapable fact,
So preat is the probability that international law
refused to reccgnize such a judyment as a basis
for a war crime, however fair the judgment may be
in a particular instanece, It is this consideration
that undermines the charge against the petiticner
in this case. The indictment permits, indeed
compels, the military commission of a vietcrious
nation tc sit in judement upon the military strategy
and actions of the defeated enemy and tc use its
conclusions to determine the eriminal 1fability of
an enemy commander, Life and liberty are made to
depend upon the blased will of the vietor rather
than upon objective standards of conduct,”

It isn't enough to simply refer to a confidential dispatch in the
precept and allege that by reason of that comfidential dispatch this

military commission does have jurisdicticn,

order to prove the charge and specifications for the judge advoeate to

(| introduce a certified copy of the charge and specifications,
| uj‘lm’. P 13 and C.M.0, 15"‘1916, Pe- 3]:

The accused, HARA, Chuichi, therefore prays of judgment of the charge
and specifications and prays that the charge and specifications be quashed,

7&1:;%11}, f/,ﬂ?
' C e
o w.n/r%, e

It is equally as proper in
See C.M.0,

Commander, U, S, Naval Reserve,

Defense Counsel,




o
-
t®

—

" REPLY T0 THE FLEA T0 THE JURISDICTION DELIVERED BY LIEUTENANT DAVID
BOLTON, U, S. NAVY, JUDGE ADVOCATE.

1, The erxux of the accused's plea to jurisdiction, as ably presented by
defense counsel Mr, Takano and Commander Carlson, is the contention that
I there are no common law offenses against the Unit.d States, and that while
1 war crimes can be “ried by military commission, the offense of neglect of
duty to control subordinates, set forth in the specification;, does not

constitute a war crime.

The fact that military commissions possess jurisdietion to try
offenses in violation of the law and customs of war is so fundamental that
it merits no comment or citation., Defense counsel Commaonder Carlson who hag
cited somewhat misleading snatches from the Yamashita decision, fajls to

point out the fact that the charge inst YAMASHITA was that "while
cormander of armed forees of Japan at war with the United States of Amarieca

and its allies, unlawfully disregarded and falled to discharge his duty as
|| commander to control the operations of the members of his command, pemitti:?g
them to commit brutal atrocities and other high crimes ngainst people of
the United States and of its allies and dependencles, particularly in the
Philippines; and ho,.,thereby vioclated the laws of wor." He fails to point
out the fact that the majority opinion of the Supreme Court of the United .
States clearly recognises the walidity of the charge, as well as the
jurisdict’sn of the military commission to try the accused for the offenses
charged. The Court stated "It is plain that the charge on which petitioner
was tried charged him with a breach of his duty to control the operations
of members of his command, by permitting them to commit the specified
atrocities. This was enough to requirc the commission to hear evidence
tending to establish the culpeble failure of petitioner to perform the duty
imposed on by the law of war and to pass upon its sufficlency to
establish ® And fn, 4 thereof reads: "...the charge sufficiently
states a violaflon against the law of war, and that the commission, upon
the facte » could find petitioner guilty of such a violation,
Il While the ageused contends the facts of the YAMASHITA caspe diffor fron
the facts in the instant s his argument relates to the sufficliency of
the evidence and not to the question of juriediction, Criminal neglect of
duty is a question of faet dependent upon all the relevant circumstances,
So~called "knowledge", "wilfulness," "scienter," "oriminal intent," are not
al elements to the charge of such an offense. This appears clearly
the fundamental approach of the U, 8. Supreme Court in the Yamashita
cage. Vhile the language from the opinion of Mr. Justiee Rutledge cited
by defense evidences a belief that knowledge is an essential element of the |
, 1t must be clearly understood that this opinion was a dissenting
n. It was rejected by the majority of the U. 3. Supreme Court, and
d not reflect the prevailing law, Since the majority decision of the
|| U. S. Supreme Court is so clearly in point, it is unnecessary to cite the
l numerous decisions regarding oriminal neglect of duty, vhich unquestionably
reject the concept of knowledge or intent as & necessary element of such
erine. The commission is fomiliar with the concept of neglect of duty in
military law == for examplo the neglect of duty charge and specifications
1 and 2 set forth in Haval Courts ~nd Boards, Section 105. These
fications do not allege any elemen knowledge or intent, Civil
law avplies the sane standards. The iaws of negligent homicdde is
apalagous, Knowledge is not necessary,.to constitute a eriminal homieide
but knowledge of the danger may econvert rhat would otherwise be
into murder (Com. v, Pierce, 138 Mass, 165, 180. Michael & Welhslew,
37 Col, L. Rev, 722) and similarly a wilfid omission of duty may convery
the lesser to a greater crime, Ameriean Jurisprudence 294, states ",,.
where death ensues in consequence of a wilful omission of duty, it is sasid
to comstitute murderj; and where it ensues in consequence of a negligent
omission of a duty, it is ani” *» he manslaughter.®
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There is no need to eite further law on this subject. The deeision
of the U, 8. Supreme Court in the Yamashita case clearly establishes the

o tion oF The Ein and custons of wir as Choreed Tn'the Tistont Supet” *
which follows the fundamental language previcusly eited from the Yamashita
charges and the Yamashita decision by the U, S, Supreme Court above,

The offenses charged ngainst the accused do not constitute an ex post
facto application of eriminal law, The duty to control subordinates end to
protect prigponers of war has been recognised for literally hundreds of yonr:t
In more recent times this duty has been affirmed and specifically erystalli
{n treaty form in tho Fourth Hague Convention (1907) and the later Geneva
Prisoners of Tar Convention (1929). Criminal responsibility of an individual
for wviolation of international law is similarly of long standing and as far
back ns 1784 it was recognized and applied in the United States in the famous
case of Respublien v. De Longchanps 1 Dall, 110 (Pa. 1784). The opinion of
the United States Supreme Court in the Yamashita case (327 U. 8. 1) is

directly in point,

The remaining grounds of apccused's plea to the jurisdiction, as argued
by bhis counsel are of secondary importance, but some of them merit brief
comment.,

2, Defense counsel Commander Carlson contends that the accused ie not
legally before this commission as he was not served with the charge and
spocifications until a substantial period ef time after his confinement,
It is not my purpose to disc+ss the necessity or justification for coom-
timued confinement of the accused during the interval between his arrest
and the preferring of the charge and specifications in the instant case,
This question is immaterial to the issues before the commission, as it
doee not in any manner affect the jurisdiction of this commission to try
the accused for the offenses with which he has been charged. The accused
was legelly arrested and confined as a war crimes suspect. He was con-
fined in Guam pending further investigation and subsequent trial as & war
eriminal, It is unfortunate that the accused has been confined for & con-
siderable periocd of time during which time certain of his suhordinatos and
his predecessor in office as Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, were
investigated and tried as war crimes suspects, But this faét does not negatq
or jeopardisze the legitimate jurisdiction of this commission to try th;n
w

agcused for the offenscs charged. The accused has failed to cite m:zi
which supporte his baro contention that the length of the period of his con-

finement in any menner affects the jurisdiection of this commission to try
the accused.

3. Defenso counsel Commander Carlson has expended much time and effort in
considering questions dealing with jurisdiction of a military court under

international law and the law of military nc:uE:inn. He hnlfmt::aﬁ:d that

d f c tion o ands
:ﬁ: m Eﬁmdt:m ﬂo‘ﬁutﬁ“ﬂ Ega ': oﬁmu ware committed
that no jurisdiction exists to try the nccused with regard to such orimes,
He sjmilarly contends "Martial law is not retrospective. An offender canmot
be tried for an crime committed before martial law wae proclaimed,”

Counsel's argument is erudite but confusing and inapplicable, The
martial law and law of oceccupancy cited by the accused relates to
local or domestic law, The accused is not charged with violation of such
law, He is specificnlly charged with wiolation of the law and customs of
war and the material oited by accused with regard to martial law is therefore|
inapplicable, Even as it relates to crimes against local law
of defense counsel is faulty in substance for it has beem held
commigsions sitting in this very area and approved the Judge
General of the United States Navy in the FURUKI and onses
hdvance C.M.0, 6-1948, that crimes agninst existing loeal law committed
prior to occupation may be tried by military commissions of the occugying
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In regard to ctimes in violation of the law and customs of war, it is
well established that traditional concepts of territorial jurisdiction ape
not appliecablo. Far oriminnls have been tried and convicted, by military
commissions and international tribunals, for war orimes committed within
thelr own cpuntry as well as erimes committed in occcupied neutral or enemy
territory. The cases are toc legion to warrant emumecration. The very matune
and essonce of war orimes is such that the vast majority of them cecur at
the time nnd in places * hore the forces committing the war crime are in
control, It is clear therefore why jurisdiction of such wor orimes, such
internntional offenses, does not rest upon territorial control over the plades
and at the time when the offmnses cecurred. MNote that jurisdiction over
offensea charged in violation of the law and customs of war is not even
limited to offenses rising during the course of the war for, as evidenced by
SCAP Regulations Governing the Trials of fAccused Tar Criminals AG 000.5
(5 December 1945) 2 (b) "The offenses need not have been committed after a
particular date to render the responsible party or parties subject to u.rrutr
but in general should have been committed since or in the pericd immediately
preceding the Mukden Inocident of Scptember 18, 1931."

| 4e Defense counsel, by reference to the precept, contend that the comm=
isaion is not authorised by that precept to try tho accused for the offenses
sharged, particularly with regard to certoin incidents involving victime

othar than American prisoncrs of war,

For reference to deteiled speecific authority set forth in the despatchep
referred to in the precept, the Commission has ample opportunity to exnmine
these dispatches. They alsoc have been available and examined by defense
counsel, Commander Carlson. The dispatches are clear and they set forth
specific authority with regard to the incidents set forth in the charge.

In reference to the comment by dofense counsel in regard to the classified
mature of these dispatches, such comment is highly out of place and
irrelevant to the question of juriediction, The court martial orders cited
by defense counsel relate to the use in evidence of classified matter and
do not relate to refercnce citation of classified matter in precepte or

other fundamental documenta,

The precept specifically refers to CincPac sand CincPacFlt ltr. dtd.
1 August 1948, CinCPac Serial 2955 and CinCPacFlt Serial 3490. The Judge

Advocote wishes to specifically bring to the Commission's attention the third
paragraph of this unclassified letter which reads "Nothing in this letter
limits the inherent nuthority of a military commander to convene military

commissions."

This sentence is significant for it evidences the intent not to eurb or
1imit the inherent authority of the Commander Naval Forces, Marianas, with
regard to war crimes matters,

This brings us to the broad authority which is iteelf set forth in
the precept. The first sentence of paragraph 4 reads *The military comm=
ission shall be competent to try all offenses within the jurisdiction of
exceptionnl military courts, including...". And this is followed by an en-
uneration of certain offenses. But note that the language of this precept
roads "all offensed™ and that the emmeration of specifie offenses is

ceded by the word "including" and not by the words "limited to®., The
mcwanmﬂm clearly intonded as & broad and complete graht of authorityl.
and the emmeration was one of inclusion and not designed as & limitation or
exclusion of authority. The faot that this was intended a full and com=
plete grant of authority to try "all offenses within the sdiction of
exceptional military eourts” is olso unequivocally proved

ggt

of this same paragraph of the precept, which _reads "Nothing herein limits
the jurisdiction of the Military Commission ns to persons and offonses which
noy be otherwise properly ostablished,® Despite the contemtion by Mr, Takeno|
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that otimes committed against Nauruan matives, Marshall Island natives,

a Chinese notional or British nationals must be excluded from the war
erimes which tho commisaion is authorized to consider, mothing im the
precept of this commission limits their jurisdiction in this manmer, Aside
from the dispatches vrhich give specific authority in this regard, the
Commission as I have pointed out has full authority to ™ry ell offenses
within the jurisdiction of exeeptional military courts®, and nothing in
the precept "limits the jurisdietion of the Military Commission as to
persons and offenses which may be otherwise properly established."

To determine tho extent a{duﬂsdlutmn of this Coomission, we must
therefore excmine the fundnmen law of jurisdiction with regard to
nilitary cormissions. It is well estahblished, and defense counsel, Mr,
Takaono recogniges the foet, that o military commission has jurisdiction to
try war crimes and necused war eriminals., (In Re Yamashita 327 U.S, 1).

Tar erimes jurisdiction is not basod upon jurisdiction over tho place
vhere offenses were cormitted, or limited toc juriediction of offenscs

committed against the nationals of the forces by which the accused is
tried, Tar crimes ore international crimes in the sense that they are
erines against all civilized nations. In this respect war crimoe are like
the erime of piracy and the war eriminal like the pirate, as expressed by
Grotius (1583-1645) De Juro Belli aec Paeis, vol. 2 eap. 20, sec. 40 is
"hostis humani generis," and as such he is justiciable by ony state amywhere,

Hackworth, International Law Vol. 2, p. 187,

Ls early as 1612, Grotius stated: "The fact must also be recognizmed
that kings, and thoso who possess rights equal to those kings, have the
right of demanding punishment not only on account of injuries committed
agninst themselves or their subjects, but also on account of injuries which
do not directly affect them but exceseively violate the law of mature or of
nations in reg-rd to any person whatsoever."” Grotius, De Jure Belli Ac Pacis

Tres (1612) Carnegie Trans, 1925, p. 504.

Sinilarlys

Theaton in his Elements of Intermational Law, 6th Ed,, Vol, I, (1929),
p. 269, declores that the judicinl process of every independent stato
extends to the punishment of "offenses ngninst the common law of nations,
by whomsoover and wheresoever committed," Hall in his Treatise on
International Law (8th Ed,, (1924), Sec. 135) states that a belligerent
possesses "the right of punishing persons who have vioclated the laws of war
if they nfterward fall into his hands." Oppenheim says, "the right of the
belligorent to punish, during the war, such war erimjmals as fall imfo his
hands is a well-recognised prineiple of international law. It is a right of
vhich he may effectively avail himsclf after he had oecupied all or part of
anemy territory and is thus in the position to seisc war crimimals vho hm
to be there." {a’mﬁm, International Lm‘-', 6th Ha,- Rﬂ"'” Vol. n' m.

Soc. 257 ﬂj .

The opinions of leading jurists in this regard, cited above, clearly and
unequivocally reflect the prevailing vier on this subject. /n intoresting
application of the prineciples involved herein is found in the Judge Ldvocate
General's Opinion, Memorandum for the Joint Intelligence Committoe, The Jointl
Chlefs of Staff, file: SPJGT 1943/17671, subjeet: "Jurisdiction to Punish
Tear Criminals," dated 13 December 1943s

"In October of 1943, shortly after the capture by ‘mericam troops of
the torm of Calasso on the Volturno River, in Italy, some Germrn troops
fighting there executed without trial 23 Italian eivilians whom

acousad of alding che American troops, The killing tock place on




some day that the Badoglio government danhraduurnnﬂmwandan
which it was recognised as n co-belligerent of the Unit-ad Nations, The

Goermons responsible for the executions were subseque
the Americans. In an exhaustive consideration of the Iﬂ.g:nﬂa nndtqnl

pertaining to the occurrence, the Julige 'dvocate General of the United
States Army concluded as follows:

"a. The putting to death by German troops without trial of twonty-
E::aolt:%inn civilinns at Caiazzo constituted an offense against the

"b, The United States Army, by military commission, and the
Italian govermment,... by whatever tribunal its laws provide, have
concurrent jurisdietion to punish those committing the sbove offense,

"c. Thether the accused shall be tried by o military commission
of the United States or by an Italian tribunal is a question of policy."

This opinion clearly coincides with the accepted view presented by the
Judge advocate that a military commission of the United States armed forces
hag jurisdiction to try for crimes in violation of the law ~nd custons of
war, rogardless of where the ckime was committed, and regardless of who the
victins of such crime were. In the instant cose we have alleged crimes
committed Ly Japarnese armed forces against Nauruan natives, British naotionw-

Pridoners of wor and btucre. The oPRonsts charsod BPs 1R A% S

the law and custonms of wor and the commission by virtue ot its broad auth-
ority as a military commission, and the suthority specifically delegated to
itin the precept, has elear Jurimdietinn over the accused for his nag].act.

of duty with regard to the ineidents charged.

Le Grotius and Theaton have said, euch jurisdiction extends to those
offensea vhich "violate the law of nn{ura or of natirns in regard to any
person whatsoover;® to "offenses oganinst tho common law of nations, by
whomsoever and wheresocever committed,”

The judge advocate respectfully requosts that the plea to the

jurisdiction be dendied,
R Rden

DAVID BOLTON.
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FLEL IN BAR OF TRILL
of
l = HiRL, Chuichi, Vice Ldmirel, IJN, a Japanese nrisoner of
' i Delivered by war
Commander Martin E. Carlson, USNR.
lay it plensc the commiasion:

“ The accused, Vice (dmiral HLRL, Chuichi, a Japanese prisoner of war,

makes $his plea in bar of trial on the grounds of the stetute of limita-
tions,

The offense, criminal ncgleoet of duty, is alleged to have been .
cormitted during the period from 23 February 1944 to 2 September 1945. I
The charge and spocifications are dated 5 October 1948, 4t least three :
yonrs ofter the alleged offenses were committed and in several instonces
more than four yerrs after the offensc is alleged to have been committed.

lppendix B, Naval Courts and Boards, fLrticles for she Government of
the Havy, hes this to say regarding the laws govorning administrotion
of justice in the Navy: ‘

"The Articles for the Goverpment of the Navy,

laws: governing the administration of justice in the Navy arc ¢
of in seotion 1200, titlc 34 of the United States Code under the
title of 'irticlos for the Government of the Navy',"

A Codifigation,

"On Jupe 30, 1926, Congress enacted the Code of Iams of the United
States of Lmerica, referred to as the U. . Code omd edted as 'U.5.C.°'
&: present gode is the 193, edition of the United tes Code and 18

of fieial rostotement in eonvenient form of the general gnd perma-
nent laws of the United States in force January 3, 1935, It is
composed of 50 titles, Title 34 contains the lawe relating to the
Navy end seoction 1200 of that title contains the Articles of the
Government of the Nevy., In enacting the U.S. Code, Congress did not
cbnot any new laws, nor wos eny lew repesled. To provide for any
errors thet might be made enacting clausc contains the following:

'The metter set forth in the code....shall establish prim
faocle the laws of the United States, general and permanent in
their neture, in forece....; but nothing in this act shall be construed
I as repealing or amending any such law, or as enacting as new low any

. _ contained in the code, In case of any inconsistency arising
omission or otherwise between the provisions of any section
| code and the corresponding portion of legislation heretofore .
ons effeot shall be given for all purposes vhatsoever to such
epactments. '

. "M code 1a presused to he Ahg lov. .| - ;‘
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for such trinl or punishment, unless by reeson of hoving sbsented
himaclf or of some other manifest impediment he shnll not have been
amennble to justice within that period (R.S. sec. 1624, Art. 61;
Feb, !5. 1995, S HBI 28 Stet, m] .

This we mointain is the statute of limitations which is applicable in
this pregent case,

It isn't cnough for the prosecution to say that this only releates to
i triole by court martial and it is therefore not applicnble to offenses
! triable before exceptional military courts, We cnll the commission's
1l attention to Scetion D=12, Lppendix D of Nawnl Courts and Boards wherein
| 1t 48 explained thet exceptionnl military courts are employed by the Nawval
establishment in order to oxereise the power conferred upon it whon its
duty is such as to place under it a wider jurisdiction. Ln exceptionsl
militery court such as this military commission is charged with the adaine-

correspond to a iauml court martial both as to its constitution and ns to
itp proceedings.

Bection 33 Neval Courte and Boards cnumerates the persons subject to
the naval jurisdiction of the United 8tatca., It specifically mentions
prisoners of war stating: "Under the lave of wor and the priwisions of
the Geneva (Prisoncrs of Wer) Convontion of 1929, prisoners of war are
subject to the jurisdiction of a naval court martial, We believe this is
in accordance with Lirtiecle 45 Gonova Prisoners of War Convention of 1929.%

'l Seetion D-15 reads: ", military commission should, in general,

Clearly, therefore the accused, HLRL, Chuichi, Vice Ldmiral, IJN, vwho
surrendered on September 2, 1945 ond immediatoly became prisoner of war,
benefits of Article 61 and other articles for the government of the Navy.
fdmira) H/RL wos an enemy combaotant, during which time Ldmiral HLRL was
kept in the status of a prisoner of war. Then on Luguat 22, 1945 Ldmiral
HiRL wes thrown into solitary confinement at the stockade here on Guam,
For more than two yecars Ldmiral HLRL, a prisoner of war was kept in solitary
confinement without any charges being preferred against him. We refor the
Commission to Lrticles 5, 6, 49 and 54 of the Geneva Prisoners of Fer
Convention, These articles were all violated in the case of lddmiral HIRL,
a prisoner of war,

Notwithstanding his long confincment and the faet that Ldmiral HLRL
has mgwer been repatriated as have all other Japanese prisoners of war who
werc captured or surrondered to the United States, the judge advocate sayse
thet the law imposes no limitation on the length of time the United States
Ravy #en hold a prisoner of war or imposes a limitation on the offense,
The Yamashita cose Generesl Tomoyuki Yamoshita, an enomy combatant surrendored
to the U. 5. Lrmy at Baguio Luson on September 3, 1945. He immediately
became & prisoner of war., On September 25, 1945, approximately three weecks
after surrendering, General Yamashita was served with the charge, Jn-this
case of /dmiral HLRL approximetely & year elapsed,

Section 582 of the Criminal Code atthi United Stoges sets p three
year limitation on criminal offenses.

s ﬂﬂaﬁ:ﬁ jriﬂmé;ud;u Mrﬁ BE:I:H Codg ::d Criminal Code and
riminal ure, . 8 pereoh prosecuted
or shed for offense, not capital, except as provided 1lfl1=l:=t
ﬂ&ﬁﬂ:,&nhMﬂiﬂ,uﬁiﬂﬂM *
m‘ﬂmm-mm-ﬂ-rmmm
tted." (R.8, mlﬂ&‘ﬂmn, 1876, ¢ %, 19 ety “}
124, pp 1, 42 Stat .
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Even under this secction the offenscs which HLRL, Chuiehi, a prisoner
i of war is being tried for are barred by this Statute of Limitations,

The specifications do not allege a capital offonse, The commission
is only authorized to impose lawful punishment (see para. 5 of prececpt).
| Thoe death sentence is cleorly not a lawful punishment for an alleged
|| offense of neglect of duty. [dmiral HARL, Chuichi, the nccused, is not
charged with perscnally poarticipating in the acte of atrocity or with
ordering or condoning their commission,

. The case of U.S. v White (GC Dist, Col 1836) Fed Case Nos 16675,
| 16676, holds, "The statute of limitations runs in faver of an offender,

(See 138 USC Lnnotated, Title 18 Criminal Code and Criminel Procedure,)

The eriminnl charge in this ense wos not made until the formal writ-
| ten neeusation woe made on 5 October 1948 of the charge and speeifiecantions

| dated 5 October 1948.

|
i "In the cyes of the law a person is charged with crime only when he
| 18 called upon in o legel proceceding to answer to such a charge, Mere

| investigation by prosccution officers or even inquiry end ccnsideration
by examination magistrates of the propriety of instituting a prosecution
|| do not of themselves creste a criminal charge, Citing U.S5. v Patterson,
| 150 U.S8. &5, 37 LEd 999, 14 S.Ct. 20." 14 imerican Jurisprudence Criminal
.| lav, See, 7, page 758.)

I

This statute of limitation is regarded with faver by the courts and it
is the consensus of thc authoritics that the defense of the statute of
| 1imitations stends on the same plene as any other legal defense," (oiting
‘ Wheeler v. Castor 11 N.D. 347, 92 N.W. 381, 61 L.R.L. 620) "and is one to
which, in proper eircumstanccs, all men are cntitled as a right. (eiting
| &naconda Min, Co, v Saile, 16 Mont. 8, 39 P, 909, 50 LmStRep 472; Carter v
| Collins, 174 Okla 4, 50 P, (2d) 203, 34 Am.Jur, Linmitation of Lctions
| See. 12, p. 23 also states: "The Defense is not technieal (citing U.S. v
| Oregon Lumber Co, 260 U.S. 290, 67 LEd 261, 43 S.Ct. 100) but is deomed to
be legitimate (citing O'Malley v, Sims, 51 Aris, 155, 75 P. (2d) 50, 115
LIR 634) substantial, and meritoriocus,® (Citing Cusranty Trust Co, v
| U.8., 304 U.S. 126, 82 L.E4, 122/, 58 5.Ct. 785 end many more cases,

: In 15 im. Jur, Criminal Law Scction 342, page 32 it is stated:

"Etatutes of limitetion in criminal cases differ from those in ecivil casee.
In eivil casce they are statutes of repose, while in eriminsl cases they
create a bar to the prosccution (citing State v Steensland 33 Idaho 529,
195 P 1080, 13 LIR 1442; Pecple ex rel Reibman v Warden, 242 Lpp. Div, 282,
| 275 NYS 59 eciting RCL.)"

L judgment for the defendant on a plea of the statute is necessarily
an aequittal of the charge, and not & mere cbatement of the metdon, There~
fore it hns been universally classed as & plea in bar and not in abotement
(citing U.S. v Oppenheimer 242 U.S. 85, 61 L,E4, 161, 37 SCt 68, 3 LIR 516;
| U.5. v Barber, 219 U.S. 72, 55 LEd 99, 31 8Ct 209, 15 im. Jur. Criminal
| law, pp 342, p. 32.

Since we have ralsed the issue of the statute of limitations in this
cage it is incumbent upon the judge advocate to affirmatively prove the
comedseion of the offenses charged within the stotutory period. We eite
from 15 &im, Jur, "Crimipal Law" seotion 343, pege 32: "Where the issue of
the statute of limitations is raised, the state must affirmatively prove
the conmiseion of the offensc within the statutory pericd." In many
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| elthough it was not known that he was the person who committed the offensc.”
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juriedictions, if the state relies upon en exception to remove the bar of
the statute, it is incumbent upon the stote to prove the exception.

The oasc of Hegoboom v State, 120 Neb. 525, 234 NW 422, 79 LIR 1171
holde that statutes of limitation as applied to eriminel procedure, erc to
be liberally construed in favor of the defendant,

Therton says this same thing in speeking obout statutes of limitotion
in eriminnl cases as being differenct than in eivil eascs. Yot we know thot
evion g pommon JlOoW plooa o t g :

mmmm_nmimm.
Seetion 2, pogo 14.

But let us hear what Whorton says. In Wharton's "Criminal Proecdure,
Volume I, segtion 376, is hendoed: ™ .

Etotute of limitetions constructdon to
P.IIMMBL" On poge 45 we rend this regnrding such statutcs
o eriminnl ecosce:

"But it is otherwise whon a statute of limitation is gronted by
the state. Herc the state is the grantor, surrendering by act of
grace its rights to prosccute, and declaring the offense to be no
i longer the subjoct of prosecution. The statute is not a statute of
process, to be seantily ond grudgingly applicd, but an amnesty,
decloring thet after o certain time oblivion shall be cast over the
| offenso; thot the offender shall be at liberty to return to his coun-
| try, and resume his immunitics ns a citisen; and that from henceforth
| he mny conse to preserve the proofs of his innocence, for the proofs
| of his guilt arc blotted out, Hence it is that statutes of limitation
| are to be liberally construed in fevor of the defendant, not only
| because such liberality of construction belongs to all acts of amnesty
' and grace, but because the very existence of tho statute is e recog-
nition and notification by the legislature of the feet thot time,
while it gradually weors out proofs of innocence, hos assigned it ond
positive periods in vhich it destreys proof of guilty. (2)"

Footnote (2): "™This is well exhibited in o fomous metaphor by Lord

l Flupkett of which it is said by Lord Broughman (Works, ete. Edinb.

| ed, of 1872, IV 341) thet 'It cannot be too much admired for the
perfoot appropriateness of the figure, its striking end completo

I resemblance as well as its raising before us an imnge previously

|

I

The 3 o7 O . Brg Wi
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Lm.,Jur, "Limitotion of Aetions",

éaé 34

famdliar to the mind in all particulars, except 1ts connection with
the subject for which it is so unexpeotellly but meturally intreduced,"
'"Time' o runs thls celebrated passage, 'with his scythe iIn his hnnd,
is over mowing down the evidence of title; wherefore the wisdom of

| the law plants in his other hand the hour glass, by which he metes
out the periods of that possession thot shall supply the place of the
muniments his seythe has destroyed."

In other worde, the defense of tho stotute of limitations 1s one not
mercly of technical process, to be grudgingly applied, but of right and wise
renson, and therefore, to be gonerously disponsed. The same thought is to
be found in onother great orator, Demosthones, pro Fhorm, ed. Reiski, p.952,

Indopendently of these viows, It must be remembored that delay in
instituting prosecutions is not conly productive of expense to the Stote,
t of peril te puoblie justico in the sttenuntion and distortion even by
re prtural lapse of memory, of testimony, It is the policy of the law
het prosecutions should be prompt, and thot stotutes enforeing such
tude should be vigorously maintrined. They nre not merely octs of
ce but checks imposed by the Ststo upon itself, to cxmet vigilant
ctivity from 4ts subalterns, and to secure for criminal trials the best
ence thnt can be obtained,

-‘_—




In U.S5. Code /innotated Title 18 Sec 582, page 138 in note 6, the case
of U.8. v Watkins (cc Dist. Col, 1829) Fed, Case No. 16649 is cited and
the rule soct forth:

*The time of finding the indictment will appear by the caption,
ond, where it appoars therefrom thot the offense was committed beyond
the time limited, judgment will be rendered for defendent.™

Vice Admiral HiRL became o priscner of war when he surrendered on {
September 2, 1945. He should hnve been treated ns n prisoner of war,
Instend, he vas inecarcerated in the Guam Stockade on 22 lLugust 1946 without
warrent eof arrest or charges being preferred ogeinst him, He has been and
is atill held there in solitary confinement. This violatea .rtiele 54 of
the Geneva Friscnors of War Convention.

For more than tsro yonrs the prosecution have held ldmiral HLRG in
solitnry confinement end without benefit of counsel. Now the prosecution
come before this court and ask that you deny the accused /dmiral H.RL the
benefit of the statute of limitotions because thoy have delayed for no good
renson instituting this trial. They know full well that the long delay in |
instituting this trial is not only productive of expense to United States |
Government but thet it is & peril tc public justice in the attenuation ond
distortion by notural lepee of memory of testimony they will introduce,
The prosecution ask thot you approve their oction in keeping ldmiral HLRL,
a prisoner of war, in solitery confinement herc on Guam for more thon two
yenra without preferring charges against him or giving him the benefit of
counsel vwhereas "The rule nov prevails in most if not nll the States thri
an nccused 1s cntitled, as & matter of constitutional right, to the servicep
of counsel upon his prolimincry examinntion™ from 14 lLmerican Jurisprudence,
Cum Supp Criminal Law Sec, 167 ndd new par p 884.

Lnd "It is provided by statute thet et the time of arrest the person
accused must be furnished with a truc copy of the charge with the specificos
tions.* 36 Lm.Jur.Militery, scetion 98, Citing United States v Smith, 197
US 386, 49 LE4 801, 25 5.Ct. 489 and other casecs,

The stotute of limitotions has run in this instence bocouse the
prosecution deliberately rofrained from bring the nccused, ldmiral HIRL, a
prisoner of war to triel. We ask that the law be applied, the statute of
lirdtations,

The Federal case of U.S. v Watkins (CC Dist Col 1829) Fed Cans, No,
16649 held "The time of finding the indietment will appear by the caption
ond vhere it appears thorefrom that the offense was committed beyond the
time limited, judgmont will be rendered for the defendnnt.®

The accused, Vice Admiral HLRL, Chuichi, a prisoncr of war, pleades the
stotutca of limitotions as a bar to his trial for the alleged offcnsca
conmitted during the pericd from February 23, 1944 to Scptember 2, 1945 ond
chorged under date of October 5, 1948,

The nocused Vice Ldmiral HLRA, Chuichi prays of judgment of the charge
and specifications and prays thet the charge and specifications be queshed.

Resp ’ -
et St |
7
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REPLY TO THE PLEA IN BLR
Delivered by

lieut, David Bolton, USN
Judge Advocate

The prosecution strongly denies the ill-considered statements by
defense counsel that the prosecution has "deliberately refroined® from
bringing the accused to trial, and that tho prosecution is ssking the
comimission to "deny the accused, Admiral Hara, the benefit of the statute
of limitations because they have delayed for no good reason instituting
this triel." These innunendos in the defense argument are malicious. !
Defense counsel 1s fully aware of the nature and extent of many of the |
sound reesons ond unevoidable problems which have necessiteted expenditure
of time in bringing accused war criminols to trial,

|

The mecused is not the only Japancse war eriminal tried by U. S.
Mlitary Commissions for rcspansibility for somc of the brutel, unforgivably
bestinl war crimes committed during the course of the recent war.

At the eonclusion of the war, the United Stotes /Armed Forces were
foced with difficult ond detailed investigation and subsequent triel of o
staggering nunber of war orimes. Rorely, if over, hos such a stupendous
tosk becn encountored by the armed forecs of any country; end never haa more
of fort been expcnded to assurc a just, feir, ond edequate trial for ecach
accused, The number of qunlified porsons available to corry out this task
hes been limited, ond they have all eorried a full work loed., I con speak
with particulor assurance with regord to the nrvy tricls held in this oreca
where I hoeve served for morce than twenty months, During this time the
verious commissions of which Reer Admiral Robinson hos been President, heve
sat in continuous deily seesion ollowing only the bricfest adjournmonts, and
only where absclutely csscntial to complote elericel werk, or to afford
defenec counsel and somotimes prosecution nocessery time to obtnin cesential
evidence to complcte necossary orgumcnts,

Vast numbers of suspoctod war erimes werce investigrted in this arca,
Of thecse approximotely 108 persons were tricd in some twenty cesce. The
defense counscl is awarc of thesc triels hoving scrved here as defonse
counsel throughout this time, He ies elso awore of the limits to which such
cormiseions have gone to cssurc the necused in thesc cascs o full rnd feir
trinl with cvery rcasonsble epportunity for prescntation of his defensc.’ Th
mnjority of sueh cascs-have required moro thon a month for triel, and meny
have required aix to cight wecks., It ie poseible thet by limiting the proof
or arguments, including the nurbrous objections and arguments of defense,
such trirls could have been speeded up and perhops completed in considernbly
less time, But our crmed forcos, and our conecepts of justice do not pernit
bamboo courts or star chamber prosecutions, Nor do we stress speed rt the
expense of legitimetc protection of the asccused, I for one, even if defensc
counsel does not agree with me, believe that a delay coused by offering nn
accuscd every legitimatc opportunity for o full tricl end feir defonse,is o
"good renson® for crusing deley in the commeneing of subsequent triels,

L™

The insteont cese of the noccused, HERA, Chuichi, is one of the cnsee
which has been delayed because of the trial of prior ceses, including the
trisl of certoin of his subordinates ond his prodecessor ss Commander in
Chiéf of tho 4th Flect. The accusod HLRA is not entitled to cny special
considerotions, nor has he been subjoctod to any diseriminntion. The sccused
is chorged with responsibility for numerous incidents committed by his
subordinates. It wre therefore ncoessory and proper to completo the trinl
of persons eccused of committing such incidents, prior to trinl of the
acoused for neglect od duty im pormitting such incidents to oeccur,
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It has perhaps been unnecessary to burden the commission at this
time with the recital of some of the mony reasons with which I realize
they erc fully conversant as to why the sccused and a few other wer
eriminals remain who have not yet boen tried, However I deemed it nocessary {
t to go on record in strong denunciation of the innunendo in defense counsecl's
argument, thet the prosecution has deliberotely delayed proceedings againat
this or any other accused wor eriminols, This innmunendo is fnlse. And
other innunendos ond statements of counsel in his ples are equally ground-
less.

His continued reference to solitery confinement is misleeding, The
accused has been confined like nll other accused vwar criminnls in close
confinement ond custody. The experience of prison and stockade authorities
with sulcidos ond attempted sulcides by wor criminels hos necessiteted and
justified such close confinement, The prisoncrs have scperate cells, but
they onjoy periods of group recrection and oxercise., They are permitted to
write and communicate with their fomilies, :

==

Defense counsel's argument thot accused was denied counsel until
served with cherges and specifications is flso mislending. The sccused has
not been denied counscl, To'the best of my knowledge ond belief, vhich
extends over twenty months of my duty herc, ho has never requested counsel,
and cleorly thereforc hes not been denied counsel. It is certainly true
that we have never assigned counsel for him, but in the ebsence of his
request this docs not constitute a deninl of counsel. The seme procedure
is well recognized in our customory civil eriminal courts cnd naval courts,
Yhile ae defencze counscl points out in our civil courts it is held thet on
preliminery exanination accused is entitled to counsel = this merely meong
| thot he should not be donicd counsel if he desires and requests ecounsel, -

The prelirinary exominotion referred to is o formal judicial judieial pro-
A || ecess, There is no similor stoge in the procedurc which was estoblished
| for comnitment of war criminals. And it is my belicf thot such o procedure |
{| would not only have immcesurebly delayed, but in fact would hove mrde
i iﬁtpouihlu, the edministration of the entirce progrom of war crimee prose~
cution,

' Vith reference to the preliminary exarination in civil eriminel

| courts, it must be noted thot many, if not most, of such courts do not

| nssign counscl ot this stage. Counscl is ossigned when the sccused is

| brought before the court for trisl after he has becn indicted or formolly
| charged with the erime. In war crimes procedure the accused is assipnod
| counsel from the time he receives charges cnd specifications.

The procedurc with regerd to war crimes is similor to our procedurc

| under neval lav with regerd to our own personnel. Even when on accused

.| nevel person is brought before coptain's mast he is not assigned counscl
end moy be subsequently eonfincd pending issunnce of chorges and specifi-
cotions, It is not until after chargee and specifications ore served thot
the nccused is ordinsrily mssigned counsel to prepere his defense, This is
the oxnet procedurc followed with the accused in the instont crse, ond
nothipg hercin adversely affeccts thc osscntinl logal rights of the accused,
or supports his plea in bar of triel.

The relevant arguments of defensc counsel in this plea in bar of
trinl are twofold. He argucs cxistence of a stotuto of limitations on two
basce: the first of thesec ie Article 61 of the Articles for the Government
of the Navy which, with exceptions, provides a two yoar stetute of limita-
tions; ond the esecond of which is Scetion 582 of the U.S8. Code which provides
a three year statute of limitotions, Noither of these statutory provisions
is eppliceble, Article 61 reeds in pert:
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Government of the Nevy arc equolly inaprlicable to tho cecused, Hors, for

—
Cy
¢

PNo person shall be tried by court martial,...for any offense...,
committed more than two yoers before the issuing of the order for such
trial,.." By its specific terms therefore this statutory limitation relateq
only to trials by court martial, and is not applicable to offenses triable
before exceptional militery courts such ns the instant military commission,
The distinction between r navel court mertis]l and an exceptional militory
court such as the instant military commission is specificrlly noted in
N.C.&B. Appendix D-12, Article 61, since it relntes to trinl by court
martinl, is limited thereforc to porsons and offenses triable by court
martial. In generel the porsons so trieble nre membors of the navel forecs,
personne] accompanying the Navy, spics, prisoners of var, ete., as sot
forth in N.C.&B. Scc. 333. The eccuscd docs not foll within any of those
cateporics ond is theroforc not entitled to the benefits of Article 61
or othor Articles for the Government of tho Navy,

Counscl for theo accused contends thrt the accusced nppears before this
conrission as a prisoner of wer. Counsel is in error. The sccuaed is
appearing before this commission me an accusced war criminmal, Counscl for
the &censed hes obscrved thot nccused has been in the var criminal stockade
for n long period of time that he 'ns confined as & wer criminnl suspeet, |
rnd elerrly the charge and spocifications against the accused leaves no |
room for doubt thot he appears before this commission in the stotus of a
war eriminal suspeet, and not es a prisoncr of wer.

Defense counscl on page 2 of his ergunmcnt hne stated thot in the
Yamnshite casc, Yamoshite surrondered rnd immedintely “became a prisoncr of
war," only 23 days after that hc wos sorvod with cherges. The accuscd
Yamashita cloimed he was o prisoner of war nnd cntitled to specinl protee-
tion under provisions of the Geneva Convontion. The prosecutor in thet
ense expressly claimed thet the nccused, Yomashito, apreared bofore the
commission es an accused wer oriminal end not as n prisoner of wer., In
substence the Suprome court adopted this view and hcld that the langunge
“prisoner of war® in refercncc to riphts end bencfits conferred on on
nccused, related only to perscns belng tried as prisonecrs of war for
offenscs comritted vhile nrisoncre of var,

The Genevn Priscners of Vinr Convention does not npply to prisoncrs of
vwar vho are tried for offenses committod prior to becoming a prisoncr of war,
ks Yomnshite wos being tried for offenses committed prior to the time he
beceme n prisoner of war, he ves held not entitled by lew to such privileges|

Similorly in thc instent case the nccuscd is being tried beforc this
commission o8 a var criminn]l for offensecs committed prior to his confine=
ment, rnd not for offenscs cormitted while » prisoner of wor., The neeused
therefore is not entitled to spoeinl benofits or privileges conforred by
nationnl or internetional low upon prisoners of wer. He is not entitled to
trirl by court mertinl, under Articlc 333 Naval Courts nnd Berrds which
rofers to the Geneva Prisoners of Far Convention, nnd is similarly not
entitled to the benefit of the stetute of limitations spplienble to navnl
courts martirl, Article 61 of the Lrticles for the Government of the Navy
is not oppliccble to the accusad,

In this regrrd I rgein refor the commission to the deeision in the
Ynmashite crsc in which thev considored rn nrgument by Yrmashita thot cortain
Lrticles of ''er were rpplicable in his ensc boeruse he was a prisoncr of
war, But the Supremc Court detormined thot these Artieles of Far werc not
applienhle to neccuscd wor eriminels, Similarly the articles for the

sipilnr reasons.
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The second stetute arguced by defeonse counsel ns pertinent is equelly
inapplicable., Counscl cites 18 U,S5.C, 582. This provision is clenrly {
t limited to noncapitrl cnscs, It does not cpply to cases where the death
penalty is authorized. Secetion 582 reads in part: "No person shall bo
prosecuted, tricd, or punished for any offense, not eapitel,..unless...
indidtnent ie found,,..vwithin three years,.."

The accuscd contonds thnt the specifications in the instant case
do not allege ¢ capitnl offensc, thnt the commission is only authorized
to impose lawful punishment, snd thet the donth sentence is clearly not a
lawful punishment for an plleged offense of neglect of duty. The accused 18
in error, The denth sentence is cuthorized, and vas in fmet pronounced and
excceuted in the Ynmnshitn Cnse. It is clenrly cetnblished thot military
commissions in the trial of wor crimes cnscs, are authorized to impose the
capiterl scntonce for thoe erime this accused is chargod with, The imposing
of the derth sentenco is specificnlly authorized in paragraph 5 of the
preeept of this commission. 8&cc Navel Courts and Boards, Lppendix D=15.
fLs I have previously pointed out, Section 582 of 18 U.S.C. 1s complctely
inapplicable to offenses vhore cnpital punishment is nuthorized, It
ii should bo noted thot 18 U.S5.C. 58la spocificnlly provides that "an indiot-
| ment for any offensc punisheble by deeth may be found ot eny time vithout
| rogerd to eny statute of limitations,"

' With rogard to the field of wor orimes, there is no applieable
stetute of limitations, The consistont undevinting 1line of precodent in
decisitns of militory commissions in this ond other militery rreas, deny-
ing the plea of stetute of limitations in bar of triesl, is adequate con-
firmntion of the law in regard to this question. Similarly, note the
"Regulatione Governing the Trials of Accused Var Criminals,” SCAP 4G
000.5 (5 Dec. 1945) 2. b (2), which roads: "“The offensc need not heve |
| been committed after o perticular drte to render the responsible party or
partics subjoet to arrest, but in goneral should have been committed since
or in the poriod immedintely preceding the Mukden incident of Septemhor
18, 1931." Since these repulations authorize arrest and obviously prosccu-
tion for offensce committod immedimtoly proceding the Mukden ineident of
Sgptember 18, 1931, it is apparent that no statute of limitations cxists
which would bar prosecution of this mccused or in any mnnner support his
plea in bar of trisl with regard to the instont offenses,

;I The judge advocate respectfully requeosts thet the defense plea in
| bar of triel bec denied.

Aok Bl

i | DAVID BOLTON.
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FLEA IN ABATEMENT
in the case of
HARA, Chuichi, former Vice Admiral, Imperial Japanecse Navy

The accused, HARA, Chuichi, n prisoner of war, having surrendered
to the American naval forces chder Vice Admiral Murray, USN, on Sept,
2, 1945, interposes this plea in abatement on the ground that there has
not been any notice to the protecting power of the opening of this
judieinl proceeding against this accused, a Japanese national and a
prisoner of war,

Article 60, Geneva (Prisoners of war) Convention of July 27, 1929,
provides: "At the opening of a judicial proceeding i
mu_qm,r_q[rm;, the detaining power shall advise the representative of
the protecting power thereof as soon as possible, and always before the
date set for the opening of the trial."

"This_advice shall contain the following information:

Flace of sojourn or imprisonment
Specification of the (count) or counts of the indietment,

giving the legal provisions applicable,

"If it is not possible to mention in that advice the court which will
pass upon the matter, the date of opening the trial and the nlace where
it will take place, this information must be furnished to the representative
of the protecting Power later, as soon as possible, and at all events, at
least three weeks before the opening of the trial,"

"{a) Civil state and rank of prisoner
"(b
bl (-

The accused, Vice Admiral HARA, Chuichi, as the senior naval officer
on Truk did on September 2, 1945 together with Lieutenant General MUGIKURA,
the commanding general of the 3lat Imperial Japanese Army and the senior
land ranking military officer on Truk, surrender to Vice Admiral Murray,
USN representing the American naval forces. Admiral HARA thus became a
prisoner of war,

As a prisoner of war Admiral HARA was in accordance with Artiecle 2 of
the Geneva Prisoners of war Convention in the power of the hostile Power,
in thia case the United States of America, but not of the individual who
captured him, Article 2 further provides that prisoners of war must at
all times be humanely treated and protected, particularly against acts of

vioclence, insults, and public curiosity,

Article 5 prohibits coercion, insults, unpleasant or disadvantageous
treatment being used on prisoners to secure information,

Article 6 provides among other things: "Identification documents,
inaignia of rank, decorations and objects of value may not be taken from
priscners,"”

Article 49 provides: "No prisoner of war may be deprived of his

. rank by the detaining Power."

Apticle 5, provides: "Arrest is the most disciplinary
punishment which may be imposed on a prisoner ef war,

"The duration of a single punishment may mt: exceed thirty days."

[
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Vice Admiral HARA surrendered on September 2, 1945 and on August 1,
1946 Admiral HARA was transferred to Guam to a prisoner of war camp and
on August 22, 1946 Vice Admiral HiRA, a prisoner of war was without any
charges being preferred againat him thrown into solitary confinement at
the Stocknde at Guam, Since that date August 22, 1946 Vice Admiral HARA
has been held in solitary confinement, Not until October 5, 1948 more
than two years were ary charges preferred against him, The charge dated
October 5, 1948 ia the "Oharge and 8pecifications, in the case of Hara,
Chuichi," Notwithstanding the Ceneva Prisoners of War Convention Article
49, Vice Admiral HARA has been stripped of his rank while a prisoner of
war here on Guam, has been Leld in solitary confinement for more than twe
years in direct violation of Article 5, of the Ganeva Prisoners of War
Convention, and now the judge advocate seeks to bring the accused, a
prisoner of war to trial, without notifying the protecting power as is
required by Article 60, Geneva Prisoners of War Convention,

Unlike the gquestion raised in the application of YAMASHITA, 66 S, Ct,

340 we enter this motion as a plea in abatement., The YAWASHITA case cannot
determine the merits of our present plea in abatement, - Article 60 which we
cite does not state directed against a prisoner of war for cffenses
committed only while prisoners of war. Article 60 contains a clear
unequivocal statement as follows: "At the opening of a judicial proceedings
directed against a prisoner of war, the detaining Power shall advise the
representative of the protecting Power thereof as soon as possible, and
always before the date set for the cpening of the trial."

Even the apolication of General Tomoyuki Yamashita, the motion for
leave to file petition for writ of habens corpus and writ of prohibition
and petition for writ of habeas corpus and write of prohibition was not
an unanimous opinion by all members of the United States Supreme Court, Mr,
Justice Murphy wrote a strong dissenting opinion in which he said:

"Hostilities ceased and he voluntarily surrendered, At
that peint he was entitled, as an individual protected
by the due vrocess clause of the Fifth Amendment, to
be treated fairly and justly according to the accepted
rules of law and procedure, He was also entitled to

a fair trial as to any alleged crimes and to be free
from charges of legally unrecognized crimes that would
serve only to permit his accusers to satisfy their
desires for revenge,

"A military commission was appointed to try the petitioner
for an alleged war crime, The trial was ordered to be
held in territory over which the United States has
complete sovereignty, No military neceseity or other
emergency demanded the suspension of the safeguards of
due process, Yet petitioner was rushed to trial under

an improper charge, given insufficient time to prepare
" an adequate defense, deprived of the benefita of some

of the most elementary rules of evidence and summarily
sentenced to be hanged. In all this needless and unseemly
haste there was no serious attempt to charge or prove
that he conmitted a recognized violation of the laws of
war, He was not charged with personally participating

in the acts of atrocity or with ordering or condoning
their commission, Not even knowledge of these crimes

was attributed to him, It was simply alleged that he
unlawfully disregarded and failed to discharge his

duty as commander to control the operations of the
members of his command, permitting them to commit the
acts of atroejty. The recorded annals of warfare and
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the established principles of international law afford
not the slightest precedent for such a charge, This
indictment in effect permitted the military commission
to make the crime whatever it willed, dependent upon
ites biased view as to petitioner's duties and his
disregard thereof, a practice reminiscent of that
pursued in certain less respected nations im recent

years,

"In my opinion, such a procedure is unworthy of the
traditions of our pecple or of the immense sacrifices that
they have made to advance the common ideals of mankind,

The high feelings ~f the moment dcubtless will be satise
fied, But in the sober afterglow will come the realisation
of the boundless and dangercus implications of the prceedure
sanctioned today. No one in a position of command im an
army from sergeant to general, can escape those implications,
Indeed the fate cf some future President of the United
States and his chiefs of staff and military advisers may
well have been sealed by his decision. But even more
significant will be the hatred and ill=-will growing out

of the application of this unprecedented procedure. That
has been the inevitable effect of every method of punish-
ment disregarding the element of persocnal culpability,

The effect in this instance, unfortunately, will be magni-
fied infinitely for here we are dealing with the rights of
man on an international level, To subject an enemy
belligerent to an unfair trial, to charge him with an
unrecognized crime, or to vent on him our retributive
emotions only antagonizes the enemy nation and hinders

the reconciliation necessary to a peaceful world,"

Gentlemen of the commission this question of due process guaranteed by
the Fifth Amendment, and the procedure clearly demanded by Article 60 of
the Geneva Prisoners of Var Convention is not wholly without merit and
it was not disposed of in the YAMASHITA case, In the sober afterglom of
the YAMASHITA case on this A f%  day of October 1948 you full well
renlise that the highest standards of justice be applied in this trial of
of an enemy commander,

The accused prays that Article 60 of the Geneva Priscners of "ar
Convention of 1929 be complied with before this trial proceeds and before
issue is jolned,

Respectfully,

-
7
HnRTIIi! C

Commander, U, S, Huval Reserve,
Counsel for the Accused,




i REPLY TO FLEA IN ABATEVENT ; 1
3 Delivered by

| David Bolton, Iieut,, USN,
! Judge Advocate
|

The vast majority of this verbose plea by defense counsel is
completely irrelevant to any issue now before the commission, The
tions cited from the (issenting opinion of Mr., Justice Murphy in the
| Yemashita case are not properly cited at this time, for the eited pertions
| are clearly not relevent to the issues of thie plea in abatement, Defenme
| counsel states this plea in abatement is made"on the ground that there
hat not been any notice to the protecting power of the opening of this
jwiieial proceeding against this accused, a Japanese national and a
1~ isoner of war,® The citation from Mr, Justice Murphy does not deal
with, or in eny manner affect this lasue.

Defense counsel contends thet in the instant case the issue of
applicability of Section 60 of the Geneva Prisoners of War Convention is
made in e plea in abatement, while in the Yamashita case the issue with
regard to applicability of the Geneva Prisoners of Ver Convention wes
presegted in a different application, This distinction is a distinetion
vithout & difference. In the Yamashita cage the U. 5. Supreme court was
fuced squarely with Lhe issue of whether a person who surrendered end
b:came e prisoncr of wor and was subsequently after his surrcnder charged
as a wer cririnel for offenses committed prior to the time he beccme a
t prisoner of wor, wes entitled to the procedure snd privileges set forth
ia the Geneve Prisonem of Ver Convention, The U. 8. Suprome Court clerrly |
end unequivocally decided thet such persons cherged with wer crimes ore
not entitled to the privileges of the Geneve Prisoners of War Convention,
for those provisions in regard to notice of trial, ete., are limited in
| enplication to crimes cormitted subsequent to the time the individual
| becomes ® prisoncr of war,

| The precise article from the Gencva Prisoners of War Convention cited
| by defense counsel, namoly Article 60, wcs considered in the Yamashita
case by the U. 8. Suprome Court, The decision as set forth by the Chief
Justice said as follows: "Article 60 of the Geneva Convention of July
| 27, 1929, 47 Stot, 2051, to which the United States and Jepan were
i signetories, provides that 'At the opening of e judiclal procceding
| dirccted against a prisoner of wer the detaining power shall advise the
i | rcpresentetive of the protooting power thereof as soon as possiblc and
| always before the date sct for the opcning of the trial', Petitioner
relice on the feilure to give the prescribed notice to the proteceting
power to estoblish want of authority in the commission to proceed with-the
trinl, For reasons already stoted we conclude that Article 60 of the
| Geneve Convention, which appeers in pert 3, Chepter 3, Section V, Title
III of the Geneva Convention, applies only te persons who are subject to
udicial proceedings for offences committed while prisoners of war,"

UN Vor Crimes Commiseion Wer Crime Triel Lew Reports Vol IV page 42-43
Trial of General Tomoyuki Yemeshita),

The judgment is clearly in point and it is unneccssary to remind the
commission of the respect to which a judgement of the Supreme Court of
the United Stetes is properly emtitled.

The judge advocate rcspectfully requecte thet the plea in abatement
be dended.

A Rolta

Devid
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| MOTION FOR A BILL OF PARTICULARS

I Delivered by:

| Commander Martin E. Carlsom, USNR,
I Defense Counsel for HARA, Chuichi,

i The nccused makes a motion for a more definite statement of the charge
jand for a bill of particulars in order to enable the accused to prepare
[for trial, We refer the Commission to Rule 12(e) Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure for the District Courts of the United States and case of Herman
v, Mutual L, Ins, Co, (C.C.A, 3d) 108 F (2d) 678, 127 A.L.R. 1458,

| The acoused prays that both Specifieation 1 and 2 of the charge set

jout the law and customs of war which it is alleged the accused violated

while serving as the Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet and also what

measures were within his power and appropriate in the circumstances to
otect ns it was his duty to do, American prisoners of war,

'I The object of this motion is to moke more definite and certain the
Icharga and the specifications thereunder, Ve refer the Commission to the
se of Tilton v, Beecher, 59 N.Y, 176, 17 im, Rep. 337 and 41 Am, Jur.

Pleading” section 276.

I It is necessary that the accused definitely kmow with a certainty just
what law and customs of war he is charged with having violated, The accused
leannot determine from reading the charge and the specifications what law and
what customs he has violated, Neither can he determine what the law or
pustoms of war prohibited, A penal statute is required to be sufficiently
definite to show what acts the law makers intended to punish or it will be
leonsidered invalid, Clark and Marshall, A Treatise on the Law of Crimes,
t.llt.h edition, section 29, p, 40 states the rule as follows:

! "It must define the offense with certainty,

' either by specifying the acts which shall

| constitute it or by deseribing it by some
pame known to the common law,."

Citing the cases of United States v, General Const. Co., 269 U,5. 386,
,TD L. Ed, 322, 46 5.Ct, 126 see note; 38 Harv, Law Rev, 963,

I The accused cannct know what the statute says was appropriate measures
hinh he was required by the statute to take to protect prisoners of war,

- It must be some statute which imposes such a duty upon the accused
cause at common law there is no such duty imposed upon any man as the
uty to protect another person. It is true that there is a so-called
gher law which answers the biblical question "Am I my brother's keeper?"
the affirmative but this Christian teaching hns not been fully accepted
made law by statute, Certainly it was not the law of war. We ask for
Fn.rticulur- as to what law imposed such a duty upon thig agouged,

| The accused, Vice Admiral Hara, knows of no international law or
stoms of war or anything in all numl history which justifies such a
as is set forth ngainst HARA, Chuichi, former vice admiral, Imperial

apanese Navy.
The YAMASHITA case when brought to the Supreme Court of the United

tes resulted in dissenting opinions by two of the Supreme Court justices.
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‘ Mr, Justice MUBPHY in the case of General Tomoyuki YAMASHITA,
nding General of the Fourteenth Army Group of the Imperial Japanese
in the Philippine Islands cited as 66 S, Ct. 340 at 357 held:
|I "International law makes no attempt to define
i the duties of a commander of an army under
f constant and overwhelming assault; nor does
- it impose lianbilities under such circumstancea
| for failure to meet the ordinary responsibilities
| of command,,.. To find an unlawful deviation from
duty under battle conditions requires difficult
f and speculative caleulations, Such calculations
| become highly untrustworthy when they are made
| by the victor in relation to the actions of a
! vanquished commander, Objective and realistic
; norms of conduct are then extremely unlikely to
f be used in forming a judgment as to deviation
I from duty.®

' The accused cannot properly prepare a defense to a charge based upon
nguu and indefinite refercnces in certaln cof the Hague Conventions and
Geneva Red Cross Convention No, IV of October 18, 1907, We call the
Cormission's attention to the case of Gross v. Big Creek Development 75
!H. Va, 719, 8§ S, E. 75, L.R.A, 1915 E, 1057,

According to the ruling in 41 Am, Jr, "Pleading" Section 271:

. "As a general rule bills of particulars will be
- ordered in every case in which the party ean

- satisfy the court that it is necessary toc a

| fair trial that he should be apprised before-
[ hand of the particulars of the charge which

‘ he is exnected to meet."

f
following oases are cited in support of this rule: May v, Ill, C.R.

Co. 129 Tenn, 521, 167 S,W. 477, L.R.A. 1915 A, 781, Ann, Cas. 1916 A, 213,
Not knowing the statute, the accused can of course not know what the statute
chibits or even know what acts of omission the law makers intended to

nish,

' "A bill of particulars should be granted in
furtherance of justice,"

A1l these cases are cited: Tilton V, Beecher 59 N.Y, 176, 17 Am, Rep, 337;
ukins v, Lassel, 43 8,D, 191, 178 N,W, 731 eiting R.C.L.; May v, Il1,

.R. Co, 129 Tenn. 521, 167 S.W, 477, LRA 1915 4 781, Ann, Cas. 1916 A, 213;
ichmond and D,R, Co, v, Payne, 86 Va. 481, 10 8,E, 749, L.R.A. 8495 Turner

¥, Great Northern R, Co, 15 Wash, 213, 46 p 213, 55 Am. St. Rep, 883,

|

| "4 bill of particulars should be granted for

I purposes of effectuating justice and in order

| not to impose an undue burden upon the accused,"

se cases are cited: Williams v. Chattancoga Iron Works 131 Tenn, 683,
76 S,W, 1031, Aon, Cas, 1916 B, 101; and May v, Ill, C,R, Co, 129 Tenn,
1, 167 8.W. 477, L.R.A. 1915 A 781, Ann, Cas. 1916 A, 213,

| T bave vead the specifications and it is my belief hat there i good
ound to support this motion,

e e




| This motion is not interposed for delay but to make the charge and

| speaifications more definite and certain and in order to effectuate justice
and to insure a fair trial to the accused, HARA, Chuichi, former vice

| admiral, Imperial Japanese Navy, charged with neglect of duty as Commancer |
|4n Chief of the Fourth Fleet, Imperial Japanese Navy.

|

I! :

.| ?upuutfully, ) .
/ - ;_; ’ & -

| - ¢ .‘_’..:#i,a- {‘f"'l. oL - -4 ":-ff'""‘_
MARTIN E, CARLSON,
Commander, U. S. Naval Reserve,
Counsel for the Accused,
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REFPLY TO THE MOTION FOR A4 BILL OF PARTICULARS
Doliverod by

David Bolton, ILicut,, USF,
Judge fdvoeate

The granting or refusal of the defense request for & bill of pore
ticulars is & mattor resting in tho sound discrction of a court, 27 Im.
Jur, 111, Vhile the motion for a Bill of Particulars is not provided
for by Navel Courts and Boards, such a motion has becn allowed in the
trial cof war crimes beforc & military commission, for emample in the
Yamsshita case. But it should bc noted thet in the Yamashita cose there
wes a different type of militory commission, on army commission utilieing
a ~omevhot different procedure, and thet the cherge against Yamnshite did
1:°. furnish detailed information such as thet provided in the specifica-
tions in the "insteant cesc which follows the pattern used in navel courtes,

In Neval Courts, the Bill of Particulars is not a rccognized peth
of the judicial prooedurc, for the use of specificotions, in aﬂdiirm to
o besic charge, obviates the nceessity for such & Bill of Particulara.
A¥1 the requiroments of a Bill of Particulars are met by the use of such
specificatiorns, and in novel courts the remedy for lack of neocssery
prrticularity with regerd to the incidents cherged, is found in the
objection to chorges nnd specifications. The nocused has rocognised this
fi2t and evailed himsclf of it, end it should bec noted thet in this
cajeotion to cherge ..nd specificntions he has pursued the identical

o 108ticn vhich he now again raisce in his motion for a Bill of Perticulars,
rxmely, thet the specificetions should set forth with perticularity the
law and customs of war which the accused hos been charged with viecleting.
The merits of this contentlon were argued ot thet time, and the comrission
rejocted the argument of the accused.

Let us bricfly examine the function of the bill of particulers end
gee Af the interests of justico require or justify its epplication in the
insteant casc.

The function of the Bill of Particulars, as set forth in 27 im.
Jur. See. 113, is "to supply the accused and the court additionn] infor-
ontion conccrning an nccusation thet tho saccuscd has committed on set or
acts constituting e criminal offecnse.”

Certain grounds for rofusal of the request for a bill of particulars
are set forth in 27 im, Jur. Scc, 113, ond some of the longuage there used
is particularly arproprintc, and estoblishcs the grounds for denial of
the instent motion., The followimg cppcars on pege 694 of 27 &m, Jur,:

"L bill of perticulers is not ncccesary where the indictment informs the
dofendant of the erime with which he is cherged sufficlently to enable
him to prepere his defense, or where the means of obtaining the focts are
as eccessible to the defendant as to the state, and the facts are slready
known to him, or where he hag béen fully informed as to the matters in
question,..i motion for a b4ll of partiewlers, thet, in its pature, is o
request for a disclosurc of cvidence or of matters which are largely
evidentiary in charecter and which, if furnished, would unduly limit and
enbarrass the proscowtion and might excludo material evidence may
properly be refuscd....f bill of perticulars is sufficicnt which supplies
all necessary informrtion to enable the accused to prepere for trial end
after judgement to be able to plead the record in bar of & further
prosecution for the seme offense.¥
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Thet the specificotions satisfy nl) essential requircments of
perticularity is cpporent vhon we compore them with the items of the Bill
of Pearticulsrs prescnted to the commission in the Yammshita cose. The
fifth parograph of the Bill of Particulors in thot cose reads "5. During
Noverber 1944 in northorn Cebu Provincc, mpssecrc, without cause or triel,
of more than 1,000 uncrmed non-combotent civilians", The subpercgrophs
of the specifications in the instant casc set forth with much grenter
porticulnrity the incidents which nccused is charged with heving permitted
to occur.

No further argument on this motion is required, ond in closing I
ner2ly refer the commission to tho portions of 27 Am, Jur, Sce. 113 which
I bive eited in rcgard to the grounds for refussl of the motion for r
B.ii of Pnrticulors,

The judge ndvoeate rospcctfully requosts thot the motion for s Bill

of Perticulnrs be donicd.

David Bolton

R (2)
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|
OFENING STATEMENT {
l In the case of HARA, Chuichi, former Vice Admiral, IJN
:
|
]
!
|
|
|
|
|
|

Delivered by
Lieutenant David Bolton, USN,
Judge Advocate,

Human soclety is largely the interrelation between individuals and
groups of individuals, Equilibrium in such society, relative peace and
security of these individuals and groups of individuals, depends upon
the creation and enforcement of certain social so-called ethical stan-
dards of behavior, These are not absolute standards, They are not
unchanging standards, They are relative standards which, within a
given time and within a given society are applied in response to the
needs and efforts of that society to mointain or develop the soeial
order and the accepted social values,

The application of law, and more particularly criminal law, is one
of the efficacious forces by which socliety attempts to create cr mnintain
certain minimum standards of social conduct. In this respect international !
society is not basically different from local society, and international
law in peace and in war seeks to maintain certain minimum standards of
conduct, The so-called law and customs of war is the outgrowth of funda=-
mental ethical considerntions, agreements, treaties, usages and customs
as acocepted or practiced between nations, Vioclations of the standards of
conduct embodied in the law and customs of war constitutes what is loosely
termed war crimeg,

When it became apparent in the early course of World War II that |
these fundamental standards of human conduct under the law and customs
of war were being disregarded by enemy belligerents, efforts were made
to dissuade the enemy fron continuation of these barbarous acts and
atrocities,. In conformance with international practice, protests were
made, and when disregarded these changed to warnings. On August 21, 1942,
| the President of the United States, Franklin D. Roosevelt, issued the
| following warning: "It is the purpose of the Government of the United
Statea, as I know it is the purpose of each of the United Nations, to
make appropriate use of the information and evidence in respect to these
barbaric crimes of the invaders in Europe and Asia, It seems only fair
that they should have this warning that the time will come when tley shall
have to stand in courts of law in the wery countries which they are now
oppressing and answer for their acts,"

This "warning" was not a creation of new law, it was
merely an express declaration to all actual and potential
offendars against the existing law and customs of war, that
the time would come when all offaenders would be punished,
More than that, it was an implicit warning and caution to all,
and particularly to high-ranking responsible officers, that
they take all measures to prevent the commission of erimes
in violation of the law and customs of war, This warning
was issued prior to the time when the accused took command of
the Fourth Fleet, and was repeated over and over again
during the course of the war.

This warning, this solemn declaration of intention te hold
responsible for their criminal acts and ogfissions, was embodied
Potedam Declaration of 26 July 1945, issued by the President of
States, the President of the National Government of the Republic
China, and the Prime Minister of Great Britain, The Potadam Dec ion
declared "We do not intapd that the Japanese shall be enslaved as a race
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or destroyed as a nation, but stern justice shall be meted ocut to all
war eriminals, ineluding those who have visited cruelties uoon our
prisoners," In the Surrender Document, September 2, 1945, Japan speci-
fically accepted the provisions of the Potadam Declaration,

It was and is the duty of the Allied Powers, the United
Nations, to onforce the standards of international law and
soclety, and to punish those who have viclated the law and
customs of war, It is the duty of the victor to do this, just
as it is the duty of the police and the courts to apprehend,
to confine, to try, and to punish those who violate domestie
criminal law, And it is specious reasoning that contends that
it is unfair for the conqueror to try the vanquished, The
"police", the forces-cof law and order, must be stronger than
the criminals, If not, the power of society to punish for
wrongdoing would perish, for the criminal and his kin do not
apply the standards of lowful scciety tc punish the wrongdoer,
If the forces of law and order cense to be stronger than those
whe vielate the standards of scciety, elther revelution or chaocs
inevitably results, It is therefore natural and proper that the
vietor nations, the "law and order" nations of international
soeiety, should punish those individuals who have vioclated the
law and customs of international society, the law and customs
of war,

The Fotadnm Declaration was not a declaration of any novel concept
of international law, The concept was clearly recognized at the close
of the First World "ar, and was partially enbodied in the provisions of
the Treaty of Versailles. International law has long recogniszed the |
necessity of enforcing sstablished social standards of conduct by
punishing those who violate them, Lawrence, in the Principles of Inter-
national Law (7th Ed. 1923), pp. 373-374, comments on the law of war, as
follows: "A ruler drunk with the conscirusness of overwhelming power
might venture to defy the moral sentiments of mankind, but only to dis-
cover by and by that outraged humanity avenges itself in unexpected
ways,..Those, therefcr, who that a state is free to ignore, because
of the exigencies of the moment rule,,.are as errconecus in thelr
reasoning as they are anarchical in their sentiments, The lawa of war
are made to be obeyed, not to be set aside at pleasure.”

The accused, HARA, is being tried before this commission for
violation of the law and customs of war., It is not through any desire for
vengeance or any sense of vindictiveness of the conqueror for the vanquished
The nccused is tried for the same reascn that soeiety tries and punishes all
criminals, Society is based upon a system of law, a system in which the
weak as well as the strong mist be protected if 1ife and order are to con=
tinue, The individunls who violate the laws of society - whether loeal,
state, or international = must be punished in accordance with the lam,
Human nature is such that if we did not punish the individual who
commits the crime, that individual and other individuala believing that
cerimes are not punished, would cease to respect the law and would violate
it without fear of punishment, Punishment of individual offenders acts as
a déterrent force,

We have just finished a war in which at the cost of millions
lives we have reaffirmed our belief in a sceciety of law and
er in which the rights of individuals and nations are protected
the depredations of the strong or the ambitious, That
removed a orucial threat to the existence and security of
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independent nations in an international society based upon {
l accepted principles of law and order.

The fact that the war was not climaxed with o regenerated
international soclety providing and effectively guaranteeing
peace and order for all nations and peoplea, doea not justify
the rejection or repudiation of the accepted standards and
practices of international law, the law and customs of war.
International society has not stopped war; but it has established
certain fundamental law and customs of war in nocordance with the
prineiple of humanity.

It is our duty and privilege to be engaged in the adminis=-
' tration and enforcement of that law, Through the functions of
this and similar commissions the law and customs of war take
tangible form and deterrent effect, to warn potential wrong-
doers that scclety will punish those who viclate the law and
customs of war,

The accused HARA, Chuichi, former vice admiral of the Imperial Japanese
Navy, is charged with violation of the law and customs of war, The violation
of the law and customs of war is set forth in two specifications, These
offenses occurred during the period when the nccused was the Commander in
Chief of the Fourth Fleet, from February 23, 1944 fo September 2, 1945,
at a time when o state of war existed between the United States of America,
its alliee and depende.icies, and the Imperinl Japanese Empire.

i The first specification alleges that the accused unlawfully dinragnrdab
and failed to discharge his duty as the Commander in Chief of the Fourth |
Fleet, to control the operations of members of his command and persons
subject to his control and supervision, permitting them to commit the
illegnl aeta, the specified war crimes set forth in subparagrarhs (a)
|: through (1), The duty set forth in this specification is the duty to

I contrel the onerations of members of his command and persons subject to his
h control and supervieion, The accused HARA is charged with having unlawfull;
I disregarded and falled tc discharge this duty in that he permitted these

| members of his command and persons subject to his control and supervision,
| to torture, abuse, inhumanely trect and kill American prisoners of war,
British nationals, a Chinese civilian, and residents of various islande,
It is alleged and the prosecution will prove that at the times and in the
| incidents alleged, within the period when the accused was Commander in

| Chief of the Fourth Fleet, 7 American prisoners of war, and 211 other

i persons were brutally killed, an additional 7 persons were tortured;
abosed and inhumanely treated,% The prosecution will prove that these
vicious orimes were committed by members of the accused's command and
persons subject to his: eontrol and supervision.

|

The second specification alleges that the accused unlawfully disregard
and failed to discharge his duty as the Commander in Chief of the Fourth
Fleet, to take such measures as were within his power and apnronriate in t
circumstances, to protect, as it was his duty to do, American prisoners of
war, held ecaptive by the armed forces of Japan under his command and
subject to his control and supervision, and residents of Nauru Island and '
Ocean Island, then residing at said Nauru Island and Ocean Island occurded
by armed forces of Japan under his command and subject to his control and
supervision, in that he permitted the unlawful torture, abuse, inhumane
treatment and killing of said nrisoners of war and said residents of Nauru
Island and Ocean Island, The gravamen of this speecification is that the
accused unlawfully disregarded and failed to discharge his duty to protect
theese perscus., The acts and incidents set forth in the subparagraphs of
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this specification are the same acts and incidents set forth in specifi-
cation 1, except that subparagraphs (f), (1), (j) and (k) which appear

in spgcification 1 are omitted 'from specification 2, These subparagraphs ]
of specification 1 were cmitted from srecification 2 becouse they do not
fall within the same classes of persons to whom the duty to protect is
olearly applicable under the express provisions of the Hague and Genova
Conventions, which will be more fully discvussed in the prosecutions later
arguments.

Detailed prescutation of the legal aspects of the duty to control
one's subordinates and the duty to protect prisonersz of vwer and others
will be deferred until a more appropricte time during the final arguments
of the prosecution. But certain focal points of the duty, and the ar-plir.:nblp
law and customs of war must be kept in mind during the course of the
presentation of evidence in the instent case.

o

The existence under the lav and customs of war of the duty to control
subordinatos and of the duty to protect prisoners of wer, etc., end the
applicability of eriminal punishment for viocletion of these duties under
the law and customs of wer, is no longer the subjcet of legitimete dispute.
The matter was conecretely denlt with by the United States Supreme Court in
the Yemoshite case (327 U.S. 1),

The prosccution does not contend thet the accused had en "absolute®
duty, an sbsolute responsibility for the acts of his subordinates; and the
charge and specifications against the accused do not envisage the appli-
ocation of such a doctrine of absolute responsibility.

The first specification vhich deals with the duty to control alleges
that the mccused "disrepgerded” end "feiled to discherge" his duty to conmtrol
the operations of members of his command and persons subject to his control
and supervision, "pgrmitting thep" to torture, abuse, inhumanely treet, and
kill. Discussion of the legal implications of the word "permit" will be
deferred until the finsl arguments in the instent case, It should be notod
at this point, however, thet oven the terms "diercgarded™ or "failed to
dischrrge", clecrly cnvisage something beyond the concept of absolute
responsibility, They require that it be proved that the accused "disrcpardeg"
or "failed to dischorge®, thet is to say, thet he failed to teke the
required end eppropriate action,in accordance with the law and customs of
war, to control the members of his command,

The second specificotion is similer to the first specification in
thet it does not require the application of any theory of absclute respon- |
eibility. The second specification sete forth more explieitly the scope
of this duty for it alleges thet t.h-a necund 'm.'tla!'tlii'1!':.1].1.31r diurngnrdad and
failed to diluharga hia dut.j' ; s} ]

A nd I : roLm: YT t-n protaut lmurlotwnr unﬂ
rnuidunt.: of 'b‘hu oqnupiod nmmtry = nomoly Nauru nnd Oceoan Islands.

It 1s the burden of the prosecution to prove beyond a reasomable
doubt, thet the sccused ‘dimgardud' and “tﬂﬂud to diluhnrga“ his duty,
in short that he fo ntg the membors

of hll mmnd...utn. nnﬂ that undur Epaciﬂutinn 2, h gﬂg E: Fi: .
x 1LiLE EAD g £ DOWQL £ ADproprlote
prilnmra o! lar...ntq The pro-u!‘ of this disregard ond frilure

to rgo his duty does not require proof thet such neglect of duty wes
wilful orﬂ?hﬁ? it mwwﬂrﬂu: :Imuwlnggu n{ the uupen:.u.n; commission of




any specific incident., Deofense counsel will contest this presentation of
the applicable law, for in their numerous plees and motions they have {
| evidenced their position thet knowledge or wilfulnces should be charged and
proved by the prosecution, Whilec it is not my purposc or function nt this
time to ergue the appliceble lew it ie necessary to direct the commissicn's
attention to the prwma and authoritice in this connection, in order thoi

the aommission may rerdily follow and ewvaluste the evidence in this 0

cape,

The rocused is chorged with eriminnl responsibility for negloct of
| duty arising from his command rceponsibility. The position of commend ia |
if a position of prove soeial responsibility. It cerrics with it importent |
|| and incseapable dutics, Every rensonnble vigilonece and every reagonrble ;
|| offort must be expended to perform thosc duties, It is for this renson thrt |
the lew and customs of wor requires thot armed forces and I quote from Art. |
| 1 of Ammex to the Fourth Heguc Convontion of 1907, be "commended by e person

responsible for his subordinetcs®, The accusod as Commander in Chief of the
Fourth Fleet wrs such o commanding officor and thercby eccepted such re~
| eponsibility.

The mccused comtends thrt ncplect of the duty inhercent in thie
rosponsibility cennot be cstnblishod without proof thrt the nccused wilfully
and knowingly neglected this duty. In the plea to jurisdiction by Commander
Carlson, pege 7 he contends “thet the nogleet of duty cherged is no erime
because knostledge is not charped neither is it cherged thet the secuscd
vilfully end knowingly ncplected his dut), r

\ But counsel is in error, The very Iomeshita case, from whieh he hns
I quoted numerous oxcerpts from the dissenting opinions, establishes thrnt such
II‘ knowledge or wilfulness is not an cescntinl clement of the offense., The |
| charge and findings in thet ersc clearly cvidence this fect. 4s Mr. Justice
| Murphy points out in his disscnting opinion (peges 3, 8):
"He wre not cherged with personally perticipating in the
acts of otrocity or with ordering or condoning their commission.
Not even knowledge of thesc erimes was ettributed to him, It
was simply alleged thet he unlewfully disrogarded end fallecd |
to discherge his duty as commender te control the operntions |
I of the members of his command, permitting them to cormit the |
I acts of rtrocity", "Nowhere wos it alleged thet the peti-
| tioner personally committed eny of the atrocities, or that he
| orderced their commission, or thrt he had any knowledge of the
commission thereof by members of his command. The findings
of the militery commission bear out this abscnce of many direct
personal eharge against the petitioner, The commission merely
found thrt ntrocitics and other high crimes 'have been committed
by members of the Jopenese ermed foreccs under your commend,..... I.
thet they were not eporrdic in naturc but in meny cnsce wore -
methodieally supervised by Japeanese officers and noncommissioned
officers,..that during the poriod in question you failed to
provide ¢ffective control of your troops as wrs required by the
circumstenccs'."
Similrrly, re Mr, Justice Rutledge points out in his dissent (p.8) "Nor is
tl| there any cxpress finding thet he know of eny of the incidents in porticular
or all trken together."

Despito the foct thet no knowlodge or wilfulness wos charged cor found
to be proved in the Yamashita caso, the Vdlitnry Commission found Yemeshita
guilty, and the United Statcs Supreme Court in reviewing the erse (327 U.S5.1)
held thrt "the chorge sufficiently states a2 viclotion of the law of war, and
thrt the commission, upon the frets found, could properly find petitioner
guilty of such a violation",
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Thile the fretual questions in ench ecnse of negleot of duty ere dis-
| tinct, ~nd depend upon the prrticuler relevant circumstances, the low applic
i | in the Yamashitr cnse is oqually anplieable in the instant cnse, for it
constitutea nn applicetion of the law and customs of wor in reperd to comme
responsibility., The docision of the Suprome Court is therefor direetly in
point in the instent case, ond merits our consideration et this time. The
[ opinion of the court wes delivered by Chief Justice Stone, ond the follow=-
ing excerpts are releyent esteblishing the noture of commnnd responsibility
end the inherent co ry thet knowlodge or wilfulness is not on essentinl A
element of the charge or proof of criminal neglect of thrt command respon-
sibility.
"But 1t is urged thet the cherge doese not allege thet petiticner hrs
githor committed or directed the commission of such acts, ond ecnse-
quently thrt no violotion is cherged ns agoinst him, But this over-
looks the fect thot the gist of the charge is an unlnwful breaech of
duty by petitioner ae an army commander to control the oporations of
the members of his commrnd by "permitting them to commit' the
extensive and widesprend atrocitics specified. The question then is |
whether the lew of wer imposes on an army commander a duty to toke
such arnropriote mensurcs se arc within his power to contreol the
trodps under his commend for the prevention of the specified acts
which are violations of the law of wor and which are likely to ettend
the occupation of hostile torritory by an uncontreolled soldiery, end
| whether he may be charged with personnl responsibility for his foilure
to trke such meosures when violations rcsult, Thet this wes the f
preeise issuc to be tricd was mede ecleor by the stetement of the !
|

|
|
|
I
|
|
|
I
! prosecution at the opening of the trial." ;
| "It is ovident thet the conduct of militery operctions by troops
whose excesses ero unrestrained by the orders or efforts of their |
‘ commander would rlmost certainly result in vicletions which it ia the |
purpose of the law of war to prevent. Its purpose to protect eiviliasn
I populetions end prisoncrs of war from brutality would lergely be l
| deferted if the commandor of an invading army could with impunity mg-'
| leet to trke reosonable messurea for their protection. Heneeo the
| law of war presupposes thet its violation is to be avoided through the|
| control of the operetions of war by commanders who are to some extent |
I rosponsible for their subordinates." (p. 9, 10)

specified wos militery governor of the Philippines, es well as commonddr
of the Japenese forces, an affirmative duty to teke such measurce as

i were within his power and appropricte in the circumstences to protect
il prisonors of wer and tho civilien populrtion, This duty of a command-
i il ing officer has heretofore been recognized, end its brench pennlized

I by our own militory tribunals." (p. 10)

| "Obviously cherges of violetions of the law of war triable before
a military tribunal need not bo strted with the precision of a common
law indietmént, Cf, Collins v, McDonnld, supre, 420. But we conclude
| that the nllegations of the charge, tested by any reasomable standard, |
aedequately alleges n violotion of the low of war and thet the commis--
gion hed authority to try and decide the issue which it reised. Cf.
Deely v, United States, 152 U.S. 539; Williamson v. United Stotes, 207
IE‘.B. gzs; Glasser v, United Stotes, 315 U.S. 60, 66, and cnses cited.
pPa1l) ¥

| |
I\ "These provisions plainly imposed on petitioner, who at the time |

b
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/4 In 1ts findings the commission took account of the difficultids
"feood by the accused, vith respect not only to the swift rnd over-
povering edvence of Agerienn forces, but rlso to errors of his pred-
cetssora, Torkness in organization, equipment, suprly...., treining,
communieation, diseipline ~nd morrle of his troopa™, nnd "the tretien
situntion, the choerocter, troaining end cepacity of etoff officers rnd
subordinrte commanders, as well ns the troits of choracter of his
troope." It nonethelcss found thrt petitioner hed not taken such

[=]

mensurcs to control his troops as viere “required by the circumsternces".

Ve do not weigh the ovidencc, Ve mercly hold thrt the chnrpe suf-
ficiontly statos a vielntion ngainst the lav of wer, and thrt the
commiseion, upon tho frets found could rroporly find petitioner
ruilty of such n violetion.”(Footnote 4, p. 11

In addition to the Yamashite ceso, the commission mry similrrly benr |
in mind on the gquostion of knowledge, the Gonerel Court Martisl cesc of
Coloncl Jemes A, Kilicn (Gemerrl Court Martiel Orders No. 140 - Heedgqurrtons
Continentnl Bese Section, U. 8. Forces, European Thenter) in which the |
doctrine of commond responsibility wos applied to o membor of our own armed
forces. This ecasc is illustrotive of the foet pointed out in the U. S,
Supreme Court declision in the Yomoshita case thet "this duty of 2 commanding
officor hee herctofore becn recogniged and its brench penrlized by our own
military tribunels”, In the speeificetions in the Kilfinn case, it hed bedn
charped thrt the accused “"knowringly permitted™ the imposition of eruel
punishment, cte. But the court mortisl found the recused guilty except for
the vorl "knowingly" cte. The case therefore speeifically and expreasly
ocgtablished thrt the cccused hnd no knorledpe of the offenses which were
committed within hie commend., The court nevertheless found him pullty,
and tho ense was revicwed and approved by higher authority. In an able
memorandum reviow of thie comse by the Assistent Judge Advoecate Generel, in
which the Judge Advocete Gencrnl of the United Stetes Army concurred, it i1
peinted out theat: "Where, through laxity, indifferencec, or culpeble
ineffecioney, he permits wrongdoing within his command he is guilty of neg+
lect of duty within the meening of the 96th Article of Wrr which denounonﬁJ

|
1

'all,..neglocts to the prejudice of good order end military disciplinec.!
It hos been treditionally recopnizgd thet the neglect denounced by the 96t
irticle of War moy be a mere omission or failure properly to perform a
duty (Winthrop, Reprint 722), It is not a defense to a charge of neplect
of duty to prove thrt the omission wes not deliberrte or comscious, The |
rensoning of the Supreme Court in the Yamashita cnsc, cited by Celonel
Riter, must be applied here,,.".

So much for the focal points of the law which the commission must
becr in mind during the presentation of the prosccution's evidence.

Thie evidenoce will sonsist of the testimony of witnesses end docu=
mentery evidence such as excerpts from prior court records which will be
used to cstrblish thet within tho erea, and during the period of the tour
of duty of the nccused, his subordinotes and persons subject to his control
nnd supervision committed the numerous incidents set forth in the sub=-
paregrophs of the specificetions,

The complexity of the cvidence which will be prescnted justifics the
expenditure of some additional time in outlining to the commiseion the
noture end relevence of the evidence which the prosccution will prescnt.

The prosccution will first esteblish the fectunl basis of the
existence of the duty of the nccused, by proof thrt he wres the Commondeor 1
Chief of the Fourth Fleet during the peried from Februery 23, 1944 to
Scptomber 2, 1945, the dote of surrender of the Japanese armed foreces. The

=T
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prosecution will prove the erea ond unite under the commend of the sccused,
and will establish thet ns Commander in Chicf of the Fourth Flcet he wes
in command of the perscons, and had jurisdicticn over the rrens where the
nlleped incidents occurred,

The prosccution will astablish thot when the accused took over the
commnnd of the Fourth Fleot there were no existing stonding orders with
rognrd to the trenrtment or proteoetion of prisoners of wnr, ete. The
prosecution will prove thrt although the recused, as expressed by the U.S.
Supramumtj?:rt in the Yrmashita cansc, Thnd" an affirmetive duty to tonke sueh
meagurcs¥wore within his power end appropriete in the circumsternces to
protect prisoners of war and the ecivilien populction", ho completoly
disrcepgarded and feiled to dischorge this duty. Throughout his tour of duty
he did not issue ony orders or instructions to his subordinrtes with regerd |
to the trentment or protection of such prisoncrs of war or eivilien populs- |
tion, The prosccution will then prove using the records in the pertinent
cnscs, thrt subordinetcs of the nccused end persons subject to his control
and supervision (sce peregraph (f) of Spocificotion 1), committed the
incidents of torture, cbuso, inhumone treotment end killing set forth in
subperegrephs (a) through (1) of Specification 1, rnd corresponding sub-
porapraphs (a) through (h) of Speeification 2. i
will be proved to hnve been killed, nnd on ndditionnl 7 persons cruelly
tortured, in the inciderts allepcd.

The prosecution contende that the sbove,which will be conclusively
proved, in and of itec'f cateblishes thnt the accused disregerded ond friled
to discharge his duty under the law and customs of war,

Therc is howover additional proof of the neglect of duty by the |

recused. Briofly summeriszed shis proof is as follows:

The accused issued no orders regarding the treetment oF protection
of prisoners of wor, elthough he knew end should have known of the oarrivnl
of priscners of war at Truk. The arrivel of prisoners of war at Truk wes
reported to the Fourth Fleet; Staff officers knew of the errivel of pris-
oners of wor ot Truk, Fourth Fleet stoff officer Lieutennnt Akal questioned
rrisoners of war ot Truk., Subordinate unit commonding officersa of the
Forty-first Gurrd Unit, tho Fourth Base Forece, and the Fourth Newnl lospitel
knew of the confinement of prisoners of wor et Truk, The accused Hore
personally knew of the arrivnl of certoin prisoncrs of war.

Coneidercd as an isolnted circumstrnce, the foet thet Harn should
hrve knowin or knew of the erriwal and confinement of prisoners of wor ot
Truk or elsewhere in the erea of his commend, cennot roflect the :
signdficrnoc of this knowledge. Vhen viewed in the light of the ronk ond
the responsibilities of the accused, cnd his presumed knowledge of wer ond
its demorclizing nnd brutrlising effect upon individunls, this foct begins
to trke form and importence. But the full significnnoe of such frots can
only be undorstood by exnmination of all the circumstences prevanlent nt the
time and under the commond of the cccused.

In o sense this ie part of the ree gostae in n noglect of duty cose,
And for thot renson a much broader scope of evidence is considered relevrnt
and permiseable in such neglect of duty ccses, For this reason in the
Yamashita ecasec considorcble lotitude was permitted in the preosentntion of
such evidence, rnd the opinion of the Supreme Court in footnote 4 whieh I
previeusly cited, notes thrt "In ite findings thc commission tock account
of the difficulties 'forecd by the neooused, with respect not only to the
swift and overpowering advonce of Lmerican forces, but nlso to errors of
his predecessors, weakness in orponisation, equipment, supply...trnining,
commundention, diseipline and morcle of his troops', and 'the tactical
situntion, the cheracter, training and eapecity of staff officers and sub-
ordinnte comminders, as well as the traite of cheracter of his troope'."
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i These factors considered relevant by the Military Commission in the
Yamashita case, are equally relevant in the instant case, The prosecution
intends to present certain evidence relevant to "the nature of the training, {
discipline, and morale" of the forces under the command of the accused, and
the "character, training, and capacity of staff officers and subordinate
commanders” ,

The prosecution will seek to establish the facta that when the aceused
I took command of the Fourth Fleet the training and experience of his

forces and subordinates with regard to prisoners of war, was that prisoners
of war were upimportant and could be mistreated or disposed of without fear
| of censure or disciplimary or other punishments.

This will be established by the instructions which had been

| issued to nertain subcrdinates in the Fourth Fleet prior to the tour
of duty of the accused; viz, the instructions received by Rear
Admiral Abe and Captain Hiyashi of the &6th Base Force, from Lt, Cdr,
| Cknda of the Naval General Staff and Commander Iida of the 4th

I Fleet Staff, While these instructions were received prior to the
I

|
time the accused became Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, it !
will be proved that neither the predecessor of the accused nor the ;
| accused ever issued any specific orders regarding prisoners of war, .
and therefor these instructions and training continued in effect during |
| the tour of duty of the accused,
|

i Similarly to establish the state of training, morale, instruction,
I and experience of the forces and subordinates of the Fourth Fleet
| at the time the accused became Commander in Chief, it will be shown |
i | that on February 17, 1944, just prior to the time the accused became
|| the Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, an incident of killing
| of priscners of war occurred on Truk., Knowledge of this incident |
i was widely disseminated amongst the unit commanders and suberdinates,
i including staff officers of the accused, and it was similarly kncwn
| that no action was taken by Hara's predecessor, or by the accused
I Hara after he became Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, to
investigate, discipline, censure or punish those who were responaible
| for or participated in that incident,

The prosececution will establish that this state of morale and training
continued during the tour of Auty of the accused Hara,

" - This fact will be circumstantially proved by the very fact that
incidents of mistreatment and killing ocourred during the tour of

i duty of the accused, that some of them occurred on Dublon Islami,
Truk, a small island where the accused had his headquarters, amd
that high ronking subordinate officers and onit commanding officers
were perscnally involved in these incidents,

This fact will also be established by proof that the accused
Hara was personally present at a Fourth Fleet conference in
September 1944 and learned of the brutal killing of prisocners of
war, by stabbing with epears, yet toock no action to censure or
punish his high ranking subordinate, Captain Iwvanami, who was at
the time the Commanding Officer of the Fourth Naval Hospital and
also the chief medical officer of the Fourth Fleet; an® the accused
issued no instructions to Iwanami, or to cther subordimates who were
present at this conference and knew of the incident, that prisoners
should not be mistreated or killed,

The prosecution will try to eatablish the existence of a basie |
factor in the training of the Japanese military personnel w=ith regard to
prisoners of war: this factor is that Japanese military pemrsonncl were
trained to believe that to become a prisoner of war meant tg lose all
honor and to lose all right to be treated as a human being, This factor

“=9= v (9)
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\ if established may partly explain the brutal mistreatment and killing of |
prisoners of war by Japanese perscnnel, but it does nct justify the

failure by the accusod to perform his duty under international law to
contrcl his subordinates and to protect prisoners of war, On the contrary,
the existence of such training and the reccgnized tendency of war to
brutalize armed forces, were known or should have been known to the
accused, and his failure to take measures to restrain his forces consti-
tutes proof of violatlion of the law and customs of war - for, as was
stated by the Supreme Court, in the Yamashita case "It is evident that the

il conduct of military operaticns by troops whose excesses are unrestrained

|| by the orders or efforts of their commander would almost certainly result
in violations which it is the purpose of the law of war to prevent,"

An additional factor which the prosecution will seek to establish as
part of the training, instruction, and discipline of the forces under the
accused was the training that in the event of land invasion it was proper
|| to dispose of prisoners c¢f war,

The prosecution will seck to establish that this was part of the
training of the armed forees under his predecessor - (as evidenced
by incidents in Wake Island and Truk, and the statement of respons=
ible parties concerning the basis for disposing of these prisoners
of war) = and that no instructions or orders were issued by the
accused with regard to this matter and that during the tour of
duty of the mccused this continued state of training and discipline
resulted in the incident at Ocean Island, set forth in subparagraph
(1) of Speecificaticn 1, subparagraph (h) of Specificaticn 2, in
\ which 200 civilians were killed,

With regard to this phase cof the prosecution's case, dealing with
the general subject of morale, discipline, and training of the armed
forces under the command of the accused, the judge advoeate anticipates
that conclusive evidence may not be presented as to all of the factors
which he desires to establish, It is proboble that some of the testi-
mony will be conflicting, but it is believed that when properly evaluated,
the evidence presented will, on the whole, establish beyond reascmable
doubt an accurate picture of the training and discipline of the Japanese
armed forces under the command of the accused, and clearly establish the
fact that the accused, who knew or should have known and under the law and
custome of war is held responsible for the morale and training of his
subordinates and the armed forces under his command, neglected to take
reagonable measures and in fact took no measures, tc instruct or discipline
| his forces with regard to the treatment or protection cf prisoners of war
and civilian populaticns,

The prosecution contends that Wlhﬂ'ﬁ to train cr discipline it
subordinates and persons under the e of the accused is relevant and

material evidence tending to establish that the accused criminally nepg-
lected his responsibilities under the law and customs of war., For as said
in the Yamashita case with regard to the law of war "Its purpose to
protect civilian populations and prisoners of war from brutality would
largely be defeated if the commander of an invading army cculd with
impunity neglect to take reascnable measures for their protection, Hence
the law of war presupposes that its violation is to be avoided through

the control of the operations of war by commanders who are to some extent
responsible for their subordinates.®

With regard to subordinates, it is relevant and the prosecution will
tablish, that subordinates of Hara, both staff officers and unit
of ficers knew of incidents of mistreatment and killing of
oners of war which ocourred pricr to Hara's tour of duty - and that.

-m-
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i therefor Hara knew or should have known of the cecurrence of these {
incidents within the nrezc of his command, It will he established that ,

these subordinates knew that no action had been taken by Hara's |
predecessor with regard to diselplining or punishing the perpetrators '
of these inecidents and that no action had been taken suhsequent to these
incidents to issue instructions that prisoners of war should not be mis-
treated, This knowledge by the subovdinates cf Haran is relevant for it
tends to establish that if the accused had preperly supervised his
subordinates he would have learned of these prior inecidents and by

| appropriate measures could have prevented the occurrence cf those

| incidents with subsequently ococcurred during his tour of duty., The weirht

| to be given to such evidence is a matter for the determination of the
commission, but the prosecution believes this evidence is relevant for it
olearly bears upon the training and discipline of these subordinates after
they were under the command of the accused, as well as constituting
circumstantial evidence of direct kncwledge or wilful omisslon of duty

by the accused to investigate such prior incidents, to punish or diseipline
the perpetrators, and to institute corrective action in the nature of
instructions, orders or training to prevent further wviolations of the law
and customs of war by the ferces under his command,

| The prosecution will establish that the following subordinates of
Hara knew of the following incidents which occurred prier to his tovr of

:| duty:

Captain Inouwe, the senior staff officer of the 4Lth Fleet, and
| Captain Saknibara, the Commanding Officer of Wake and
| others, knew of the Wake Island incident of October 7, 1943
] in which 96 prisoners of war were executed; |
il Captain Iwanami, the Commanding Officer of the Fourth Naval
! Hospital and Chief Medical Officer of the Fourth Fleet, and
| other members of the staff of the Fourth Naval Hospital and of
| the 41st Naval Guard Unit knew of the incidents which cccurred
i at Dublon Island, Truk Atoll, on January 30 and February 1,
1944, in which & prisoners of war were disposed of;

Captain Inocue, Senior Staff officer of the Fourth Fleet,
and Commander Higuchi, staff officer of the Fourth Fleet, and
unit commanding officers who attented the conference after the
air raid of February 17, 1944 knew that prisoners of war had
been disposed of during the air raid, at Dublon Island, Truk,

The prosecution will establish that the following subordinates of
I |the accused Hara (staff officers and unit commanding officers) knew of
the following incidents which oceurred during the tour of duty of the

accused:

Rear Admiral Masuda, the commanding officer at Jaluit and
his staff knew of the incident set forth in subparagraph (a) of
Specification 1 which ocourred at Jaluit Atoll in the Marshall
Islands on March 10, 1944;

Captain Asano, the Commanding Officer of the 4lst Naval
Guard Unit and Rear Admiral Arima, Chief of Staff of the Fourth
Fleet, anl others, knew of incidents set forth in subparagraphs
(b) and (c) of Specification 1, which ocecurred on Dublon Island,
| Trak Atoll, on June 20, 1944;

Captain Iwanami, Commander Higuchi, and staff officers and
onit commanders (as well as the accused himself) who attended
the September Conference of the Fourth Fleet, knew of the incident
set forth in subparagraph (e) of Specification 1, which oceurred
at the Fourth Naval Hospital, Dublon Island, on July 20, 1944.

-1l =
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It is of coorse obvious that all of the subordinates and perscns
subject to the control and supervision of the accused who participated in
the incidents charged in all the subparagranhs of Specification 1, knew of
the incidents in which they were involved = bhat the foregoing suberdinates
and incidents specifically referred te are highlighted beecause it is
reasonable to believe that in view of the rank and duties of the
subordinates noted, the accused knew or should have ¥nown of these

incidents.

It will be established that high ranking subordinates and unit
commarcing officers under the command of the accused Hara directly parti-
cipated in all of the incidents set forth in specifieation 1, with the
exception of those set forth in subparagraphs (f), (g), and (h).

Rear Admiral Masuda, IJN, the commanding officer of the
62nd Naval Guard Unit, and Atoll Commanding Officer of Jaluit,
directly participated in the incidents set forth in subparagrarhs
(a), (1), (1), and (k).

Captain Asano, the Commanding Officer of the 4lst Naval
Guard Unit on Dublon Island, Truk, participated in the incirdents
set forth in subparagraphs (b), (e¢) and (d).

Captain Iwanami, the Commanding Officer of the Fourth
Naval Hospital and Chief Medical Officer of the Fourth Fleet,
participated in the incident set forth in subparagraph (a).

The participation of these subordinates is particularly significant,
The prosecution contends that the direct participation of such subordinates
is strong circumstantial evidence of the responsiblility of the accused
Hara in connection with these incidents. Such evidence tends to prove
that the accused condoned such incidents, or at least that his subordinates
had no instruction, training, orlers, or other reason to belleve that the
Commander in Chief was concerned with the protection of prisoners of war
or would disapprove or ¢ isciplime his subordinates for their mistreatment
or killing of prisonera of war,

As is pointed out in the Trial and Law Report of the United
Nations War Crimes Commission, Series No, 50, Velume IV, p, 88:
"It is worthy of note that the participation in offenses of
officers standing in the chain of command between an accused
commander and the main body of his troops may be regarded ams
scme evidence of the respconsibility of the commander for the
offences of those troops....Regulation 10(5) of the Canadian
Regulations makes it possible for a Court to regard even the

of an officer at the scene of the war crime, either
at or immediately befcre its commission, as primg facie evi<ence
of the responsibility not merely of the cofficer hut also of
the commander of the formation, unit, body or group whose members
ocommitted the crime,”

It ie also highly significant, and the prosecution willl establish:
That the incidents se* forth in subparagraphs (b), (e), (d) , and (e)
of Specifications 1. 4 2 all occurred on Dublon Island, a -small
island approximately 5,000 yards in length and 4,000 yards :in width;
and that the Headquarters of the Fourth Fleet were also locinted on this
island; and that the aceused was perscnally present on Dubl.on Island at
the time these incidents ocourred; and that the accused was in continuous
conmunication with his kigh ranking suberdinntes who direct.ly participated

“:ln these inocidents.
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l In addition to this evidence, the prcsecution will present certain
evidence which eircumstantially evidences the fact that prior to the time
of its occurrence, the accused Hara had kncwledge of the incident of July |
20, 1944 which occurred at the Fourth Naval Hospital, Cf particular
significance in this regard is that the accused will be shown to have heen
perscnally present at the Fourth Naval Hospital on the very day that the
incident, a public execution, ceccurred on the hill behind that hospital;
and that in faect, the accused was present on the veranda of that hospital
with Captain Iwanami at the very time the prisoners were driven past that
]i verande con their way to that hill behind the heapital where the execution

|| oecurred.
|

By direct evidence the rrosecution will establish that the accused
Hara was present at a subsequent Fourth Fleet conference in September 1944,
when Captain Iwanami described the use of spears on the priscners cf war
killed in the July 20th incident. The prosecution will establish that
other staff officers, and unit commanding officers were present at that
conference, but that the accused Hara and none of his subordinates made
any comment, statement, or criticism of the brutal spearing of these
priscners of var, And the prosecution will prove that the accused Hara, |'
even after this clearly and unequivocally proved knowledge of the July |
nmurder of these prisoners of war, issued no orders or imstruction to his
subcrdinates with regard to the treatment or protecticn of prisoners of
| war, Certainly at this time the accused was on clear notice cf the
diseipline and state of ‘raining of his subordinates, and under the law
and customs of war hri an inescapable duty to take immediate affirmative
| | action to protect priscners of war and the civilian populations; hut he
| ccntinued to disregard an? fail to discharge his duties under the law and . I
|| customa of war, And it will be proved that incidents of unlawful torture,
| abuse, inhumane treatment, and killing of prisoners of war and civilians,

by his subordinates, continued to occur within the area of his command,
as set forth in subparagraphs (g), (h), (1), (j), (k), and (1) of
Specification 1.

This in substance, is the case which the prosecution will seek to

i| prove against the accused Harn, The issue of his guilt cr innocence of

| the charge and apecifications is a factual question to be determined upon
all the relevant cvidence, The judge advocate contends that this evidence
will establish beyond reascnable doubt that the accused is guilty as
charged, But whether the nccused "neglected" his duty is the fundamental
queaticn which the Commission must determine after full consideration of
nll the evidence and arguments which will be presented both by the .
| prosecution and the defense,

The Commission must examine and consider all the circumstances, all
the actes and omissions of the accused., And in the light of the duty and
responsibility of the acoused as the Commander in Chief of the Fourth
Fleet, the Commission must determine whether the prosecutiom has proved
beyond o reasonable doubt that, as set fcrth in Specificaticn 1 and
Specification 2, the accused disregarded andfalled to discharge his duties
|. to control the operations of members of this command and persons subject to

his control and supervision, and whether the accused disregazrded and failed
to discharge his duty to take such measures as were within lnis power and
appropriate in the circum-tances, toprotect priscners of war and eivilian
residents of the cccupled islands,

R ol

DAVID BOLTON,
Lieutenant, U, 8, kiavy,
Judge Advocate,
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l OBRJECTION TO THE REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE BY
THE JUDGE ADVOCATE

Delivered by
. Mr, TAKANO, Junjiro,
Counsel for the Accused,

The accused, HARA, Chuichi, objects to the request by the judge

|adva¢ate for jodieial notice of the followins fact for the reasons miven |
below:

Item 4 of the request for judicial notice by the judge advocate |
states that the Potsdam Declaration of 26 July 1945, paragraph 10 reads |
in part as follows: |

"le do pot intend that the Japanese shall be enslaved
as a race or cestroyed as a nation, but stern justicde
shall be meted out to all war criminals, including

those who have visited cruelties umon cur priscners."

- In short, this means that stern zuutiu& will be meted to war griringls
|\and those mho yisited cruelties upon (allied) prisoners. |

Hovever, HERA, Chuiehi, the accused in this case, 1s not a war
|eriminal at present, And of course he 4id not personally visit cruelties
|lupon any prisoners (in his cwn person), Hence this portion of clause 10
|lof the Potsdam Declaration has no bearing on the present case., To take
' |jondicial notice of such matter which in no way is relevant or material t~
|the case, right at the beginning of the trial, runs the danger of leaving
a doubt that the accused even bef-re trisl is being treated as one convicted,
namely as a war ceriminal,

. It is most inapproprinte to reguest guch matter to be poted judicially
at the cpening of the trial,

Hence, Idbject to the request for judicial notice of this matter.

Respectfylly,

| g . : -EE_-:,.-"" —
TAKANG -Funjiro. = (—’E

I certify the forepgoing to be a trusl-’;:nd complete translation of the

lbriginal in Japanese, to the hest of my ity, '
I0R,

El « *KERRICK,
Liegtenpant, U, S, Naval Res b
Interpfeter,
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1 OBJECTION TO THE COMMISSION TAKING JUDICIAL NOTICE AS REQUESTED BY
| THE JUDGE ADVOCLTE

Dalivered by
CDR Martin E. Carlson, USNR,
Counsel for the Ascused,

The accused objects to the commission taking judicial notice of the
| Hague Convention No, IV of 18 October 1907 and the Annex thereto unless
| the judge advocate furnishes the commission with the complete Hague
Convention including Number XIV of 18 October 1907 which prohibits the .
discharge of projectiles and explosives from balloons, e object unless
the official French text is furnished which is the only official text

so far as the internntional relations of states are concerned. The Fore- |
word to FM 27-251 states: "It will be noted that the French text is the |
only official text ao far as the international relations of statea are
concerned; andaccordingly in case of dispute as to the meaning of any

| provision, it is the French text which must be accepted as controlling,

| Though the English translation is, in general, believed to be correct, no
| translation can always give the meaning of the criginal with entire accuracy."

We continue to quote from this Foreward: "Each of the Conventions
|| signed at the Hague in 1907 and set forth in this manual save that relative
i to the opening of hostilities, contains a provision that it shall be binding
upon any of the belligerents in a war only if all the belligerents in that
i war are parties to it, As neiiker Italy or Bulgarin has ratified the 1907
| Conventions given herein, the Unitod States might have declined to be bound| |
| by them," |

[
]

' If the United States could decline tc be Beund by these Haogue

| Conventions then Japan could also decline to be bound. According to

| Section 309, Naval Courte and Boards, "A court may not take judiclal notice
of a foreign law, or of a law of another State, ete., thon that within

| which the court is sitting, the existenee of such law being o question of

| fact which must be proved by competent evidence the same as any other

| fact = 4,e,, the purport or the actual wording of the law must be

| Aintroduted into the evidence - and it must be further shown that the law

or regulation was in force at the time vhen the alleged act in vioclation

thereof toock place,"

I If this Hague Convention is the law alleged to be in viclation of
vhich the accused neglected his duty the plea of not guilty puts such a
Convention in issue and most certainly it must be proved and also that it
wos in effect and in force at the time the nccused is alleged to have

| committed the great internatiomal crime h& is charged with having committed,
| the erime of international neglect ef duty ond that the accused was bound

| perscnally by such a Convention,

The aeccused objects to the commission taking judicial notice of the
Geneva Frisoners of Tar Convention of July 27, 1929 because Japan did
not ratify this convention, It is o foreign law. This Coovention not
even ratified by Japan was most certainly never ratified by the accused or
made binding upon him if his own country did not ratify the Convention,
Any agreement made by Japamn with Switgerland, a non-belligerent, cannot bind
the accused, It is a fundamental of the law of contractgq that only parties
to the contract are bound thereby, Japan made no agreement with the United
| States, The accused was not a party to any contract made between Japan
n and Switserland, This Convention is also put inte issue by the plea of

"not guilty” of the ncoused,

e Y (1)




We object to the Commisaion taking judicianl notice of the Potadam
Declaration of 26 July 1945 particularly paragraph 10, The Potsdam
Declaration was simply a declaration signed by three perscns meeting at
Potedam: President F, D, Roosevelt of the United States of America, the
President of China, and Tinston Churchill of England,

The judgze advocate doesn't even furnish the commission or the defense
with an authentic copy of this deolaration, The commission certainly must
bave grave doubt of the propriety of taking judicial notice of such a de-
claration as the Potsdam Declaration, Article 10 speaks of war criminals,
Does the judge advocate infer that the accused is a war eriminal before he |
is tried and found pguilty? Such a deglaration as this declaration made '
by President Roocsevelt and the President of China is irrelevant and
immnterial and is not binding upon the accused.

We do most certainly object to the statement that a state of war
existed between the Japanese Empire and the United States during the periocd
from December 7, 1941 to September 2, 1945. As far as we know this 1s the 1
first time that any United States court has been asked not to recognige thar
cessation of hostilities aoa having token place on August 15, 1945, It was
on August 15, 1945 that the Emperor of Japan ordered all Japanese te stop
fighting. The accused as Commander in Chief, Fourth Fleet, with his
headquarters at Truk received the Emperor's orders and did stop fighting.
He was alsc ordered to take orders from the United States commanders as to
when he as Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet was to formally surrender
the Japanese naval forces on Truk to an Ameriean commander. However, for
all practieal purposes and certainly for the purposes of this trial all
hostilities ceased on August 15, 1945. From that date on Admiral HARA was
subject to the orders of the United States commanders, This is such a well
known fact that it seems it should be unnecessary to argue the point.

Only one point more, Although hostilities ceased on August 15, 1945 |
out- here in the Pacific on this side of the International Date Line there
has as yet been no formal declaration of peace batween the United States a
Japan, Technieally therefore we are still at war with Japan, Hcwever, the
hostilities ceased on August 15, 1945 and there has been no actual war sinc
that date,

We object toc the commission taking judieianl notice of the Instrument of
Surrender alleged to have been signed September 2, 1945. If the commission
is to take julicial notice of any Surrender Document we ask that the
defense be furnished with an authentic eopy of such Surrender Dccument so
that we oan at least be apprised of what there is in evidence in this
trial, To do otherwise is most prejudicial to the substantive rights of
the accused.
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OPENING STATEMENT FOR THE DEFENSE IN THE CASE OF
VICE ADNIRAL HARA, CHUICHI, C-INeC, FOURTH FLEET. ! (

I Delivered by Sanagi, Sadamu,

Counsel for the accused,

|
|
I The accused Hara, Chuichi is being tried for violation of the law
; and customs of war in that during his tour of duty as Commander in Chief
| of the Fourth Fleet, he (1) unlawfully Alsregarded and failed to discharge
:: his duty to control the operations of members of his command and persons
| subjest to his control and supervision, and (2) unlawfully disrogarded f
and failed to discharge his duty to protect prisoners of war and mative
residents of oecupied territories, by permitting his subordinates to |
abuse, inhumanely treat, and kill them,

Prior to the presentation of the cese for the defense, I will make !
a hrief preliminary explanation of the main points relative to the evidence
| which the defonse will introduce.

I, Consarning the duty of ths agoused to surarvise the operations of
| his subordinates and his duty to protect prisonars of war and the eivilian |
populoece , I
t X 48 the acoused is charged with having neglected the above two duties, i
| I £ind 1t necessary to clarify the scope of such dutios, I wish to mote |
|I ppecially the following points:

That, as soon after the acocused, Hara, was apnointed Commander-in-
Ohief of the Fourth Fleet, a superior naval headquarters was newly
oetablished senior to him., A4 superior army headquarters was included
in this senior hendquerters. Thus the organisation and chain of command
| betmeen army and mavy units within the area of jurisdiction of the acqueed |
| Hara, becams so highly complicated as to be withowt precedent, Thds
| condition was fupther complicated by the over present Amopican wilitary |
| forees 4n the form of task forass and mirereft, which completoly ecmtrolle

| od the sea, {
wlw




” That, although Army porsonnel played the lending role in four of the
|} incidonts with which the nooused, Hara, is being charged, there was a
:" Commanding Genoral, sondior in rank to him, who was subordinato to the
] !‘ samo suporior naval headquarters and within the same area of Jjurisdiction

as tho accused, Harn,
Unless this organisation and chain of eommand is clarified it would
|i not ba possiblo to understand whether the accused, Hara, had any responsi-
bility to control the operations of the prineipal offenders in the incidents
| of paragraphs (f), (1), (J) and (k) of Speeification 1 of tha charge

proferred against the accused,
Regarding this point, although testimony was given in part by witness-
| a8 for the prosccution, the defonse will introduce into evidence metirial

I made available by the Japanesa Government,
|| 2. Speaking genorally, the defense is not attempting to deny that a
oertain degree of responsibility was incumbant on the Commander in Chief

5' of the Fourth Floet to proteet priscners of war captured in his area of
' Jurisdiction, and naotive residente of occcupled areasy this through the i
directly rasponsible officers among his subordinates, This duty was i
incumbent on subordinate commanding officars who by Navy Regulations and ‘

I by assumption of office became responaible for prisoners of war and the |
safety of civilions residing in the areas over which they axercised |

| eommand, The command responsibility of these officers is olear and

| we will show by document and by witness who was primarily and fully |

responsible.” -
In matters concerning the natives of the Japanese Mandated Territory,

such matters are in no way related to the duties of the Commander in Chief

of the Fourth Fleet. Among the ineidents charged against the accused,
Hara, are thoss relating to Marshall natives, The judicianl and adxini=-
strative authorities over the Japanese Mandated Territory of the Souwth
Seas were under the jurisdiction of the Minister for Greater Bast dsia,
and under him, the Governmor of the South S8ea Islands exarcised these

i authorities,
I
Between Varch and July, 1944, owing to the war situation and tho

-2
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severance of transportation and commnication botween the various far-
lying islands, the Jopanese Govornment decided in offect, that *
tho administration of the islands in tho South Seas would fnll under
the command of the senior commanding officer on ench islend. Tho
Govornor of tho South Sea Islands Govermmont Office issued orders to this
effeoct to all his subordinates on the various islande, Notwithstanding,
the Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleoet still had nothing $o-de whatso-
aver ﬁ:ilﬂl?;;mttm of oivil administration.

Tha defense will clarify this subject through the deposition of
the then Governor of the South Seas Islands and through the tostimony
of witnossas,
3. After tha Japanese Army began to move into tho Japanese Mandnted
Tarritory of the South Seas in large mumbers, and immodiatoly after the
formation of the 31st Army, it was decided that the Army take over the

maintopance of peace and seocurity in that area, and tho Commander in

Chief of the Fourth Fleet had no connection with this problem of maintonancg

of peace and seourity of civilians,

The reasch for the main role baing played by army personnel in the
tneidents of paragraphs (f), (1), (J) and (k) of Specification 1 may
ba clearly understood by this circumstance,

e will prove this through the testimony of witnesses and the
depositions of the District Governor of the South Seas Govermment Office
on Truk,
be Concerning the general duties of a Commander in Chief of a Flaet,
and the duty of the cognizant commanding officers to observe international
law, wo will introduce into ovidence relevant and the then affective
ragulations of the Japanese lavy,

5. The neoused Vice Admiral Hara is charged with violation of the law

and customs of war. International Law nowhere provides that neglect o

supervise thae oparations of subordinates constitutes a crime.

Consequently, what regulations there were in the Japancse Navy relative

to eriminal responsibility for neglect of duty, becomes an important

consideration in deoiding on the erimipal respomsibility of tho acoused.
3=
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| In connection with this defense counsel will introduse into avidenece

Japanose Naval Rogulations, namely the Naval Criminal Code and the Naval

Disciplinary Codo.

II. Conercte measuros which could have boen taken rogarding suporvision

of oporations of subordinates in outlying places, during the tour of duty

It 1s of great importance in judging on the eriminal responsibility

|
I
|
" of tho acousecd,
I
|
|

of the nogloet of duty of the nccused, to know what monsures could in

nctual fnoct have beon token by the noeused during his tour of duty as

Commander in Chief of the Fourth Floet to control and supervise the ;
| operntions of his subordinates on the wvarious for removed islands within _q
.: his areca of jurisdiction.

| Ti%h ropard to this, tho following would constitute important |

alemonts: (a) The then existing war situation, geographical onviron=
| mant, (b) the transportation nnd communication existing botwoen Truk and
\ | the various islands. Regquost for judicial notice may be made for (a).

Part of (b) wns proved by witnesses for the prosecution.  However to

mako it oclear beyond any doubt witneasea for the defenso will show what

direction or instructions the Headquarters of the Fourth Fleet actually

‘ Inlands
did pass on to units on Ocean and Nauru,,f;ﬂ't.ar Auguat 15, 1945, concerning P}P’

eaggation of hostilities and surrender.

I III. Concerning knowledge or ignorance of the ocourremce of the dllédged’ -

inciflents-on the part of the accused Hara.

|

i

I| The judge advocate in his opening argument stated in effect that
| or

|| knovledge of-wilfulness does not constitute an important element of Lr}’/
I

| proof in a charge of eriminal neglect of duty, Fowever we submit a

!diffmntthﬁm. Leaving the reply to the judge ndvocate to be given |

| in the closing argument, we merely wish to state here that in our !

| submission, and nccording to present law, knowledge still constitutes an

| essantinl element of proof in a charge alleging criminal responsibility
| for neglect of duty.

Ei Te will, during the presentation of our case show in yet clearer
H
FI 1ight, the fact that outside of the incidenmt of paragraph (e) of Speeifi-
I

EE (4)
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cotion 1, the incident at the 4th Naval Hospital of which he ocame to know
after a considorable lapse of time, the acoused Hara had no knowledge
whatsoever of any of the incidents with which be is cHarged.

Concerning the incident at the 4th Fawval Hoapital, the doubt may be
raisad that as the accused Vice Admiral Hara was at the VNawval Hospital
when the two prisoners of war arrived, he may have known of the inception
of the incident at that time, In regard to this point, it was in no way
proved by the Prosecution witness Imanami, Firoshi that the accused Hara
knew of thae inception of the incident at that time. The defense will
introduce into evidence a deposition by Surgeon Captain Taneda, the third
man who was in converaation with Iwanami and the aceusod Hara on the
verandnh on that day, and make it even still more clear that the accused
did not know of the inception of the incident or anything concerning the
incident.,

IV. The poliey of the Japanese Navy regarding priscners of war, and the
disposition of Japanese Navol persomnel.

The prosecution stated that the Central Maval Authorities followed
a policy which condoned the execution of prisoners of war locally, at

the front lines, and that thore wns this tendency among subordinates of the |

Fourth Fleet aven prior to the time the acoused Fara anssumed office,

Tho defense will prove that in the Japanese Navy, Regulations for
the Trontment of Prisoners of War were established, and that the
Secretariat of the Navy Vinister had issued and distributed to all units
the "Manual of Yartime International Law®, and that the Japanese Navy
tock mensures to have naval personnel fully informed of these matters,

The defonse will prove through deapositions and through the testimony
of witnosses that the policy of treatment of prisoners of war of the
Cantral Authorities of the Japanese Navy set forth in these books in nc
way changed during war time, that a little prior to the acoused Hara's
taking command of the Fourth Fleet, the instructions were clearly relayed
by officers from the Central Authorities in Tokyo to all umit commandors
on Truk that priscners of Wer bo sond to tho Japanase homeland at the
earliest posaible momant,

B EE (5)
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Evan. if thare had been some atrocities visited upon priscners of
war by subordinate units of the Fourth Fleed prior to the time the
accused became Commander in Chief of the Fourth Fleet, unless the necused
ware informed of the matter, such matter eamnot ecnatitute kmowledge on
the part of the ascused.

There has boen scme testimonycn offensas from witnesses for the
prosecution but the defense will eclarify this still further.

V. Character tostimony concerning the gemernl reputation of the ncoused

in the community in which he is Inown and which relate to thoso traits
which are brought into question by tha charges under which he is being

triad,

Viee Admiral Fars won reputation and homor in the Japanese Navy for
his just nand smocth settlement of two inecidents, ona rolated to the
disposal of a dispute betmeen the Japamese Army and Mavy involving
international relations, and the other related to protection of eivilian
inhabitantes of occeupled territory, one while he wos a Captain and the
other after he became n Rear Admiral,

Te will show that he was a deeply sympathetic man, and that he was
known for his custom of visiting the patients at hospitals.

La the genaral meputation of the acoused's chnracter in these
matters constitute important data in arriving at the accused's verdict,
we will introduce such evidence in the last phase of our presentation of
the ease in accordance with the rules of evidence set forth in Seotion

1A, of Wawa) Courts and Boards,

Rupuutfa.'liy' .

Banngi, 8 .
Ooumeel for the acoused.

I certify that the foregoing is a true and complete translation of the
original in Japanese to the best of my ability,

F. CLARK
Id.mhmnt‘}‘r‘lb 8, Navy,
Interpreter,

ol
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Stotoment of HARL, Chuichi

£L1though I hove taken the stand and testified in my own behelf, I
would 1like to mnke the folloving porsonnl declaration at this time.

Gentlomen of the commiseion, I hope you will understand the various
problems which I faced as the Commender in Chief of the Fourth Fleet. I
have attempted to reloto my story frankly cnd honestly. However, I am
ofraid I may not have donc so well os I might have because of the difference
of custome betwecen the Lmoricon Navy and tho Japancse NMevy ond because of
the langunge diffioulties. PBut I novertheless hope thet you will under-
stopd I did not in eny monner try to cvade my rosponsibility under the most
difficult esituntion in which I found myeelf upon reporting and during my
tour of duty.

In September 1944, I wns taken completely by surprisc vhen I heord
nbout the mistreatment of fAmericon prisoncrs of war, I was stunned and
discournged to learn thet such n grievous orror hnd been mnde withip my
own command, I trust you will understand thet the same mistake was not
committed agnin.

fLbout ton yeors before tho Pocifie War, I hod an opportunity to come
in conteot with the United Stotes Navy while I wne at scn serving off the
const of Chinn, Not owly officially, tut nlso privately, I met and ceme
to know United Statcs Nawel officers and had sincere respect and friend-
ship for thom.

During the Pnoifie Wor, I wre confronted oy Umerican forces for about
three yerrs., I had opportunity in bettle to bocome further acquainted
with the spirit of the United Btntes Navy for which I had the grertest
reapect. ;

My opindon in this rogard uwne enhanced after my unconditionn) sur-
render on September 2, 1945 to Vieco fAdmirel Murray vwho trected me very
kndly and nsked me to nssist with the construetion of the Lmerioan Nawnl
Bosc on Truk, I was very glad to nssist in thot project. 1 at onee
organised n large working party consiituted mainly from personnel of the
construction corps. I, myself, took tho iritintive in the work on the spot,
and fulfilled olmost completely the request of the Lmerican Havy,

I would like to review the Torty yoers of my nnval earcer in con-
noction with earrying ocut of my duty.

I perhapa hove not alvaya fully performed my duty. I am certoin,
hovwever, thet I have nover violated my strict ccde of justice end fair play,
I have never compromised my princinles as a navel cofficer and gentlemnn
in carrying out my dutica,

Le T testified from the witness stond the circumstences were such thnt
ry subordinates Rept from me knowledge of these inejdents. Such acts as
those eomritied on Nauru opd Ocean Islands and the ineident of Kempeital
Sergeant Sakamoto, I first learned vhen I rerd the chqyge and speeificati

I cincorcly deplore the faot that alleged 1llegal incidente cculd hrwe
bean enrricd cut by my subordinates. I am quite maturally sincerely comy
for the vietims of these incidents and their bereaved families. I am slso
decply disappointed in mysclf that thesc incidents could bheve haprened in
spito of the fact thet I prided myself upon being an admiral with foith
that I oould meet every domand of duty and responsibility,
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l . I ean sny no more, I wish to sinecerecly exprese my gratitude for
| your grenting me an opportunity to explnin my feclinge as to whrt I did
| and whot I failed to do. I leove my foto to your judgment.
I /8/ Jopnnese characters
|
| I certify that the foregoing is a true and complete tronslation of the
|! originnl in Japanese, to tho best of my ability.
(
Ii %L.}:JW
|; ENE F. CLARK,
i Lieutenant (junior grade),
| U. S. Navy,
i. Interproter,
I
l
|
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Delivered by:

l I JUDGE ADVOCATE'S OFENING ARGUMENT \
I
I
: Lieutenant David Bolton, USN,
I Judge Advocate,
| As the commlisaion is well awere, this has been a long and in many
irespects a tedious trial, The natur: of the charge and specifications,
land the numerous incidents involvod has resulted in a very exhauative
|presentaticn of pertinent detail by both the nrosecution and the defense.
|yIt‘. is not my intention to further burden this cornission by an unnecessarily
ldetailed analysis of this evidence, My opening exgument will be short and
;Imerel;r touch upon the highlights of' the evidence presented. However if
lldefense arguments warrant further discussion of the evidence, I will in my
Iunluai.ng argument endeavor to present a terse analysis of the law ahd of
tha significant evidence presented by both the prosecution and the defense,

Some of the evidence has been esuentlally uncontroversial, some of it
.‘haa been ambiguous, and some has bean conflictirg and even directly
icontradics bory, The ultimate analysis and evalirtlon of this evidence is a
function of the commission., The coumiseicn mus: Aetermine whether in the
1ight of all the evidence, the orocscuticn has proved beyond a reascnable
Egubt, defined and illustrated in Scetions 158 ard 159 of Naval Courss and

ards, that the accused is gulliy as charged,

f In his opening statement the juige advocate presented a detailed
t | nalyasis of the pertinent law, and the evidence which he planned to educe '
|1n order to establish the guilt of the accused, \iith the exception of
ne very minor item, all of this plenued evidencc was presented and 1s
fore the commiassion for their evaluantion., Tre insignifieant itom to which
|I refer, and ns to vhich the prosec:%ion was usable to present substanticl
gact evidence, waa the inclusiun la the training of Japsnese military
sonnel of the idea that to become a priscaer of wer was to lose all
honor and rights as a human heing. Circumstantisllr however the existence |
of this training is evidenced by t:2 fact that misn"arﬂ of war cantured
Lt:;.r the armed fcrees undar the accussd, were subjected o brutal and inhurane
treatment by the subordinates of Li¢ accused, The comulssion is requested
tc reexamine the opening siatement of the »rosecution, in the light of
the evidence produced,

Despite astute efforts by the defeu3’s the essential facte stand out
| clear’y, They unequilvoeally estal'llish the guilt of the accused as cut-
inead in the prcaecusion's coeninn statensnt, Ne pignificant fect ore-
meated by the prosacution has Leen materially meakened or snccesafully
controverted,

The essence of the defense strategy has heer tc vortray the accuseld
rra in the role of tks threa innotsant mocnkeye = Mear No Evil = Seo lo
vil =« Speak No Eril, Two funcameatal factors however destrcy the
ff4cacy of this defense, Tre firet factrr is that civilized sceledy,
:nd the laws and customs of war, have est..olished an rffirmative olanderd
f condnes, a stendari of conluot above aud Deyond that of Lhe anlhronc.a,
*he fa'luve *o hear, see, ¢~ g~ee™ evi) does =ot absolve the arcu=el
" nla es;on:- 1t 1itdes under inte-retional law to take affirmativ~ step-
e @untrol M. auropdipnetes and to nrotect priasrors of wer, ete, The
aco? feover which destroys the erforts cf the uc~ue~d to ~seape ies.ongi-
11!t~ fer Fis failure vo ecntiol his suberdinates ard %o rrotoct ordscaers
f =ex, 1a the fact that the accused, a3 <emonstrated by his conduct and
Lrautmony during the course of this trial, is a man of conslderable
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ntelligence and astuteness - and that desplte the efforta of the accused
o plead ignorance of the mistreatment and killing of priscners of war
within the area of command, despite his efforts to bolster this plea with

is command, the conclusion is inescapable that this alert and astute accused

'ew that orisoners of war were being miastreated and killed by his
jpubordinatea, particularly that he knew of the incidents that occurred on
uk, If the accused did not know of the details of the incidents, or did
jnot know of certain of the incidents, it- is apparent from the persdnality’ -~
{and sbility of thewernséd that such ignorance was the result of a willing
and intenticnal closing of his eyes and sars to the unconcealed, publicly
Esrfomﬂd widely known and commonly ruomored incidents of mistreatment and
11ling of nrisoners of war, And, even if such ignorance of these incidents
did exist, and the ignorance of the accused was not intentional, the law
tdoes not abuo'lva the accused of his guilt, for nelther knnwlodge or wilfull-
;hwn is an essential element of the crime with which the accused is charged.

Enu‘te desceription of the war conditiéna, and the difficulties of administering
|

f To understand the crime, to unlerstand the guilt of the accused, we
must understand the vpurpose, the function, and the essence of the lan which
the accused is charged with violating., The protection of nrisoners of war,
etc. is a responsibility which the law and customs of wmar nlace upon the
ecommander of armed forces, It is a responsibiliiy which places upon the
mccused fundamental affirmative dut‘es with regard to the nrotection of
|priaonara of war, These are affirmative duties from which the accused cannot
|escape by merely claimiag that proper regulations had been vromulgated by
l.ha Jopanese Navy, and that he was too busy to te concerned with whether

i' not they were being carried out,

The lav and customs of war nlczes the affirmctive duty on the
bmndur of arred forces to see that these obl’gatiops; these very obii-
gations vhich the accuse! contends were nlaced in the Japanese Naval

gulations, are carried out by his sulordinates, The law and customs of
‘ ar nlaces this responsibility upon the accused as the commander of these

armed forees, as nell as placing similar obligations upon the subordinates
rt,hemaalvaa.
! The very conditions of intense military efforts and difficulties in
n:unt-rnl of subordinates engendored by prevailing military conditions, from
which the accused sesks to derive justification fom, or escape from, his
|,failwra to take affirmative steps for the ﬂrotu-..l;ion of prisoners of war,

e the very conditions whiéh the iaw nrd cuatore of war presunpose as the

kground within which the commender of military forces must take dofinite
jand affirmative action, and must, “o quote the language of the Supreme

ourt of the United States "take s.ch anwroprinte measures as are vithin

is po-er to control the troops imder his command for the orevention cf the
apacified acta vhich are wiolations ¢f the lew of war,"

It 18 in these ver: conditiops of tense military situations and
ifficulties of control that the laws and custome of war are called into
lav, and the commander of armed forces is called upon, and is respoasible
o take measures to control the forces under his command, The language of
the Supreme "ourt in the Yamashita case 1s clear and unequivocal in this

ard, and is worthy of revetition, The Supreme Court said "It is evident
t tne cenduot of military operatiomns Yy troops whose excessas are
nrestrained by tbe orders or efforts of their commander would almost
ertalnly resclt in violations which it is the ourocse of the law of war teo
evert, its purpose to protsct civilian populations and priscners of wagr
rom hrutality would largely be deteated if the commapder of an inwvading
conld with impunity neglect to take reasonable measures rfor their

otaction,”
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The failure of the accused to concern himself with the oroblem of
protection of prisoners of war from mistreatment, his failure to take any

aubstantial action to protect or order the protection of prisoners of war,
|ete, in and of itself constitutes a viclation of the law and customa of

| nar, It constitotes the disregard and failure to discharge his duty which
|is set forth clearly in the specifications and amplified in the onening

| statement of the judge advoecate, The addditional factors which are
presented in the evidence hefore the commission go beyond this and establish
|| that the accused should have known, and in fact knew of the incidents of
mistreatment and killing of priscners of war which occeurred on Truk. His

i fallure to take action to investigante these incidents, and his failure to

:| punish his subordinates who direetly ordered and participated in these

|| incidents constituted a condonation of the crimes which they committed, and
i; an ageravation of the offense with which he is charged.

Respectfully

Ry i) Bolten
DAVID BCLTON,

Lieutenant, U, S. Navy,
Judge Advocate.
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